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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

Quarterly report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) ofthe
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 for the quarterly @riod ended December 31, 2006

Commission File Number 001-13357

D)
///A ROYALGOLD,INC

(a Delaware corporation)

Royal Gold, Inc.
1660 Wynkoop Street, Suite 1000
Denver, Colorado 80202-1132
(303) 573-1660
(Name, State of Incorporation, Address and Telepidnmber)

I.R.S. Employer Identification Numb&¢#-0835164

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant ék)filed all reports required to be filed by Seeti3 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (ordiech shorter period that the Registrant was reduddile such reports), and (2) has been

subject to such filing requirements for the pastf@s. Yesd NoO

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrantl&asge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, noa-accelerated filer. See definition of

“accelerated filer and large accelerated filerRinle 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
Large accelerated filé Accelerated fileE&d Non-accelerated fildd

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrantsbeall company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Bxgje Act). Yedl No ™

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of e&tedssuer’s classes of common stock, as ofdtest practical date: 23,614,916 shares of
the Company’s Common Stock, par value $0.01 peesheere outstanding as of January 31, 2007.
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ROYAL GOLD, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31

2006 June 30
(Unaudited) 2006

Current assetl

Cash and equivalen $ 70,936,37. $ 78,449,38

Royalty receivable 8,620,95! 5,962,05:

Deferred tax asse 106,55: 131,62:

Prepaid expenses and otl 484,17 232,83¢
Total current asse 80,148,05 84,775,89
Royalty interests in mineral properties, net (N8} 99,701,69 84,589,56
Available for sale securities (Note 1,884,69! 1,988,44.
Deferred tax asse 1,016,02! 495,01¢
Other asset 641,21: 410,89!
Total asset $183,391,68 $172,259,82
Current liabilities

Accounts payabl $ 2,790,79 $ 1,075,64

Income taxes payab 567,21¢ 334,76°

Dividend payabl¢ 1,541,43I 1,300,622

Accrued compensatic 689,00( 375,00(

Other 102,10: 237,48.
Total current liabilities 5,690,55I 3,323,511
Deferred tax liabilities 6,639,58! 7,178,90
Other lon¢-term liabilities 84,54¢ 97,74¢
Total Liabilities 12,414,68 10,600,17
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Stockholder' equity

Common stock, $.01 par value, authorized 40,000sb@0es; and issued 23,844,140 and 23,816,640

shares, respective 238,44: 238,16!

Additional paic-in capital 168,133,51 166,459,67
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 387,02! 498,46
Accumulated earnings (defic 3,314,88 (4,439,77)
Treasury stock, at cost (229,224 sha (1,096,87) (1,096,87)
Total stockholdel' equity 170,976,99 161,659,64
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $183,391,68 $172,259,82

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbeasolidated financial statements
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ROYAL GOLD, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compselemcome

(Unaudited)

Royalty revenue

Costs and expens
Costs of operation
General and administratiy
Exploration and business developm
Depreciation, depletion and amortizati
Total costs and expens

Operating incom:

Interest and other incon
Interest and other expen

Income before income tax

Current tax expens
Deferred tax benef
Net income

Adjustments to comprehensive inco
Unrealized change in market value of availablestde securities, net of t:
Comprehensive incorr

Basic earnings per she

Basic weighted average shares outstan

Diluted earnings per sha

Diluted weighted average shares outstan

For The Three Months End:

December 31

December 31

2006 2005
$12,279,67 $ 7,575,30
872,07 617,50
1,532,26! 1,647,991
472,63 1,026,541
2,105 47! 1,030,44:
4,982,44 4,322,48
7,297,23 3,252,81i
954,36 1,016,56:
(65,387) (33,779
8,186,22! 4,235,60
(3,269,12)  (1,591,23)
718,55t 262,92
$ 5,635,65  $ 2,907,29!
(189,18:) 139,19°
$ 5,446,471  $ 3,046,49
$ 024 $ 0.1z
23,604,57 23,276,47
$ 024 $ 0.1z
23,854,74  23,564,03

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbeasolidated financial statements
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ROYAL GOLD, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compselemcome

(Unaudited)

Royalty revenue

Costs and expens
Costs of operation
General and administratiy
Exploration and business developm
Depreciation, depletion, and amortizat

Total costs and expens
Operating incom:

Interest and other incon
Interest and other expen

Income before income tax

Current tax expens
Deferred tax benef
Net income

Adjustments to comprehensive inco
Unrealized change in market value of availablestde securities, net of t:
Comprehensive incorr

Basic earnings per she

Basic weighted average shares outstan

Diluted earnings per sha

Diluted weighted average shares outstan

For The Six Months Ende

December 31

December 31

2006 2005

$22,025,47  $14,402,92
1,530,58 1,107,20
2,665,92; 2,607,50-
891,17 1,461,25
3,177,69: 1,928,46!
8,265,37! 7,104,43
13,760,10 7,298,49
1,925,55! 1,453,65!
(131,695 (54,780
15,553,96 8,697,37:
(5,920,07)  (3,354,72)
961,90; 622,08
$10,595,78  $ 5,964,721
(111,43) 225,15
$10,484,35 $ 6,189,88
$ 045 % 0.27
23,590,29 22,201,54
$ 044  $ 0.27
23,81954  22,452,46

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbeasolidated financial statements
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ROYAL GOLD, INC.
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders’ Equitytiier Six Months Ended December 31, 2006

(Unaudited)
Additional Accumulatec Accumulater Total
Common Share Paic-In Other (Deficit) Treasury Stocl Stockholder
Shares Amount Capital Comprehensive Incor Earnings Shares Amount Equity
Balance at June 30, 20 23,816,64 $ 238,16! $166,459,67 $ 498,46: $ (4,439,77) 229,22: $(1,096,87) $ 161,659,64
Issuance of common stock fq
Exercise of stock optior 20,00( 201 282,30( 282,50:
Vesting of restricted stoc 7,50 75 (75) —
Tax benefit of stoc-basec
compensation exercis 69,09° 69,097
Recognition of no-cash compensatic
expense for stock-based
compensation (Note ! 1,322,52 1,322,52.
Net income and comprehensive inco
for the six months ende (111,43) 10,595,78 10,484,35
Dividends declare: (2,841,12) (2,841,12)
Balance at December 31, 20 23,844,14 $ 238,44: $168,133,51 $ 387,02! $ 3,314,888 229,22 $(1,096,87) $ 170,976,99

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbeasolidated financial statements
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ROYAL GOLD, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Unaudited)

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigenl by operating activitie:
Depreciation, depletion and amortizati
Deferred tax benef
Non-cash employee stock option compensation exp
Tax benefit of stoc-based compensation exerci:

Changes in assets and liabiliti
Royalty receivable
Prepaid expenses and other as
Accounts payabl
Federal income taxes payable (receiva
Accrued liabilities and other current liabiliti
Other lon¢-term liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activit

Cash flows from investing activitie
Capital expenditures for property and equipn
Acquisition of royalty interests in mineral progest
Advance to High River Gol
Purchase of available for sale securi

Net cash used in investing activiti
Cash flows from financing activitie
Tax benefit of stoc-based compensation exerci:
Dividends paic
Net proceeds from issuance of common s
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi
Net (decrease) increase in cash and equiva

Cash and equivalents at beginning of pe

Cash and equivalents at end of pel

Supplemental cash flow informatic
Cash paid during the period ft
Income taxe:

For The Six Months Ende

December 31

December 31

2006 2005
$10,595,78 $ 5,964,72
3,177,69, 1,928,46!
(961,907 (622,08()
1,322,52 1,312,82
(69,09) (502,40))
(2,658,89) 209,96¢
(491,36) (3,569,201
1,715,15: 2,235,45
301,54¢ (287,48
178,62 530,30!
(13,200) (13,200)
13,096,86 7,187,37!
(44,72) (5,066)
(18,235,38)  (25,221,80)
— (6,687,55)
(81,045 (204,71}
(18,361,15)  (32,119,13)
69,09 502,40+
(2,600,31)  (2,213,54)
282,50  57,675,60
(2,248,72)  55,964,46
(7,513,00)  31,032,70.
78,449,38  48,840,37
$70,936,37 $79,873,07
$ 561852 $ 3,382,221

The accompanying notes are an integral part obthessolidated financial statements
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudit ed)

1. OPERATIONS, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIC IES AND RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING
PRONOUNCEMENTS

Operations

Royal Gold, Inc. (“Royal Gold”, the “Company”, “wg"us”, or “our”), together with its subsidiarids,engaged in the business of acquiring
and managing precious metals royalties. Royaltiepassive (non-operating) interests in miningqoty that provide the right to receive
revenue from the project after deducting specitiests, if any.

We seek to acquire existing royalties or to finapogects that are in production or near produciioexchange for royalty interests. We also
fund exploration on properties thought to contaiecpus metals and seek to obtain royalties anerathrried ownership interests in such
properties through the subsequent transfer of tipgranterests to other mining companies. Subsa#iptall of our revenues are and will be
expected to be derived from royalty interests. \Wadt conduct mining operations at this time.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying unaudited consolidated finanta#éments have been prepared in accordance widrgBnaccepted accounting
principles for interim financial information and thithe instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 1(R&fgulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not
include all of the information and footnotes regdiby U.S. generally accepted accounting princifdeannual financial statements. In the
opinion of management, all adjustments which are wérmal recurring nature considered necessary fair statement have been included in
this Form 10-Q. Operating results for the six merdhded December 31, 2006, are not necessarilyaitind of the results that may be
expected for the fiscal year ending June 30, 20@Ttain prior period amounts have been reclassifiesbnform to the current period
presentation. These interim unaudited financidgkstents should be read in conjunction with the Camyfs Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

On July 13, 2006, Financial Accounting StandardarBq“FASB”) Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN 48" Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes — An Interpretation of FASB Statement No., 108 issued. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting focertainty in income taxes recognized
in a company’s financial statements in accordanitie 8FAS 109. FIN 48 also prescribes a recognitimashold and measurement attribute
for the financial statement recognition and meawnerg of tax positions taken or expected to be takentax return. FIN 48 also provides
guidance on de-recognition, classification, inteeggl penalties, accounting in interim periodsgldsure, and transition. The provisions of
FIN 48 are effective for our fiscal year beginnihgy 1, 2007. The Company is evaluating the imgpéaty, the adoption of FIN 48 could
have on our financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement NG .Fibr Value MeasurementsStatement No. 157 provides guidance for usingviaue

to measure assets and liabilities. Statement Nbapplies whenever other accounting standardsne@i permit) assets or liabilities to be
measured at fair value but does not expand thefusér value in any new circumstances. Under Statet No. 157, fair value refers to the

price that would be received to sell an asset @ wetransfer a liability between market participain the market in which the reporting en
transacts. In this standard, the FASB clarifiesghieciple that fair value should be based on #simptions market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability. The provisiafsStatement No. 157 are effective for our fisgedr beginning
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudit ed)

July 1, 2008, and interim periods within the fisgahr. The Company is evaluating the impact, if, ding adoption of Statement No. 157 cc
have on our financial statements.

Also in September 2006, the Securities and Exch&ugemission (“SEC”) issued Staff Accounting Bultehlo. 108 (“SAB 108”)Financial
Statements — Considering the Effects of Prior Yéigstatements when Quantifying Misstatements imedaitY ear Financial Statements.”
SAB 108 provides guidance on how prior year migstents should be taken into consideration whentiyisg misstatements in current
year financial statements for purposes of detemgimihether the current y¢s financial statements are materially misstate&B 308
provides that once a current year misstatemenbéas quantified, the guidance in SAB No. B®ancial Statements — Materialifyshould b
applied to determine whether the misstatement teriadand should result in an adjustment to tharicial statements. We will apply the
provisions of SAB 108 with the preparation of onnaal financial statements for the fiscal year egdiune 30, 2007. The Company is
currently evaluating, but does not expect the appitin of the provisions of SAB 108 to have a mateémpact, if any, on our financial
statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2007

2. ROYALTY ACQUISITION
Gold Hill

On December 8, 2006, Royal Gold paid $3.3 milloMNevada Star Resource Corp. in exchange for amelter return (“NSR”) sliding-scale
royalty and certain unpatented mining claims onGloéd Hill deposit. The NSR sliding-scale royalty the Gold Hill deposit will pay 2.0%
when the price of gold is above $350 per ouncelad® when the price of gold falls to $350 per ouocbelow. The royalty is also subject
a minimum royalty payment of $100,000 per year. Gotd Hill deposit, located just north of the Roudduntain gold mine in Nye County,
Nevada, is controlled by Round Mountain Gold Cogtion, a joint venture between Kinross Gold, therafor, and Barrick Gold Corporati
(“Barrick™). Production on the Gold Hill deposit éxpected to commence once permitting is complatedequipment from the Round
Mountain pit becomes available.

The Gold Hill transaction was accounted for as zlpase of assets. As such, the $3.3 million adipmscost, plus approximately $15,000 of
acquisition costs, is recorded as a componeRigalty Interests in Mineral Propertiesis a development stage royalty, on the conselidat
balance sheets of Royal Gold.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudit ed)

3. ROYALTY INTERESTS IN MINERAL PROPERTIES
The following table summarizes the net book valieazh of our royalty interests in mineral propestas of December 31, 2006 and June 30,

2006.

As of December 31, 2006:

Accumulatec

Depletion &
Gross Amortization Net
Production stage royalty interes
Pipeline Mining Comple:
GSR1 $ — —  $ =
GSR2 — — —
GSR3 8,105,02! (6,162,57) 1,942,44
NVR1 2,135,10 (1,567,63i) 567,47
Bald Mountain 1,978,54 (1,829,28)) 149,26:
SJ Claims 20,788,44 (6,042,761 14,745,68
Robinson mine 17,824,77 (956,04() 16,868,73
Mulatos mine 7,441, 77 (377,489 7,064,29i
Troy mine GSR royalt 7,250,001 (1,517,01) 5,732,98!
Troy mine Perpetual royal 250,00( — 250,00(
Leeville Soutt 1,775,80! (1,775,80) —
Leeville North 14,240,41 (864,649 13,375,76
Martha 172,81( (172,81() —
81,962,71 (21,266,06)  60,696,64
Development stage royalty interes
Taparko Projec
TB-GSR1 24,909,18 — 24,909,18
TB-GSR2 7,280,221 — 7,280,221
TB-GSR3 1,026,93: — 1,026,93:
Gold Hill 3,340,38 — 3,340,38
36,556,72 — 36,556,72
Exploration stage royalty interes
Taparko Projec
TB-GSR3 207,93t — 207,93t
TB-MR1 135,61: — 135,61:
Leeville North 2,305,84! (271,18) 2,034,65!
Buckhorn Soutt 70,11° — 70,117
2,719,51 (271,18) 2,448,32i
Total royalty interests in mineral propert $121,238,94  $(21,537,24) $99,701,69




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudit ed)

As of June 30, 2006:

Production stage royalty interes
Pipeline Mining Comple;
GSR1
GSR2
GSR3
NVR1
Bald Mountain
SJ Claims
Robinson mine
Mulatos mine
Troy mine GSR royalt
Troy mine Perpetual royal
Leeville Soutt
Leeville North
Martha

Development stage royalty interes
Taparko Projec
TB-GSR1
TB-GSR2
TB-GSR3

Exploration stage royalty interes
Taparko Projec
TB-GSR3
TB-MR1
Leeville North
Buckhorn Soutt

Total royalty interests in mineral propert

Accumulatec

Depletion &

Gross Amortization Net
$ —  $ — 3 —
8,105,022 (5,976,53) 2,128,48!
2,135,10 (1,548,57) 586,53(
1,978,54 (1,817,581 160,96:
20,788,44 (5,122,20)  15,666,23
17,824,77 (301,460  17,523,31
7,441,777 (128,799 7,312,98.
7,250,00! (1,140,871 6,109,13!
250,00( — 250,00(
1,775,80! (1,753,58) 22,22:
14,240,41 (180,379  14,060,03
172,81 (172,810 —
81,962,71  (18,142,80)  63,819,90
13,859,87 — 13,859,87
4,053,922 — 4,053,92
569,06: — 569,06:
18,482,86 — 18,482,86
110,17¢ — 110,17¢
71,85 — 71,85
2,305,84! (271,18) 2,034,65:
70,11° — 70,11°
2,557,98! (271,18 2,286,80.
$103,003,56  $(18,413,99) $84,589,56




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudit ed)

Discussed below is a status of each of our royatgrests in mineral properties.

Pipeline Mining Complex

We own two gross smelter return (“GSR”) slidiagale royalties (GSR1 ranging from 0.40% to 5.0% @SR2 ranging from 0.72% to 9.0¢
a 0.71% fixed gross smelter royalty (GSR3), and38% net value royalty (NVR1) over the Pipeline Miop Complex that includes the
Pipeline, South Pipeline, GAP and Crossroads gefibslits in Lander County, Nevada.

The Pipeline Mining Complex is owned by the Codeint Venture, a joint venture between Barrick (§0&hd Kennecott Explorations
(Australia) Ltd. (40%), a subsidiary of Rio Tinticp

Bald Mountain

We own a 1.75% to 3.5% sliding-scale NSR royalgt thurdens a portion of the Bald Mountain minéMhite Pine County, Nevada. Bald
Mountain is an open pit, heap leach mine operageBarrick. The sliding-scale royalty increases ecrases with the gold price, adjusted by
the 1986 Producer Price Index. Our royalty rataisulated quarterly and would currently increas2%, from 1.75%, at a quarterly average
gold price of approximately $725 per ounce in togapllars.

SJ Claims

We own a 0.9% NSR on the SJ Claims that coverstiopmf the Betze-Post mine, in Eureka County, &t Betze-Post is an open pit mine
operated by Barrick at its Goldstrike property.

Robinson Mine

We own a 3% NSR royalty on the Robinson mine, ledan eastern Nevada. The Robinson mine is an pipeopper mine with significant
gold and molybdenum production. The mine is ownedi @perated by Quadra.

Mulatos Mine

We own a slidingscale NSR royalty on the Mulatos mine, locatedon@®a, Mexico. The Mulatos mine, owned and operbtedlamos, is a
open pit, heap leach gold mine. The Mulatos miitergj-scale royalty, capped at two million ouncégaold production, ranges from 0.30%
for gold prices below $300 up to 1.50% for goldcps above $400.

Troy Mine

We own a production payment equivalent to a 7.09R @&¥alty from all metals and products produced swld from the Troy mine, located
in northeastern Montana and operated by ReveteSompany (“Revett”)The GSR royalty will extend until either cumulatipeoduction o
approximately 9.9 million ounces of silver and 8hiflion pounds of copper, or the Company rece##8.5 million in cumulative payments,
whichever occurs first. As of December 31, 2006 haee received payments associated with the GS&tyaptaling $3.5 million.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudit ed)

We also own a GSR royalty which begins at 6.1%mn@oduction in excess of 11.0 million ouncesibfes and 94.1 million pounds of
copper, and steps down to a perpetual 2% after lativel production has exceeded 12.7 million ourafesilver and 108.2 million pounds of
copper. Effective January 1, 2006, we have re-ifladour interest in the perpetual royalty fromexploration stage royalty interest to a
production stage royalty interest due to an ineréaseserves at the Troy mine.

Leeville Project

We own a 1.8% carried working interest, equal 108% NSR royalty, which covers the majority of theeville Project, in Eureka County,
Nevada. Current production from the Leeville Projealerived from Leeville South and Leeville Notthderground mines, which ¢
operated by Newmont Mining Corporation (“Newmont”).

During our first fiscal quarter of 2006, Newmongha mining operations at Leeville North. Accordingluring our first fiscal quarter of
2006, we reclassified our cost basis in LeevilletNas a production stage royalty interest. As sueghbegan depleting our cost basis using
the units of production method during our firscésquarter of 2006.

We carry our interest in the non-reserve portiohexdville North as an exploration stage royaltgiast, which is not subject to periodic
amortization. In the event that future proven arabpble reserves are developed at Leeville Nodbaated with our royalty interest, the ¢
basis of our exploration stage royalty interest bél reclassified as a development stage royalyrast or a production stage royalty intere
future periods, as appropriate. In the event thiatré circumstances indicate that the non-reseovigop of Leeville North will not be
converted into proven and probable reserves, weewdlluate our carrying value in the exploraticeggt interest for impairment.

Martha Mine

We own a 2% NSR royalty on the Martha mine locateithe Santa Cruz Province of Argentina, operate@beur d’Alene Mining
Corporation. The Martha mine is a high grade uneengd silver mine.

Taparko Mine

We hold a production payment equivalent to a 15@&8R (TB-GSR1) royalty on all gold produced from fraparko Project, located in
Burkina Faso and operated by Somita. TB-GSR1 eitiain in-force until cumulative production of 8024ounces of gold is achieved or
until cumulative payments of $35 million have beeade to Royal Gold, whichever is earlier. We alsh fa production payment equivalent
to a GSR sliding-scale royalty (TB-GSR2 rangingrro% to 10%) on all gold produced from the TapaPkoject. TB-GSR2 is effective
concurrently with TB-GSR1, and will remain in-forfrem completion of the funding commitment untiettermination of TB-GSR1. We
carry our interests in TB-GSR1 and TB-GSR2 as dgraknt stage royalty interests, which are not atiresubject to periodic amortization.

We also hold a perpetual 2% GSR royalty (TB-GSR8albgold produced from the Taparko Project aflé&GSR3 will commence upon
termination of the TB-GSR1 and TB-GSR2 royaltiepdition of the TB-GSR3 royalty is associated véltisting proven and probable
reserves and has been classified as a developtagetreyalty interest, which is not subject to peic amortization at this time. The
remaining portion of the TB-GSR3 royalty, whichnist currently associated with proven and probagsdenves, is classified as an exploration
stage royalty interest, which is also not subjeqidriodic amortization at this time.

11




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudit ed)

In addition, we hold a 0.75% milling fee royalty§gIMR1) on all gold processed through the TaparkmeRt processing facilities that is
mined from any area outside of the Taparko Pr@eed. TB-MR1 is classified as an exploration stagalty interest and is not subject to
periodic amortization at this time.

The royalty documents for the foregoing royaltiasdnbeen signed and we are holding them pendingletion of our $35 million funding
commitment (of which we have funded $33.6 milliencd January 31, 2007) to Somita. Upon completioouo funding commitment, the
royalty documents will be released and recordedteniggally effective. See Note 8 below for mor@imation about the Amended and
Restated Funding Agreement.

Gold Hill

We hold a sliding-scale NSR royalty on the Gold Hédposit, located just north of the Round Moungatd mine in Nye County, Nevada.
The sliding-scale NSR royalty on the Gold Hill dsjtavill pay 2.0% when the price of gold is aboa5s8 per ounce and 1.0% when the price
of gold falls to $350 per ounce or below. The Gdili deposit is controlled by Round Mountain Goldi@oration, a joint venture between
Kinross Gold, the operator, and Barrick. We cay iaterest in the Gold Hill deposit as a developtrstage royalty interest, which is not
currently subject to periodic amortization.

Buckhorn South

We hold a 16.5% net profits interest royalty on Buekhorn South property, located in Eureka CouNyada. The Buckhorn South interest
is classified as an exploration stage royalty eder

4. AVAILABLE FOR SALE SECURITIES

Investments in securities that have readily deteainie market values are classified as availablsdt investments. Unrealized gains and
losses on these investments are recorded in acateduther comprehensive income (net of tax) &parate component of stockholders’
equity. We recorded an unrealized loss (net of &:$189,182 for the three months ended Decembe2@®16, and an unrealized gain (net of
tax) of $139,197 for the three months ended Decel®be2005. We recorded an unrealized loss (n&bgfof $111,437 for the six months
ended December 31, 2006, and an unrealized gaimftex) of $225,154 for the six months ended Delger 31, 2005. When investments
sold, the realized gains and losses on the sdlesé investments, as determined using the spatgintification method, are included in
determining net income. We had no sales of avail&il sale investments during the three and sixthwended December 31, 2006 and 2

We hold 1.3 million shares of Revett that are rdedras an investment in available for sale seeardn the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
market value for our investment in the shares ofdRavas $1,465,830 as of December 31, 2006. Gatrbasis in the Revett shares is $1.0
million.

We hold 1,037,500, 518,750, and 100,000 sharesrofiton stock, warrants and stock options, respdgtiireTaranis Resources Inc.
(“Taranis”). The market value for our investmenfTi@ranis’ common stock, warrants and stock optisas $418,869 as of December 31,
2006. Our cost basis in the Taranis common stoekramts and stock options is $285,761.
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5. STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY AND STOCK-BASED COMPENSATIO N

The Company accounts for its stock-based compeamsetiaccordance with FASB Statement No. 123 (exl/2004) Share-Based Payment
(“SFAS 123(R)"), which is a revision of FASB Statent No. 123 Accounting for Stock-Based Compensafi@FAS 123"). SFAS 123(R)
requires all stock-based payments to employeelsidimg grants of employee stock options, to be gaexed in the financial statements based
on their fair values.

2004 Omnibus Long-Term Incentive Plan

In November 2004, the Company adopted the OmnilougjiTerm Incentive Plan (“2004 Plan”). The 2004rRieplaces the Company’s
Equity Incentive Plan. Under the 2004 Plan, 900 8i8éres of Common Stock are available for futuamtgrto officers, directors, key
employees and other persons. The Plan providdhdagrant of stock options, unrestricted stockirieted stock, dividend equivalent rights,
stock appreciation rights, and cash awards. Arthede awards may, but need not, be made as perfoenracentives. Stock options granted
under the 2004 Plan may be non-qualified stockootor incentive stock options.

For the three and six months ended December 38, 200recorded total non-cash stock compensatiparese related to our equity
compensation plans of $909,682 and $1,322,521ectisply, compared to $1,074,485 and $1,312,828@ithree and six months ended
December 31, 2005, respectively. Non-cash stockpemsation is allocated among cost of operationsemgé and administrative, and
exploration and business development in our codiatdd statements of operations and comprehengiven|. The allocation among cost of
operations, general and administrative and busidegslopment for the three and six months ende@Bber 31, 2006, and 2005 is shown
below:

For The Three Months Ends For The Six Months Ende
December 3: December 3: December 3: December 3:

2006 2005 2006 2005

Non-cash compensation allocatic

Cost of operation $ 116,44: $ 128,07¢ $ 173,87( $ 156,66«
General and administratiy 608,00: 619,07: 841,43. 741,02¢
Business developme 185,23t 327,33: 307,21¢ 415,13
Total nor-cash compensation exper $ 909,68. $1,074,48°  $1,322,52, $1,312,82

The total income tax benefit associated with rBash stock compensation expense was approximeal,#0 and $476,000 for the three
six months ended December 31, 2006, respectiveiyipared to approximately $387,000 and $472,00¢h®three and six months ended
December 31, 2005, respectively.

As of December 31, 2006, there are 283,584 sh&mwsnomon stock reserved for future issuance unde2604 Plan.
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Stock Options

Stock option awards are granted with an exercige gqual to the closing market price of the Comyfmstock at the date of grant. Stock
option awards granted to officers, key employeabather persons vest based on one to three yeamtihuous service. Stock option awe
granted to directors vest immediately with respe@0% of the shares granted and after one yearregipect to the remaining 50% granted.
Stock option awards have 10 year contractual terms.

To determine non-cash stock compensation expenstdck option awards, the fair value of each sigaon award is estimated on the date
of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton (“Black-8lels”) option pricing model for all periods presamht The Black-Scholes model requires
key assumptions in order to determine fair valug thiwse key assumptions as of our November 200@&Nardmber 2005 grants are noted in
the following table:

2006 2005
Weighted average expected volatil 52.8¢% 61.2(%
Weighted average expected option term in y 5.1 5.4
Weighted average dividend yie 0.95% 1.0(%
Weighted average risk free interest t 4.62% 4.5%

On November 7, 2006, 91,500 stock options unde2@2l Plan were granted to officers and certainlepags under the 2004 Plan. These
options have an exercise price of $28.78, whichtaslosing market price for our common stocklmdate of grant. On November 8,
2006, 15,000 stock options under the 2004 Plan gyenated to the Board of Directors (“Directors”)agt exercise price of $29.20, which was
the closing market price of our common stock ondhe of grant.

A summary of stock option activity under our equimpensation plans for the six months ended DeeeBih 2006, is presented below:

Weighter-
Average
Weightec- Remaining
Average Contractue Aggregate
Exercise Term Intrinsic
Options Shares Price (Years) Value
Outstanding at July 1, 20( 528,41: $ 14.8¢
Granted 106,50( 28.8¢
Exercisec (20,000 14.1:
Forfeited and Expire — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 614,91 $ 17.31 6.8 $11,479,70
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 467,24 $ 14.5i 4.5 $10,004,05

The weighted-average grant date fair value of otigranted during the period ended December 38,20@ 2005, was $13.77 and $12.04,
respectively. The total intrinsic value of optiameercised during the three and six month periode@mecember 31, 2006, was $292,900.
The total intrinsic value of options exercised dgrthe three and six month periods ended Decenthe?(®5, were $3,508,035 and
$3,516,560, respectively.

A summary of the status of the Company’s non-vestedk options for the six months ended DecembgeRBQ6, is presented below:
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Weightec-Average

Shares Grant Date Fair Valu
Non-vested at July 1, 20( 132,33: $11.2¢
Granted 106,50( $13.77
Vested (91,167 $11.62
Forfeited — $ —
Non-vested at December 31, 20 147,66 $12.82

For the three months ended December 31, 2006 &0&] 2@ recorded non-cash compensation expenseaassbwith stock options of
$409,590 and $413,796, respectively. For the sirtiroended December 31, 2006 and 2005, we recomtedash compensation expense
associated with stock options of $648,512 and $&®,As of December 31, 2006, there was $1,57408%5%al unrecognized non-cash stock
compensation expense related to non-vested stdwnsmranted under our equity compensation plahgh is expected to be recognized
over a weighted-average period of 1.8 years. Ttad tair value of shares vested during the threathmbended December 31, 2006, and 2005,
was $1,059,748 and $439,827, respectively. Théfaitavalue of shares vested during the six moethded December 31, 2006, and 2005
was $1,059,748 and $492,957, respectively.

Other StockBased Compensation

On November 7, 2006, officers and certain employes® granted 56,000 shares of restricted comnuak $hat can be earned only if either
one of two defined multi-year performance goalsiet within five years of the date of grant (“Penfiamce Shares”). If the performance goals
are not earned by the end of this five year petiogl Performance Shares will be forfeited. Vesth§erformance Shares is subject to certain
performance measures being met and can be basedinterim earn out of 25%, 50%, 75% or 100%. Té#ned performance goals are tied
to two different performance measures: (1) grovitiree cash flow per share on a trailing twelve thdmasis; and (2) growth of royalty
ounces in reserve on an annual basis.

A summary of the status of the Company’s non-veBtdiormance Shares for the six months ended DesreBibh 2006, is presented below:

Weightec-Average

Shares Grant Date Fair Valu
Non-vested at July 1, 20( 41,50( $19.1¢
Granted 36,00( $28.7¢
Vested — $ —
Forfeited — $ —
Non-vested at December 31, 20 77,50( $23.6¢4

We measure the fair value of the Performance Shma®sd upon the market price of our common stodf Hee date of grant. In accordance
with SFAS 123(R), the measurement datethe Performance Shares will be determined ett sime that the performance goals are attain
that it is probable they will be attained. At sdirhe that it is probable that a performance coaditvill be achieved, compensation expense
will be measured by the number of shares thatudtitnately be earned based on the market pricairoEommon stock on the date of grant.
Interim recognition of compensation expense wilhfede at such time as management can reasonaibhatesthe number of shares that will
be earned. As of December 31, 2006, our estimathsated that it is probable that approximately 7a®6ur non-vested Performance Shares,
will be earned. For the three and six months efdszbmber 31, 2006, we recorded non-cash stock awapien expense associated with our
Performance
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Shares of $292,917 and $382,096, respectivelytheothree and six months ended December 31, 208%eeorded non-cash stock
compensation expense associated with our Perfor@hares of $0 and $473,629, respectively. As aEbBer 31, 2006, total unrecognized
non-cash stock compensation expense related tBerfwrmance Shares is $585,834, which is expeotbd tecognized over the next

0.5 years, the period over which it is probablé tha performance goals will be attained.

On November 7, 2006, officers and certain employes® granted 56,000 shares of restricted comnumk stvhich vest by continued servi
alone (“Restricted Stock”). Restricted Stock awagdmted to officers and certain employees vest three years beginning after a three-year
holding period from the date of grant with one-thif the shares vesting in years four, five andrggpectively. On November 8, 2006, our
non-executive directors were granted 7,500 shdrBestricted Stock. The non-executive directorgirels of Restricted Stock vest as to 50%
immediately and 50% one year after the date oftgfimares of Restricted Stock represent issueaatstanding shares of common stock,
with dividend and voting rights. We measure the ¥alue of the Restricted Stock based upon the etgmikce of our common stock as of the
date of grant. Restricted Stock is amortized olerapplicable vesting period using the straighe-fimethod. Unvested shares of Restricted
Stock are subject to forfeiture upon terminatiorwiployment with the Company.

A summary of the status of the Company’s non-veRtestricted Stock for the six months ended DecerBbeP006, is presented below:

Weightec-Average

Shares Grant Date Fair Valu

Non-vested at July 1, 20( 77,25( $ 20.6(
Granted 63,50( $ 28.8:
Vested (7,500 $ 26.41
Forfeited — $ —
Non-vested at December 31, 20 133,25( $ 24.1¢

For the three months ended December 31, 2006, @0t e recorded non-cash stock compensation eg@as®ciated with the Restricted
Stock of $207,175 and $187,060, respectively. Rersix months ended December 31, 2006, and 200Eeaeeded non-cash stock
compensation associated with the Restricted Stb§R®1,913 and $230,149. As of December 31, 2@f1é| tinrecognized non-cash stock
compensation expense related to Restricted Stoskb2@37,917, which is expected to be recognized the remaining average vesting
period of 4.75 years.

Stock Issuances

During the three and six months ended Decembe2(®16, options to purchase 20,000 shares were sgdraiesulting in proceeds of
$282,501. During the three months ended Decemhe2(b, options to purchase 191,561 shares wereisgé, resulting in proceeds of
$2,940,538. During the six months ended Decembg2@15, options to purchase 192,561 shares wereisad, resulting in proceeds of
$2,954,653.

In September 2005, we sold 2,227,912 shares af@umon stock in an underwritten public offeringagirice of $26.00 per share, resulting
in proceeds of approximately $54.7 million, whishmiet of the underwriters’ discount of $2.9 milliand estimated transaction costs of
approximately $327,000. The net proceeds in thistggffering have been and will continue to bedise fund the acquisition and financing
of additional royalty interests and for generalpaate purposes.
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6. EARNINGS PER SHARE (“EPS”) COMPUTATION

For The Three Months Ended December 31, -

Income Shares Pe-Shart
(Numerator) (Denominator Amount
Basic EPS
Income available to common stockhold $5,635,65: 23,604,57 $ 0.24
Effect of dilutive securitie 250,16¢
Diluted EPS $5,635,65: 23,854,74. $ 0.24

As of December 31, 2006, all outstanding stock-thasenpensation awards were included in the comiputaf diluted EPS because the
exercise price of all the options was less tharatrerage market price of the common shares fop¢hed.

For The Three Months Ended December 31, -

Income Shares Pe-Shar¢
(Numerator) (Denominator Amount
Basic EPS
Income available to common stockhold $2,907,29! 23,276,47 $ 0.1z
Effect of dilutive securitie 287,56(
Diluted EPS $2,907,29! 23,564,03 $ 0.1

As of December 31, 2005, all outstanding stock-thasenpensation awards were included in the comiputaf diluted EPS because the
exercise price of all the options was less tharatreage market price of the common shares fop¢hed.

For The Six Months Ended December 31, 2

Income Shares Per-Shart
(Numerator) (Denominator Amount
Basic EPS
Income available to common stockhold $10,595,78 23,590,29 $ 0.4t
Effect of dilutive securitie 229,24
Diluted EPS $10,595,78 23,819,54 $ 0.44

17




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudit ed)

As of December 31, 2006, all outstanding stock-thasenpensation awards were included in the comiputaf diluted EPS because the
exercise price of all the options was less tharatregage market price of the common stock for #reo.

For The Six Months Ended December 31, 2

Income Shares Per-Shart
(Numerator) (Denominator Amount
Basic EPS
Income available to common stockhold $5,964,72 22,201,54 $ 0.27
Effect of dilutive securitie 250,91°
Diluted EPS $5,964,72 22,452,46 $ 0.27

As of December 31, 2005, all outstanding stock-thasenpensation awards were included in the comiputaf diluted EPS because the
exercise price of all the options was less tharatregage market price of the common stock for #reog.

7. INCOME TAXES

For the three months ended December 31, 2006, seeded current and deferred tax expense of $2,330;6mpared with $1,328,312 duri
the three months ended December 31, 2005. OuttigHdex rate for the three months ended DecembgP@06, was 31.2%, compared with
31.4% for the three months ended December 31, Z085decrease in our effective tax between penigadsthe result of a decrease in our
State of Colorado tax rates.

For the six months ending December 31, 2006, wegrdzed current and deferred tax expense totakng38,171 compared with $2,732,647
during the six months ended December 31, 2005. fEsiglted in an effective tax rate of 31.9% in ¢herent period compared with 31.4% in
the prior period. The increase in our effectiverae is the result of a decrease in our estimdéeldictions associated with percentage
depletion. The increase was also partially offsealolecrease in our State of Colorado tax rates.

8. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Taparko Project

On March 1, 2006, Royal Gold entered into an Amedraled Restated Funding Agreement with Somita relatehe Taparko Project in
Burkina Faso, West Africa. We have a $35 millionding commitment pursuant to the Amended and Regstatinding Agreement, of which
we had funded approximately $30.3 million as oft8eyer 30, 2006. During October 2006, we fundeddaitional $3.3 million to the
Taparko Project, resulting in total funding by dspproximately $33.6 million as of January 31, 20Bubsequent funding of the Taparko
Project will be made in installments over the remraj construction period. The Amended and Restatedling Agreement outlines the
construction milestones that must be met priortthespecific funding installment. We expect thegumbto meet all construction requireme
(as defined in the Amended and Restated Fundingekgent) in the second quarter of calendar 20U& estimate the $35 million will be
fully funded by the second quarter of calendar 2@0bject to construction milestones. Our royaltiessubject to completion of our funding
commitment.
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Under a separate Contribution Agreement, High Ri¥eld Mines Ltd (“High River”) is responsible foortributing additional equity
contributions for any cost overruns incurred dutimg construction and construction warranty peritiddigh River is unable to make the
required equity contributions, we have the righ¢ither (a) provide funding that High River failedfund, or (b) declare a default under the
Funding Agreement. In the event that we elect éwiple funding in the amount that High River faibsfind, we may elect to acquire either an
equity interest in High River, consisting of unifsScommon shares and warrants of High River asddfior to obtain additional royalty
interests in the Taparko Project in a proporti@mabunt to any additional funding compared with atginal $35 million funding

commitment. As of January 31, 2007, High River imasle all required equity commitments as scheduleder its Contribution Agreement.

Taranis

On November 4, 2005, we entered into a stratetjanak with Taranis for exploration on the Kettukikko project located in Finland. Duri
our fiscal year 2006, we funded exploration to@#500,000 in return for a 2% NSR royalty. We dlage an option to fund up to an
additional $600,000. The Company elected to exettis option in April 2006. If we fund the entadditional amount, we will earn a 51%
joint venture interest in the Kettukuusikko projeamhd we will release our 2% NSR royalty. In thervthat Royal Gold does not fully ful

the $600,000 to earn the joint venture interestywald retain our 2% NSR royalty. As of Decembey 3106, we have funded $56,404 of the
additional $600,000 option.

Revett

Under the terms of the Revett purchase agreenfen€ompany has the right, but not the obligatiorgure any default by Revett under their
obligations pursuant to an existing mortgage payjadg@cured by a promissory note, to Kennecott M@n@ompany, a third party and prior
joint venture interest owner of the Troy mine.H&tCompany elects to exercise its right, it woldgénthe subsequent right to reimbursen
from Revett for any amounts disbursed in curinghsiefaults. The principal and accrued interest utftee promissory note as of

December 31, 2006, was approximately $6.2 milligt& maturity date of February 2008.

Casmalia

On March 24, 2000, the United States Environmdntatection Agency (“EPA”) notified Royal Gold and 8ther entities that they were
considered potentially responsible parties (“PRRs§er the Comprehensive Environmental Responsep€nsation, and Liability Act of
1980, as amended (“Superfund”), at the Casmali@itess Hazardous Waste Disposal Site (the “Site9anta Barbara County, California.
EPA's allegation that Royal Gold was a PRP wasdasethe disposal of allegedly hazardous petroleypioration wastes at the Site by
Royal Gold’s predecessor, Royal Resources, Incingl1983 and 1984.

After extensive negotiations, on September 23, 28@¥al Gold, along with 35 members of the PRP graugeted by EPA, entered into a
Partial Consent Decree with the United States obAca intending to settle their liability for thenlled States of America’s past and future
clean-up costs incurred at the Site. Based on thamal volume of allegedly hazardous waste that&®esources, Inc. disposed of at the
Site, our share of the $25.3 million settlement amavas $107,858, which we deposited into the @sewcount that the PRP group set up
that purpose in January 2002. The funds were patiget United States of America on May 9, 2003. Uhéed States of America may only

pursue Royal Gold and the other PRPs for additiole@in-up costs if the United States of Americaltokean-up costs at the
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Site significantly exceed the expected cost of axipnately $272 million. We believe our potentiability with the United States of America
to be a remote possibility.

The Partial Consent Decree does not resolve Rogll' $potential liability to the State of Califomn{“State”) for its response costs or for
natural resource damages arising from the Site.SEate has not expressed any interest in purs@ingal resource damages. However, on
October 1, 2002, the State notified Royal Gold #redrest of the PRP group that participated ins#tdement with the United States of
America that the State would be seeking responses ¢otaling approximately $12.5 million from theltnis not known what portion of these
costs the State expects to recover from this PRBpgin settlement. If the State agrees to a voltmaliocation, we will be liable for 0.438%
of any settlement amount. However, we expect thasbare of liability will be completely covered by$15 million, zero-deductible
insurance policy that the PRP group purchased fsgaty to protect itself from claims such as thabught by the State. No notices or any
other forms of actions with respect to Royal Gaddédnbeen made by the State since its October 2, 20fce.

9. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Revolving Credit Facility

On January 5, 2007, the Company and a wholly-ovauddidiary entered into the Second Amended andaRReist oan Agreement
(“Amendment”) with HSBC Bank USA National Associati (“HSBC”). The Amendment increases our curreabhang credit facility from
$30 million to $80 million and extends the matuudigte of the credit facility to December 31, 20I8e Company’s borrowing base will be
calculated based on our royalties and will beatlitibased on its GSR1, GSR3, and NVR1 royalty meees at the Pipeline Mining Complex
and its SJ Claims, Leeville, Bald Mountain and Rebi royalties. The initial availability under therrowing base is the full $80 million
under the credit facility. The Company and the Wholvned subsidiary granted HSBC security inter@sthie following: the Company’s
GSR1, GSR3, and NVR1 royalties at the Pipeline MjinfComplex; the Company’s SJ Claims, Leeville, Bdlslintain and Robinson
royalties; and the Company’s debt reserve accaudSBC. No funds were drawn under the $30 millioedit facility as of December 31,
2006. As of January 23, 2007, we have drawn $30omilnder the revolving credit facility to compdethe closing of the Pefiasquito
acquisition, as discussed below, and $50 millionaias available.

Pascua Lama Royalty Acquisition

Effective January 16, 2007, the Company enteradadrdefinitive and binding agreement with a priviatiividual to acquire a sliding-scale
NSR royalty for $20.5 million on the Pascua Lamajgrt. Pascua Lama is owned by Barrick and is &xtan the border between Argent
and Chile. The NSR sliding-scale royalty rangestth16% when the average quarterly gold price & aelow $325 per ounce, to a
maximum of 1.08% when the average quarterly goicepequals or exceeds $800 per ounce. The traosato includes a 0.22% fixed-rate
copper royalty. The copper royalty applies to 1080the copper reserves but does not take effedtaftar January 1, 2017. The acquisition
is subject to customary due diligence and is exguktti close in early March 2007. The project isingiroduction and Barrick is targeting
production in calendar 2010.

Pefasquito Royalty Acquisition

On January 23, 2007, we acquired a 2.0% NSR royatityest on the Pefiasquito Project located irbthge of Zacatecas, Mexico, a Mexican
company that is an indirect subsidiary of KenneEattloration Company, a Delaware corporation, 80 #illion in cash and 577,434 shares
of our Common Stock. We also obtained the rigtgdquire any or all of a group of NSR royalties iaggrom 1.0% to 2.0%
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on various other concessions in the same regiomright to acquire the royalties on these variargessions expires with respect to each
royalty interest on May 1, 2007.

The Pefiasquito Project is composed of two main sitpeoalled Pefiasco and Chile Colorado and is uhelsglopment by Goldcorp Inc. The
Pefasquito Project hosts one of the world’s largiégtr, gold and zinc reserves while also contajriarge lead reserves. The Pefiasquito
Project is not in production and the feasibilitydyt conducted for it anticipates initial mine staptin late calendar 2008 with full production
being reached in calendar 2010.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
General

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@dition and Results of Operations (“MD&A”) is imded to provide information to
assist you in better understanding and evaluatimdinancial condition and results of operatione Y¥commend that you read this MD&A in
conjunction with our consolidated financial statemsancluded in Item 1 of this Quarterly ReportFarm 10-Q, as well as our 2006 Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

This MD&A contains forward-looking information. Oimportant note about forward-looking statementsiciv you will find following this
MD&A and the MD&A in our 2006 Annual Report on Fort0-K, applies to these forward-looking statements.

We refer to “GSR,” “NSR” and other types of royaityerests throughout this MD&A. These terms aréngel in our 2006 Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

Overview

Royal Gold, Inc., together with its subsidiariesengaged in the business of acquiring and manggéwjous metals royalties. Royalties are
passive (non-operating) interests in mining prajelat provide the right to receive revenue frompioject after deducting specified costs, if
any.

We seek to acquire existing royalties or to finapogects that are in production or near produciioexchange for royalty interests. We also
fund exploration on properties thought to contaiecpus metals and seek to obtain royalties aneratarried ownership interests in such
properties through the subsequent transfer of tipgranterests to other mining companies. Substiintall of our revenues are and will be
expected to be derived from royalty interests. Weadt conduct mining operations at this time. Dgrine quarter ended December 31, 2006,
we focused on the management of our existing rpyaderests, the acquisition of royalty interesisg the creation of royalty interests thro
financing and strategic exploration alliances.

Our financial results are primarily tied to thegeriof gold and other metals, as well as produdtiom our royalty properties. For the quarter
ended December 31, 2006, the price of gold aver&§éd per ounce compared with an average pricd®8 $er ounce for the quarter ended
December 31, 2005. Payments received from the tigcquired Mulatos and Robinson royalties, aleriip an increase in production at
Leeville and the Bald Mountain mine contributedagalty revenue of $12,279,677 during the quantefeel December 31, 2006, compared to
royalty revenue of $7,575,307 during the quarteteenDecember 31, 2005. These increases to outyogaknue were partially offset by
lower production at the Pipeline Mining Complex.

Our principal mineral property interests at Decengfe 2006 were:

. Pipeline: Four royalty interests at the Pipelieing Complex, which includes the Pipeline and tdRipeline, GAP and Crossroads
gold deposits. The Pipeline Mining Complex is opadeby the Cortez Joint Venture, which is a joiabture between Barrick (60%),
and Kennecott Explorations (Australia) Ltd. (40%subsidiary of Rio Tinto plc. Our four royalty énésts at the Pipeline Mining
Complex are

0 GSR1 - A sliding-scale GSR royalty that cevéie current mine footprint, which includes thpdfine and South Pipeline
deposits, and ranges from 0.4% at a gold pricevb8®Ri10 per ounce to 5.0% at a gold price of $4t0opace or above
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o} GSR2 — A sliding-scale GSR royalty that cevareas outside the Pipeline deposit and rangaes@ré2% at a gold price
below $210 per ounce to 9.0% at a gold price ofd$d&r ounce or abov

0 GSR3-A 0.71% fixed rate GSR royalty on the productione®d by GSR1 and GSR2; a

0 NVR1- A fixed rate 0.39% net value royalty on all protion on the South Pipeline, Crossroads and sonteedBAP
deposit, but not covering the Pipeline depc

. Robinson: A 3% NSR royalty on the Robinson mineated in eastern Nevada and operated by Qu

. SJ Claims: We hold a 0.9% NSR royalty on the RihGs, which covers a portion of the Betze-Postopie mine, at the Goldstrike
operation, located in Nevada and operated by Bai

. Leeville: We hold a 1.8% carried working interesjual to a 1.8% NSR royalty, on the majoritytaf teeville Project, which
includes both the Leeville South and Leeville Narttderground mines, located in Nevada and opelatétewmont;

. Troy: Two royalty interests in the Troy undergrowsilder and copper mine, operated by Revett, latatenorthwestern Montan

o} A production payment equivalent to a 7.0% G&ylty until either cumulative production of apgimately 9.9 million
ounces of silver and 84.6 million pounds of coppenyve receive $10.5 million in cumulative paymemtkichever occurs
first; and

o} A GSR royalty which begins at 6.1% on anydoiction in excess of 11.0 million ounces of silaad 94.1 million pounds of
copper, and steps down to a 2% GSR royalty afterutative production has exceeded 12.7 million osrafesilver and
108.2 million pounds of coppe

. Bald Mountain: A 1.75% sliding-scale NSR royaltjerest that increases to 2% at a gold price pf@pmately $725 per ounce and
covers a portion of the Bald Mountain mine in Newvaoperated by Barricl

. Mulatos: A sliding-scale NSR royalty on the Masimine, located in Sonora, Mexico, and operatedlagnos. The sliding-scale
NSR royalty, capped at two million ounces of gotdduction, ranges from 0.30% payout for gold pricelw $300 per ounce up
a maximum rate of 1.50% for gold prices above $4@0ounce; an

. Martha: A 2% NSR royalty on a number of properiie Santa Cruz Province, Argentina, includingMeertha mine, which is a high
grade underground silver mine and is operated lyu€c Alene Mines Corporatior

At December 31, 2006, we also own the followingalbyinterests that are currently in developmeagstand are not yet in production:

. Taparko: Subject to completion of our funding ceitment, we hold four royalty interests on the Ti&paProject, located in Burkina
Faso and operated by High River Gold Mines Ltd. four royalty interests at the Taparko Project
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o} TB-GSR1 — A production payment equivalera tt6% GSR royalty on all gold produced from thedrp Project until
either cumulative production of 804,420 ouncesadtigs achieved or until we receive $35 millioncimmulative payment:

o} TB-GSR2 — A production payment equivalers 88SR sliding-scale royalty, which ranges from @4@%, on all gold
produced from the Taparko Project. At a gold pat&600 per ounce, the sliding-scale royalty rateild be 6.0%. TB-
GSR2 remains in force until the termination of-GSR1,

o} TB-GSR3 — A perpetual 2% GSR royalty on aldgporoduced from the Taparko Project area.G8R3 will commence upc¢
the termination of the T-GSR1 and T-GSR2 royalties; an

o} TB-MR1 — A 0.75% milling fee royalty on alblgl, subject to annual caps, processed throughdparko Project processing
facilities that is mined from any area outside Tiaparko Project are

Receipt of royalty revenue on the Taparko Projgeinticipated to commence in the second quarteslehdar 2007.

. Gold Hill: Unpatented mining claims and a slidiscpale NSR royalty on the Gold Hill deposit, lochie Nye County, Nevada. The
sliding-scale ranges from 1.0%, when the gold pecE350 per ounce or less, to 2.0% when the gt ;s above $350 per ounce.
Production on the Gold Hill deposit is expected@dmmence once permitting is completed and equipinemt the Round Mountain
pit becomes available. Please see “Royalty Acqaist— Gold Hill” below for further information ragding the Gold Hill
acquisition.

During the first quarter of calendar 2006, we reediproduction estimates, attributable to our riyyiiterests, for calendar year 2006. The
calendar 2006 production estimates and actual ptmgtuattributable to our royalty interests duriajendar 2006 are as follows:

Reported Productio

Calendar 2006 Productic through

Royalty Operatot Metal Estimate December 31, 2004
Pipeline GSR: Barrick Gold 385,00C 0z. 438,073 oz.
Pipeline GSR: Barrick Gold 385,00C 0z. 438,073 oz.
Pipeline NVR1 Barrick Gold 213,00C oz. 130,837 oz.
Robinson Quadrs Gold 53,500 0z.® 38,840 o0z.()
SJ Claims Barrick Gold 903,00C oz. 929,220 oz.
Leeville North Newmont Gold 196,00C oz. 127,369 oz.
Leeville Soutr Newmont Gold 29,000 0z. 44,430 oz.
Bald Mountain Barrick Gold 248,00C oz. 216,128 oz.
Mulatos Alamos Gold 110,000 to 120,0( oz.() 70,215 o0z.®)
Troy Revett Silver 1.8 million oz. 820,582 oz.
Martha Coeur ['Alene Silver 2.5 million oz. 2.8 million oz.
Troy Revett Coppet 15.6 million Ibs. 6.7 million Ibs.
Robinson Quadre Copper 115 million Ibs. W) 71.3 million lbs. @
Robinson Quadre Molybdenun 0.5 to 1.0 million Ibs. MG 40,935 Ibs.@

(M Production estimates are for the full 2006 cadernyear. The reported production through DecemhePB06, reflects the production
attributable to the Company’s interest during takeedar year, which commenced in June 2006 for igoioi and April 2006 for
Mulatos.
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@ In October 2006, Quadra reported that their nebcopper production estimate of 125 to 130 millpmunds of copper in concentrate
will not be met due to the presence of high lewélgxide copper contained within the ore supergamee.

3 In August 2006, Quadra reported that their oagimolybdenum production estimates will not be ratadra was not able to provide
updated molybdenum production estimates at tha.

@  Reported production relates to the amount of neethals, subject to our royalty interests, throughebeber 31, 2006, as reported to u
the operators of the mine

Royalty Acquisitions
Gold Hill

As discussed in Note 2 in the accompanying Not&3aasolidated Financial Statements, on Decemb20@3, Royal Gold paid $3.3 million
to Nevada Star Resource Corp. in exchange fodaglscale NSR royalty and certain unpatented miningndan the Gold Hill deposit. TF
NSR slidin¢-scale royalty on the Gold Hill deposit will payd2 when the price of gold is above $350 per oumck1a0% when the price of
gold falls to $350 per ounce or below. The royatglso subject to a minimum royalty payment of 8000 per year. The Gold Hill deposit,
located just north of the Round Mountain gold mimé&lye County, Nevada, is controlled by Round MaimtGold Corporation, a joint
venture between Kinross Gold, the operator, andi@arProduction on the Gold Hill deposit is expstto commence once permitting is
completed and equipment from the Round Mountaib@itomes available.

Pascua Lama

As discussed in Note 9 in the accompanying Not&3otsolidated Financial Statements, on Januar2d®/, we entered into an agreement
with a private individual to acquire a slidisgale NSR royalty on gold which is derived fromtaigr mineral concessions located at the Pe
Lama project in Chile for $20.5 million. Barrick o the Pascua Lama project, and is targeting ptmiiuto commence in calendar 2010. "
acquisition also includes a NSR royalty on coppédd after January 1, 2017. The acquisition is stthije customary due diligence and is
expected to close in early March 2007.

The sliding-scale ranges from 0.16%, when the aeequarterly gold price is $325 per ounce or l#s4,08% when the average quarterly
gold price is $800 per ounce or more. The agreewilsotincludes a 0.22% fixed-rate copper royalgt #pplies to 100% of the Pascua Lama
copper reserves in Chile but does not take effett after January 1, 2017.

According to Barrick’s publicly available reservedaresource statement of December 31, 2005 (filgd tve Canadian Securities
Administrators by Barrick and available at www.sedam), Pascua Lamaproven and probable gold reserves include 39fomions of ore
at a grade of 0.046 ounces per ton, containingtal®0 million ounces of gold. Approximately 80%thé reserves are located in Chile.

Pefiasquito Project

Also as discussed in Note 9 in the accompanyingdti Consolidated Financial Statements, on JarB&r007, we acquired a 2.0% NSR
royalty interest on the Pefiasquito Project locatatie State of Zacatecas, Mexico, a Mexican complaat is an indirect subsidiary of
Kennecott Exploration Company, a Delaware corporatior $80 million in cash and 577,434 sharesusf@ommon Stock. We also obtained
the right to acquire any or all of a group of NQRpalties ranging from 1.0% to 2.0% on various ott@rcessions in the same region. The
right to acquire the royalties on these variouscessions expires with respect to each royalty éstesn May 1, 2007.
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The Pefiasquito Project is composed of two main sitpeoalled Pefiasco and Chile Colorado and is uhelsglopment by Goldcorp Inc. The
Pefasquito Project hosts one of the world’s largiégtr, gold and zinc reserves while also contgjriarge lead reserves.

According to the feasibility study for the Pefiasquiroject completed July 31, 2006 (filed with @@&nadian Securities Administrators by
Glamis Gold and available at www.sedar.com), Pafissgontains the following proven and probablesress: 621.6 million tons of ore, w
an average grade of 0.015 ounces per ton, congadird million ounces of gold; 621.6 million tonfsove, with an average grade of 0.924
ounces per ton, containing 575 million ounces leksj 525.7 million tons of ore, with an averagadg of 0.76%, containing 8.0 billion
pounds of zinc; and 525.7 million tons of ore, vathaverage grade of 0.35%, containing 3.7 bilionnds of lead. Contained ounces or
contained pounds described do not take into acdosses in processing the ore. The feasibility sugks metal prices assumptions for
purposes of calculating reserves of $450 per oohgeld, $7.00 per ounce of silver, $0.60 per poahdinc and $0.30 per pound of lead and
estimates co-product cash costs to average $125upee of gold, $4.91 per ounce of silver and $@ddpound of zinc, with lead revenue
taken as a credit to production costs.

The feasibility study estimates a mine life of apfmately 17 years and anticipates initial minetstg in late calendar 2008 with full
production being reached in calendar 2012.

Internal Review of Stock Option Matters

On December 12, 2006, a Wall Street Journal antaiked the topic that certain officers of publienpanies, including the chairman of the
company, may have backdated the exercise of cestaireir options based on the frequency of exesccurring on dates with low trading
prices during the month of exercise. Promptly aitarning of the story, the chairman of the compadyised the board of directors’ audit
committee regarding the matter. The audit committee initiated a voluntary review and retainedeipeindent counsel to assist in its review
of stock option practices. On February 7, 2007 jildependent counsel made its final report to tigitacommittee of its findings.

The principal findings of that report were as falk

. The review of stock option exercise informati@mvered the period from 1990 to 2002. The reviewntbno evidence that the
company had a policy or sanctioned practice of fang backdating of stock option exercise da

. Counsel was unable to conclude that intentioaaktating of stock option exercise dates occuweth rule out the possibility that
such intentional backdating did occur. Counsel tbsaveral instances in which two current officerd aeveral former officers of the
company (and two instances in which a former oetslidector) exercised stock options on the dayagsdvhen the trading price for
the compan’s common stock during the month of exercise wag#bh

. Counsel found that the conduct of the currensigent and chief executive officer, chief finan@#icer, general counsel, and
controller is not implicated in any way in the issuthat were subject of the revie

. The review found no evidence that any currerfoamer officer’s conduct involved any effort to r@ad investors, to inaccurately
improve the financial results of the company, ooltain any personal benefit at the expense ofdhepany.

. Counsel also reviewed the company’s stock omiamt procedures since 1990. The review found mdeece that the company’s
stock option grant dates had been backdi

. Counsel also found historical weaknesses inmialezontrols with respect to exercise of stockamiand the stock option practices
generally, but found that such historical weaknggsénternal controls have been remediated. SME2 internal controls regarding
the compan’s stock option practices have been substantialiyaged
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The company has concluded that there is no tamand¢ial statement impact resulting from the revahits stock option exercise and grant
practices.

Results of Operations
Quarter Ended December 31, 2006, Compared to Qu&anted December 31, 2005

For the quarter ended December 31, 2006, we redoreieearnings of $5,635,652, or $0.24 per baglodéinted share, as compared to net
earnings of $2,907,295, or $0.12 per basic andetilshare, for the quarter ended December 31, 2005.

For the quarter ended December 31, 2006, we retédtal royalty revenue of $12,279,677, at an ayeigold price of $614 per ounce,
compared to royalty revenue of $7,575,307, at aname gold price of $486 per ounce for the quaneied September 30, 2005. Royalty
revenue and the corresponding production attriberitebour royalty interests, for the quarter enBedember 31, 2006 compared to the
guarter ended December 31, 2005, is as follows:

Royalty Revenue and Production Subject to Our Rgyaterests
Quarter Ended December 31, 2006 and 2005

Quarter Ender Quarter Endel
December 31, 200 December 31, 200
Royalty Reportec Royalty Reportec
Royalty Metal(s) Revenue Productior() Revenue Productior)

Pipeline Gold $ 4,946,90: 138,33. oz. $ 5,526,54 196,61¢0z.
SJ Claims Gold $ 1,533,39. 275,96¢0z. $ 1,196,31 272,13t 0z.
Leeville Gold $ 1,251,73. 113,84: oz. $ 213,31: 25,30 oz.
Bald Mountain Gold $ 406,00( 37,82¢ oz. $ 142,57. 16,71¢ oz.
Robinson®) $ 3,224,45

Gold 15,59¢ 0z. N/A N/A

Coppet 24,103,45 Ibs. N/A N/A

Molybdenum — Ibs. N/A N/A
Mulatos®) Gold $ 243,42¢ 26,66(0z. N/A N/A
Troy $ 450,58: $ 380,78

Silver 167,23t 0z. 244,03 oz.

Coppet 1,422,25!bs. 1,927,95! Ibs,
Martha Silver $ 223,18: 932,87 oz. $ 115,71¢ 538,41: oz.

Total Revenut $ 12,279,67 $ 7,575,30

1) Receipt of royalty revenue commenced during ourtfoguarter of fiscal year 200

(@ Reported production relates to the amount of nsseti#ls, subject to our royalty interests, throughebeber 31, 2006, as reported to u
the operators of the mine

The increase in royalty revenue for the quarteedridecember 31, 2006 compared with the quarterceBdeember 31, 2005, primarily
resulted from an increase in metal prices, increé@seduction at Leeville and the Bald Mountain miaed payments from the recently
acquired Robinson and Mulatos royalties. Thesessms were partially offset by a decrease in ptamuat the Pipeline Mining Complex a
Troy mine.

Cost of operations increased to $872,070 for tteetquended December 31, 2006, compared to $61795@% quarter ended December 31,
2005. The increase was primarily due to an incraatiee
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Nevada Net Proceeds Tax expense, which resultethply from an increase in royalty revenue from \i#e, Bald Mountain and the recen
acquired Robinson royalty.

General and administrative expenses decreased382265 for the quarter ended December 31, 2Q@f¥6pared to $1,647,996 for the qua
ended December 31, 2005. The decrease was prirdaelyo a decrease in corporate costs of approgiy$123,000. The decrease was
partially offset by an increase in legal fees.

Exploration and business development expensesatmsado $472,630 for the quarter ended Decemb&@088, compared to $1,026,540 for
the quarter ended December 31, 2005. The decresmspnmarily due to a decrease in exploration coltpproximately $150,000 and a
decrease in legal and consulting services assdandth business development of approximately $9% &0d $123,000, respectively. A
decrease in the non-cash compensation expensataliilo business development of approximately $DPalso contributed to the overall
decrease.

Depreciation, depletion and amortization increase$,105,475 for the quarter ended December 316, 2bmpared to $1,030,444 for the
guarter ended December 31, 2005. The increase nivaarfly due to increased production at Leevilllerg with the addition of the Mulatos
and Robinson mine royalties, both resulting in iddal depletion.

As discussed in Note 5 in the accompanying Not&3aasolidated Financial Statements, the Finanatalofinting Standards Board (“FASB”)
issued FASB Statement No. 123 (revised 2004), SRased Payment (“SFAS 123(R)"). SFAS 123(R) requalk share-based payments to
employees, including grants of employee stock mgtioestricted stock, and performance shares, tedzgnized in the financial statements
based on their fair values. In accordance with SEAHR), the Company recorded total non-cash stookpensation expense related to our
equity compensation plans of $909,682 for the guamded December 31, 2006, compared to $1,0740485% quarter ended December 31,
2005. Our non-cash stock compensation is allocateoihg cost of operations, general and adminisgatind exploration and business
development in our Consolidated Statements of Qipasaand Comprehensive Income. The total non-casipensation expense allocated to
cost of operations, general and administrative egeg, and exploration and business developmenhsgpdor the quarter ended

December 31, 2006, was $116,441, $608,003 and &B5espectively, compared with $128,079, $619A1M2$327,334, respectively, for
the quarter ended December 31, 2005.

Interest and other income decreased to $954,36@éoquarter ended December 31, 2006, comparet,®d & 562 for the quarter ended
December 31, 2005. The decrease is primarily deedecrease in funds available for investing olrerprior period.

For the three months ended December 31, 2006, seeded current and deferred tax expense of $2,330;6mpared with $1,328,312 duri
the three months ended December 31, 2005. Ourtiedax rate for the three months ended DecembgeP@06, was 31.2%, compared with
31.4% for the three months ended December 31, Z0@bdecrease in our effective tax between peraasthe result of a decrease in our
State of Colorado tax rates.

Six Months Ended December 31, 2006, Compared td8ixths Ended December 31, 2005

For the six months ended December 31, 2006, wededmet earnings of $10,595,789, or $0.45 perctswre and $0.44 per diluted shar
compared to net earnings of $5,964,726, or $0.2basic and diluted share, for the six months er@ecember 31, 2005.

For the six months ended December 31, 2006, wévestéotal royalty revenue of $22,025,470, at aerage gold price of $618 per ounce,
compared to royalty revenue of $14,402,927, atvanage gold price of $463 per ounce for the six tm®ended December 31, 2005. Royalty
revenue and the
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corresponding production attributable to our royaiterests, for the six months ended Decembe2B26 compared to the six months ended
December 31, 2005, is as follows:

Royalty Revenue and Production Subject to Our Rgyaterests
Six Months Ended December 31, 2006 and 2005

Six Months Endel Six Month Endec
December 31, 20C December 31, 20C
Royalty Reportec Royalty Reportec
Royalty Metal(s) Revenue Productior® Revenue Production
Pipeline Gold $ 9,479,51. 263,69 oz. $ 10,896,96 424 ,59¢ 0z.
SJ Claims Gold $ 2,356,82I 425,26 0z. $ 2,109,37. 501,59 oz.
Leeville Gold $ 1,464,19 133,09 oz. $ 728,74: 44,990z,
Bald Mountain Gold $ 937,66: 111,53(0z. $ 211,79: 25,71¢0z.
Robinson®) $ 5,933,76!
Gold 25,75¢ 0z. N/A N/A
Coppet 44,040,34 Ibs. N/A N/A
Molybdenum 40,93¢ Ibs. N/A N/A
Mulatos(® Gold $ 429,41 46,30: oz. N/A N/A
Troy $ 1,020,271 $ 649,30
Silver 371,50 oz. 435,45 0z.
Copper 3,084,24. Ibs. 3,511,42. lbs.
Martha Silver $ 403,82: 1,708,72i 0z. $ 163,98( 1,108,28. oz.
Total Revenut $ 22,025,477 $ 14,402,92

1) Receipt of royalty revenue commenced during ourtfogquarter of fiscal year 200

@ Reported production relates to the amount of neethals, subject to our royalty interests, throughebeber 31, 2006, as reported to u
the operators of the mine

The increase in royalty revenue for the six morthded December 31, 2006 compared with the six marided December 31, 2005,
primarily resulted from an increase in metal pridgesreased production at Leeville, the Bald Moimtaine, and payments from the recently
acquired Mulatos and Robinson royalties. Thesecas®s were partially offset by a decrease in ptamuat the Pipeline Mining Complex.

Cost of operations increased to $1,530,587 fosthenonths ended December 31, 2006, compared 1®%.207 for the six months ended
December 31, 2005. The increase was primarily dentincrease in the Nevada Net Proceeds Tax expehgch resulted primarily from an
increase in royalty revenue from Leeville, Bald Mtain and the recently acquired Robinson royalty.

General and administrative expenses increased,66%$®21 for the six months ended December 31, 28ffépared to $2,607,504 for the six
months ended December 31, 2005. The increase waarpy due to an increase in legal fees of apprately $40,000.

Exploration and business development expensesatsado $891,171 for the six months ended DeceBihet006, compared to $1,461,250
for the six months ended December 31, 2005. Theedee was primarily due to a decrease in non-gasipensation expense allocated to
exploration and business development expense obrippately $108,000, a decrease in consulting sesvof approximately $134,000 and a
decrease in legal fees of approximately $82,000.
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Depreciation, depletion and amortization increase$3,177,691 for the six months ended Decembe2@16, compared to $1,928,469 for
six months ended December 31, 2005. The increaserimarily due to increased production at Leey#llong with the addition of the
Mulatos and Robinson mine royalties, which resuiteddditional depletion.

As discussed in Note 5 in the accompanying Not&otsolidated Financial Statements, the Finanatalfinting Standards Board (“FASB”)
issued FASB Statement No. 123 (revised 2004), SRased Payment (“SFAS 123(R)"). SFAS 123(R) requak share-based payments to
employees, including grants of employee stock ogtioestricted stock, and performance shares, tedognized in the financial statements
based on their fair values. In accordance with SEAFR), the Company recorded total non-cash stookpensation expense related to our
equity compensation plans of $1,322,521 for thevsixaths ended December 31, 2006, compared to $82d for the six months ended
December 31, 2005. Our non-cash stock compengataliocated among cost of operations, generakanainistrative, and exploration and
business development in our Consolidated Statenoéi@perations and Comprehensive Income. The taiaicash compensation expense
allocated to cost of operations, general and adtnative expenses, and exploration and businessdajanent expenses for the six months
ended December 31, 2006, was $173,870, $841,4383014219, respectively, compared with $156,66418128 and $415,134,
respectively, for the six months ended DecembefBQ5.

As of December 31, 2006, there was $1,574,325382917, and $585,834 of total unrecognized cash stock compensation expense re

to our non-vested stock options, Restricted StoxkRerformance Shares, respectively, granted umdezquity compensation plan. We
expect to recognize the non-cash compensation sggetated to our non-vested stock options, RéstriStock and Performance Shares over
a period of 1.8 years, 4.75 years, and 0.5 yeaspectively.

Interest and other income increased to $1,925,668¢& six months ended December 31, 2006, compargd, 453,656 for the six months
ended December 31, 2005. The increase is primduiyto higher interest rates over the prior period.

For the six months ending December 31, 2006, wegrdzed current and deferred tax expense totakng38,171 compared with $2,732,647
during the six months ended December 31, 2005. fEsiglted in an effective tax rate of 31.9% in ¢herent period compared with 31.4% in
the prior period. The increase in our effectiverae is the result of a decrease in our estimdéeldictions associated with percentage
depletion. The increase was also partially offsealolecrease in our State of Colorado tax rates.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At December 31, 2006, we had current assets ofl88M0)50 compared to current liabilities of $5,6%0,%or a current ratio of nearly 14 to 1.
This compares to current assets of $84,775,89&amdnt liabilities of $3,323,516 at June 30, 20@8ulting in a current ratio of 26 to 1. The
decrease in the current ratio is due primarily tieerease in available cash of approximately $7lllomand an increase in our accounts
payable of approximately $1.7 million. Our avaikalsbsh decreased as a result of our additionalrfgraf the High River royalties of

$14.9 million, the acquisition of the Gold Hill ralgy of $3.3 million and dividend payments of $&élion during the period. These payme
were partially offset by cash received from operagiof approximately $12.9 million during the peéri®ur accounts payable increased as a
result of additional Nevada Net Proceeds Tax payafbhich is due to an increase in royalty revenuewr Nevada properties during the
period.

During the six months ended December 31, 2006idityuneeds were met from $22,025,470 in royaltyereues, our available cash resour
interest and other income of $1,925,555 and netgads from the issuance of common stock of $282,501
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On January 5, 2007, the Company and a wholly-ovauedidiary entered into the Second Amended andcaiRest.oan Agreement
(“Amendment”) with HSBC Bank USA National Associti (“HSBC”). The Amendment increases our currembheng credit facility from
$30 million to $80 million and extends the matudigte of the credit facility to December 31, 20IRe Company’s borrowing base will be
calculated based on the Company'’s royalties andoiinitially based on its GSR1, GSR3, and NVR1hatPipeline Mining Complex and its
SJ Claims, Leeville, Bald Mountain and Robinsonattigs. The initial availability under the borrowibase is the full $80 million under the
credit facility. The Company and the wholly-ownedbsidiary granted HSBC security interests in tHe¥ang: the Companys GSR1, GSR:
and NVR1 royalties at the Pipeline Mining Complthe Company’s SJ Claims, Leeville, Bald Mountaid &obinson royalties; and the
Company'’s debt reserve account at HSBC. No funds deawn under the $30 million credit facility @siecember 31, 2006. As of
January 23, 2007, we have drawn $30 million underrévolving credit facility to complete the clogiof the Pefiasquito acquisition.
Following the drawdown, there is $50 million thatrrains available under the credit facility.

We believe that our current financial resourcesfands generated from operations will be adequataver anticipated expenditures for
general and administrative expense costs, exptoraind business development costs, and capitahditpees for the foreseeable future. Our
current financial resources are also availabledgalty acquisitions and to fund dividends. Ourdeerm capital requirements are primarily
affected by our ongoing acquisition activitiestte event of a substantial royalty or other acgjoisj we may seek additional debt or equity
financing opportunities.

On November 8, 2006, the Company announced thBbisd of Directors increased the Company’s anfeaéndar year) dividend from
$0.22 to $0.26, payable on a quarterly basis di@®per share of common stock, beginning with therigrly dividend paid on January 19,
2007.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

On July 13, 2006, Financial Accounting StandardarBq“FASB”) Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN 48”), Accmting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes — An Interpretation of FASB Statement No.,108s issued. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting facartainty in income taxes recognized
in a company’s financial statements in accordanitie 8FAS 109. FIN 48 also prescribes a recognitimashold and measurement attribute
for the financial statement recognition and measerg of tax position taken or expected to be takentax return. FIN 48 also provides
guidance on de-recognition, classification, inteegsl penalties, accounting in interim periodsgldsure, and transition. The provisions of
FIN 48 are effective for our fiscal year beginnihgy 1, 2007. The Company is evaluating the imgéaty, the adoption of FIN 48 could
have on our financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement Ng.Hd&ir Value Measurements. Statement No. 157 desvjjuidance for using fair value
to measure assets and liabilities. Statement Nbapplies whenever other accounting standardsne@i permit) assets or liabilities to be
measured at fair value but does not expand thefusér value in any new circumstances. Under Statet No. 157, fair value refers to the
price that would be received to sell an asset @t fwatransfer a liability between market participgin the market in which the reporting en
transacts. In this standard, the FASB clarifiesghieciple that fair value should be based on #simptions market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability. The provisiafsStatement No. 157 are effective for our fisgsdr beginning

July 1, 2008, and interim periods within the fisgahr. The Company is evaluating the impact, if, ahg adoption of Statement No. 157 cc
have on our financial statements.

Also in September 2006, the Securities and Exch&uogemission (“SEC”) issued Staff Accounting Bultehlo. 108 (“SAB 108"), Financial
Statements — Considering the Effects of Prior Yé&statements when Quantifying Misstatements inr€htrYear Financial Statements.”
SAB 108 provides guidance on how prior year migst&nts should be taken into consideration whentiyisug misstatements in current
year financial statements for purposes of detemgimihether the current y¢s
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financial statements are materially misstated. 9AB provides that once a current year misstatehanbeen quantified, the guidance in
SAB No. 99, Financial Statements — Materiality, Wddbe applied to determine whether the misstaté¢isanaterial and should result in an
adjustment to the financial statements. We willlgppe provisions of SAB 108 with the preparatidroar annual financial statements for the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2007. The Companyriently evaluating, but does not expect the appiboaof the provisions of SAB 108 to
have a material impact, if any, on our financiaksiments for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2007.

Forward-Looking Statements

Cautionary “Safe Harbor” Statement under the Peigcurities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Withetbxception of historical matters, the
matters discussed in this report are forward-loglstatements that involve risks and uncertaintias ¢ould cause actual results to differ
materially from projections or estimates contaihedein. Such forward-looking statements includeestants regarding projected production
estimates from the operators of our royalty prapssthe adequacy of financial resources and ftmdsver anticipated expenditures for
general and administrative expenses as well asat@pipenditures and costs associated with bustesgopment and exploration, settlem
of the Casmalia matter, the potential need fortemiwhl funding for acquisitions, our future capit@mmitments and our expectation that
substantially all our revenues will be derived fraogalty interests. Factors that could cause actsllts to differ materially from these
forward-looking statements include, among others:

. changes in gold and other met:

. the performance of the Pipeline Mining Complex and other producing royalty propertie

. decisions and activities of the operators of oyahy properties

. unanticipated grade, geological, metallurgical cessing or other problems at these propel
. changes in project parameters as plans of the toperare refinec

. changes in estimates of reserves and mineralizhtighe operators of our royalty properti

. the completion of the construction of the Taparkojétt in 2007

. economic and market conditior

. future financial need:

. foreign, federal or state legislation governingoushe operators

. the availability and our ability to successfullyngplete royalty acquisitions; at

. the ultimate additional liability, if any, to theaebe of California in connection with Casmalia reat

as well as other factors described elsewhere ianual Report on Form 10-K and other reports filgth the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”). Most of these factors aggdnd our ability to predict or control. We disafaany obligation to update any forward-
looking statement made herein. Readers are cadtiooieto put undue reliance on forward-looking estants.
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES AB OUT MARKET RISK

Our earnings and cash flow are significantly impddty changes in the market price of gold. Goldgwican fluctuate widely and are affec
by numerous factors, such as demand, productiaidegconomic policies of central banks, produesiging, world political and economic
events, and the strength of the U.S. dollar redatiivother currencies. Please see “Decreasesciespof gold, silver and copper would reduce
our royalty revenues,” under Part I, Item 1A of @006 Annual Report on

Form 10-K for more information that can affect gphices. During the last five years, the marketefor gold has fluctuated between $278
per ounce and $725 per ounce.

During the six months ended December 31, 2006 eperted royalty revenues of $22,025,470, with eraye gold price for the period of
$618 per ounce. The Company’s GSR1 royalty, orPipeline Mining Complex, which produced approxinha#3% of the Company’s
revenues for the period, is a sliding-scale royaiityh variable royalty rate steps based on theaget ondon PM gold price for the period.
These variable steps are described in the Compamyisal Report on Form 10-K. For the quarter endedember 31, 2006, if the price of
gold had averaged higher or lower by $20 per outheeCompany would have recorded an increase oedse in revenues of approximately
$357,000. Due to the set price steps in GSR1,ffeete of changes in the price of gold cannot bieagrolated on a linear basis.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEEfines the term “disclosure controls and procesiui@mean a company’s controls
and other procedures that are designed to ensatrenfbrmation required to be disclosed in the repthat it files or submits under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act’)dsorded, processed, summarized and reportednwiith time periods specified in the
SEC's rules and forms. The definition further stated tlisclosure controls and procedures include,omitfimitation, controls and procedul
designed to ensure that the information requirduketdisclosed by a company in the reports thée# br submits under the Exchange Act is
accumulated and communicated to the company’s neamewgt, including its principal executive and prpadifinancial officers, or persons
performing similar functions, as appropriate, towltimely decisions regarding required disclos@er President and Chief Executive
Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, based beit evaluation of our disclosure controls and pthoes as of December 31, 20086,
concluded that our disclosure controls and proeiurere effective for this purpose.

Changes in Internal Controls

During the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 20@8¢ was no change in our internal controls owemfcial reporting (as defined in
Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act) that hasraly affected, or is reasonably likely to maadisi affect, our internal controls over
financial reporting.

PART Il. OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Not applicable
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Information regarding risk factors appears in I2iMD&A — Forward-Looking Statements,” and variotisks faced by us are also discussed
elsewhere in Item 2 “MD&A” of this Quarterly Reparh Form 10-Q. In addition, risk factors are in@ddn Part I, Item 1A of our 2006
Annual Report on Form 10-K. There have been no riahighanges from the risk factors previously diseld in our 2006 Annual Report on
Form 10-K. In addition to the risk factors previbudisclosed, we identify the following risk relatéo our business:

Acquired royalty interests may not produce antictpd royalty revenue

The royalty interests we acquire may not produeeattiticipated royalty revenues. The success ofayaity acquisitions is based on our
ability to make accurate assumptions regarding#hgation and timing and amount of royalty paymeptaticularly acquisitions of royalties
on development stage properties. If the operates awt bring the property into production and ofgeiraaccordance with feasibility studies,
acquired royalty interests may not yield royaltyaeues or sufficient royalty revenues to be prbféaThe Taparko Project in Burkina Faso
and the Pefiasquito Project in Mexico representasgest development or pre-production stage royadtyuisitions to date. In addition, our
Pascua Lama proposed acquisition in Chile is ireappoduction stage. The failure of these projexisroduce anticipated royalty revenues
may materially or adversely affect our anticipatedenue and cash flows and our return on investment

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

Not applicable

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES
Not applicable

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

On November 8, 2006, we held our 2006 Annual MeetihStockholders. The matters voted upon at thetimg, for shareholders of recorc
of September 28, 2006, and the vote with respeeatt such matters are set forth below:

1. To elect directors of Royal Gold, In

For Withheld
Stanley Dempse 18,753,41 663,84:
Tony Jensel 19,349,35 67,901
John W. Gott 19,218,66 49,79¢

2. To approve the appointment of PricewaterhouseCaogethe independent registered public accounitimgdf Royal Gold, Inc. for the
fiscal year ending June 30, 20(

For: Against: Abstain:
19,347,34 20,114 49,798
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ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

Not applicable

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

10.1

10.2

10.c
10.4

10.5

10.€

10.7

10.€

10.€

31.1
31.2
32.1

32.2
99.1

Form of Indemnification Agreement (filed as Exhit0.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form @#e No. 001-
13357) on November 13, 2006 and incorporated héreirference)

Purchase and Sale Agreement for Pefiasquito dret byalties among Minera Kennecott S.A. DE CRénnecott
Exploration Company and Royal Gold, Inc., datedédaiger 28, 200¢

Shares for Debt Agreement between Kennecott Exjidor&ompany and Royal Gold, Inc., dated DecemBe2206.

Contract for Assignment of Rights Granted, by &amKennecott, S.A. de C.V. Represented in thieégrent by Mr. Dave
F. Simpson, and Minera Pefasquito, S.A. de C.\pr&ented in this Agreement by Attorney, Jose Maa#iardo Tamayc

Second Amended and Restated Loan Agreement aRwoyea) Gold, Inc., High Desert Mineral Resources, bmd HSBC
Bank USA, National Association, dated January B72

Supplemental Mortgage, Deed of Trust, Securityeggient, Pledge and Financing Statement betweenbigert Mineral
Resources, Inc. and HSBC USA Bank, National Assmtiadated January 5, 20(

Amended and Restated Mortgage, Deed of TrusyrBg@greement, Pledge and Financing Statementdex Royal Gold
and HSBC USA Bank, National Association, dated aans, 2007

Second Amended and Restated Promissory Note bptiReyal Gold, High Desert Mineral Resources, éamd HSBC USA
Bank, National Association, dated January 5, 2!

Assignment of Rights Agreement among Mario Ivartdndez Alvarez, Royal Gold Chile Limitada and &dyold Inc.,
dated January 16, 20C

Certification of the President and Chief Execuf®icer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursudo Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the President and Chief Execat®fficer pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbandsyQAct of 2002 (18
U.S.C. 1350)

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursudo Section 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. 135(
Form of Amended Code of Ethics (filed as Exh8@$t1 to the Company’s current Report on Form 8Hfle(No. 001-13357)
on November 13, 2006, and incorporated herein feyeace.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly causisdeport to be signed on its behalf by
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

ROYAL GOLD, INC.

Date: February 9, 2007 By: /s/ Tony Jense

Tony Jense!
President and Chief Executive Offic

Date: February 9, 2007 By: /s/ Stefan Wengt

Stefan Wenge
Chief Financial Office
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Exhibit 10.z

PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT
FOR
PENASQUITO AND OTHER ROYALTIES

BETWEEN
MINERA KENNECOTT S.A. DE C.V.
as Vendor
KENNECOTT EXPLORATION COMPANY
as Vendor Parent
AND
ROYAL GOLD, INC.
As Purchaser

December 282006




PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT
FOR
PENASQUITO AND OTHER ROYALTIES

THIS PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT is made as of this 28th day of Decemp2006

BETWEEN:
MINERA KENNECOTT S.A. DE C.V. , a company incorporated under the laws of Mexihe { Vendor "),
KENNECOTT EXPLORATION COMPANY , a Delaware corporation KEC ")

AND:
ROYAL GOLD, INC. , a Delaware corporation

(the “Purchaser”).

THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSES that in consideration of the premises and the niinenants, agreements, representations, warsantie
and payments contained in this Agreement, thegqsasijree with each other as follows:

1. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

1.1 Definitions

Unless the context otherwise requires, wheeel urs this Agreement, the following terms shall &dlve respective meanings set out
below, and grammatical variations of such termdl $taae corresponding meaning

1.1.1 “ Agreement” means this Purchase and Sale Agreement for Peftasqui Other Royaltie:
1.1.2 “ Assumed Liabilities” has the meaning set forth in Section

1.1.3 “ Business Day means any day that is not a Saturday or Sundaystatutory holiday in either Denver, Coloradd&ait Lake
City, Utah.

1.1.4 “ Concessions mean the Other Concessions and the Pefiasquito £3inice
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1.1.5 “ Data Disclosure Agreement means that certain Data Disclosure Agreement etwKEC and Purchaser, effective October 4,
2006.

1.1.6 “ Disclosure Documents” means the financial statements, annual, quarterurrent reports, proxy statements, and other
documents required to be filed by the Purchasesyaunt to the reporting requirements of the UnitedeS Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended (thd 934 Act”) and the registration statement on Form S-4 (Rde333-111590) (theRegistration
Statement”), including exhibits, financial statements or othecaiments or required 1934 Act filings that are npooated thereir
and as may be amended by any prospectus supplemeost-effective amendment filed with the Unitedt8s Securities and
Exchange Commission (ti* SEC”).

1.1.7 “ Environmental Laws " means all Laws relating to the environment andierprotection thereof, including without limitaii
with respect to the following substances and/oitithesportation therea

1.1.7.1 any substance the presence of which requires regpoimvestigation, removal and remediation under baws;

1.1.7.2 any substance that is defined as a pollutant, otintnt, dangerous substance, toxic substance,d@maor toxic
chemical, hazardous waste or hazardous substadee any Laws

1.1.7.3 any substance that is toxic, explosive, corrostaenmable, ignitable, infectious, carcinogenic therwise hazardous and
is regulated by or forms the basis of liability enény Laws

1.1.7.4 any substance the presence of which on a propautses or threatens to cause a nuisance upon fberyror to adjacent
properties or poses or threatens to pose a hazdehtth or safety of persons on or about a prgp

1.1.7.5 any substance that contains gasoline, diesel fuether petroleum hydrocarbons, including crudeaat fractions thereof,
natural gas, synthetic gas and any mixtures thg

1.1.7.6 any substance that contains asbestos and/or as-containing materials; ¢
1.1.7.7 any substance that contains pcbs, o-containing materials or fluid.

1.1.8 “Governmental Authority” means a federal, state, provincial, regional, mpalor local government in the United States of
America or Mexico or a subdivision thereof incluglian entity, person, court or other body or orgation exercising executive,
legislative, judicial, regulatory or administratifections of, or pertaining to, any such governh@rsubdivision
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1.1.9. “ KEC " has the meaning set forth on the first page ofAlgieement

1.1.10 “ Knowledge of Vendor” means the actual knowledge of Stephen Scott,auitliny duty of inquiry or recollection whatsoever
with nothing being imputed or deemed to be knowene¥ known and accessible means of knowledge erisaictual notice of
information has been receive

1.1.11 “Laws” means all laws, statutes, ordinances, regulatiohess and orders of any Governmental Authority egalle to a party,
this Agreement, the Royalties or the Concessiartdiding without limitation labor, tax, and Enviroental Laws

1.1.12“ LIBOR " means for any month the the London I-Bank Offered Rate on the first Business Day of thahth.
1.1.13“ Minera Peflasquito” means Minera Pefasquito S.A. de C. V., a Mexicaparation.
1.1.14 “ Notice” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1

1.1.15“ Other Concessions” means (i) all of the concessions, except the Bgiiito Concessions, that are identified in Exhibib the
Termination of Property Rights Agreement, (ii) ttencessions identified in “CONTRATO DE CESION DE RECHOS QUE
OTORGA, POR UNA PARTE, MINERA KENNECOTT, S.A. DE\C, REPRESENTADA EN ESTE ACTO POR EL SR.
DAVE F. SIMPSON Y, POR LA OTRA, MINERA PENASQUITGS.A. DE C.V., REPRESENTADA EN ESTE ACTO POR
SR. ABELARDO GARZA HERNANDEZ,” dated November 24caR6, 1999, a copy of which is attached as ScheBlll® this
Agreement, (iii) the concessions identified in “CORIATO DE CESION DE DERECHOS QUE OTORGA, POR UNA PAR
MINERA KENNECOTT, S.A. DE C.V., REPRESENTADA EN EETACTO POR EL SR. DAVE F. SIMPSON Y, POR LA
OTRA, MINERA AGUA TIERRA, S.A. DE C.V., REPRESENTADEN ESTE ACTO POR LA LIC. YYONNE AVALOS
CAZARES,” dated November 8 and 19, 1999, a copylith is attached as Schedule B2 to this Agreenzemt,(iv) any Projects
which were for base or precious metals and in sgfevhich any member of the Rio Tinto Group haddsyalty or similar
interest which it has the legal right, power anthatity to sell and dispose of without breaching aontractual or other
obligation to any third party, the Vendor and KEsk@owledging that to Vendor's Knowledge it holdsswzh royalties and
interests and the Purchaser acknowledging andreainfj to the Vendor and KEC that it does not knokether any such
royalties or interests exist, and (v) includegiglhts if any which have been obtained since May@99 by conversion, extension
or substitution of any concession described in Scitiens (i) (iv) above.
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1.1.16 “ Other Royalties” means the right, title and interest, if any, thais granted to the Vendor and/or KEC in, to, ne¢pto or
arising from the 2% net smelter royalties and t#eriet smelter royalties, as the case may be, wipeact to the Other
Concessions provided in (a) Section 4 of the Teatiom of Property Rights Agreement or (b) the caciins attached hereto as
Schedule B

1.1.17 “ Other Royalties Closing” has the meaning set forth in Section 6.

1.1.18 “ Other Royalties Closing Date’ means a date to be agreed by the parties notlaarl0 Business Days after the Purchaser
notifies the Vendor which, if any, of the Other Rdies it will purchase, but in no event shall ©#er Royalties Closing Date be
earlier than the Pefasquito Royalty Closing D

1.1.19“ Other Royalties Purchase Pric¢’ has the meaning set forth in Section :

1.1.20 “ Pefiasquito Concession” means the EL PENASQUITO, LA PENA, LAS PENAS, ALFAnd BETA concessions more
particularly described in Exhibit A to the Termiiwat of Property Rights Agreement and includesighits if any which have bet
obtained since May 5, 1999 by conversion, extensiaubstitution of such concessio

1.1.21 “ Pefasquito Project’” means the gold, silver, lead and zinc mine irt anera Pefiasquito proposes to construct in theeQiuf
Zacatecas, Mexic(

1.1.22 “ Pefiasquito Purchase Pricé has the meaning set forth in Section :

1.1.23 “ Peflasquito Royalty” means (i) all right, title, and interest that wgranted to the Vendor and/or KEC in, to, and negato or
arising from the 2% net smelter royalty on the Refé&o Concessions provided in (a) Section 4 offienination of Property
Rights Agreement and (b) the “CONTRATO DE CESION DERECHOS QUE OTORGA, POR UNA PARTE, MINERA
KENNECOTT, S.A. DE C.V., REPRESENTADA EN ESTE ACRDR EL SR. DAVE F. SIMPSON Y, POR LA OTRA,
MINERA PENASQUITO, S.A. DE C.V., REPRESENTADA EN EE ACTO POR EL LIC. JOSE MARIA GALLARDO
TAMAYO,” dated October 29, 1999, a copy of whichaitached as Schedule C to this Agreement, ansiufiilect to Sections 7.1
and 7.2, all obligations relating there

1.1.24 “ Peflasquito Royalty Closing’ means the completion of the purchase and saleed?éfiasquito Royalty pursuant to Article

1.1.25 " Pefiasquito Royalty Closing Dat¢’ means January 20, 2007, unless otherwise agremutiing by the parties
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1.1.26 “ Projects” means the groups of concessions that were hél@gatio the Property Rights Agreement or the Taation of
Property Rights Agreement and are identified inesictie A hereta

1.1.27 “ Promissory Note” means a promissory note in the amount of $20@@Mpayable by the Purchaser on demand, which miay n
be made before the first Business Day after theagprito Royalty Closing, without interest beforended but with interest after
demand at an annual rate equal to the rate of LIBDR 6% per annum, both before and after judgméhtinterest on overdue
interest at the same ra

1.1.28 “ Property Rights Agreement” means the Property Rights Agreement between Wes§tepper Holdings Ltd., Minera Western
Copper S.A. de C.V., Kennecott Exploration Compamd Minera Kennecott S.A. de C.V., dated March1B®8, a copy of
which is attached as Schedule D to this Agreen

1.1.29“ Purchaser” has the meaning set forth on the first page ofAkjkeement

1.1.30 “Rio Tinto Group” means the dual listed company structure incorpggdgio Tinto plc and Rio Tinto Limited and includimny
Affiliate of either of them

1.1.31 “ Royalties” means the Other Royalties and the Pefiasquito o

1.1.32 “ Taxes” means value-added taxesr(puesto al valor agredadyp sales or commodity taxes, goods and servicestaxsimilar
taxes, duties and any registration, transfer ogrolbes imposed or levied in accordance with appleLaw or by Governmental
Authority, but excludes taxes on income or cagihs (impuesto sobre la reni).

1.1.33 “ Termination of Property Rights Agreement” means the Termination of Property Rights Agreenietween Kennecott
Exploration Company, Minera Kennecott S.A. de CWestern Copper Holdings Ltd. and Minera Westerppeo S.A. de C.V.,
dated May 5, 1999, a copy of which is attacheddme@ule E to this Agreemet

1.1.34* Vendor ” has the meaning set forth on the first page ofAlgieement, and is a partially owned direct sulasidof KEC.

1.1.35“ Western Copper” means Western Copper Holdings Ltd. and Minerat&fesCopper S.A. de C.V., each a party to the
Termination of Property Rights Agreeme

1.2. Gender and Number

In this Agreement, unless the context othernrésgiires, words importing the singular include pheal and vice versa, and words
importing a gender include all gende




1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

Headings

The headings used in this Agreement are imdéoteconvenience of reference only and shall ffflecathe interpretation of this
Agreement

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

All accounting terms not otherwise definedhistAgreement shall have the meanings ascribedktm in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in the United Statpplied consistentl

Currency
All dollar amounts in this Agreement are statetli. currency

Schedules

The following Schedules attached hereto are ingatpd herein and form part of this Agreemt
Schedule £ List of Projects
Schedule B. Spanish Language Agreements referenced in claijsé {ne definition of Other Concessio
Schedule B. Spanish Language Agreements referenced in claiijsef fhe definition of Other Concessio
Schedule C Spanish Language Agreement applicable to and refeckin the definition of the Pefiasquito Concess
Schedule L Property Rights Agreeme

Schedule E  Termination of Property Rights Agreem
PURCHASE AND SALE OF PENASQUITO ROYALTY AND OTHER R OYALTIES

. Purchase and Sal¢

2.1.1 Upon the terms and subject to the conditions of Agreement, the Vendor agrees to sell, assigrirandfer to the Purchaser, and
the Purchaser agrees to purchase from the VerdoRdfiasquito Royalty and all of the Vendor's rigitle and interest therein as
of and from the Pefiasquito Royalty Closing, withegdresentation or warranty of any kind as to tl@therwise except as set
forth in Section 3.1

2.1.2 By Notice given on or before May 1, 2007, the Passr shall advise the Vendor and KEC which, if ariyhe Other Royalties it
elects to purchase. Upon the terms and subjebetadnditions of this Agreement, the Vendor agteesll, assign and transfer to
the Purchaser, without representation or warrahgng kind as to title or otherwise except as setfin Section 3.1, all of the
Other Royalties that the Purchaser has electedrzhpse




2.2 Purchase Price

2.3.

2.4.

2.2.1 The purchase price for the Pefiasquito Royalty day@bthe Purchaser to the Vendor shall be $1000000(the “Pefiasquito
Purchase Price”) payable as follows

2.2.1.1$80,000,000 at the Penasquito Royalty Closing;
2.2.1.2$20,000,000 on the first Business Day following Benasquito Royalty Closing, pursuant to the PreonjsNote.

2.2.2 The purchase price for any and all of the OtherdR@ms that Purchaser elects to acquire shall b@0Hthe “Other Royalties
Purchase Price”).

Payment of the Pefiasquito Purchase Pric

The Pefiasquito Purchase Price shall be paid aisfieditby the Purchaser as follov

2.3.1 by the wire transfer of immediately available fedddunds in the amount of $80,000,000 to a bankastmaintained by the
Vendor in a bank organized under the Laws of anhtgd in the United States as shall be desigrmtéde Vendor by Notice to
the Purchaser not later than three (3) Business Pagr to the Pefiasquito Royalty Closing and dedd at the Pefiasquito
Royalty Closing; ant

2.3.2 by the payment to the Vendor of $20,000,000 orfitseBusiness Day after the Penasquito Royaltysig pursuant to the
Promissory Note

Payment of the Other Royalties Purchase Pric

The Other Royalties Purchase Price shall bet gadl satisfied by the Purchaser as a cash payh&at00 on the Other Royalties
Closing Date

REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

. Representations and Warranties of the Vendor and KE

The Vendor and KEC jointly and severally reprégsand warrant to the Purchaser as follows, i ease subject to the limitations set
forth in Section 3.4, and acknowledge that the Paser will rely on such representations and wagaiih entering into this Agreement,
and in concluding the purchase and sale contentplgte¢his Agreemen

3.1.1 Organization and Power Each of Vendor and KEC is a duly incorporated, niged and validly subsisting corporation under
laws of its jurisdiction of incorporation and h&® tcorporate power to own its interest in the Rilgslnd to carry out its
obligations under this Agreeme




3.1.2

3.1.3

3.14

3.15
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Due Authorization— The execution and delivery of this Agreement tredother documents to be executed and deliveredeby
Vendor and KEC hereunder and the carrying out ®fttansactions contemplated hereby on the paheo¥endor and KEC have
been duly authorized by all necessary corporaieraon the part of the Vendor and KE

Validity of Agreement— This Agreement and all other agreements andsaijaments and transfers to be executed and dativer
by the Vendor and KEC hereunder at the PefiasquyalB Closing and the Other Royalties Closing tibuie and will constitut:
valid, binding and enforceable obligations of thendor and KEC

No Conflicts or Violations— Neither the entering into of this Agreement amel dther documents and agreements to be executec
and delivered by the Vendor or KEC hereunder nerctthmpletion of the transactions contemplated heirebccordance with the
terms hereof will result in the violation of anytb terms or provisions of the constating docusmehthe Vendor or KEC nor,
subject to obtaining, on or before the PefasquitgalRy Closing and the Other Royalties Closing, eaguired consents of any
Governmental Authorities in Mexico to permit or ogoize the transfer of the Royalties to the Purehand obtaining the consi

of Minera Pefiasquito to the assignment of the RpiitassRoyalty and the Other Royalties, will theeaxmg into of this Agreement

or such other documents and agreements nor sucbletion thereof

3.1.4.1result in the violation of any of the terms or pgiens of any indenture or other agreement, inséninor obligation to
which either of the Vendor or KEC is a party ondalyich it is bound or by which any of the VendortskiEC's interests il
the Royalties is bound or affecte

3.1.4.2 conflict with, or result in a breach of, or violaay Law; or

3.1.4.3 give to any other person, after the giving of netic otherwise, any right of termination, canc@lafor acceleration in or
with respect to any agreement or other instrumemttich the Vendor or KEC is a party or is subjectfrom which it
derives benefit, by which any of the Ven's or KEC's interest in the Royalties is bound or affec

Royalties free and clear The Vendor holds the Pefiasquito Royalty, freededr of all liens, claims and encumbrances. Neith
the Vendor nor KEC has previous
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3.1.5.1 assigned the Royalties or any of their rights withpect theretc
3.1.5.2 granted or created any liens, charges or encumbsastt or in respect of the Royalti
3.1.5.3 granted any options to purchase or rights of figfisal with respect to the Royalties;

3.1.5.4 agreed to any amendment to Section 4 of the Tetinmaf Property Rights Agreement or waived anyh&ir rights
thereunder or under the contractos attached haseBzhedules B and

3.1.6 Royalty Documents— The documents attached hereto as Schedules 8gthi are true, correct, accurate, and completesap the
documents they purport to be. The Termination operty Rights Agreement, and the Contratos de GetedDerechos which are
attached hereto as Schedules B, C, and E haveeantditered, modified, supplemented, or amer

3.1.7 Compliance with Law-To the Knowledge of Vendc

3.1.7.1 before May 5, 1999 all operations on and with respethe Concessions were conducted in substaraimpliance with
all applicable Laws, including Environmental Lawsall material respects; a1

3.1.7.2the Vendor has not received from any Governmentahdrity written notice of any pending or threatémevestigation or
inquiry by any Governmental Authority relating toyaactual or alleged violation of any Law, inclugiany
Environmental Law, in with respect to or affectithg Concession:

3.1.8. Brokers Fees- Neither the Vendor nor KEC have any liability toymny fees or commissions to any broker, findeggent witk
respect to the transactions contemplated by thiedigent for which Purchaser could become liablgbtigated.

3.1.9. Litigation — There is no action, suit, prosecution or otherilsir proceeding of a material nature of which gsginitiating the
same has been served on the Vendor or KEC oretitiowledge of Vendor, threatened against the Veod&EC and affecting
any of the Vend('s or KEC's interest in the Royalties at law or in equitypefore or by any Governmental Authori

3.1.10 Information and Data— The Vendor and KEC have provided the Purchastr edgpies of all correspondence, notes, written
information, data, and other documents in theispssion or control relating to the Royalti
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3.1.11 Capitalization— The authorized and outstanding capital of thedéertonsists of 426,193,333 shares of which KECwn
126,507,103 shares and San Pedro Mining Compé&bdg|aavare corporation and a wholly owned subsidan(EC, owns
299,686,230 share

3.1.12 Activities regarding Concessiors None of KEC, the Vendor or any affiliate of eitligas at any time (a) engaged in any
commercial mining of minerals from the lands subjedhe Concessions, provided the Purchaser adkdoes that KEC, the
Vendor or affiliates of them have conducted exploraon such lands or (b) had or exercised the poweontrol the commercial
mining of minerals from the lands subject to thenGssions by any third party that owned or helldtsign respect of any of the
Concessions, provided the Purchaser acknowledge&HEC, the Vendor or affiliates of them may haeel lor exercised the
power to control exploration on such lands by tipadties that owned or held rights in respect ef@oncession:

3.2. Representations and Warranties of the Purchase

The Purchaser represents and warrants to thdorend KEC as follows, and acknowledges thavimedor and KEC will rely on such
representations and warranties in entering into Algreement, and in concluding the purchase amrdcsaitemplated by this Agreeme

3.2.1 Organization and Power The Purchaser is a duly incorporated, organizedvahidly subsisting company in good standing ur
the laws of its jurisdiction of incorporation anddthe corporate power to enter into this Agreerardtto carry out its obligations
under this Agreemen

3.2.2 Due Authorization— The execution and delivery of this Agreement #Hredother documents to be executed and deliveredeby
Purchaser hereunder and the carrying out of timsactions contemplated hereby on the part of tmeh@ger have been duly
authorized by all necessary corporate and sharehafttion on the part of the Purcha:

3.2.3 Validity of Agreement— This Agreement and all other agreements to bewsgd and delivered by the Purchaser hereundbeat t
Pefiasquito Royalty Closing and the Other Roya@ilesing constitute and will constitute valid, bindiand enforceable
obligations of the Purchast

3.2.4 No Conflicts or Violation— Neither the entering into of this Agreement amel dther documents and agreements to be executec
and delivered by the Purchaser hereunder nor tmpletion of the transactions contemplated herelacoordance with the terms
hereof will conflict with or result in the breachdolation of any Law or any of the terms and psians of the constating
documents of the Purchaser or of any indenturdtmr@agreement, instrument or obligation to whieh Purchaser is a party or
which it is bound, or give to any other personeiathe giving of notice or otherwise, any rightefmination, cancellation or
acceleration in or with respect to any agreemewttoer instrument to which the Purchaser is a parfg subject, or from which it
derives benefit
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3.2.5 Broker's Fees- The Purchaser has no liability to pay any feesoonmissions to any broker, finder, or agent witbpect to the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement foctvitie Vendor or KEC could become liable or obkglha

Acknowledgements of the Vendor and KEC

3.3.1 The Vendor and KEC acknowledge that except as sgfyraet forth in Section 3.2, the Purchaser makesxpress or implied
representations or warranties with respect to tigest matter of this Agreemel

3.3.2 The Vendor and KEC acknowledge and agree eachtldtbther that KEC does not hold any rights aneréests in and to the
Penasquito Royalty or the Other Royalties and, d#sereon, the Vendor and KEC jointly and sevenadfyresent and warrant to
the Purchaser that KEC does not hold any rightsterests in and to the Pefiasquito Royalty or ttheeORoyalties. The Vendor
acknowledges that the Pefiasquito Purchase Prgardiess of how allocated between the Vendor an@,K&full and fair
consideration for the Pefiasquito Royalty and thatRurchaser is not responsible for, and shabediable for, the consequences
of the allocation of the Pefiasquito Purchase Prteeen the Vendor and KE

Acknowledgements of the Purchase

The Purchaser acknowledges that except assstpreet forth in Section 3.1, the Vendor and KE&kenno express or implied
representations or warranties with respect to tifsgest matter of this Agreement and, in particiiar without limitation (and without
limiting the other subsections of this Section id)express or implied representations or warrargtie or have been made, except a
forth in Subsections 3.1.7 and 3.1.12, and anyadlrichplied representations and warranties aretheexcluded, relating to the
following, and the Purchaser acknowledges thatiielying solely upon its own investigations widspect to such mattel

3.4.1 Condition of Concessions- the value, merchantability or fithess for anygmsge of the Concessions; the existence or presgnce
any mineral substance or ore; the feasibility afipability of any mining operation on or with resgt to the Concessions; the
value of the Royalties; the right or ability of Ve Copper to mine or produce minerals from thagéssions; the likelihood th
minerals can or will be removed from the Concessiarcommercially saleable quantities; the physicaidition of the
Concessions; the existence of contaminants on tine€3sions; or environmental or other liabilitiesaciated with the
Concessions; or the validity or enforceability efc8on 4 of the Termination of Property Rights Agre=nt or the agreements
attached as Schedules B and C hel
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3.4.2 Data— the accuracy or completeness, other than asrhbtih Section 3.1.6, of any information, docunagiain or data, including
without limitation any information, documentationdata provided pursuant to or in connection wihih megotiation hereof,
relating to the Royalties, the Concessions or otlsey;

3.4.3 Royalties— the right or ability of Western Copper to pay Reyalties; the legal status of Western Coppehenalidity or
enforceability of Section 4 of the Termination abperty Rights Agreement or the agreements attaahe®thedules B and C
hereto; ol

3.4.4 Title — the title, if any, of Western Copper to the Cas®iens, the absence of third-party claims to arests in the Concessions;
or the status or good standing of the Concessiarisding as to whether any or all of them contitwexist or as to whether taxes
or assessments required to maintain them in g@istg have been paid or as to whether beforeter Biay 5, 1999 any rights
were validly obtained by conversion, extensionurssitution of concession

PRE-CLOSING COVENANTS

. Actions
Subject to the terms and conditions of thise®gnent, each of the parties will use its good feftorts to take, or cause to be taken, all
actions and to do, or cause to be done, all thimgessary to be ready to comply with the requirésnehSections 6.2 and 6.3 at the
Penasquito Royalty Closing or the Other Royaltissiig as the case may be including without lindtaimaking such filings or
registrations with Governmental Authorities as mayits part be require:
Consents

Subject to the limitations contemplated in 88c8.4, in respect of which no action by KEC o Wendor will be required and which
KEC and the Vendor shall not be obligated to remadgure, and to Section 8.;

4.2.1 Each of the parties shall use its respective reddercommercial efforts to obtain at its own exgenis or before the Pefiasquito
Royalty Closing any and all consents or approvalS@ernmental Authorities as may be required smpért to sell, assign and
transfer its interest in the Penasquito RoyalttheoPurchaser, provided that the parties shalbagequired to make any payme
including without limitation payment of Taxes, ammit to any work or provision of services or othise incur any material
obligations in performing their obligations undkistSubsection 4.2..

4.2.2 Each of the Vendor and KEC shall use its reasonabiamercial efforts to obtain at its own expenseas as reasonably
possible after the date of this Agreement, andhinevent on or before the Pefiasquito Royalty Cépsany and all consents,
without any material conditions or restrictions am
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form and substance satisfactory to Purchaser amggpnably, to this Agreement and to the trammasttontemplated hereby that
are required to be obtained from (a) Minera Pefitsqu it successors or assigns under the terntiiseof ermination of Property
Rights Agreement or the contrato attached herefcasdule C and (b) from any third party other thtmera Pefiasquito that are
necessary to the completion of the transactiontecaplated hereby in respect of the Pefiasquito Royalovided that the Vendor
and KEC shall not be required to make any paymanésherwise incur any obligations in performingithobligations under this
Subsection 4.2.2, and provided further that thedéermnd KEC shall consult with the Purchaser caringrthe form and
substance of the request for consent to be maklénera Pefiasquitc

4.2.3 Each of the Vendor and KEC shall use its reasonadstemercial efforts to obtain at its own expenssam as reasonably
possible after Notice from the Purchaser of thatitieof the Other Royalties, if any, it electsgorchase, and in any event on or
before the Other Royalties Closing, any and alkeaits, without any material conditions or restoiesi and in form and substance
satisfactory to Purchaser acting reasonably, ®yAlgreement and to the transactions contemplatezbjén respect of such Other
Royalties that are required to be obtained fronMeera Pefiasquito or it successors or assignsruhdeerms of the Terminatic
of Property Rights Agreement or the contratos Atddereto as Schedule B and (b) from any thirtydher than Minera
Pefiasquito that are necessary to the completitiredfansactions contemplated hereby in respesticdf Other Royalties,
provided that the Vendor and KEC shall not be negflito make any payments or otherwise incur anigatibns in performing
their obligations under this Subsection 4..

4.3. Due Diligence

4.3.1 Following the execution of this Agreement, untié tAefiasquito Royalty Closing Date or earlier teatiam of this Agreement, the
Purchaser shall have the exclusive right to conceatonable due diligence in respect of the owigrggrms and conditions,
validity, and good standing of the Pefasquito Ryyahd the Pefiasquito Concessions, including, withmitation, through
inquiries made of Governmental Authorities and NinBefiasquito and its affiliate

4.3.2 Following the execution of this Agreement, untié tBther Royalties Closing Date or earlier termmratf this Agreement, the
Purchaser shall have the exclusive right to conckatonable due diligence in respect of the owiggrdrms and conditions,
validity, and good standing of the Other Royaltesl the Other Concessions, including, without ktidn, through inquiries mau
of Governmental Authorities and Minera Pefasquitt iss affiliates
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4.3.3 The Vendor and KEC shall co-operate with Purchasegspect to such due diligence, and, if requelsietthe Purchaser, each

shall use its reasonable efforts to facilitate dimmunications between the Purchaser and MiRefimasquito or any other third
party whose consent may be needed for the complefithe transactions contemplated hert

4.3.4 Following the execution of this Agreement, neittrex Vendor nor KEC nor the affiliates of eitherlwhter into or continue any
negotiations or discussions with respect to théestilatter of this Agreement with any other perspentity.

5. CONDITIONS OF CLOSING
5.1. Mutual Conditions

5.1.1 The obligations of the Vendor to complete the sélihe Pefiasquito Royalty as contemplated by tigiedment and the

corresponding obligation of the Purchaser to coteplee purchase of the Pefiasquito Royalty are sutgjéulfillment of the
following conditions:

5.1.1.1 No Order or Proceedin— No injunction or restraining order of any Goveemital Authority of competent jurisdiction
shall be in effect which prohibits the transacticoatemplated by this Agreement in respect of th@aRquito Royalty and
no action or proceeding shall have been institatetiremain pending before any such court or otleere@mental
Authority to restrain or prohibit any of the tran§ans contemplated hereby in respect of the Pefi@sgoyalty.

5.1.1.2 Approvals and Consents- Except as contemplated in Section 8.2, all consaptsrovals, orders and authorizations of
person (including, without limitation, Minera Pefja&o) or Governmental Authority (or registratiodgclarations, filings
or recordings with any such Governmental Authoritystock exchange or securities commission reduireonnection
with the completion of any of the transactions eomplated by this Agreement in respect of the PeafimsRoyalty, the
execution of this Agreement, the Pefiasquito Roy@loging, or the performance of any of the ternt @eanditions herec
shall have been obtained without any material dgord or restrictions and in form and substancisfsatory to both the
Purchaser and Vendor, acting reasonably, on orédfie Pefiasquito Royalty Closing D:

5.1.2 The obligations of the Vendor to complete the sélthe Other Royalties that the Purchaser hasezldotpurchase and the

corresponding obligation of the Purchaser to coteplee purchase of such Other Royalties are sutgdatfillment of the
following conditions:
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5.1.2.1 No Order or Proceedin— No injunction or restraining order of any Goveemtal Authority of competent jurisdiction
shall be in effect which prohibits the transactionatemplated by this Agreement in respect of ttteeORoyalties to be
purchased and no action or proceeding shall hage instituted and remain pending before any suadnt @y other
Governmental Authority to restrain or prohibit asfythe transactions contemplated hereby in respfesiich Other
Royalties.

5.1.2.2 Approvals and Consents- Except as contemplated in Section 8.2, all consaptsrovals, orders and authorizations of
person (including, without limitation, Minera Pefjai&o) or Governmental Authority (or registratiodgclarations, filings
or recordings with any such Governmental Authonigquired in connection with the completion of arfiyhe transaction
contemplated by this Agreement in respect of tHee©ORoyalties to be purchased, or the performaheeyof the terms
and conditions hereof in respect of such Other Riegashall have been obtained without any mdteadaditions or
restrictions and in form and substance satisfadihoth the Purchaser and Vendor, acting reaspnablor before the
Other Royalties Closing Dat

The foregoing conditions are inserted for the muibemefit of the Vendor and the Purchaser and neawdived in whole or in part if a
only if jointly waived by the Vendor and the Purska

5.2. Purchaser's Conditions

5.2.1 The obligation of the Purchaser to complete thelpase of the Pefiasquito Royalty is subject tollimiint of the following
conditions:

5.2.1.1 Due Diligence— The completion of due diligence to the Purchaserasonable satisfaction with respect to the ostrigr
terms and conditions, validity, and good standifthe Pefasquito Royalty and the Pefasquito Coimres

5.2.1.2 Representations and WarrantiesThe representations and warranties of the VeaddrKEC made in this Agreement
(except in respect of the Other Royalties) shalirbe and correct in all material respects as iflenat and as of the
Pefiasquito Royalty Closing Da

5.2.1.3 Performance of Covenamnt#\ll covenants to be performed by the Vendor oiKikereunder on or before the Pefiasquito
Royalty Closing Date pursuant to this Agreementlidtave been performed in all material respe
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5.2.2 If the Purchaser elects to purchase any of ther@Rbgalties, the obligation of the Purchaser to plate the purchase of such
Other Royalties is subject to fulfilment of thdléaving conditions:

5.2.2.1 Representations and WarrantiesThe representations and warranties of the VeaddrKEC made in this Agreement
shall be true and correct in all material respast§ made at and as of the Other Royalties CloBiaig.

5.2.2.2 Performance of Covenamnt®\ll covenants to be performed by the Vendor oiKiiereunder on or before the Other
Royalties Closing Date pursuant to this Agreemaatifave been performed in all material respe

The conditions in Subsection 5.2.1 and 5.2e2farr the exclusive benefit of the Purchaser ang beawaived by the Purchaser in whole
or in part by Notice to the Vendor from the Puraha

Vendor’'s Conditions
5.3.1 The obligations of the Vendor to complete the sélihe Pefiasquito Royalty are subject to fulfillmehthe following conditions

5.3.1.1 Representations and WarrantiesThe representations and warranties of the Puechmade in this Agreement shall be
true and correct in all material respects as if enaidl and as of the Pefiasquito Royalty Closing [

5.3.1.2 Performance of Covenant#\ll covenants to be performed by the Purchaserumeter on or before the Pefiasquito Roy
Closing Date pursuant to this Agreement shall hmen performed in all material respe:
5.3.2 The obligations of the Vendor to complete the séleny of the Other Royalties that the Purchasestslto purchase are subject to

fulfillment of the following conditions
5.3.2.1 Representations and WarrantiesThe representations and warranties of the Puechmade in this Agreement shall be
true and correct in all material respects as if enawal and as of the Other Royalties Closing C

5.3.2.2 Performance of Covenamnt®\ll covenants to be performed by the Purchasesuraler on or before the Other Royalties
Closing Date pursuant to this Agreement shall Heen performed in all material respe:
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The conditions in Subsection 5.3.1 and 5.3Xar the exclusive benefit of the Vendor and meymMaived by the Vendor in whole or in
part by Notice to the Purchaser from the Ven

Termination
This Agreement, including without limitation Seatid.3.4, shall be subject to termination as follo

5.4.1 by the Vendor by Notice to the Purchaser on orfigefloe Pefiasquito Royalty Closing Date if any anmore of the conditions <
forth in Sections 5.1.1 or 5.3.1 has become indapaftfulfillment or has not been fulfilled on tiefasquito Royalty Closing
Date and has not been waived by the Venda

5.4.2 by the Purchaser by Notice to the Vendor on orfeefioe Pefiasquito Royalty Closing Date if any oneore of the conditions <
forth in Sections 5.1.1 or 5.2.1 has become indapaftfulfillment or has not been fulfilled on tiefasquito Royalty Closing
Date and has not been waived by the Purch

Any such termination shall be without prejudioeany right or remedy of any party with respecatbreach of this Agreement by any
other party

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreemeéf Minera Pefiasquito timely objects to, or atf#s to condition, the transfer a
assignment to the Purchaser of the Pefasquito oyt parties shall use their reasonable godl &forts to cause Minera Pefiasq
to remove the objection or condition, provided ttiat Vendor and KEC shall not be required to makemayments or otherwise incur
any obligations in performing such obligations, #amel Pefiasquito Royalty Closing Date shall be alddrio the extent necessary, but
not later than April 30, 2007, after which this Agment may be terminated be either p:

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreemhéf Minera Pefasquito or any third party witte tight to consent timely objec

to, or attempts to condition, the transfer andgassient to the Purchaser of any of the Other R@agttiat the Purchaser has elected to
purchase, the parties shall use their reasonalolé fgdith efforts to cause Minera Pefiasquito or shiohl party to remove the objection
or condition, provided that the Vendor and KEC khat be required to make any payments or otherimisgr any obligations in
performing such obligations, and the Other Roysl@$osing Date, shall be extended to the extergsgery, but not later than July 30,
2007, after which this Agreement may be terminég@dither party, but such termination shall noeeffin any manner the transactions
consummated at or in connection with the Pefiasdrotglty Closing

Confidentiality

The parties acknowledge that the Data Disclsgreement remains in full force and effect, ex@pmodified by this Section 5.5 and
by Section 10.2. All informatio
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furnished to the Purchaser by the Vendor in conoeatith the Purchaser’s due diligence investigaior otherwise pursuant to this
Agreement shall be subject to the Data Disclosugee@ment. The term of the Data Disclosure Agreemithtrespect to information

relating to the Pefiasquito Royalty and the Pefiss@ancessions is hereby modified to expire oretirtier of (a) October 4, 2008 or
(b) the Pefiasquito Royalty Closing. The term oflla¢a Disclosure Agreement with respect to all othisrmation subject thereto is
hereby modified to expire on the earlier of (a) @betr 4, 2008 or (b) the Other Royalties Closing.

CLOSING

. Time and Place of Closing

6.1.1 The Vendor and Purchaser shall consummate and ttleseansactions contemplated herein in respeitteoPefiasquito Royalty (“
Pefiasquito Royalty Closing’), at KEC's offices located at 224 North 2200 We&lt Lake City, Utah (or at such other place as
the parties may mutually agree) at 10:00 o’clock.alocal time, on the Pefiasquito Royalty ClosiradeD The Peflasquito Royalty
Closing Date may be postponed to a later time atel lly mutual agreement signed by both partigbelPefiasquito Royalty
Closing is postponed, all references to the PeifitasRoyalty Closing Date in this Agreement shafergo the postponed da

6.1.2 The Vendor and Purchaser shall consummate and ttlegeansactions contemplated herein in respeahpbf the Other
Royalties that the Purchaser elects to purcha€eh@r Royalties Closing”), at KEC's offices located at 224 North 2200 West
Salt Lake City, Utah (or at such other place agtirties may mutually agree) at 10:00 o’clock alotal time, on the Other
Royalties Closing Date. The Other Royalties Cloghage may be postponed to a later time and datauiyal agreement signed
by both parties. If the Other Royalties Closingdstponed, all references to the Other Royaltiesi@g Date in this Agreement
shall refer to the postponed de

Documents to be Delivered by the Vendc

At the Pefiasquito Royalty Closing and at thee©Royalties Closing, as the case may be, the dfestthll deliver or cause to be
delivered to the Purchas:

6.2.1 all deeds of conveyance, bills of sale, transfer assignments, in form and content satisfactothedPurchaser’s counsel,
appropriate to vest in the Purchaser all of thedée's rights to the Pefiasquito Royalty or the OfReyalties, as the case may be,
free and clear of all liens, claims and encumbranioat subject to the limitations set forth in $®tt3.4, in immediately
registerable form (if applicable) in all places \wheegistration of such instruments is requil

6.2.2 certified copies of those resolutions of the dioestand, if required, shareholders of the Venddri&EC required to be passed to
authorize the
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execution, delivery and implementation of this Agreent and of all documents to be delivered by tedér and KEC under this
Agreement and the completion of the transactiom$éecoplated hereby;

6.2.3 an opinion of the each of the Vendor's and KE@ternal or external counsel in a form to thesogmble satisfaction of counsel

the Purchaser as to the corporate existence offgrtjy and to the effect that the Agreement has lnily authorized, executed
and delivered by such party and constitutes a Jegéitl and binding obligation of such par

6.2.4 a certificate of an officer of the Vendor as to #ueuracy as of the Pefiasquito Royalty Closing Dathe Other Royalties Closi
Date, as the case may be, of the Verslmepresentations and warranties and the perforenairits covenants to be performed e
before the Pefasquito Royalty Closing or Other R@gClosing, as the case may be;

6.2.5 a certificate of an officer of KEC as to the acayras of the Pefiasquito Royalty Closing Date ofQtteer Royalties Closing Dat

as the case may be, of KEC's representations andmtees and the performance of its covenants tpeoformed at or before the
Pefiasquito Royalty Closing or Other Royalties Gigsias the case may |

6.3. Documents to be Delivered by the Purchase

6.3.1 Atthe Pefiasquito Royalty Closing the Purchasell deliver or cause to be delivered to the Venu

6.3.1.1 a covenant of the Purchaser in favour of the Vemdoeeing to assume and pay or perform and indgrtivef Vendor
against the Assumed Liabilities and other obligatiagreed to be assumed by the Purchaser undégitdement in the

manner and to the extent provided in this Agreepmrguch other documents as the Vendor may rebboreqjuire in
order to provide for such assumption and indem

6.3.1.2 certified copies of those resolutions of the diestand, if required, shareholders of the Purcha&sgprired to be passed to

authorize the execution, delivery and implementatbthis Agreement and of all documents and paysienbe delivered
by the Purchaser under this Agreement and the adioplof the transactions contemplated her

6.3.1.3 a certificate of an officer of the Purchaser athtoaccuracy as of the Pefiasquito Royalty Closiaig [Bf the Purchaser’s

representations and warranties and the performafnit® covenants to be performed at or before #@aBquito Royalty
Closing;
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6.3.1.4 an opinion of the Purchaser’s internal or exteowainsel in a form to the reasonable satisfactiacoahsel for the Vendor
as to the corporate existence of the Purchasetoathe effect that the Agreement has been dulyaaiziéd, executed and
delivered by the Purchaser and constitutes a lgghdl and binding obligation of the Purchas

6.3.1.5 the wire transfer of immediately available funds $80,000,000, being portion of the Pefiasquito Page Price payable in
cash at the Peflasquito Royalty Closing;

6.3.1.6 the Promissory Note as evidence of the Purchasbligation to pay the balance of the Purchase Rwicthe first Business
Day after the Pefiasquito Royalty Closi

6.3.2 At the Other Royalties Closing the Purchaser diellver or cause to be delivered to the Ven

6.3.2.1 certified copies of those resolutions of the diestand, if required, shareholders of the Purchasprired to be passed to
authorize the execution, delivery and implementatball documents to be delivered by the Purchasder this

Agreement in respect of the Other Concessionstaddmpletion of the transactions contemplateddyendth respect to
the Other Concessior

6.3.2.2 a certificate of an officer of the Purchaser athtoaccuracy as of the Other Royalties Closing D&tbe Purchaser’s

representations and warranties and the performafnite covenants to be performed at or before ttreORoyalties
Closing; anc

6.3.2.3 the Other Royalties Purchase Pri
7. ASSUMPTION OF LIABILITIES; RELATED INDEMNITIES
7.1. Assumed Liabilities

Subject to the provisions of Section 7.2, frand after the Pefiasquito Royalty Closing or theeORbpyalties Closing Date, as the case
may be, the Purchaser shall assume, pay and digcharand when due and be responsible for allitiabj if any, arising out of (a) the
ownership by the Vendor or KEC of the PefiasquitgaRg and, if the Purchaser purchases any of theiRoyalties, such Other
Royalties as are purchased by the Purchaser, atige(lownership by the Vendor of the Pefiasquitoc€ssions, and, if the Purchaser
purchases any of the Other Royalties, the Othec€&ssions to which the Other Royalties that arelaged by the Purchaser apply,

whether fixed, absolute or contingent, including ibot limited to any such liabilities arising undery Environmental Laws to which t
Purchaser or the Vendor may be subject, relatin
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7.1.1 the presence, on or within the Pefiasquito Conaessiosuch Other Concessions as the case mayasy oéagent, chemical,
contaminant, pollutant, dangerous substance, ligo@lindustrial waste, industrial effluents, ordralbus substance (in Section
collectively called the ‘Substances), whether or not present at the Pefiasquito Rpy@lbsing Date or the Other Royalties
Closing Date as the case may

7.1.2 the environmental conditions of the air, waterfate or subsurface of the Pefiasquito ConcessiosiscbrOther Concessions as
the case may be, resulting directly or indirectynfi the use, storage, transportation, disposaisshdrge of any Substances in,
about or relating to the Pefiasquito Concessiossiar Other Concessions, or the mining operationgedaout thereon, including
acts or omissions done or omitted or conditionsvants that existed at or prior to the PefiasquitgaRy Closing Date or the
Other Royalties Closing Date as the case may hk

7.1.3 any actual environmental damage or similar conditedating to the Pefiasquito Concessions or subbr@oncessions as the ¢
may be, except to the extent that such damagetsdsuin noi-compliance by the Vendor with any applicable Li

in each case whether disclosed in environmentatsaadother material provided by the Vendor or Ki&Ghe Purchaser or identified
through investigations carried out by or on bebéthe Purchaser and disclosed in writing to thedé (collectively, the ‘Assumed
Liabilities "), and the Purchaser shall, subject to the liriutes set forth in Section 7.2, indemnify and sdveV¥endor and KEC
harmless from all claims, demands, suits and agfiomespect of the Assumed Liabilities. Notwitimgting the foregoing or any other
provision of this Agreement, Assumed Liabilitieablexpresslyexclude(a) any obligations of the Vendor or KEC of anyeyqr
character whatsoever not arising from or relatetthéoPefiasquito Concessions, the Pefiasquito RotradtyDther Concessions or the
Other Royalties, (b) any obligation, which to thedvledge of Vendor was created by KEC or the Ventiopay to any party that is not
a Governmental Authority any royalty or other payiieased on production of minerals from the Pefits@oncessions or the Other
Concessions, (c) any obligation to pay any taxemoome or capital gainsifipuesto sobre la renfefor or on behalf of the Vendor or
KEC, and (d) liability or penalties for criminaltadhat occurred before May 5, 1999.

Limitations on Indemnity Relating to Assumed Liabilities

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set fartlthis Agreement, the Purchaser shall not be al#idjto indemnify, defend or hc
harmless the Vendor and KEC or either of them fthenfirst $10,000,000 in the aggregate, subjeatfastment as provided in the next
sentence of this Section 7.2, of losses otherwibgest to indemnity pursuant to Section 7.1 whidkeaout of or relate to events, acts or
omissions that occurred prior to the Penasquitai@tpDate. The said $10,000,000 shall be reduaethéd the Purchaserbbligation tc
indemnify increases) by the aggregate amount ofliahifity of the Vendor and KEC, limited by Seati@.5.4, for breach of the
representation and warranty in Section 3.1
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Payment of Certain Taxes on Sale and Transfer

Each of the parties has concluded that no vadigked tax {(mpuesto al valor agregadypor transfer tax is payable to any Mexican
Governmental Authority in respect of the sale aadgfer of the Royalties to the Purchaser purstaatfiis Agreement. Nonetheless the
Purchaser shall be responsible for and shall panvdue any such value added tax or transfer taalpayy the Vendor or KEC or
either of them or by the Purchaser in respect@ftie and transfer of the Royalties to the Pusshd@$ie Vendor and the Purchaser <
use their commercially reasonable efforts in gathfto minimize or eliminate any such value adtiedor transfer tax. The Purchaser
shall have the right to contest the impositionmf auch tax and the Vendor and KEC shall coopavétethe Purchaser in any
opposition, contest or challenge to any attempary Mexican Governmental Authority to impose angtstax. Notwithstanding the
foregoing provisions of this Section 7.3, the Pasgr shall have no obligation to pay any taxeswdtrerespect to or based on (a) the
income or capital gainsifipuesto sobre la renfawhether resulting from cash or other considerataceived by the Vendor for the sale
of the Royalties or (b) any profit sharing obligattior other employee compensation liability or aboésponsibility tax of the Vendor or
KEC.

Indemnification by Purchaser

In accordance with the procedures in Sectiéntiie Purchaser shall indemnify the Vendor, KE®@] their respective directors, officers,
employees, agents, and representatives againsigaeds to hold the Vendor, KEC, and their respedtixectors, officers, employees,
agents, and representatives harmless from anylbt@naages, claims, losses, liabilities, fines,a#as and expenses (including with
limitation, expenses of investigation, attorneysd in connection with any action, suit or procegdirought against any of them, the
cost of all studies, surveys, clean-up and anyraheironmental expenses) incurred or sufferecheyMendor, KEC, or their respective
directors, officers, employees, agents, and reptatees or any of them arising out

7.4.1 any misrepresentation or breach of warranty of tviNotice has been given under Section 7.6 befqoeation of the
representation or warranty as provided in Secti@n

7.4.2 any covenant or agreement made or to be performéinebPurchaser pursuant to this Agreement;
7.4.3 any liabilities or obligations assumed in Sectiohand in Section 7.
Indemnification by Vendor and KEC

In accordance with the procedures in Sectiéntiie Vendor and KEC, jointly and severally ageesndemnify the Purchaser and its
directors, officers, employees, agents, and reptatiees against and agree to hold the Purchaskitsadirectors, officers, employees,
agents, and representatives harmless from anylbti@naages, claims, losses, liabilities, fines,ates and expenses (including with
limitation, expenses of investigation, attorr’ fees and expenses in connection with any actiahps
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proceeding brought against the Purchaser, theof@dt studies, surveys, clean-up and any otheirenmental expenses) incurred or
suffered by the Purchaser or its directors, oficemployees, agents, and representatives arigingf:o

7.5.1 any misrepresentation or breach of warranty of twiNotice has been given under Section 7.6 befop@ation of the
representation or warranty as provided in Sectidn

7.5.2 any covenant or agreement made or to be performélgebvVendor or KEC pursuant to this Agreement;
7.5.3 any liabilities or obligations assumed in SectioB;
provided that notwithstanding the foregoing or ity else in this Agreement:

7.5.4 the liability of the Vendor and KEC collectivelyrfbreach of the representation and warranty ini@e&1.12 shall be limited in
the aggregate to the lesser of $10,000,000 oriffezehce between $10,000,000 and the aggregaiaylfosses referred to in
Section 7.2 which materializ

If the Vendor and KEC pay the Purchaser on accofitiite obligation to indemnify against breach & thpresentation and warranty in
Section 3.1.12 and subsequently losses referredSection 7.2 materialize which, if they had mikézed first, would have reduced the
amount required to be paid by the Vendor and KIEE Rurchaser will repay the difference to KEC.

The Vendor and KEC acknowledge that they retaiparsibility for the amount of certain losses asvjgted in Section 7.2.

Claims of Indemnity

A party claiming for indemnity under this Atigc7 (the “Indemnitee”) shall give prompt Notice of any claim, actiomppeeding or
circumstances that could reasonably give rise ¢b suclaim to the party which has agreed to ind@nin(the “ Indemnitor ”).

Inadvertent failure to give such prompt Notice widit preclude the Indemnitee from pursuing thentlanless and to the extent that the
Indemnitor is materially prejudiced by such failuféne Indemnitor may, and will, if directed to dmlsy the Indemnitee, at its own
expense and in the name of the Indemnitee or othepdispute any claim made, or any matter on whickaim could be made, by a
third party in respect of which a Notice has bememg by the Indemnitee under this Section 7.6 aagl retain legal counsel acceptable
to the Indemnitee to have conduct of any proceeditajing to such a claim. The Indemnitee may empkparate counsel with respect
to any such claims brought by a third party andigipate in the defense thereof, provided the #resexpenses of such counsel shall be
the responsibility of the Indemnitee unle

7.6.1 the Indemnitor fails to assume the defence of slmim on behalf of the Indemnitee within five dayfseceiving Notice of such
claim; or

7.6.2 the employment of such counsel has been authobigzélde Indemnitor
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in each of which cases the Indemnitor shall noetthe right to assume the defense of such suiebalbof the Indemnitee but shall be
liable to pay the reasonable fees and expensesuosel for the Indemnitee. For the purpose of corifig or disputing such a claim, the
Indemnitee will provide full and complete disclosuo the Indemnitor and complete access to and oighspection by the
representatives of the Indemnitor of all documemis records in the possession or control of therimdtee relating to such claim. If &
security is required to be provided for the purpadefending or contesting any such claim, inahggliwithout limitation, any appeal of
any judgment, the Indemnitor shall provide suchusgcand all monies or property representing sseturity received by the
Indemnitee as a result of a successful defenserdestation will be held in trust by the Indemniteethe benefit of the Indemnitor and
will be remitted to the Indemnitor on demand. Neitthe Indemnitee nor the Indemnitor shall setitanpromise or pay any claim for
which indemnity is sought hereunder except withgther written consent of the other, such consenta be unreasonably withheld, or
in the case of the Indemnitee unless the Indemfaitsrto dispute and defend such claim.

POST-CLOSING MATTERS

. Royalty Payments

From and after the Pefiasquito Royalty Clodimg,Purchaser will be entitled to the full use angbyment of the Pefiasquito Royalty,
including without limitation all payments thereunderom and after the Other Royalties Closing,Rinechaser will be entitled to the f
use and enjoyment of the Other Royalties acquiyeithé Purchaser, including without limitation aflyments thereunde

Consents and Approvals

Where the consent or approval of any Governaléaithority is required to transfer, or assigrr@rognize the Royalties to and in the
name of the Purchaser and has not been obtainedh®fore the Pefiasquito Royalty Closing Date er@ther Royalties Closing Date,
as the case may be, the Vendor will continue td tied Royalties pending receipt by the Purchassucii consent or approval, provic
that the Vendor’ sole obligation hereunder willtbéold the Royalties, to remit any payments ipees thereof to the Purchaser, and to
carry out at the request and expense of the Pweckash acts in compliance with applicable Law astrbe carried out by the holder
thereof. The Purchaser will be responsible forwaiiidpay, and will indemnify and hold the VendordaKEC and each of them harmless
from, any and all Taxes applicable to or arisirapfrthe receipt by the Vendor of payments of thedR@s or the remittance of the
Royalties to the Purchast

Further Assurances

From and after the Pefiasquito Royalty Closentheof the parties will make any and all such §iiror registrations with Governmental
Authorities as may on its part be required to catgthe transfer of the Pefiasquito Royalty to treliaser. If the Purchaser elects to
Purchase any of the Other Royalties, from and #fieiOther Royalties Closing each of the partidsmake any and all such filings or
registrations with Government
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Authorities as may on its part be required to catgthe transfer of such Other Royalties to thelaser, including all necessary or
appropriate registrations with Governmental Auttiesi

SURVIVAL OF REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENAN TS

. Vendor’'s and KEC's Representations, Warranties and Covenants

All representations and warranties made bydedor or KEC in this Agreement or under this Agneat shall, unless otherwise
expressly stated, survive the Pefiasquito Royalhgi@y) and the Other Royalties Closing and any imy&tson at any time made by or
behalf of the Purchaser, and shall continue infarte and effect for the benefit of the Purchdser period of three years after the
Pefasquito Royalty Closinprovided, howeve, that:

9.1.1 the representations and warranties made in Se8tloh shall survive in perpetuit

9.1.2 the representations and warranties made in SeBtloh? shall survive for a period of seven yeatasrahe Pefiasquito Royalty
Closing; anc

9.1.3 any and all representations or warranties thalimited to the “Knowledge of Vendorshall expire upon the earlier of (a) oney
from the Pefiasquito Royalty Closing Date, or (lg) ¢essation of Stephen Sr's full-time employment with the Rio Tinto Grot

All covenants and agreements made by the VendKEG in this Agreement or under this Agreement sbatl/ive Peflasquito Royalty

Closing and the Other Royalties Closing and angstigation at any time made by or on behalf ofRhechaser, and shall continue in
full force and effect for the benefit of the Pursba

Purchaser' s Representations, Warranties and Covenani

All representations and warranties made by thelRser in this Agreement or under this Agreemenit,sindess otherwise expressly
stated, shall survive the Pefiasquito Royalty Ctpsimd the Other Royalties Closing and any investigaat any time made by or on
behalf of the Vendor or KEC, and shall continuéuthforce and effect for the benefit of the Vendord KEC for a period of three years
after the Peflasquito Royalty Closing. All covenaartd agreements made by the Purchaser in this fgmieor under this Agreement
shall survive the Pefiasquito Royalty Closing armd@ther Royalties Closing and any investigatioargt time made by or on behalf of
the Vendor or KEC, or either of them, and shalltzare in full force and effect for the benefit tietVVendor and KEC

MISCELLANEOUS

Expenses- The parties shall each bear all of their ownsasd expenses, including consultants’ and attstriegs, incurred in
connection with the negotiation of this Agreememd she consummation of the transactions contentplageeby
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Public Announcements- The Vendor and KEC acknowledge that the Purchaledisclose the existence and terms and conultiof
this Agreement and file this Agreement as requinga@pplicable Securities Laws, and the Vendor aB€Kcknowledge that the
Purchaser will thereafter continue to disclosefimi@tion concerning this Agreement, the Royaltiesl the Concessions to industry
analysts and members of the public. The Purch&sdircomply with all applicable Laws and shall adfribute any statements regard
this Agreement or the Royalties to KEC or the Vandde parties will provide a draft of their initiproposed press release to all other
parties sufficiently in advance of its release tovide the other parties a reasonable opportuaitgtiew and comment on the content
thereof.

Notices— All notices, requests, demands, claims, and atbarmunications hereunderfotices”) must be in writing. Any party may
send any Notice to the intended recipient at thiress$ set forth below using certified mail, natibneecognized express courier,
personal delivery or facsimile transmittal, and angh Notice will be deemed to have been duly g{@gnhree days after being
deposited in the U.S. mail, postage prepaid, (@)xt Business Day after being deposited withtimmally recognized overnight
courier and upon confirming delivery with such deyrand (c) when actually received by an individatahe intended recipient’s
facsimile number and acknowledged as recei

If to the Vendor or KEC Kennecott Exploration Compal
224 North 2200 Wes
Salt Lake City, UT 8411
Attention: President & CE(
Fax: (801) 23-2488

Informational copy to Kennecott Exploration Compal
224 North 2200 Wes
Salt Lake City, UT 8411
Attention: General Couns
Fax: (801) 23-2494

If to Purchase: Royal Gold, Inc
1660 Wynkoop Street, Suite 10
Denver, Colorado 802C
Attention: Presider
Fax: (303) 59-9385

Informational copy to Royal Gold, Inc
1660 Wynkoop Street, Suite 10
Denver, Colorado 802(C
Attention: General Couns
Fax: (303) 59-9385

Notice to the Vendor in accordance with this Sectball be effective as Notice to both the Venduat KEC hereunder and only KEC
shall be authorized to give Notice from or on béb&kither the Vendor or KEC. Any party may chartige address to which
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Notices are to be delivered by giving the othetipamNotice in the manner herein set fo

Entire Agreement— This Agreement, including the Schedules heretd,the Data Disclosure Agreement, as herein matjifie
constitute the entire agreement between the pantiedation to the transactions herein contempllated, except as specifically set out
herein, or in any documents delivered at Pefias@otalty Closing and the Other Royalties Closingspant hereto, supersedes every
previous agreement, communication, expectationotign, representation or understanding, whetnak or written, express or
implied, statutory or otherwise, among the pantieih respect to the subject matter of this Agreemiecluding without limitation the
letter of the Purchaser to the Vendor dated OctdBeP006 and the letter of KEC to the Purchastrdi@ctober 17, 2006, and there
are no collateral agreements other than as exprestsforth or referred to in this Agreeme

Amendments and Waivers— This Agreement may not be amended except byemréigreement among all the parties to this
Agreement. No waiver of any provision of this Agremt will be valid unless it is in writing and s&phby each party. No such waiver
by any party of any default, misrepresentatiorhreach of warranty or covenant hereunder, whetttentional or not, will be deemed
to extend to any prior or subsequent default, rpigsentation, or breach of warranty or covenarguredter or affect in any way any
rights arising by virtue of any prior or subsequsmth occurrenct

Severability — Any term or provision of this Agreement thatnsalid or unenforceable in any situation in anygdiction will not
affect the validity or enforceability of the remiig terms and provisions hereof or the validityeaforceability of the offending term
or provision in any other situation or in any othetsdiction.

Assignment—No party hereto may assign any right, benefit terigst in this Agreement or the subject matterdfesgthout the writte
consent of all other parties hereto and any pueplaassignment without such consent shall be vaidono effect

Enurement — This Agreement shall enure to the benefit of hadinding upon the parties and their respectieeessors and
permitted assign:

Conflict between Documents— Unless otherwise specifically stated, the pravisiof this Agreement shall govern and prevaihin t
event of any inconsistency or conflict betweentrens hereof and of any assignment, bill of satsdfer or other document or
instrument executed or delivered by any party leeretonnection with the transactions contempléiectby.

10.10 Time — Time shall be of the essence of this Agreernr

10.11 Governing Law — This Agreement will be governed by and constrmeaiccordance with the laws of the State of Utatheuit giving

effect to any choice or conflict of law provisionmile that would cause the application of the lafvany jurisdiction other than the
State of Utah
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10.12 Execution— This Agreement may be executed by the parti@heor more counterparts and by facsimile, eaathiach shall be
deemed an original and all of which, taken togethleall constitute one and the same instrun

AS EVIDENCE OF THEIR AGREEMENT the parties have executed this Agreement as afatefirst above written.
KENNECOTT EXPLORATION COMPANY

Per /sl Justin Quigle
Authorized Signator

MINERA KENNECOTT S.A. DE C.V

Per /sl Justin Quigle
Authorized Signator

ROYAL GOLD, INC.

Per /s/ Tony Jense
Authorized Signator
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PROPERTY RIGHTS AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made as of the 13th day of Mart998,

BETWEEN:

AND:

WESTERN COPPER HOLDINGS LTD., a company
incorporated under the laws of British Columbiaréieafter
called “WTC") together wittMINERA WESTERN
COPPER S.A. DE C.V., a company incorporated under
the laws of Mexico (hereinafter called “Minera \Warst")

(hereinafter collectively called “Western”)

KENNECOTT EXPLORATION COMPANY, a

company incorporated under the laws of Delaware
(hereinafter called “KEC"), together witHINERA
KENNECOTT S.A. DE C.V., a company incorporated

under the laws of Mexico (hereinafter called “Miaer
Kennecott”)

(hereinafter collectively called “Kennecott”)

OF THE FIRST PAR

OF THE SECOND PAR

THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSES that in consideration loé sum of $10 now paid by Western to Kennecottrgleeipt and sufficiency of
which is hereby acknowledged) and the covenantsagreements hereinafter set forth, the partiesthagree as follows:

1.
1.1.

DEFINITIONS

“Affiliate” means any corporation which directty indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is werccommon control with, a party. The
term “control” as used in this section and elsewhetrthis Agreement means the rights to the exemisnore than 50% of the voting
rights attributable to the shares of the controlethoration. In the case of Kennecott, an Affdiahall mean any corporation, wherever
situate, in which Rio Tinto PLC owns or controlsedily or indirectly such voting right
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“Alliance Area” means the area that is outlinedbiack and identified as the “Western Copper Kenttekitiance Area of Interest” on
the map attached as Schedule 1.2 hereto, whictcamprises the whole of the States of Zacatecaasn&uato and Aguascalientes and
part of the States of Jalisco and San Luis Poekico, together with any areas that the partieg add thereto by agreement in
writing, but excluding the area comprising the Téckject.

“Alliance Term” means the period of five years coamuing January 1, 1998, subject to being terminatexktended by agreement in
writing of the parties

“Back-in Righ” has the meaning assigned to it in Section

“Closin¢” means the completion of the purchase and saleed?éimasquito Project in accordance with Articl
“Closing Dat” means March 13, 1998 or such other date as magreedupon in writing by the partie
“Corporatiol” means a joint venture corporation which may berpormated by the parties pursuant to Article
“Development Proper” has the meaning assigned to it in Section

“Exercise Dat’ has the meaning assigned to it in Section

“Expenditures’means all expenses spent or incurred for Operaitnahsding but not limited to, all fees and assesstwork required t
keep the Properties in good standing, all expereitéor geophysical, geological and geochemicakvweddirect benefit to the
Properties, all surveys, drilling, assaying, metalical testing and engineering, costs of feasjbdifudies and reports, and all other
expenditures directly benefiting the Properties, amdieu of a charge for home office or adminiitta expenses, an amount not to
exceed 5% of the foregoing expenditures. Paymaatstay be made pursuant the Underlying Agreenaetsot included in
Expenditures but cash payments after the
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hereof to acquire concessions that become inclirdBdoperties may be added to Expenditures.
(This section intentionally left blank

“Force Majeure” means any cause beyond a pargasonable control, including laws or regulatastion or inaction of civil or militar
authority, inability to obtain any licence, perraitother authorization that may be required, uniigsavere weather, fire, explosion,
flood, insurrection, riot, labour dispute, inabjlafter diligent effort to obtain workmen or matdyidelay in transportation and acts of
God, but not including lack of fund

“Kennecott Concessions” means the exploration,atgilon mineral concessions and lottery applicagidescribed in Schedule 1.13 to
this Agreement, all of which are located in theidikce Area, together with any concessions thahdded to Kennecott Concessions
pursuant to this Agreement and any mineral congassimining leases or other forms of mineral titlich may be issued in
replacement therec

“Net Smelter Retur” has the meaning assigned to it in Schedule 1.letdn

“Operations” means any and every kind of work whighstern or Kennecott, as the case may be, imlésdiscretion, elects to do or to
have done to explore and develop the Propertigs @asnduct reconnaissance exploration in the AtkaArea in accordance with good
mining practice

“Option Agreemer” means the agreement dated as of June 20, 1997dvetheparties heret
“Penasquito Proje” means the concessions described in Schedule 1réfo!

“Penasquito Agreements” means the three agreerapdts which Minera Kennecott holds rights to thedguito Project, copies of
which are attached as Schedule 1.18 he
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“Prime Rate” means at any particular time the ahrate of interest announced from time to time iy Canadian Imperial Bank of
Commerce, main branch, Vancouver, British Colunasia reference rate then in effect for determifimeting rates of interest on
Canadian dollar loans made in Canada and as tdwifim time to time a certificate of an officertbe Canadian Imperial Bank of
Commerce shall be conclusive evider

“Production Decision” means a decision made in gadtti by Kennecott, subject to Force Majeure anthe accuracy of the
assumptions or forecasts on which the decisioaset, to bring a Development Property into commaéproduction

“Propertie” means the Kennecott Concessions, the Western Gioessnd the Penasquito Projt
“Shareholders Agreem¢’ means the agreement between the parties attactgmhadule 1.22 to this Agreeme

“Subscription Agreement” means the agreement diedame date as this Agreement between WTC andrkennecott pursuant to
which Minera Kennecott subscribes for 250,000 uniité/ TC, each unit comprising one common sharearacommon share purch:
warrant of WTC,

“Share” means common shares in the capital of W

“Teck Project” means the area within a square edithe sides of which is 15 kilometres in lengtld anns between north and south or
east and west and that has its s-east corner at UTM coordinates 202,514.90 Eas§529467.40 North

“Underlying Agreements” means agreements, includimgPenasquito Agreements, between KEC or Minernikcott or any Affiliate
of either of them and third parties pursuant tockitthe Properties or any of them have been acqt

“Western Concessions” means the exploration, etgiloh, mineral concessions and lottery applicatilisted in Schedule 1.27 to this
Agreement, all of which are located in the Alliaeea, together with any concessions that are atw®#destern Concessio
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pursuant to this Agreement and any mineral coneessimining leases or other forms of mineral titkich may be issued in
replacement thereof.

1.28 “$" means Canadian dollars, unless precede‘U.S”, in which case, it shall mean United States of Ageedollars

1.29 Attached and forming part of this Agreement areftdtlewing Schedules

Schedule 1.2- Alliance Area

Schedule 1.1- Kennecott Concessiol
Schedule 1.1- Net Smelter Returns Royal
Schedule 1.1- Penasquito Proje:
Schedule 1.1- Penasquito Agreeme
Schedule 1.2- Shareholders Agreeme
Schedule 1.2- Western Concessiol

2. PURCHASE OF PENASQUITO

2.1. Purchase and Ss

Kennecott hereby agrees to sell, assign andfeathe Penasquito Project to Western and Wektmaby agrees to purchase the
Penasquito Project from Kennecott, at the Closiag &ind clear of all liens, charges and encumbsateg subject to the paramount t

of the United States of Mexico and to the Penasqiifreement, in accordance with and subject taghmas and conditions set forth in
this Agreement for a purchase price and consiaeratbnsisting of 995,740 Shares. Kennecott ackniyele that the Shares so acquired
will be subject to a -month hold period

2.2. Covenants of WT(

WTC covenants with Kennecott th.

2.2.1 it shall ensure that the Shares are listed ancegdst trading on the Toronto Stock Exchange foitinafter they have been
issued;

2.2.2 it shall file a Form 20 report under the regulasida theSecurities Ac(British Columbia) and th&ecurities Ac{Ontario) with the
British Columbia
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and Ontario Securities Commissions relating todhee and sale of the Shares to Kennecott herewittén 10 days after such
issuance and pay the required filing fees in resiheceof;
2.2.3 for so long as Minera Kennecott or any Affiliatesishareholder of WTC, WTC shall maintain its a8 a reporting issuer in

good standing under tf&ecurities AcfOntario), theSecurities Ac{British Columbia) and under the securities ledgislaof any
other province where it is a reporting issuer fotang as its securities are listed and postettdioiing on the Toronto Stock

Exchange
Conditions of Closing: Kennecc

The obligation of Kennecott to complete theesalthe Penasquito Project contemplated by thiz@ment is subject to the fulfilment of

the following conditions

2.3.1 Representations and Warrantiesthe representations and warranties of Westertagwad in this Agreement and in the
Subscription Agreement shall be true on and aketlosing Date with the same effect as though segiesentations and
warranties had been made as of the Clos

2.3.2 Covenants— all of the covenants and agreements of Westebe tperformed on or before the Closing Date purtsigatiis
Agreement and the Subscription Agreement shall baes duly performec

2.3.3 Opinion— Kennecott shall have received an opinion of coutts®#Vestern, in form and substance satisfactoietonecott and it
counsel, with respect to all such matters as cdundéennecott may reasonably request relating

2.3.3.1 the corporate status of WTC and Minera West

2.3.3.2the allotment and issue of the Shares; the exempfithe issue, sale and delivery of the Shares fiee prospectus at
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registration requirements of applicable securigess; and any applicable resale restrictions orSthares,

2.3.3.3 the due authorization, execution and delivery of Agreement and the Subscription Agreement aneéiifierceability of

such documents in accordance with their terms éstitp qualifications relating to bankruptcy ordh&ncy laws affecting
creditor? rights generally and the availability of discretion equitable remedies), a

2.3.3.4 all such other legal matters relating to the issu@ sale of the Shares, and the consummation ¢fethsactions
contemplated by this Agreement and the Subscrigtireement as Keanecott or its counsel may rea$pnedpuire;

2.3.4 Certificate— Kennecott shall have received a certificate siigmega senior officer of WTC to the effect that thatters

represented and warranted by Western in Sectiods11t® 10.1.14 inclusive are true and correctfaheClosing with the same
force and effect as if made at the Closing;

2.3.5 Concurrent Closing— the closing of the transactions provided in thibsgription Agreement shall be consummated conitlyre
with the closing hereunde

The foregoing conditions are inserted for the esielel benefit of Kennecott and may be waived in wtalin part by Kennecott at any
time.

Conditions of Closing: Westel

The obligation of Western to complete the pasehof the Penasquito Project contemplated byAitisement is subject to the fulfilment
of each of the following condition
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2.4.1 Representations and Warrantiesthe representations and warranties of Kenneouitained in this Agreement shall be true on
and as of the Closing Date with the same effethasgh such representations and warranties hadrbada as of the Closin

2.4.2 Covenants— all of the covenants and agreements of Kennéadité performed on or before the Closing Date @nsto this
Agreement shall have been duly performed;

2.4.3 Concurrent Closing— the closing of the transactions provided in thbsgription Agreement shall be consummated conitlyre
with the closing hereunde

The foregoing conditions are inserted for the esiotel benefit of Western and may be waived in wiole part by Western at any time.
Time and Place of Closir

The Closing shall take place in the officed afvson Lundell Lawson & Mclintosh, 16th Floor, 92%8Y Georgia Street, Vancouver,
British Columbia at 10:00 a.m. Vancouver time oa @losing Date, or at such other time on the Ctp&iate as the parties may agt

Kennecof's Closing Document

At the Closing, Kennecott will deliver to Westean assignment of the Penasquito Project in farah as Western may reasonably
require. Kennecott will use reasonable effortsgsign to Western the environmental permit or permitd the surface rights agreement

or agreements that pertain to the Penesquito Rydjec\Western acknowledges that the same mighb@aissignable, in which case
Western will be required to obtain the same fromrlevant authority
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Wester's Closing Document

At the Closing Western wil
2.7.1 deliver to Minera Kennecott duly executed certifisafor the Shares referred to in Section 2.1 éntlime of Minera Kenneco

2.7.2 by agreement in form and content to the reasorsatisfaction of Kennecott accept the assignmethi@Penasquito Project and,
subject to Section 4.9, assume the Penasquito Agmeteand all obligations of Kennecott thereundwriuding payment
obligations;

2.7.3 deliver to Kennecott a certified copy of resolusaf the directors of WTC approving the allotméssgue, sale and delivery of the
Shares as contemplated by this Agreement and #eugan and delivery of this Agreement, ¢

2.7.4 execute and deliver to Kennecott, in recordablmfa notice of this Agreement that Kennecott mapireé against title to the
Properties, at its expens

Concurrent Deliven

It shall be a condition of the Closing thatraktters of payment and the execution and delisédocuments by each party to the other
all pursuant to the terms hereof shall be conctimeguirements and that nothing shall be completkeaClosing until everything
required as a condition precedent to the Closirsgbiee@n paid, executed and delivel

ALLIANCE AREA: ADDITIONAL PROPERTIES

. If at any time during the Alliance Term Westetakes or otherwise acquires, directly or indirecslry right to or interest in any mining

claim, licence, lease, grant, concession, perratent, or other mineral property (collectively, ‘fdred Rights”) that is located wholly
or partly within the Alliance Area it shall forththi give notice to Kennecott of that staking or dsition, the cost thereof and all details
in its possession with respect to
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nature of the Acquired Rights and the known mirieaséibn. Kennecott may, within 30 days of receiptMestern’s notice, elect, by
notice to Western, to require that the Acquiredi®&and the right or interest acquired be includeshd thereafter form part of the
Western Concessions and the Properties for allgsagpof this Agreement. If Kennecott does not ntakeslection aforesaid within that
period of 30 days, the Acquired Rights shall netrfgart of the Western Concessions or the Propeatiel Western shall be solely
entitled thereto.

Kennecott shall be free, without obligation of&ind to Western, to stake or otherwise acquivey,cexplore, develop and mine and,
subject to Section 7.1, to dispose of, directlyndirectly, mining claims, licences, leases, graotsicessions, permits, patents and other
mineral properties and surface rights and watdntsigpcated wholly or partly in the Alliance Areafbre, during and after the Alliance
Term. Western acknowledges that Kennecott now haddsessions in the Alliance Area that are notidet in Kennecott Concessio

EXPLORATION OF THE PROPERTIES

. Western will manage and carry out Operationswitidncur and pay Expenditures of not less than$%15000,000, during each year of

the Alliance Term

Upon receipt by Kennecott of evidence to its reaptmsatisfaction that Western has incurred andl Bapenditures of not less than U
$1,000,000 during the first year of the AlliancemeKennecott will subject to the provisions of 8ee 10.3 transfer the Kennecott
Concessions to Western and Kennecott will assigiéstern and subject to Section 4.9 Western wdlliaee and perform any and all
Underlying Agreements to which the Kennecott Cosites may be subjec

Upon the completion of the Closing on the Closiragd) the Option Agreement will be terminat

Kennecott will provide to Western immediate ascsKennecott’s exploration database for the At Area as at the date of this
Agreement
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Kennecott will make one of its geoscientists e to work full time in connection with WestesrOperations during the Alliance
Term (subject to Kennecott's normal policies regagdzacation entittement and sick leave). Kennewdttalso provide to Western
additional technical and administrative supportifeitOperations on an “as available” basis in Keotigs office in Guadalahara,
Mexico. Each month, on receipt of invoice from Keoatt, Western will

4.5.1 reimburse Kennecott for the salaries or wages foaille technical and administrative support stafit (1ot the geoscientist) and
for the cost of benefits provided to them, in resmé those days during the preceding month dwihgh they were providing
support for Wester's Operations; an

4.5.2 pay to Kennecott or-twelfth of US $100,000 to defray the cost of Kerstemaintaining its office Guadalahara, Mexi

Western will also pay all expenses and costs ieclby the aforementioned personnel including thresgentist in connection with
Operations.

Kennecott does not and will not represent or ardrthe correctness, accuracy or completenes& aftbhrmation that it makes available
pursuant to Section 4.4 or of any advice or suppavided to Western by any of its geoscientistsupport staff, which support will be
relied upon by Western at its sole ri

Kennecott may terminate its obligations undertifaet.5 on notice to Western at any time afterdtie a change in, or any person or
group of persons acquire, control of WTC. Upon siéchmination Western will return to Kennecott alidrmation provided by
Kenneeott pursuant to Section 4.4 and any otherrimdtion pertaining to the Alliance Area or the ffrdies that Western may have
received from Kennecott, in whatever form, and eopies thereof or other documents that may comstadh information in whole or in
part, will be delivered immediately to Kennecott\Western

During the Alliance Term, Western will keep th@perties free and clear of all liens, chargesemtlimbrances; comply with all
applicable laws, rules and regulations;
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carry out or permit anyone to carry out any agtiain or in respect of the Properties which doesqualify as Operations; and carry out
Operations in a good and workmanlike manner in @taotce with generally accepted mining practice.

Western will make the cash payments that total US®D,000 required to be paid in 1998 under thefguito Agreement and will file
all Expenditures incurred by it for assessmentitigttler applicable legislation for the benefittloé Properties. Western may allow any
part or parts of the Properties to lapse or tonteteethird parties at any time, provided that Keoott will maintain the Penasquito
Project in good standing and will not allow it &pke or revert until the first year of the Allianberm has expired. Before allowing any
of the Properties to lapse or revert, Westerngwle 60 days notice to Kennecott and will, if regdi by Kennecott within that time,
transfer to Kennecott the part or parts of the Briypwhich Western intends to allow to lapse oerévand the same shall then cease to
be subject to this Agreement. If Kennecott doesnmaite such request and part or parts of the Profagrse or revert, neither Western
nor Kennecott nor their respective Affiliates shstlike or reacquire the same in whole or in pait e expiry of 12 months after the
termination of the Alliance Tern

Western will provide to Kennecott within 30 daystioé end of each calendar quarter during the Adkaherm written reports showing
the Operations carried out and the results obtaamelddetailing the Expenditures incurred togethién evidence of payment thereof.
Kennecott shall at all reasonable times on reademadtice to Western have access to the informatimhdata generated from Western’
Operations and to the Properties and to Westerp&y&ions, provided that Kennecott shall not imtierfwith Western'’s activities
hereunder. Kennecott will have the right from titngime on reasonable notice to Western to auditraake copies of the books and
records of Western that pertain to Operatis

Western shall indemnify and save harmless Kennéawitt and against any and all claims, debts, des\asuits, actions and causes of
action whatsoever which may be brought or madenag#iennecott by any person, firm or corporatiod alh loss, cost, damages,
expenses and liabilities which may be sufferechouired by Kennecott arising out of or
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connection with or in any way referable to, whettlieectly or indirectly, the entry on, presence onactivities on the Properties or the
approaches thereto by Western or its servantsantagor, insofar as they are acting at the dwaatf Western, by the geoscientist or

other technical or administrative support staffyiled by Kennecott pursuant to Section 4.5, ineigdivithout limitation bodily injuries
or death at any time resulting therefrom or dantag@operty.

4.12 Western shall maintain, during the Alliance Terhg following insurance

4.12.1 the Mexican equivalent, if any, of WorkerCompensation Insurance for employees whichfiglimompliance with all applicabl
laws of the State of Zacatecas or the United Sttétexico;

4.12.2 Comprehensive General Liability Insurance and bdaiglontractual liability, specifically includingéHiability assumed under any
indemnity provided herein, with a limit of liab¥ittor bodily injury of $1,000,000 each occurrencel 1,000,000 aggregate and
for property damage of $1,000,000 each occurrende$b&,000,000 aggrega

4.12.3 Comprehensive Automobile Insurance including alhed, no-owned and hired vehicles with not less than thiefohg limits:

4.12.3.1 Bodily Injury $1,000,000 each pers
$1,000,000 each occurrer

4.12.3.2 Properties Damai $500,000 each occurren

All policies in subsection 4.12.2 shall be endorsegrovide that 30 days prior written notice vki# given to Kennecott by the carrier
before effecting cancellation or material changeaferage. In addition, all liability policies shak endorsed to include Kennecott and
all subsidiary, associated and affiliated compaaggadditional insureds.

During the Alliance Term, Western shall not comme=any work until a certificate in evidence of irsuce coverage has been provided
to Kennecott, nor shall Western allow any
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subcontractors to commence work until a similadewmie for each subcontractor has been obtained@prdved by Western. Western
shall be responsible for compliance by all subamtors with these insurance requirements.

A certificate evidencing the required insurancdldfmmade out to Kennecott, and shall be furnigioefennecott promptly after
issuance and must reflect both the endorsemenigowas requiring 30 days prior written notice todieen before cancellation or

material change, and the additional interests whppticable. Each certificate shall specify theedahen such benefits and insurance
expire.

Western agrees that such benefits and insuranspeatfied above, shall be provided and maintaingd the Alliance Term expires.
The original certificate shall be mailed or delieéito Kennecott.

If at any time the required insurance policies $thdne cancelled, terminated, or modified so thatitisurance is not in full force and
effect as required herein, Kennecott may at itioopdbtain insurance coverage equal to that reduiezein, with the cost thereof
chargeable to Western.

Kennecott and all of its subsidiary, associatedaffilated companies shall be released and helthless by Western and its
subcontractors for all loss of or damage to We&end/or its subcontractors’ sheds, tools, equigrend/or materials, or to any
property of its employees.

The liability of Western assumed under this Agreensiall in no manner be limited by the amounthef insurance which Western is
required to provide by the provisions here

Western will, at its own expense, repair any dantagel property as required by law, whether suabpprty is publicly or privately
owned, including the property of Kennecott, whichymesult from Weste’s performance of this Agreeme
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BACK-IN RIGHTS

. Western will not mine or remove ores, mineralsn@tals from any concession comprised in the Ptigseexcept in non-commercially

saleable quantities for the purpose of samplirggirtg and assaying, without first providing to Kenaott:

5.1.1 a copy of a report certified by a recognized fifitompetent, professional engineers stating thlindrby Western on the
concession (“Development Proper”) has defined an inferred resource thereon;

5.1.2 a detailed statement audited and verified by ageieed firm of competent chartered accountants gigtihe aggregate amount
(i) the Expenditures incurred and paid by Westerithat Development Property; (ii) the aggregate amof any and all paymer
by Western made pursuant to the Underlying Agreenifeany, that pertains to the Development Propexhd (iii) the aggregate
amount that Western paid to Kennecott to acquaieEtevelopment Property from Kennecott (the aggeeghthe foregoing
amounts being hereafter called “Back-in Price”).

(the date on which all of the above have been veddby Kennecott being hereinafter called the “bloDate”).

Kennecott shall have and Western hereby grap@rately in respect of each Development Propegyofition (the “Back-in Right”) to
reacquire from Western a 51% undivided right, @ttel interest in the Development Property andlimBdrmation, property and assets,
both real and personal, acquired by the expendiiiExpenditures thereon, free and clear of afidiecharges, encumbrances, security
interests, liabilities and adverse claims whatsp#vwa were not existing on the date of this AgreeimKennecott may exercise the
Back-in Right by delivering notice of exercise tegtern within the time provided in Section 5.4 aritthin 30 days thereafter providing
Western with payment of an amount which, subje&eotion 5.5, shall be equal to 150% of 51% ofhek-in Price for that
Development Property, whereupon Kennecott shalliae@nd be vested with a 51% undivided righte tithd interest in and to the

Developmen
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Property and all information, property and asdsath real and personal, acquired by the expenditiiiee Expenditures thereon, free
and clear as aforesaid. Failure to exercise a BaBldght as provided herein shall be deemed torbelection not to exercise such Back-
in Right.

Kennecott shall have the right to conduct its @udit of the Back-in Price claimed by Western amdispute the amount or any portion
thereof within 50 days after the Notice Date. Sdidpute shall be referred to a single arbitratdingaunder theCommercial Arbitration
Act (British Columbia), whose decision shall be finatldinding. The party in whose favour the arbitratdecision is made will pay
the costs of the arbitratio

If the amount (the “Disputed Amount”) that Kenn#ian good faith disputes is more than 10% ofBlaek-in Price claimed by Western,
then Kennecott may exercise the Back-in Right wih0 days after the Notice Date or 30 days aftgrdispute is resolved under
Section 5.3, whichever is later. If the Disputeddmt is 10% or less of the Back-in Price claimedMgstern, then Kennecott may
exercise the Back-in Right within 60 days after lNatice Date (the date by which Kennecott must gietice being hereinafter called
the“Exercise Dat").

If the Disputed Amount is 10% or less of the BatlPrice claimed by Western, Kennecott may defgmpent of 150% of 51% of the
Disputed Amount until the dispute is resolved hyitaation. Within 10 days after the arbitratodecision, Kennecott will pay to West
150% of 51% of the Disputed Amount to the exteat the arbitrator determines that it was properbhided in the Back-in Price. If the
arbitrator finds that the whole of the Disputed Ambwas properly included, Kennecott shall also fgayestern interest on the
deferred payment at an annual rate equal to tlmeePRiate plus 2% calculated from the Exercise Oatkd date of paymer

If Kennecott exercises a Be-in-Right in respect of a Development Property it naister:
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5.6.1 incur aggregate Expenditures in respect of thatel@ment Property and/or make payments to thirtdgspursuant to the
Underlying Agreement or other agreement pertaittiregeto of US $25,000,000,

5.6.2 make a Production Decision in respect of that Dewalent Property

within 60 months from the Exercise Date applicabléhat Development Property. Additionally, at led$$1,000,000 of the US

$25,000,000 referred to above must be incurredhit ip each of five successive years, the firstbich commences on the Exercise
Date.

Kennecott may accelerate any or all of the Exgiares contemplated by Section 5.6. Kennecott niang time from time to time pay
to Western money in lieu of incurring Expendituvesler Section 5.6, if sufficient Expenditures hbeen incurred to maintain the
Development Property in good standing, in whichnéWeennecott shall be deemed to have incurred iatdit Expenditures in the same
amount as the amount of any such payment andisfagzion of such of the provisions of Section &sGindicated by Kennecott at the
time of the making of such payment. Any excess paysor Expenditures made or incurred in any pesitidoe carried forward and
applied as a credit against Expenditures to be rimattee next succeeding period or peric

If from time to time Kennecott is prevented byr¢®Majeure from incurring Expenditures or makingraduction Decision as provided

in Section 5.6 then Kennecott shall have such muddit time as is reasonable in the circumstance® tso, the amount of such additic
time not to exceed the duration of the Force Mage

If Kennecott does not satisfy the requirementSeation 5.6 in respect of a Development Propértyill at its own expense and without
reimbursement of any amounts that it paid to eserits Back-in Right in respect of that Developnfmperty provide to Western a
duly executed retransfer of its right, title antenest in that Development Property, and Kennegititthen have no further rights or
obligations hereunder, including without limitatiander Section 5.6, with respect to that DevelogrReaperty.
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ROYALTIES

. For each Development Property in respect of wHiehnecott does not exercise the Back-in Right,rt€entt shall be entitled to and

Western will pay each year a royalty equal to a@etage of Net Smelter Returns from the DeveloprRenperty. The percentage will
be 2% in respect of each Development Propertywhata Kennecott Concession or the Penasquito P(@jéh the Penasquito Project
deemed to be a single Development Property) anéhI&spect of each Development Property that wA&satern Concession. The
maximum aggregate amount payable by Western oruatob each such royalty will be US $15,000,00thé royalty pertains to a
Kennecott Concession or the Penasquito ProjectSo$1J500,000 if the royalty pertains to a Westeonégssion

“Net Smelter Returi” shall be calculated and paid as provided in Scleetidl4.
The royalties granted hereunder shall constitutmimest in land that will run with the lan
TRANSFERS OF THE PROPERTIES

Subject to Section 7.2, if at any time during iance Term Kennecott intends to sell or othesavdispose of one or more concessions
(the “Subject Property”) located in the Allianceearthat are not comprised in the Kennecott ConmessiVestern shall have a right to
purchase the same as follov

7.1.1 Kennecott shall provide notice in writing to Westéhnat identifies the Subject Property and stdtesaggregate amount, in current
U.S. dollars, that has been expended on the SuPjeperty up to the date of the notice to explardavelop it in accordance with
good mining practice and to acquire and maintdlie td it, plus 5% thereof in lieu of home officeadministration expenses (the
total thereof being hereinafter referred to as téfisal Cost”) The delivery of such notice shalhstitute an offer by Kennecott to
Western to dispose of the Subject Property to Wiedte a purchase price equal
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the Historical Cost, provided that Western may teiegay such price in U.S. dollars or Canadiaredslor in Shares, with the
exchange rate between U.S. and Canadian dollang ki@ rate in effect on the date of Kennecotticedo Western and the price
per Share equal to the weighted average price ighveluch Shares traded on the Toronto Stock Ex@hanghe ten days
(exclusive of holidays) preceding the delivery ofls notice by Kennecott). Western shall have 3G diagm the date of such
notice to elect to acquire the Subject Propertgélwvering to Kennecott, within such 30 days, paghw the Historical Cost by
way of a certified cheque for U.S. dollars or Caaadliollars in the appropriate amount or deliveriKennecott of the appropriate
number of fully paid and non-assessable Sharessepted by a duly executed share certificate imémee of Minera Kennecott;

7.1.2 if Western fails to so elect and pay for the Subiroperty within the time provided for in Sectidri.1, Kennecott shall have
90 days following the expiration of such periods&dl or otherwise dispose of the Subject Propergny interest in it for
consideration of such value (which may be greatéess than the Historical Cost) and of such kis&annecott may choose to
accept from the purchasing par

7.1.3 if Kennecott fails to consummate such transactighiwthe period set forth in Section 7.1.2, thghtiof Western under this
Section 7.1 shall be deemed to be revived and alngesjuent disposition by Kennecott during the AlliaTerm of any
concessions located in the Alliance Area that ate<@nnecott Concessions shall again be conduntaddordance with the
provisions of Section 7.1; at

7.1.4 If Western exercises its right to acquire concessfoom Kennecott pursuant to this Section 7.1lhsumcessions shall be deemed
to be Kennecott Concessions for all purposes efalgreement

7.2. Kennecott shall have the right without restrictioxder Section 7.1 t
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which Western has given notice under Section 3dithe 30 day period referred to in Section 3.1r@®xpired) unless:

7.3.1 the person to whom the disposition is being mad digrees with Kennecott in writing to be boundiig Agreement including
without limitation Article 6 and, unless Kennecb#s waived its Back-in Right in respect of the jpriyp pursuant to Section 7.6,
Article 5, such agreement to be in form and consatisfactory to Kennecott; ai

7.3.2 if the Penasquito Project or. the Kennecott Cornoasr any of them are included in the disposijtiéennecott has given its pri
written consent; an

7.3.3 if the Penasquito Project or the Kennecott Conoessor any of them are included in the dispositind at any time after the date

of this Agreement there has been a change in, acquisition by any person or group of persongaiitrol of WTC, Western has
first provided Kennecott with a right of first refal as provided in Section 7.5, which Kennecottri@exercisec

Western shall have the right without restrictiomlenSection 7.3 to transfer the Properties to paration at least 99.9% of the share:
which are beneficially owned and held by WTC or btim Western, provided that such corporation agreesiting with Kennecott to

hold the Properties subject to this Agreementfahe and content of such agreement in writing t@abdennecott may reasonably
require.

If Western intends to sell, assign, transfer vegror otherwise dispose of the Penasquito Prdjeetkennecott Concessions, or any of
them or any interest therein, (the “Subject Int€)ess permitted by Section 7.3 but in circumstanafere Section 7.3.3 applies,
Kennecott shall have a right of first refusal atofes:

7.5.1 Western shall promptly notify Kennecott of its intins. The notice shall be accompanied by an égdcagreement (the “Third

Party Agreement”) entered into by Western in gagithfwith an arm’s length third party that providesall of the terms of the
intended disposition and is subjec
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Interest”) as permitted by Section 7.3 except inwnstances where Section 7.3.3 applies, Kennskalt have a right of first refusal as
follows:

7.5.1

7.5.2

7.5.3

Western shall promptly notify Kennecott of its intiens, The notice shall be accompanied by an égdcagreement (the “Third
Party Agreement”) entered into by Western in gagithfwith an arm’s length third party that providesall of the terms of the
intended disposition and is subject to Kennecoitlst in this Section 7.5. If the purchase price annsideration does not consist
solely of cash the notice shall also state Westegnbd faith calculation of the fair market valdesoch consideration stated in
U.S. or Canadian dollars. If Kennecott in goodHfaitsputes such valuation within 10 days of receffihe notice from Western it
may refer the matter to a single arbitrator unex@ommercial Arbitration Ac(British Columbia) whose decision shall be final
and binding on the parties. The delivery of sucticecand Third Party Agreement shall constitute#ier by Western to
Kennecott to dispose of the Subject Interest tortéentt on the same terms and conditions as provid#éee Third Party
Agreement, provided that Kennecott may elect totpayfair market value of such consideration in.lduSCanadian dollars.
Kennecott shall have 30 days from the date of sintice or the date on which the arbitrator’s deciss made, whichever is later
to notify Western whether it elects to acquire Subject Interest. If it does so elect, the dispmsishall be consummated promy
after notice of such election is delivered to West

if Kennecott fails to so elect within the time pided for in Section 7.5.1, Western shall have 9gsdallowing the expiration of
such period to consummate the transaction provigetie Third Party Agreement but subject to Kenticaghts under this
Agreement; ani

if Western fails to consummate such transactiohiwithe period set forth in Section 7.5.2, the tighfirst refusal of Kennecott
under this Section 7.5 shall be deemed to be rdvi&ay subsequent proposal to dispose of
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rights or interests of Western shall again be cotetliin accordance with the provisions of Sectidn 7

If Western intends, at any time before the saastdecome a Development Project, to sell, tramsfassign all or an interest in the
Penasquito Project or any of the Kennecott Conorsgb an arm'’s length third party for considenmatichich Western in good faith
believes represents the fair market value theree$tédfn may require Kennecott to waive its BackdighRin respect thereof at the
closing of the sale thereof to the arm’s lengtindtipiarty, in consideration for payment to Kenneabtuch closing of 10% of such
consideration. The request for such waiver wilhiede to Kennecott at least 15 days but not more3Badays before the intended
closing date and shall be accompanied by a coglyegpurchase agreement and an affidavit of a seffficer of Western stating that the
consideration specified therein is all of the cdesation to be received by Western for the sakuoh property and that such officer in
good faith believes it to be the fair market vallereof. As provided in Section 7.3.1, the thirdtpg@urchaser must acknowledge that it
is acquiring the property subject to Kenne's right to be paid a royalty in respect of thatgandy pursuant to Article 6 here«

Western will not mortgage, charge, pledge or mtiee encumber any of the Properties without therpvritten consent of Kennecaott,
except for the sole purpose of raising funds teXqgended on the development of the Propel

CORPORATION AND SHAREHOLDERS AGREEMENT

. If from time to time Kennecott exercises the BatlRight on any Development Property and complétesexpenditures required by

Section 5.6, then as soon as reasonably poss#sleatter, Kennecott and Western shall meet toifiean appropriate corporate
structure for the post-exploration mining activstien that Development Property and cause a Corporiat be incorporated. Such
corporation shall be governed pursuant to the terfntise Shareholders Agreement. Kennecott and Weatgee that the final corporate
structure and organization shall be in accordaritetive Shareholders Agreement and shall be onehadiill minimize tax liability and
optimize profit repatriation for both Kennecott awekstern. Incorporation of the Corporation,
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organization and the subscription of the Sharel Beaompleted no later than 30 days following ¢ixercise by Kennecott of a Back-in
Right. A Shareholders Agreement shall be enteredand a new Corporation shall be incorporatectémh Development Property. For
the purposes of Section 4.1 of the Shareholdersdxgent, the agreed value of a Development Propélitige the Back-in Price
applicable to it plus the Expenditures incurrecdklgnnecott under Section 5.6 in respect of it.

Unless otherwise agreed to in writing, Kenneaod Western, to the extent of their respectiver@stis in accordance with Section 5.2,
shall pay all costs and expenses incurred or addryeeither of them which are directly or reasogablated to the incorporation,
organisation or setting up of the Corporation (fReeincorporation Expenses”). Preincorporation Exges shall include, but not be
limited to, any and all stamp taxes, import dut@ber taxes’ or duties,, filing or other fees,emssnents or other payments made to a
Governmental Authority, notary public and legaldead disbursements and any costs or expensetiydoeoeasonably incurred or
accrued by either Kennecott or Western (the “PafAagy”) to third parties, shall not include coatsl expenses incurred or accrued
internally by the Paying Party or its Affiliate

Preincorporation Expenses incurred to third parsihall be reimbursed to the Paying Party in theust and currency actually incurred
by the Paying Party. Within 60 days following tregelof incorporation of the Corporation, the Payiagty shall submit to the non-
Paying Party invoices for the Preincorporation Exges specifying the non-Paying Party’s share aftadh Preincorporation Expenses
not previously billed or invoiced to the r-Paying Party

The non-Paying Party shall pay its pro rata sh&Rreincorporation Expenses as set forth in amgice submitted to it by the Paying
Party pursuant to Section 8.3 within 30 days aftexh invoice is sent to the r-Paying Party

Upon the incorporation and organization of the @oaion and the issuance of Shares in accordartbeSgrction 4.1 of the Shareholc
Agreement, of which 51% will be issued to MineraniKkecott and 49% will be issued to Minera Westemmniecott shall comple
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the date on page 1 of the Shareholders Agreemenhwhall be the date on which the Corporation inasrporated and any other
information required by such form. Kennecott shidb complete Schedule A thereto with a descriptiothe Development Property &
each of the parties shall then execute and delivere other a copy of the Shareholders Agreemashal documents and instruments
contemplated by the Shareholders Agreement to éeuéad and delivered concurrently with or followihg entering into of the
Shareholders Agreement.

Kennecott and Western shall not be liable toamather for losses sustained or liabilities incditog either Kennecott or Western or
their respective Affiliates relating to or arisingt of the incorporation, organization or settimgad the Corporation (“Preincorporation
Activities”), except as may result from KennecotitsWestern'’s (or their respective Affiliatesiggligence or wilful misconduct. Neith
Kennecott nor Western nor their Affiliates shalkiny event have any liability to the other for adwtal, consequential, indirect,
exemplary or punitive damages for losses or liibflito or arising out of Preincorporation Actiegi

None of the provisions in this Agreement will meige¢he Shareholders Agreement and this Agreeméhsuvvive the execution an
delivery thereof. For greater certainty but withboiting the scope of Article 9 hereof, the pastecknowledge that Kennecott's rights
under Article 9 hereof shall continue to apply éspect of funds that Minera Western requires toyaaut the purposes and intent of
each Shareholders Agreeme

WESTERN'’S FINANCING REQUIREMENTS

. From and after the date hereof, Western shalligeowritten notice to Kennecott of any and alhsactions proposed to be entered into

or corporate actions proposed to be taken by Westeany subsidiary thereof for the purpose, diyemt indirectly, of raising funds
(each such transaction being hereinafter refeoe ta “Financing”). Each such notice provided bgstrn shall set out the terms and
conditions on which such Financing is proposedee@mtered into (which may include the approvahefToronto Stock Exchange or
other securities regulatory authority) and shaltbemed to constitute i
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offer (a “Financing Offer”) to Kennecott to parpeite in such Financing upon such terms and conditdy providing a fraction of the
funds to be raised under the financing, where thmerator of such fraction is the number of Shatékat time held by Kennecott and
the denominator of such fraction is the total numideShares at that time issued and outstanding.téims and conditions of the
Financing Offer shall be set out in sufficient dettaat the acceptance thereof by Kennecott wouoltstitute a binding agreement
between the parties to complete the Financing #setportion to be provided by Kennecott on suctn$eand conditions and, without
limiting the generality of the foregoing, such terand conditions shall include the closing datei¢tvishall be a date not more than 90

days from the date of the Financing Offer) for skaiancing and:

9.1.1 in the case of a Financing involving the issue salé of shares of WTC or a subsidiary thereofptimaber and class of shares
proposed to be issued and sold, the purchasethgcefor and any special rights or restrictionaated to such share

9.1.2 in the case of a Financing involving a loan to dmto or a debt to be incurred by Western or aidiavy thereof, the principal
amount and term of such loan or debt, the applkcattkrest rate and details regarding the cal@raind payment thereof and
provisions relating to any security to be grantedeispect of the loan or de

9.1.3 if the Financing is conditional on Western recejvfrom the proposed sources of funds (collectividg, “investors”)
commitments to provide an amount which in the aggte is not less than a specified amount, deth#sich condition; an

9.1.4 if the Financing is conditional on Western recegvfrom each investor a commitment to provide anwamavhich is not less than
a specified amount, details of such condit

Kennecott shall provide written notice to Westefiits acceptance or rejection of each FinanciffgrQuithin 72 hours after the receipt
by it thereof, provided however tr
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Western shall not present Kennecott with a Finap€iffer unless it has previously given to Kenneabteast 20 days notice of all
material terms of the Financing other than prigimafters, including dividend or interest rates gdiagble.

If Kennecott accepts a Financing Offer as toipigdtion in the Financing as to all or a portidrthee funds intended to be raised thereby
by Western or a subsidiary thereof, Western or suddsidiary and Kennecott shall complete the Fiman¢or the portion thereof in
respect of which Kennecott has determined to ppdie) on the terms and conditions set out in thari€ing Offer, with any and all
such amendments thereto as they may agree uporitimpwKennecott may, at its option, from timetime complete any Financing
accepted by it through any Affiliat

If Kennecott declines to participate in a FinaigcOffer Western may complete the Financing witteoinvestors on and subject to the
terms and conditions set out in the Financing Offi@y amendment to such terms and conditions duatthey are materially less
favourable to Western or any amendment or waiver @fndition made pursuant to Subsection 9.1.31bsé&ction 9.1.4 shall be deen
to constitute a new Financing and shall require téfaso make a Financing Offer to Kennecott toipguate in such new proposed
Financing on such amended terms and conditionsdardance with the provisions of Section 9.1, inchltase the provisions of this
Article 9 shall apply mutatis mutandis to such maaposed Financing

WTC may issue Shares as consideration for theisitiqn of mineral properties without obligatiom Kennecott under Section 9.1. Each
time that WTC issues Shares as consideration &atiuisition of mineral properties it will, at ttame time, to the extent permitted by
applicable securities laws, offer to allot and &ssw Kennecott the number of Shares which is irsdme proportion to the number of
such Shares so issued as consideration for thés#tamuof mineral properties as the number of sdahen held by Kennecott is to the
total number of Shares then outstanding, at a jpéceshare equal to the weighted average pricénmtwvguch shares traded on the
Toronto Stock Exchange on the ten days (excludivelidays) preceding the date of such offet
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which Shares were traded. The offer by Westerr bleabpen for acceptance by Kennecott for 30 days.
10. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

10.1 Western represents and warrants to Kennecottf(athch shall survive Closing) the

10.1.12 WTC is duly incorporated and organized and valaijsting under the laws of the Province of BritGblumbia and Minera
Western is duly incorporated and organized andilyadéixisting under the laws of Mexico and eachhafh has the requisite
power and capacity and is duly qualified to camyits business as now conducted and to own itseptieg and assel

10.1.2 the execution and delivery of this Agreement amdglrformance of the terms hereof by Western haee duly authorized by

all necessary corporate action and this Agreenamittutes a legal, valid and binding agreemenbreefible against Western
accordance with the terms here

10.1.3 the transactions contemplated by this Agreememtad@nd will not result in a breach of or consétatdefault under (whether
after notice or lapse of time or bot

10.1.3.1 any statute, rule or regulation applicable to Whestimcluding, without limitation, the securitiema's of the provinces

of Ontario and British Columbia and other provinedsere WTC is reporting issuer and the bylaws,sralled
regulations of the Toronto Stock Exchan

10.1.3.2the provisions of the constating documents of WH@ Blinera Western or of any resolutions of the aives or
shareholders of either of them in effect as ofdae hereof
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10.1.3.3 any mortgage, note, indenture, contract, agreeoresther instrument to which Western is a parthywhich it is
bound; o1

10.1.3.4any judgment, decree or order which binds Westetheproperty or assets of Weste

10.1.4 to the best of Western’s knowledge, Western is gotidg its business in all respects in compliandé @ail applicable laws, rules
and regulations of each jurisdiction in which itssimess is carried on and is duly licensed, regdter qualified in all
jurisdictions in which it owns, leases or operategroperty or carries on business to enableusiness to be carried on as n
conducted and its property and assets to be ovieeskd and operated and all such licenses, ra@ssand qualifications are
valid and subsisting and in good standi

10.1.5 there is no action, suit, proceeding or inquirydoefany court, governmental agency or body, pendirtgreatened, to which
Western is a party or to which its property is sghjwhich might result in any material adversencfein the condition (financial
or otherwise) or business of Western or which méaghtersely affect the property or assets of Westaken as a whols

10.1.6 at the Closing Time, WTC will have obtained all esgary regulatory, stock exchange and other apisrand consents with
respect to the issue and sale of the Shares &sbed at the Closin

10.1.7 at the Closing Time, the Shares to be issued aCkbging will be duly authorized and validly alledtt and issued as fully paid and
nor-assessable Shares in the capital of W
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10.1.8. the authorized capital of WTC consists of 20,000,80ares, of which 12,227,413 Shares are issuedwsthnding as fully paid
and nor-assessable Shares as at the date he

10.1.9. WTC is a reporting issuer not in default under $eeurities Ac(Ontario) and is not in default under the secwitegislation of
any other province where it is a reporting iss!

10.1.10the audited consolidated financial statements ofo/dr the years ended September 30, 1997, 1996 2@ have been prepat
in accordance with generally accepted accountimgimes and present fully, fairly and correctlyat material respects the
results of operations and the changes in WTC’shfired position for the periods then ended, andiatgrim financial statements
for any subsequent financial period have been peelpa accordance with generally accepted accogmtiimcipals and present
fully, fairly and correctly in all material respedhe results of operations and the changes in W1i@ancial position for the
periods then ende:

10.1.11 Western has no material liabilities contingent threowise other than those disclosed in the auditeshcial statements of WTC
for the year ended September 30, 1¢

10.1.12 WTC has met all timely disclosure requirements urideSecurities Ac(British Columbia), theSecurities Ac{Ontario) and
National Policy No. 40, and, without limiting themerality of the foregoing, there has not occuaey adverse material chan
since September 30, 1997 and no adverse matectadissts in relation to Western or its securitiest has not been publicly
disclosed

10.1.13 the representations and warranties of Westernisnithreement are now and at the Time of Closingdj lvéltrue and correc
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10.1.14 WTC is the registered and beneficial owner of 4888res in the capital of Minera Western which repné 99.9% of the issued
and outstanding shares in the capital of Mineratéfasand WTC owns such shares free and clear ténd, charges,
encumbrances or rights of third parties. No petber than WTC has the right, actual, contingemtditional or otherwise, in
any circumstance, to be allotted or issued sharether securities of Minera Weste

10.1.15it has title to the Western Concessions subjegt timthe paramount title of the United States ofkMe; and

10.1.16it has paid all taxes, assessments, charges, ridestlaer levies imposed upon or required with resfiethe Western
Concessions and has filed all returns and repedsired therefore

Kennecott represents and warrants to Western

10.2.1 Kennecott has title to concessions comprised irkKémenecott Concessions of which it is the claimbol@ds shown in

Schedule 1.13, subject only to the paramountditihe United States of Mexico and to the provisiofithe Underlying
Agreements to which the same may be sub

10.2.2 it has paid all taxes, assessments, charges, fidestlaer levies imposed upon or required with resfethe Kennecott
Concessions and has filed all returns and repegsired therefore

10.2.3 it has full power and absolute authority to grantMestern the rights provided in this Agreement geatain to the Penasquito

Project and the concessions comprised in the Kerth€oncessions of which Kennecott is the claimbplis shown in Schedi
1.13 and to assign the Penasquito Agreem

10.2.4 this Agreement constitutes a legal, valid and bigdibligation of Kennecott; ar
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10.2.5 to the best of its knowledge, there are no actaati;mg or threatened lawsuits or administrativéoastaffecting the Kennecott
Concessions

Western acknowledges that Kennecott makes notseptation or warranty as to its title to, or itghtito assign, the Kennecott
Concessions of which it is not the claimholderla®n in Schedule 1.13 and that under Section 4dlibe required only to transfer to
Western such interest therein if any as it may faaonly if it has the right to do so without ingng any cost, penalty or liabilit

The representations and warranties contained itiddeb0.1 are provided for the exclusive benefikehnecott and a breach of any one
or more of them may be waived by Kennecott in wgtin whole or in part at any time without prejuslio its rights in respect of any
other breach of the same or any other representatiovarranty

The representations and warranties contained itiddet0.2 are provided for the exclusive benefitddstern and a breach of any on
more of them may be waived by Western in writingvimole or in part at any time without prejudiceat®rights in respect of any other
breach of the same or any other representatioraaiawnty.

Western shall indemnify and hold Kennecott harmiesespect of any loss resulting from any breaichiny representation or warranty
of Western (and for the purposes of this Sectiaé 1ite words “to the best of Western’s knowledgeSection 10.1.4 shall be deemed
to be deleted therefrom) in this Agreement or ip dacument delivered hereunder or arising out ofsfar circumstances constituting
such a breach, or any failure to perform any comenantained in this Agreemel

The covenants, representations and warrantiesinedta this Agreement will not merge in or be egtiished by the Shareholders
Agreement or the Closing and shall survive Closing the execution and delivery of the Shareholdgreement and of documents
delivered at the Closing and shall continue in foitte and effect
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CONFIDENTIALITY

During the Alliance Term, all information receivedobtained by a party hereunder or pursuant heted be kept confidential by it
and no part thereof may be disclosed or publishétbwt the prior written consent of the other excapch information as may be
required to be disclosed or published by regulabmgies having jurisdictior

Notwithstanding Section 11.1, a party may disciog@rmation to any person or persons with whonrdgmses to contract as permit
by Article 7 or to its professional advisors or sahltants, provided that Western shall not disckrseinformation or data that has been
or is provided to it by Kennecott without Kennetfirior written consent and that neither partyl @ditclose information to persons
with whom it proposes to contract or to professi@tivisors or consultants without first requirifget to acknowledge, in writing, the
confidentiality of such informatior

Except as required by law or regulatory authontyring the Alliance Term neither party shall makg aublic announcements or
statements concerning this Agreement or the Priegestthout the prior approval of the other, nobtounreasonably withhel

During the Alliance Term, the text of any publimaancements or statements including news releasdwWlestern intends to make
pursuant to the exception in Section 11.3 shaihbde available to Kennecott prior to publicatiod &ennecott shall have the right to
make suggestions for changes therein. If Kennésatentified in such public announcement or staenit shall not be released with
the consent of Kennecott in writin

NOTICES

All notices, payments and other required commuinoat(“Notices”)to one of Kennecott or Western by the other shalhbwriting anc
shall be addressed respectively as follc
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If to Kennecott:

Commercial Director

Kennecott Exploration Company
224 North 2200 West

Salt Lake City, Utah 84116

USA

Telecopier: (801) 238-2420

with a copy to:

Director Strategic Development
Kennecott Canada Exploration Inc.
200 Granville Street, Suite 354
Vancouver, B.C.

V6C 1S4

Telecopier: (604) 669-5255

If to Western:

President

Western Copper Holdings Ltd.

1185 West Georgia Street, Suite 1650
Vancouver, B.C.

V6E 4E6 Canada

Telecopier: (604) 688-4670

All Notices shall be given (1) by personal delivémythe addressee, or (2) by electronic commuminatvith a confirmation sent by registered
or certified mail return receipt requested, orl{@)egistered or certified mail or commercial carreturn receipt requested. All Notices shall
be effective and shall be deemed delivered (1Y ipérsonal delivery on the date of delivery if delied during normal business hours and, if
not delivered during normal business hours, omthé business day following delivery, (2) if by @®nic communication on the next
business day following receipt of the electronimeoaunication, and (3) if solely by mail or commetdarrier on the next business day after
actual receipt. A party may change its address @tycH to the other party.

13. MISCELLANEOUS

13.1 Ownership of Subsidiarie8VTC covenants with Kennecott that it will at athtés hold and beneficially own at least 99.9% ofdhares
of Minera Western and that WTC or Minera Westerth atiall times hold and beneficially own at 1e88t9% of the shares of any
corporation to which the Properties are transfepituant to Section 7.4. KE




13.2

13.3
134
135

13.6

13.7

13.8
13.9

34
covenants with Western that it and its Affiliatedl at all times be the sole shareholders of Min€emnecott.

AssignmentKEC and Minera Kennecott may freely assign thespeetive rights under this Agreement in whole goant, subject only
to the restriction in Section 7.1. WTC and Mineradérn may assign this Agreement only as expressipitted.

Applicable Law.The terms and provisions of this Agreement shalhberpreted in accordance with the laws of Brif@&lumbia.
Time. Time shall be of the essence of this Agreernr

Entire Agreemen(This Agreement terminates and replaces all prioe@gents, either written, oral or implied, betwé#enparties with
respect to the subject matter hereof, and togettirrthe Subscription Agreement constitutes théremtgreement between the parties
with respect to the subject matter hert

Void or Invalid Provisionlf any term; provision, covenant or condition oisthgreement, or any application thereof, shouldhéle by

a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalidjodror unenforceable, all provisions, covenants @mtlitions of this Agreement, and all
applications thereof not held invalid, void or uf@ueable shall continue in full force and effentlan no way be affected, impaired or
invalidated thereby

Additional DocumentsThe parties shall do and perform all such actsthimgjs, and execute all such deeds, documents &tidgs,
and give all such assurances, as may be necessgiseteffect to this Agreemer

Modification. No modification of this Agreement shall be validess made in writing and duly executed by the pai

Waiver. The failure of a party to insist on the strict periance of any provision of this Agreement or tereise any right, power or
remedy upon a breach hereof shall not constitwtaiger of any provision of this Agreement or lirtiiat party’s right thereafter to
enforce any provision or exercise any rig
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13.10 Binding Effect.This Agreement shall enure to the benefit of anBlihding upon the parties hereto and their respesiiccessors and
permitted assign:

13.11 CounterpartsThis Agreement may be executed in counterp
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exeatthies Agreement as of the day and year first alvanigen.

WESTERN COPPER HOLDINGS LTD.

By: /s/[ILLEGIBLE]

Title: V. P. Finance
MINERA WESTERN COPPER S.A. DE C.V.

By: /s/[ILLEGIBLE]

Title: V. P. Finance
KENNECOTT EXPLORATION COMPANY

By: /s/John V.[ILLEGIBLE]

Title: Presiden
MINERA KENNECOTT S.A. DE C.V.

By: /s/John V. [ILLEGIBLE]

Title: Presiden
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TERMINATION OF PROPERTY RIGHTS AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made as of the 5th day of May, 1999, by and eet’llENNECOTT EXPLORATION COMPANY, a Delaware
corporationMINERA KENNECOTT S.A. DE C.V., a Mexico corporation (collectively, “KennecotthWESTERN COPPER HOLDINGS
LTD., a British Columbia corporation, ahMdiINERA WESTERN COPPER S.A. DE C.V.,a Mexico Corporation (collectively, “Western
Copper”).

WHEREAS, Kennecott and Western Copper entered into thaticelroperty Rights Agreement (“Property Rights égment”) dated 13
March, 1998; and,

WHEREAS, The parties now wish to terminate the Property Rigtgreement;
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and presmi®ntained herein, the parties agree as follows:

1. Western Copper acknowledges that it currently oesnecottONE MILLION THREE HUNDRED FORTY -FOUR THOUSAND
FIVE HUNDRED AND FIFTY-SIX UNITED STATES DOLLARS ( US$1,344,556.00) for expenses incurred by KennectoWesten
Copper’s behalf, plus interest. Western Copperthecenfirms that the expenditures are valid ansl #mount is undisputed. On or before
the close of business on 5 May, 1999 “Effective Dat"), Western Copper shall pay Kennecott such amountlin

2. After the Effective Date, and performance of Wasi@opper’s obligations pursuant to Paragraphsdl), &{d 3(b) herein, Kennecott shall
assign, at Western Copper’s sole expense, all ohEeott's right, title and interest in the Propestias more particularly described in
Exhibit A hereto, to Western Copper or its desigdadssignee. Western Copper shall assume andmpe#obits sole risk and expense, all
of obligations pertaining to the Properties andishdemnify and hold Kennecott harmless for ampllities, costs or expenses arising
from Western Copper’s activities on the ProperfeESTERN COPPER HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT TITLE TO
SEVERAL OF THE CONCESSIONS COMPRISING THE PROPERTIE S ARE IN JEOPARDY, THROUGH NO FAULT OF
KENNECOTT, DUE TO DELINQUENT TAX AND PROPERTY PAYME NTS. ASSIGNMENT OF THE PROPERTIES TO
WESTERN COPPER SHALL BE MADE ON AN “AS IS” BASIS, A ND KENNECOTT MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS OR
WARRANTIES AS TO TITLE. If transfer of the Properties is not made as offffective date, Kennecott shall continue to hdile to
the Properties for the benefit of Western Coppétsadesignated assignee, provided that Westerp&arknowledges that it shall be
solely responsible for the prompt payment of teaad property payments required to keep the Praseiriigood standing. It is understood
and agreed that Kennecott shall be under no oligab make any payments on Western Copgpeehalf. Western Copper shall indemr
and hold Kennecott harmless for any claim of ampetyesulting directly or indirectly from Western@per’s failure to make tax or
property payments in a timely mann

3. As of the Effective Date, Kennecott shall surreniteBack-In Rights on the Properties, as set fortGection 5 of the Property Rights
Agreement. A¢




consideration for Kennecott surrendering such sighih the Effective Date Western Copper st

(&) Issue Kennecott 250,000 common shares stéfte Copper common stock. Such stock shall beestubjly to such hold period as
is required under the rules of the Toronto StockHaxge, and shall be validly issued, fully paid andassessable, and free and

clear of all liens. Such number of shares shalidjested for any intervening subdivision of West€aopper stock or other capital
reorganization

(b) Amend Section 2 (b) of that certain Suljgasn Agreement dated 12 March, 1998 and eacheyfdhare purchase warrants
referred to therein, so that such warrants mayxkecesed any time prior to March 12, 2001 at agnttwo dollars (C$2.00) per
share, subject to such restrictions and acceleepily time as required by the Toronto Stock Exgjea

(c) In addition to performing the obligatioret $orth above, Western Copper shall pay Kenneoaotbr before 1 August, 1999, the

sum of fifty thousand U.S. dollars (US$50,000),sptlue full amount of tax penalties incurred foideg to make tax payments on
30 April, 1999.

4. After the Effective Date, and performance of Weast€opper's obligations pursuant to Paragraphsd),&{d 3 (b) herein, the Properties
shall be transferred to Western Copper subjecteioni€cott’s right to receive a one percent (1%gnetlter return royalty on Western
Copper Concessions, and two percent (2%) net snrette'n royalty on kennecott Concession or theaBeuito Property, as set forth in
Section 6 of the Property Rights Agreement, with elxception that the royalties shall no longerdggped. The net smelter return royalty
shall be payable as provided in Schedule 1.14ePtloperty Rights Agreement. A copy of Scheduld islattached hereto as Exhibit B
schedule of properties subject to such obligatiopay royalties is attached hereto as Exhibit Ay Aubsequent transfers of the Properties
by Western Copper shall be subject to Kennecadtjts to receive its net smelter royalty, and angsaguent transferee shall acknowledge
in writing its obligation to pay such royalty anitkf at its sole expense, such documentation ashmayecessary to acknowledge
Kennecof's right with the appropriate governmental authesiin Mexico.

Kennecott’s royalty interest on the Villa de Ranstam group, as described in Exhibit C hereto, lbapurchased under the following
terms.

(@ One million U.S. dollars (US$1,000,000) percentage point at any time on or before thersbaoniversary of this Termination
Agreement; or

(b) Two million U.S. dollars (US$2,000,000) parcentage point at any time after the secondvarsary, but before the third
anniversary of this Termination Agreeme

(c) If any portion of the royalty is not purcteal prior to the third anniversary of this TermioatAgreement, Kennecott’s right to
receive a net smelter return royalty, pursuanta@&aph 4 above shall remain in full force aneédf

2
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The parties acknowledge that different net senebyalty rates apply to different concessionthimithe Villa de Ramos claim group. It is
acknowledged and agreed that the payment of oriemil.S. dollars (US$1,000,000) under subparagfaplabove or two million U.S.
dollars (US$2,000,000) under subparagraph (b) atas/éhe case may be, acquires one percentageffmoinall the royalty interest
payable on the entire Villa de Ramos claim grouhsgquently, the concessions previously subjegtaoe percent (1%) royalty would
have no royalty due, and the concessions subjectwm percent (2%) royalty would be subject taa percent (1%) royalty. The
maximum percentage amount payable to Kennecottyrbayout, where both a one percent (1%) and tW) (@ercent royalty is due,
shall be two percent (2%). The rights granted hedleumay be exercised in part under subparagrgm@n¢hthe balance under
subparagraph (b), but exercise must be as to éutlgmtage points onl

After the Effective Date, and performance adaférn Copper’s obligations pursuant to ParagrapB&) and 3 (b) herein, Kennecott
shall grant Western Copper the exclusive rightrid & buyer for Kennecott’'s equity interest in VieestCopper. The term of such right
will be sixty (60) days from the Effective Date Western Copper fails to find a buyer, ready, wiliand able to purchase Kennecott’s
equity interest at a price of three dollars siitiefcents (C$3.65) per share or greater, then Kaathshall be free to seek a buyer on its
own initiative without further obligation to Weste€opper. The appropriateness of any sales oftdl Is& determined in Kennecott's
sole discretion. Western Copper shall not be euwtitb any fees for finding a buyer. Western Cogpaitl not make any representation:
warranties on Kennecott's behalf. During and befareh sixty (60) day period, Kennecott shall be tieetender its shares to a take-over
bid.

Western Copper shall, within sixty (60) days of tlete hereof, return all confidential data provitied under Section 4.4 of the Prope
Rights Agreement to Kennecott. This paragraph stalapply to data directly related to the conaessio be transferred to Western
Copper.

Western Copper shall, within sixty (60) dayshe date hereof, remove any of its property ntavesl in the Kennecott's Guadalajara
office or the core shed located near the Penaspuitmerty. Any property not removed within the gi¥60) day period shall become the
property of Kennecott. If Western Copper wishesttye drill core in Kennecott’'s Penasquito coredshifter the expiry of the sixty-day
period, it shall execute a lease, in a form acd#et® Kennecott, and make lease payments to Ketinefcseven hundred fifty U.S.
dollars (US$750) per mont

As of the Effective Date, and after the parfance of Western Copper’s obligations pursuaneradtaphs 1, 3(a) and 3(b) herein, the
Property Rights Agreement shall terminate and Hrégs shall have no further reciprocal obligaticmsept for Sections 2.7.2, 4.11,
4.13, 4.14, and 10.2.1 which shall survive suchieation, and the provisions of this Terminationrégment

Time shall be of the essence hereof. Western €agimall be obligated to pay the amounts set farfParagraph 1 on or before 5 May,
1999, and the references herein to the Effectivie Bee not intended to provide Western Copper aiginace perioc

3




11. This Termination Agreement shall be interpretedauriie laws of the Province of British Columbiathwiut regard to conflicts of lav
KENNECOTT EXPLORATION COMPANY

By: /s/[ILLEGIBLE]

Title: Presiden

MINERA KENNECOTT S.A. DE C.V.

By: /s/[ILLEGIBLE]

Title: Presiden

WESTERN COPPER HOLDINGS LTD

By: /s/ Thomas C. Pa

Title: Presiden
MINERA WESTERN COPPER S.A. DE C.V.

By: /s/ Thomas C. Pa

Title: Presiden






Exhibit 10.¢

SHARES FOR DEBT AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made as of this 28th day of Decemp2006

BETWEEN:
KENNECOTT EXPLORATION COMPANY , a Delaware corporation KEC ")

AND:
ROYAL GOLD, INC. , a Delaware corporation (thePurchaser”).

THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSES that in consideration of the premises and the niwimenants, agreements, representations, warsantie
and payments contained in this Agreement, theqeasiree with each other as follows:

1. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

1.1. Definitions

Unless the context otherwise requires, wheeel irs this Agreement, the following terms shall éa@lve respective meanings set out
below, and grammatical variations of such termdl staae corresponding meaning

1.1.1 “ Business Day’ has the meaning assigned to it in the Purchas&aledAgreemen

1.1.2 “ Closing” means the closing of the transactions contemglatethis Agreement andClosing Date” means the first Business
Day after the Pefiasquito Royalty Closing D

1.1.3 “ Debtor Substitution Agreement” means the Debtor Substitution Agreement dateceBxer 28, 2006 between the Purchaser,
KEC and the Vendor, a true and complete fully exetteopy of which is attached hereto as Schedu

1.1.4 “ Disclosure Document” means the financial statements, annual, quarterurrent reports, proxy statements, and other
documents required to be filed by the Purchasesyaunt to the reporting requirements of the UnitedeS Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended (thd 934 Act”) and the registration statement on Form S-4 (Rde333-111590) (theRegistration
Statement”), including exhibits, financial statements or othecuments or required 1934 Act filings that are ipovated thereir
and as may be amended by any prospectus supplemeost-effective amendment filed with the Unitedt8s Securities and
Exchange Commission (tI* SEC”).
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1.1.5. “ Governmental Authority " has the meaning assigned to it in the Purchas&aledAgreemen
1.1.6. “ Laws " has the meaning assigned to it in the Purchas&aledAgreemen
1.1.7. “ Notices” has the meaning set forth in Section !
1.1.8. “ Other Royalties Closing” has the meaning assigned to it in the Purchas&aledAgreemen
1.1.9. “ Penasquito Royalty Closing Dat¢’ has the meaning assigned to it in the Purchas&aledAgreemen

1.1.10 “ Penasquito Royalty Closin¢” has the meaning assigned to it in the PurchadeSate Agreement and is subject to extension as
provided in the Purchase and Sale Agreen

1.1.11 “ Promissory Note” means the promissory note referred to in the Pgechad Sale Agreeme
1.1.12 “ Purchaser” has the meaning set forth on the first page ofAkjieement

1.1.13 “ Receivable” means the $20,000,000 which shall become duepagdble by the Purchaser to KEC pursuant to thedbeb
Substitution Agreemen

1.1.14 * Royal Gold Shares” means shares of common stock, par value $0.0%hmee, of the Purchaser to be validly issued tb an
registered in the name of KEC at the Pefiasquit@RpZlosing in accordance with Sections 2.2 ard

1.1.15“ Royalties” has the meaning assigned to it in the Purchas&aledAgreemen

1.1.16 “Securities Laws” means the securities acts, securities exchangemsisilar legislation of the jurisdictions in thinited States
where the Purchaser is a “reporting issuer” or wlisrsecurities are listed for trading, and ajulations, rules and orders
thereunder, including without limitation the Unit&thtes Securities Act of 1933, as amended (1833 Act”), 1934 Act, and
Marketplace Rules of NASDAC

1.1.17 “ Trading Days” means days on which shares of common stock ofuhehBser are traded on NASDA

1.1.18 “ Vendor ” means Minera Kennecott S.A. de C




1.2

13

14

15

1.6

2.2

Gender and Number

In this Agreement, unless the context otherwésgiires, words importing the singular include pheal and vice versa, and words
importing a gender include all gende

Headings

The headings used in this Agreement are irgéoteconvenience of reference only and shall ffilgcathe interpretation of this
Agreement

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

All accounting terms not otherwise definedtirstAgreement shall have the meanings ascribduketm in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in the United Statpplied consistentl

Currency
All dollar amounts in this Agreement are statedl)i§. currency
Schedules

The following Schedule is attached hereto anddenporated herein and forms a part of this Agredn

Schedule £ Debtor Substitution Agreement, as executed by @taden the Purchaser, KEC and the Ven
SHARES FOR DEBT
At the Closing on the Closing Dat
2.1.1 the Purchaser will issue Royal Gold Shares to KEIyed at $20,000,000 as determined in accordaitbeSection 2.2

2.1.2 KEC will accept the Royal Gold Shares in completiissaction of the Receivable; a
2.1.3 KEC will cause the Vendor to surrender the Pronmisstote to the Purchaser for cancellati

Calculation of Royal Gold Shares

The number of Royal Gold Shares to be issuécHG at the Closing in accordance with Sectionshdll be the number obtained by
dividing $20,000,000 by the weighted average clpgirice per common share in the capital of the Rager on NASDAQ for the 10
Trading Days immediately preceding the second adigrbk the date of the first public disclosure by party of the Purchase and Sale
Agreement. The number of shares to be issued atr@shall be adjusted as necessary to reflecthagge in th
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share capital of the Purchaser after the datteedPurchase and Sale Agreement as a resulydfusdbdivision, consolidation or
reclassification thereof, or stock dividend or ettistribution (other than Purchaseregular cash dividend) on the common sharese
Purchaset

3. REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

3.1 Representations and Warranties of KEC

KEC represents and warrants to the Purchadetlas's and acknowledges that the Purchaser efjl on such representations and
warranties in entering into this Agreement, andancluding the transactions contemplated by thiseAment

3.1.1 Organization and Power KEC is a duly incorporated, organized and valslifpsisting corporation under the laws of its
jurisdiction of incorporation and has the corponadever to carry out its obligations under this Agreent.

3.1.2 Due Authorization— The execution and delivery of this Agreement tredother documents to be executed and delivered by
KEC hereunder and the carrying out of the transastcontemplated hereby on the part of KEC, indgdiithout limitation the
acquisition of the Royal Gold Shares, have beey duthorized by all necessary corporate and shlitehaction on the part of
KEC.

3.1.3 Validity of Agreement— This Agreement constitutes valid, binding andoecéable obligations of KEC and the Debtor
Substitution Agreement constitutes valid, binding @nforceable obligations of KEC and the Ven

3.1.4 No Conflicts or Violations— Neither the entering into of this Agreement amel dother documents and agreements to be execute
and delivered by KEC hereunder nor the completioth@transactions contemplated hereby in accoedaiiih the terms hereof
will result in the violation of any of the terms pirovisions of the constating documents of KECwitirthe entering into of this
Agreement or such other documents and agreemenssiald completion therec

3.1.4.1result in the violation of any of the terms or pgions of any indenture or other agreement, inséminor obligation to
which KEC is a party

3.1.4.2 conflict with, or result in a breach of, or violaay Law; or

3.1.4.3 give to any other person, after the giving of netic otherwise, any right of termination, canc@laior acceleration in
or with respect to any agreement or other instrurteewhich KEC is a party or is subject, or fromigrit derives
benefit, by which any of KE’s interest in the Royalties is bound or affec
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3.1.5 Broker's Fees- Neither the Vendor nor KEC have any liabilityp@ay any fees or commissions to any broker, findeagent
with respect to the transactions contemplated IsyAgreement for which Purchaser could becomediablobligated

3.1.6 Accredited Investor; Receipt of InformatiofKEC is an “accredited investor” as such termafireed in Rule 501(a) promulgated
by the SEC under 1933 Act. Each of the Vendor aB& Kave received or has had full access to alhtioeemation it considers
necessary or appropriate to make an informed aerisith respect to the issuance of the Royal Golar&s. KEC has had the
opportunity to ask questions of, and receive ans\drem, the Purchaser and its management regatfsénBurchaser’s business,
management and financial affairs. Except for thgasentations and warranties of the Purchaseosrhtih Section 3.2, Vendor
is relying solely on its own examination of the €haser and the Disclosure Documents, and adviite aftorneys, accountants
and financial and tax advisors, in making its decisvith respect to the issuance of the Royal @Giidres, including the merits
and risks involved

3.2 Representations and Warranties of the Purchaser

The Purchaser represents and warrants to KEC lasvigland acknowledges that KEC will rely on suepresentations and warrantie:
entering into this Agreement, and in concludingtta@sactions contemplated by this Agreem

3.2.1 Organization and Powefr The Purchaser is a duly incorporated, organirethvalidly subsisting company in good standing
under the laws of its jurisdiction of incorporatiand has the corporate power to enter into this@gent and to carry out its
obligations under this Agreeme

3.2.2 Due Authorization— The execution and delivery of this Agreement #Hredother documents to be executed and deliveredeby
Purchaser hereunder and the carrying out of timsaetions contemplated hereby on the part of theh@ser, including without
limitation the issuance of the Royal Gold Sharesehbeen duly authorized by all necessary corparadeshareholder action on
the part of the Purchast

3.2.3 Validity of Agreement— This Agreement and all other agreements to bewggd and delivered by the Purchaser hereunder at
the Closing constitute and will constitute valithding and enforceable obligations of the Purchz

3.2.4 No Conflicts or Violations— Neither the entering into of this Agreement amel dother documents and agreements to be execute
and delivered by the Purchaser hereunder nor tmgpledion of the transactions contempla
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hereby in accordance with the terms herebifoonflict with or result in the breach or violati of any Law or any of the terms
and provisions of the constating documents of tineliaser or of any indenture or other agreemesiiiment or obligation to

which the Purchaser is a party or by which it isfih or give to any other person, after the givahgotice or otherwise, any

right of termination, cancellation or acceleratioror with respect to any agreement or other imséut to which the Purchaser is

a party or is subject, or from which it derives bfin

3.2.5 Right to Carry on Business- The Purchaser and each of its subsidiaries hhwe@essary corporate power to own their

3.2.6

3.2.7

3.2.8

respective properties and assets and to carryednréfspective businesses as now conducted by dnelnare registered as
required and in good standing under the laws gliedictions in which their failure to so registeould have a material advel
effect on the Purchaser and its subsidiaries takemwhole

Compliance with Securities Laws; No Misrepresentati- The Disclosure Documents have been filed withusges regulatory
authorities in accordance with applicable Secwitiaws and were, at their respective dates ofgfilinpublication, in
compliance in all material respects with the disale requirements of applicable Securities Lawsdathahot, at such dates
(inclusive of all amendments thereto) contain anyue statements of a material fact or omit toestaiaterial fact required to
stated therein or necessary to be stated theremake the statements therein not misleac

No Material Adverse Chan(— Neither the Purchaser nor any of its subsididrgEssince June 30, 2006 sustained or
experienced any material loss or interference ustbusiness from fire, explosion, flood or othataenity, whether or not
covered by insurance, or from any labour disputeonirt or governmental action, order or decreeratise than as set forth or
contemplated in the Disclosure Documents; andesiume 30, 2006, other than as set forth or corégeatpin the Disclosure
Documents or as specifically disclosed to KEC iiting, there has not been any material adversegeghar any development
involving a prospective material adverse changer o the knowledge of the Purchaser affectinggéneral affairs (which shall
include the business, operations, assets, capitaloership), management, financial position, shel@ers’ equity or results of
operations of the Purchaser and its subsidiaa&entas a whol

Issuance, Registration and Restrictions on Tradirigoyal Gold Shareslhe issuance of the Royal Gold Shares to KEC put

to this Agreement will be in compliance with anyphigable Securities Laws, and except as otherwisdl be filed or obtained,
by the Purchaser at or before Closing, no cons@pi,oval, authorization, order, registration, filiar qualification of or with an
Governmental Authority, stock exchange or secuwitiemmission in the United States is requiredHerissuance of the Royall
Gold Shares by the Purchaser to KEC as securisitesl land posted for trading on NASDAQ in the Uthi&tates. The Royal
Gold Shares, whe
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issued at the Closing Date to KEC, will be registeand free-trading under the 1933 Act and they atany time be sold and
transferred by KEC within the United States withthé need for a hold period or an exemption froenrigistration and
prospectus delivery requirements of the 1933 Adtber applicable Securities Lav

3.2.9. No Legal Proceedinc— Except as set forth or contemplated in the DEale Documents, there are no legal or governmental
proceedings pending to which the Purchaser or &itg subsidiaries is a party or, to the best ef furchaser's knowledge, of
which any property of the Purchaser or any oftss&diaries is the subject which, if determinedeadely to the Purchaser or
any of its subsidiaries or any such corporationyidndividually or in the aggregate have a matetverse effect on the
consolidated financial position, shareholders’ gquiesults of operations, business or prospectseoPurchaser or any of its
subsidiaries or any such corporations; and, td’timehaser’s knowledge, no such proceedings aratémed by Governmental
Authorities or threatened by othe

3.2.10 No Material Defaul— The Purchaser and its subsidiaries are not irmahtdlefault under any material contracts, leases
agreements, indentures or other instruments tohwdniy of them is a party, and to the knowledgénefRurchaser there exists
state of facts which after notice or lapse of tondoth would constitute such a material default gre Purchaser or one of its
subsidiaries is entitled to all benefits thereun

3.2.11 Valid Issue— The Royal Gold Shares will, when issued to KE@hatClosing, be validly issued and outstandinfutig paid
and non-assessable shares in the capital of ttelh&ser and will be registered in the name of KE@eaClosing in accordance
with Section 5.2

3.2.12 Broker's Fees- The Purchaser has no liability to pay any feesoonmissions to any broker, finder, or agent wéspect to the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement foctvittie Vendor or KEC could become liable or obkgia

3.3 Acknowledgements of KEC

KEC acknowledges that except as expresslyostt in Section 3.2, the Purchaser makes no exprdassplied representations or
warranties with respect to the subject matter isf Agreement

CONDITIONS OF CLOSING

4.1 Conditions of the Parties

The obligations of the parties to completetthasactions contemplated by this Agreement a€tbsing on the Closing Date are subject
to the fulfillment of the




4.2

5.1
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condition that the parties have consummatetssetions at the Penasquito Royalty Closing asigeovin the Purchase and Sale
Agreement

The foregoing condition is inserted for the oaltbenefit of KEC and the Purchaser and may bgeslain whole or in part if and only if
jointly waived by KEC and the Purchas

Termination

This Agreement will automatically terminate tenmination of the Purchase and Sale Agreementdardance with the provisions in
Section 5.4 thereo

Any such termination shall be without prejudiceany right or remedy of any party with respecatbreach of this Agreement or the
Purchase and Sale Agreement by any other

CLOSING

The Vendor and Purchaser shall consummatelasd the transactions contemplated herein in at’KBices located at 224 North
2200 West, Salt Lake City, Utah (or at such otHacg@as the parties may mutually agree) at 10:6@ck a.m., local time, on the
Closing Date. The Closing Date may be postponediater time and date by mutual agreement signeabliy parties. If the Closing is
postponed, all references to the Closing DateigrAlgreement shall refer to the postponed ¢

Documents to be Delivered by KEC

At the Closing KEC shall deliver or cause to bewagkd to the Purchase
5.1.1 the Promissory Note, for cancellatic

5.1.2 certified copies of those resolutions of the dioestand, if required, shareholders of KEC requitede passed to authorize the
execution, delivery and implementation of this Agreent and of all documents to be delivered by teedér and KEC under
this Agreement and the completion of the transastmontemplated herek

5.1.3 an opinion of KEC's internal or external counsehiform to the reasonable satisfaction of courwetife Purchaser as to the
corporate existence of such party, and to the effext this Agreement has been duly authorized;eel and delivered by such
party and constitutes a legal, valid and bindintigattion of such party

5.1.4 an opinion of KEC'’s internal or external counsehiform to the reasonable satisfaction of courwetife Purchaser as to the
corporate existence of Minera Kennecott S.A. de.Ca¥d to the effect that the Debtor Substitutigréement has been duly
authorized, executed and delivered by KEC and tleddr and constitutes a legal, valid and bindinigabon of such parties;
and
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5.1.5 a certificate of an officer of KEC as to the acayras of the Closing Date of KEC's representatiamd warranties and the

performance of its covenants to be performed &efore the Closing

5.2 Documents to be Delivered by the Purchase

At the Closing the Purchaser shall deliver or caodse delivered to KEC

521

5.2.2

5.2.3

524

certified copies of those resolutions of the divestand, if required, shareholders of the Purchasprired to be passed to
authorize the execution, delivery and implementatibthis Agreement and of all documents and paysienbe delivered by tt
Purchaser under this Agreement and the complefitiredransactions contemplated here

a certificate of an officer of the Purchaser athtaccuracy as of the Closing Date of the Purctsasspresentations and
warranties and the performance of its covenanitetperformed at or before the Closi

an opinion of the Purchaser’s internal or exteowainsel in a form to the reasonable satisfactiocpahsel for the Vendor as to
the corporate existence of the Purchaser, the Ragll Shares have been duly authorized and, wiseledsin accordance with
the provisions of this Agreement, will be validgsued, fully paid, non-assessable and registenesdignt to the Registration
Statement, which has become effective under th8 2@8 and no stop order suspending the effectisgeioé the Registration
Statement or suspending or preventing the useegbtbspectus thereto, as amended, has been isslied aroceedings for that
purpose have been instituted or are threatenedeb@EC and to the effect that the Agreement has thely authorized, execut
and delivered by the Purchaser and constitutegad, lealid and binding obligation of the Purchaserd

share certificate(s) bearing no legends duly reggst in the name of KEC representing the Royal Gbldres to be issued in
accordance with Section 2

INDEMNITIES

Indemnification by Purchaser

In accordance with the procedures in Secti8ntBe Purchaser shall indemnify KEC, and its does; officers, employees, agents, and

representatives against and agrees to hold KECit@ddectors, officers, employees, agents, apdegentatives harmless from any and
all damages, claims, losses, liabilities, finesyglges and expenses (including without limitatierpenses of investigation, attorneys’
fees in connection with any action, suit or prodegdbrought against any of them, the cost of aitiEs, surveys, clean up and any other
environmental expenses) incurred or suffered by K&iGts directors, officers, employees, agents, r@presentatives or any of them
arising out of;




6.2

6.3
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6.1.1 any misrepresentation or breach of warranty of WwiNotice has been given under Section 6.3 befqpeation of the
representation or warranty as provided in Secti@néahd
6.1.2 any covenant or agreement made or to be performéitebPurchaser pursuant to this Agreem

Indemnification by KEC

In accordance with the procedures in Secti8nKEC agrees to indemnify the Purchaser and recthirs, officers, employees, agents,
and representatives against and agree to holdutod&ser and its directors, officers, employeesntg and representatives harmless
from any and all damages, claims, losses, liagdjtfines, penalties and expenses (including withmitation, expenses of investigatic
attorneys’ fees and expenses in connection withaatipn, suit or proceeding brought against theRaser,) incurred or suffered by the
Purchaser or its directors, officers, employeesntgy and representatives arising ou

6.2.1 any misrepresentation or breach of warranty of tviNotice has been given under Section 6.3 befgoeation of the
representation or warranty as provided in Sectidn

6.2.2 any covenant or agreement made or to be perform&ER pursuant to this Agreemel

Claims of Indemnity

A party claiming for indemnity under this Aitigc6 (the “Indemnitee”) shall give prompt Notice of any claim, actionppeeding or
circumstances that could reasonably give rise ¢b suclaim to the party which has agreed to indgmn({the “ Indemnitor ).

Inadvertent failure to give such prompt Notice willt preclude the Indemnitee from pursuing thentlanless and to the extent that the
Indemnitor is materially prejudiced by such failuféae Indemnitor may, and will, if directed to dwlsy the Indemnitee, at its own
expense and in the name of the Indemnitee or otbepdispute any claim made, or any matter on whictaim could be made, by a
third party in respect of which a Notice has bemeg by the Indemnitee under this Section 6.3 aag metain legal counsel acceptable
to the Indemnitee to have conduct of any proceeditaging to such a claim. The Indemnitee may empkparate counsel with respect
to any such claims brought by a third party andigigate in the defense thereof, provided the feebexpenses of such counsel shall be
the responsibility of the Indemnitee unle

6.3.1 the Indemnitor fails to assume the defence of slailn on behalf of the Indemnitee within five dafseceiving Notice of such
claim; or

6.3.2 the employment of such counsel has been authobig¢ie Indemnitor

in each of which cases the Indemnitor shallhaate the right to assume the defense of suctosuiehalf of the Indemnitee but shall be

liable to pay the reasonable fees and expensesuosel for the Indemnitee. For the purpose of corifig or disputing suc
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a claim, the Indemnitee will provide full andnaplete disclosure to the Indemnitor and completess to and right of inspection by the
representatives of the Indemnitor of all documemis records in the possession or control of therimdtee relating to such claim. If a
security is required to be provided for the purpofdefending or contesting any such claim, inahggliwithout limitation, any appeal of
any judgment, the Indemnitor shall provide suctusgcand all monies or property representing sseturity received by the
Indemnitee as a result of a successful defenserdestation will be held in trust by the Indemniteethe benefit of the Indemnitor and
will be remitted to the Indemnitor on demand. Neitthe Indemnitee nor the Indemnitor shall settepromise or pay any claim for
which indemnity is sought hereunder except withgher written consent of the other, such consettto be unreasonably withheld, or
in the case of the Indemnitee unless the Indemfaitsrto dispute and defend such cla

POST-CLOSING MATTERS

If approval for listing of the Royal Gold Sharen the Toronto Stock Exchange has not been @utain or prior to the Closing, the
Purchaser shall use all reasonable efforts to wistath approval for such listing within 10 BusinBsgys after the Closing

SURVIVAL OF REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENAN TS

KEC's Representations, Warranties and Covenani

All representations and warranties made by Kitbis Agreement or under this Agreement shalless otherwise expressly stated,
survive the Closing and any investigation at ametimade by or on behalf of the Purchaser, and sbatinue in full force and effect for
the benefit of the Purchaser for a period of tlyears after the Pefiasquito Royalty Clos

Purchaser's Representations, Warranties and Covenan

All representations and warranties made byPtimehaser in this Agreement or under this Agreerskall, unless otherwise expressly
stated, shall survive the Closing and any inveiigaat any time made by or on behalf of KEC, ahdllscontinue in full force and effe
for the benefit of KEC for a period of three yeafter the Pefiasquito Royalty Closil

MISCELLANEOUS

Expenses- The parties shall each bear all of their ownsasd expenses, including consultants’ and attstriegs, incurred in
connection with the negotiation of this Agreememd she consummation of the transactions contentplageeby

Public Announcements— KEC acknowledges that the Purchaser will disctbseexistence and terms and conditions of thisAgrent
and file this Agreement as required by applicaldeusities Laws. The Purchaser shall comply wittapplicable Laws and shall not
attribute any statements regarding this AgreemeKHEC or the Vendor. Each of the parties will paevia draft of their initial proposed
press release to the other party sufficiently imeexde of its release to provide the other paryaseonable opportunity to review and
comment on the content there
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Notices— All notices, requests, demands, claims, and atbermunications hereunderotices”) must be in writing. Any party may

send any Notice to the intended recipient at tlress$ set forth below using certified mail, natipneecognized express courier,
personal delivery or facsimile transmittal, and angh Notice will be deemed to have been duly gi{egrthree days after being
deposited in the U.S. mail, postage prepaid, (@)xt Business Day after being deposited withtimmally recognized overnight
courier and upon confirming delivery with such degrand (c) when actually received by an indivicatethe intended recipient’s
facsimile number and acknowledged as recei

If to KEC: Kennecott Exploration Compal
224 North 2200 Wes
Salt Lake City, UT 8411
Attention: President & CE(
Fax: (801) 23-2488

Informational copy to Kennecott Exploration Compal
224 North 2200 Wes
Salt Lake City, UT 8411
Attention: General Couns
Fax: (801) 23-2494

If to Purchase: Royal Gold, Inc
1660 Wynkoop Street, Suite 10
Denver, Colorado 802C
Attention: Presider
Fax: (303) 59-9385

Informational copy to Royal Gold, Inc
1660 Wynkoop Street, Suite 10
Denver, Colorado 802C
Attention: General Couns
Fax: (303) 59-9385

Either party may change the address to which Netice to be delivered by giving the other partieide in the manner herein set for

Entire Agreement— This Agreement, the Data Disclosure AgreemeitDlbtor Substitution Agreement and the Purchadesate
Agreement all of which survive execution of thisrAgment, constitute the entire agreement betweepatties in relation to the
transactions herein contemplated and, except &#fisp#ly set out herein, or in any documents deded at Pefiasquito Royalty Closing,
the Other Royalties Closing or the Closing, supgseevery previous agreement, communication, eafeat negotiation,
representation or understanding, whether oral dtem; express or implied, statutory or otherwa®ong the parties with respect to the
subject matter of this Agreement and there areofiateral agreements other than as expressly gbtdo referred to in this Agreemel
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Amendments and Waivers— This Agreement may not be amended except byemréigreement among all the parties to this
Agreement. No waiver of any provision of this Agremnt will be valid unless it is in writing and sgphby each party. No such waiver
by any party of any default, misrepresentatiorhreach of warranty or covenant hereunder, whetiteniional or not, will be deemed
to extend to any prior or subsequent default, rpig®entation, or breach of warranty or covenargureter or affect in any way any
rights arising by virtue of any prior or subsequsmth occurrenct

Severability — Any term or provision of this Agreement thatrizalid or unenforceable in any situation in anygdiction will not
affect the validity or enforceability of the remiig terms and provisions hereof or the validityeaforceability of the offending term
provision in any other situation or in any othengdiction.

Assignment— No party hereto may assign any right, benefihterest in this Agreement or the subject matteebewithout the
written consent of the other party and any purgbagsignment without such consent shall be voidodmab effect.

Enurement — This Agreement shall enure to the benefit of badinding upon the parties and their respectiveessors and
permitted assign:

Conflict between Documents— The provisions of this Agreement shall be fullyeetive notwithstanding the provisions in Sectior©:
of the Purchase and Sale Agreem

Time — Time shall be of the essence of this Agreenr

Governing Law — This Agreement will be governed by and constrinegiccordance with the laws of the State of Utathexit giving
effect to any choice or conflict of law provisionrole that would cause the application of the lafvany jurisdiction other than the
State of Utah

Execution— This Agreement may be executed by the parti@@or more counterparts and by facsimile, eaachha¢h shall be
deemed an original and all of which, taken togethleall constitute one and the same instrun

AS EVIDENCE OF THEIR AGREEMENT the parties have executed this Agreement as afatefirst above written.

KENNECOTT EXPLORATION COMPANY

Per:

/sl Justin Quigle
Authorized Signator

ROYAL GOLD, INC.

Per:

/sl Tony Jense
Authorized Signator
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DEBTOR SUBSTITUTION AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made as of this 28th day of Debem 2006
BETWEEN:
ROYAL GOLD, INC. , a Delaware corporation
(hereinafter called “Royal Gold”)

OF THE FIRST PAR1

AND:

KENNECOTT EXPLORATION COMPANY , a Delaware corporation
(hereinafter called “KEC”)

OF THE SECOND PAR’

AND:
MINERA KENNECOTT S.A. DE C.V. , a company incorporated under the laws of Mexico

(hereinafter called “Minera Kennecott”)

OF THE THIRD PART

WITNESSES that in consideration of the premisesthednutual covenants, agreements, representati@ngnties and payments contained
in this Agreement, the parties agree with eachrabdollows:

1. DEFINITIONS

Where used in this Agreement, the following tertmalishave the respective meanings set out belod geaammatical variations of such
terms shall have corresponding meanings:

1.1. “ Loan Agreement” means the Loan Agreement dated December 28, B8een KEC as lender and Minera Kennecott as
borrower.

1.2. “ Payable” means the $20,000,000 which is or shall becomeeadud payable by Royal Gold to Minera Kennecotspant to
Section 2.3.2 of the Purchase and Sale Agreemeditwdl be evidenced by the Promissory Nc




1.3.
1.4.
15.

1.6.

1.7.

2
“ Penasquito Royalty Closing' has the meaning assigned to it in the Purchas&aledAgreemen
“ Promissory Note” means the promissory note referred to in the Peechad Sale Agreeme

“ Purchase and Sale Agreeme” means the Purchase and Sale Agreement for Pef@aquitOther Royalties dated December 28,
2006 between Minera Kennecott, KEC and Royal Goidl, (“Royal Golc").

“ Royal Gold Shares’ means shares of common stock, par value $0.0%hse, of Royal Gold to be issued to and regidter¢he
name of KEC in accordance with the Shares for Dgjpeement

“ Shares for Debt Agreement means the Shares for Debt Agreement dated Dece2Bb2006 between KEC and Royal G¢

. ASSIGNMENT OF PAYABLE
With effect at and as of the Penasquito Rgyalosing, KEC hereby:

2.1.
2.2.

assumes and agrees to pay the Payable

agrees to indemnify and save Royal Gold harnfless and against any claim, demand, action, catiaetmn, loss, damage, cost,
fine, penalty or expense whatsoever, includinglléggs suffered or incurred, directly or indirecthy Royal Gold by reason of the
failure of KEC to pay or discharge the Paya

. NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT

Minera Kennecott hereb

3.1.
3.2.

3.3.

consents to and acknowledges receipt of notickeassignment of the Payable to Kk

agrees that from and after the assumption oPthgable by KEC, Minera Kennecott will have recowsly to KEC and not to Royal
Gold for payment of the Payable; &

as provided in the Shares for Debt Agreementnugsuance of the Royal Gold Shares to KEC, Milkenanecott will surrender and
deliver the Promissory to Royal Gold for cancetiati

. CONSIDERATION

The consideration payable by Royal Gold to KECtfer assumption by KEC of liability for the Payablell be $20,000,000, which shall
be paid and satisfied by Royal Gold on the firssiBass Day after the Penasquito Royalty Closingregided in the Shares for Debt
Agreement.




5. TERMINATION

This Agreement will automatically terminate on témation of the Purchase and Sale Agreement in decae with the provisions in
Section 5.4 thereof. Any such termination shalithout prejudice to any right or remedy of anytpawith respect to a breach of this
Agreement or the Purchase and Sale Agreement bgthary party.

6. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF BOTH PARTIE
Each of the parties represents and warrants tothes that

6.1. Itis a duly incorporated, organized and valisiljpsisting company in good standing under the tavits jurisdiction of incorporation
and has the corporate power to enter into this &ment and to carry out its obligations under thigge®ment

6.2. The execution and delivery of this Agreement haserbduly authorized by all necessary corporateshadeholder action on its pe
6.3. This Agreement is legal, valid, binding and enfatude against il
7. MISCELLANEOUS

7.1. Assignment — Neither party hereto may assignragiyt, benefit or interest in this Agreement or ubject matter hereof without the
written consent of the othe

7.2. Enurement — This Agreement shall enure to thesfieof and be binding upon the parties and thespective successors and permitted
assigns

7.3. Time— Time shall be of the essence of this Agreen

7.4. Governing Law — This Agreement will be governgdamd construed in accordance with the laws oStiage of Utah without giving
effect to any choice or conflict of law provisionmile that would cause the application of the lafvany jurisdiction other than the St
of Utah.

7.5. Execution — This Agreement may be executed byp#rées in one or more counterparts and by fadsjraach of which shall be
deemed an original and all of which, taken togethleall constitute one and the same instrun

AS EVIDENCE OF THEIR AGREEMENT the parties have executed this Agreement as of




the date first above written.
ROYAL GOLD, INC.

Per /s/ Tony Jense
Authorized Signator

KENNECOTT EXPLORATION COMPANY

Per /s/ Justin Quigle
Authorized Signator

MINERA KENNECOTT S.A. DE C.V

Per /s/ Justin Quigle!
Authorized Signator







Exhibit 10.¢

CONTRATO DE CESION DE DERECHOS QUE OTORGA, POR CONTRACT FOR ASSIGNMENT OF RIGHTS GRANTED, BY

UNA PARTE, MINERA KENNECOTT, S.A. DEC.V,,
REPRESENTADA EN ESTE ACTO POR EL SR. DAVE F.
SIMPSON Y, POR LA OTRA, MINERA PENASQUITO, S.A. DE
C.V., REPRESENTADA EN ESTE ACTO POR EL LIC. JOSE

MARIA GALLARDO TAMAYO, DE ACUERDO CON LAS

Declaran las partes en que, para los efectos de est
Contrato, las abreviaturas utilizadas se entenderan

por:

KENNECOTT:

PENASQUITO:

AFILIADOS:

SIGUIENTES:

DECLARACIONES

Minera Kennecott, S.A. de C.V., asi como sUSENNECOTT:
causahabientes y cesionarios, y cualesquiera

personas, sociedad o entidad juridica, nacional

0 extranjera, que ésta designase para el

ejerciclo de cualquiera de los derechos

derivados de este Contrato y que se encuentre

legalmente capacitada para e

Minera P&asquito, S.A. de C.V., asi como StRENASQUITO:

causahabientes y cesionarios, y cualesquiera
personas, sociedad o entidad juridica, nacional
0 extranjera, que ésta designase para el
ejercicio de cualquiera de los derechos
derivados de este Contrato y que se encuentre
legalmente capacitada para e

Cualquier persona, sociedad o entidad juridiédFILIATES:
que, directa o indirectamente, controle a

KENNECOTT o PENASQUITO, o sea

controlada por las mismas, segln sea el caso,
entendiéndose por “control” el derecho ha

hacer valer mas del 50 % de los derechos de

votacion correspondientes a las acciones de la

parte controlada. En el caso de

KENNECOTT , se considerara como

AFILIADOS a cualquier
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MINERA KENNECOTT, S.A. DE C.V. REPRESENTED IN
THIS AGREEMENT BY MR. DAVE F. SIMPSON, AND
MINERA PENASQUITO, S.A. DE C.V., REPRESENTED IN
THIS AGREEMENT BY ATTORNEY, JOSE MARIA
GALLARDO TAMAYO, IN AGREEMENT WITH THE

FOLLOWING

DECLARATIONS

The parties declare that for the purposes of thist@ct, the
following definitions shall have the following meags:

Minera Kennecott, S.A. de C.V., as well as its
successors and assigns, and any other person:
companies, or any legal, domestic or foreign
entity, authorized to exercise any of the rights
derived from this Contract and which possess
the legal capacity for such exercise.

Minera Pefiasquito, S.A. de C.V., as well as its
successors and assigns, and any other person:
companies, or any legal, domestic or foreign
entity, authorized to exercise any of the rights
derived from this Contract and which possess
the legal capacity for such exercise.

Any person, company, partnership or legal
entity that directly or indirectly controls
KENNECOTT or PENASQUITO , or is
controlled by the same, as the case may be,
understanding that “controtheans the right t
direct more than 50% of voting rights
corresponding to the stock of the controlled
party. In the case €ENNECOTT ,
AFFILIATES are considered as any person,
company, or legal entity, independent of its
location, for which Rio Tinto Corporation PL




LOS LOTES:

LOS DERECHOS:

REGISTRO:

LOS CONTRATOS:

persona, sociedad o entidad juridica que,
independientemente de su ubicacion, Rio 1
Corporation PLC posea o controle tales
derechos de votacio

Las Concesiones Mineras con respecto a loSTHE LAND:
lotes descritos en el incigdde las

Declaraciones dEENNECOTT en este

documento, y las que de ellas se deriven.

Derechos derivados de lo$ulos de THE RIGHTS:
Concesién Mineracon respecto BOS

LOTES .

El Registro Publico de Mineri. REGISTRY :
Los siguientes Contratos de Cesion de THE
Derechos CONTRACTS:

a) Celebrado entre Minera Catasillas, S.A. de
C.V. yKENNECOTT , registrado bajo el
ndmero 108, a fojas 79 frente y vuelta, del
volumen 5, del libro de Actos, Contratos y
Convenios Mineros d&®EGISTRO , el 26 de
Febrero de 199°

b) Celebrado entre el Lic. José Guadalupe
Durén Santillan \)W\ENNECOTT , registrado
bajo el nUmero 244, a fojas 172 vuelta a 173
frente, del volumen 7, del libro de Actos,
Contratos y Convenios Mineros del
REGISTRO , el 30 de Septiembre de 19!

c) Celebrado entre el Ing. Rafael Gaytan
Monroy yKENNECOTT , registrado bajo el
ndamero 10, a fojas 7 vuelta a 8 frente, del
volumen 9, del libro de Actos, Contratos y
Convenios Mineros d&®EGISTRO , el 23 de
Octubre de 199¢
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possesses or controls such voting rights.

The Mining Concessions with respect to the
land described in paragraphof the
Declarations oKENNECOTT in this
document and the rights that are derived
therefrom.

Rights derived from Mining Concession De
with respect torHE LAND .

The Public Mining Registr

The following Assignment Agreements:

a) Agreed to between Minera Catasillas, S.A.
de C.V. anKENNECOTT , registered under
number 108, page 79 front and back volume 5,
of the Mining Acts, Contracts and Agreements
book of theREGISTRY , dated February 26,
1997.

b) Agreed to between José Guadalupe Durén
Santillan, Esq., andENNECOTT ,

registered under number 244, page 172 and
continuing to 173, of volume 7 of the Mining
Acts, Contracts and Agreements book of the
REGISTRY , dated September 30, 19!

c) Agreed to between Engineer, Rafael Gaytan
Monroy andKkENNECOTT , registered unde
number 10, page 7 and continuing to 8, of
volume 9 of the Mining Acts, Contracts and
Agreements book of tHREGISTRY , dated
October 23, 199¢




LEY: La Ley Minera.
REGLAMENTO: Reglamento de la Ley Miner
IVA: Impuesto al Valor Agregad
ISR: Impuesto Sobre la Rent

LIR: Ley del Impuesto Sobre la Ren
LFD: Ley Federal de Derechc

I. Declara el representante KENNECOTT :

a) Que su representada es una sociedad minera, maexoarstituida
conforme a las Leyes de los Estados Unidos Mex&aegistrada
baja el Numero 104, a Fojas 89 Frente y VueltayVaddimen XXIX
del Libro General de Sociedades BEIGISTRO el 12 de Julio de
1991, con Registro Federal de Causantes MKE-91@%28-y que,
de acuerdo con su objeto social, esta capacitadadedicarse a la
exploracién y explotacién de sustancias concesib@gtitular de
concesiones mineras, asi como para celebrar cosijae tengan por
objeto transferir derechos derivados de dichasesiones y, por lo
tanto, capacitada para celebrar este Contrato siéiCde Derecheo

b) Que tiene facultades suficientes para actuar erbreoyn
representacion d€ENNECOTT , obligandola en los términos de

LAW: The Mining Law
REGULATIONS: Regulations of the Mining La
VAT: Value Added Ta:

IT: Income Taxe:

ITL: Income Tax Law

FRL: Federal Rights Lax

I. Declares the representativeKENNECOTT :

a) That he represents a Mexican mining company orgdnimder th
laws of Mexico, registered under number 104, p&y&@t and bacl
of volume XXIX of the General Book of Companiestio
REGISTRY , dated July 12, 1991, with the Federal Entity Regio
MKE-910228-AQA, and in accordance with its corperptirpose,
has the capacity to engage in the exploration aptbiation of
concessionable substances, to be the holder ofndfignconcessions,
as well as to execute contracts transferring rigbtsvzed from such
concessions, and as a result, has the capacigetwe this Contract
for Assignment of Rights

b) That he has sufficient authority to act in the narhand to
represenKENNECOTT , obligating it to the terms of this Contract,

este Contrato, facultades que a la fecha de laftteneste documento authority that upon the date this document is sigmes not been

no le han sido revocadas o modificadas en formanalgcomo const
en la Escritura Publica nimero 60724, de fechaelSlayo de 1998,
otorgada ante el licenciado Armando Gélvez Péregém, Notario
Publico 103 del Distrito Federal, ademas de estarita en el
Registro Unico de Personas Acreditadas bajo el Ndihe
Acreditamiento 49795/73971, expedido el 7 de Setitie de 1999.

¢) Que su representada es titular de

las derechos derivados de las
Concesiones Mineras con respecto a los
lotes que se describen a continuac

revoked or modified in any form, as confirmed irbkeiDeed
number 60724, dated May 15, 1998, singed beforeafdu Galvez
Pérez Aragon, Notary Public 103 of the Federalriaistin addition tc
being written in the Exclusive Register of AccreditPersons under
Accreditation Number 49795/73971, sent Septemb&pJ9.

c¢) That the party he represents is the holder ofitires derived from
the Mining Concessions with respect to the lanadlesd as follows:
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1)

2)

Nombre de la Concesio
Tipo de Concesior
Expediente

Titulo:

Superficie:

Fecha de Registr
Numero:

Fojas:

Volumen:

Libro:

Vigencia a:

Inscrita en el Acta
Fojas:

Volumen:

Libro:

Fecha de inscripcioi

Nombre de la Concesio
Tipo de Concesior
Expediente

Titulo:

Superficie:

Fecha de Registr
Namero:

Fojas:

Volumen:

Libro:

Vigencia a:

Cesion de Derechc
inscrita en el Acta
Fojas:

Volumen:

Libro:

Fecha de inscripcioi

“EL PENASQUITO”
Explotacion
321.43/88¢

196289

2.0000 Hectaree

16 de Julio de 199
149

75

271

Concesiones Minere
11 de Junio de 2011Cesi6n de
Derechos

108

79 frente y vuelt:

5

Actos, Contratos y
Convenios Minero:
26 de Febrero de 19¢

“LA PENA”
Explotacion
7/1.3/547

203264

58.0000 Hectaree
28 de Junio de 19¢
284

142

290

Concesiones Minere
27 de Junio de 204

108

79 frente y vuelt:

5

Actos, Contratos y
Convenios Minero:
26 de Febrero de 19¢
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1)

2)

Name of the Concessio
Type of Concessior
Record:

Title:

Area.

Date of Registry
Number:

Pages

Volume:

Book:

Term:

Inscribed in the Recort
Pages

Volume:

Book:

Date of inscription

Name of the Concessio
Type of Concessior
Record:

Title:

Area:

Date of Registry
Number:

Pages

Volume:

Book:

Term:

Assignment of Right
Inscribed in the Recor
Pages

Volume:

Book:

Date of inscription

“EL PENASQUITO”
Exploitation

321.43/88¢

196289

2.0000 Hectacre

July 16, 199:

149

75

271

Mining Concession

June 11, 2011 Assignment of
Rights

108

79 front and bac

5

Mining Deeds, Contracts and
Agreements

February 26, 199

“LA PENA”
Exploitation
7/1.3/547

203264

58.0000 Hectacre
June 28, 199
284

142

290

Mining Concession
June 27, 204

108

79 front and bac

5

Mining Deeds, Contracts and
Agreements

February 26, 199




3)

4)

Nombre de la Concesi6
Tipo de Concesior
Expediente

Titulo:

Superficie:

Fecha de Registr
Ndamero:

Fojas:

Volumen:

Libro:

Vigencia a:

Expediente Explotacior
Fecha de solicituc
Cesién de Derechc
inscrita en el Acta
Fojas:

Volumen:

Libro:

Fecha de inscripcior

Nombre de la Concesi6
Tipo de Concesior
Expediente

Titulo:

Superficie:

Fecha de Registr
Ndamero:

Fojas:

Volumen:

Libro:

Vigencia a:

Cesién de Derechc
inscrita en el Acta
Fojas:

Volumen:

Libro:

Fecha de inscripcioi

“LAS PENAS”
Exploracioén

07/1306&

195327

40.0000 Hectaree

15 de Septiembre de 19
147

38

269

Concesiones Minerz

18 de Septiembre de 19
8-1.3/983

7 de Septiembre de 19

108

79 frente y vuelt:

5

Actos, Contratos y
Convenios Minero:
26 de Febrero de 19!

“ALFA”

Explotacion
7/1.3/485

201997

1,100.0000 Hectéare:
11 de Octubre de 19¢
97

49

287

Concesiones Minere
10 de Octubre de 20«

244

172 vuelta a 173 fren

7

Actos, Contratos y
Convenios Minero:

30 de Septiembre de 19

3)

4)
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Name of the Concessio
Type of Concessior
Record:

Title:

Area:

Date of Registry
Number:

Pages

Volume:

Book:

Term:

Exploitation Record
Date of Application
Assignment of Right
Inscribed in the Recor
Pages

Volume:

Book:

Date of inscription

Name of the Concessio
Type of Concessior
Record:

Title:

Area.

Date of Registry
Number:

Pages

Volume:

Book:

Term:

Assignment of Right
Inscribed in the Act
Pages

Volume:

Book:

Date of inscription

“LAS PENAS”
Exploration
07/1306&

195327

40.0000 Hectacre
September 15, 19¢
147

38

260

Mining Concession
September 18, 19¢
8-1.3/983
September 7, 19¢

108

79 front and bac

5

Mining Deeds, Contracts and
Agreement:

February 26, 199

“ALFA”
Exploitation
7/1.3/485

201997
1,1000.0000 Hectacrt
October 11, 199
97

49

287

Mining Concession
October 10, 204

244

172 continuing to front of 17
7

Mining Deeds, Contracts and
Agreements

September 30, 19¢




5) Nombre de la Concesio
Tipo de Concesior
Expediente
TRtulo:

Superficie:

Fecha de Registr
Numero:

Fojas:

Volumen:

Libro:

Vigencia a:
Cesion de Derechc
inscrita en el Acta
Fojas:

Volumen:

Libro:

Fecha de inscripcioi

“BETA”

Exploracioén
7/13187

198921

2,054.7609 Hectare:
31 de Enero de 19¢
261

131

278

Concesiones Minere
30 de Enero de 20(

10

7 vuelta a 8 frent

9

Actos, Contratos y
Convenios Minero:
23 de Octubre de 19¢

5)

Name of the Concessio
Type of Concessior
Record:

Title:

Area.

Date of Registry
Number:

Pages

Volume:

Book:

Term:

Assignment of Right
Inscribed in the Recort
Pages

Volume:

Book:

Date of inscription

“BETA”
Exploration
7/13187

198921
2,054.7609 Hectacre
January 31, 199
261

131

278

Mining Concession
January 30, 200

10

7 continuing to front of {

9

Mining Deeds, Contracts and
Agreements

October 23, 199

Sin perjuicio de tercero que mejor derecho te

d) Contintia declaranddENNECOTT queLOS DERECHOS que
en este acto cede a favorRENASQUITO son los derivados de
LOS LOTES , ademas de las obligaciones derivadak@8
CONTRATOS .

e) Que los derechos y capacidad legaKE&NNECOTT , respecto ¢
LOS LOTES, no han sido limitados, ni revocados, y que no se
encuentra en conocimiento de oposicion alguna dkjaier tercero,
respecto de la firma de este docume

f) Que desea cedeENASQUITO , en las términos de este
instrumentoLOS DERECHOS.

Il. Declara el representante PENASQUITO :

a) Que su representada es una sociedad minera, maexaarstituida
conforme a las Leyes de los Estados Unidos Mex&aran solicitud
de inscripcion aREGISTRO bajo el Niumero 610/32177, de fecha
13 de Octubre de 1999, con Registro Federal deabtes MPE —
990122 —137 y que, de acuerdo con su objeto social, egticitade
para dedicarse a la exploracion y explotacion deasgias
concesibles, ser titular de concesiones mineraspaso para celebr
contratos que tengan por objeto adquirir dereckeasatios de dichas
concesiones y, por lo tanto, capacitada para @lelste Contrato de
Cesion de Derecho

Without prejudice of a third party who may haveteetights.

d) KENNECOTT continues declaring th8HE RIGHTS that in
this deed are assigned in favolRENASQUITO are those derived
from THE LAND in addition to the obligations derived froRE
CONTRACTS .

e) That the rights and legal capacitykEENNECOTT , with respect
to THE LAND , have not been limited, or revoked, and that fitds
aware of any opposition from any third party wiélspect to the
signing of this documen

f) That it wishes to assign RENASQUITO , according to the terms
of this instrumentTHE RIGHTS .

Il. Declares the representativePENASQUITO

a) That he represents a Mexican mining company organiz
according to the laws of Mexico, with an applicatif a record to tt
REGISTRY under number 610/32177, dated October 13, 1998, wit
the Federal Entity Register of MPE-990122-137 duad in

accordance with its corporate purpose, has thecigia engage in

the exploration and exploitation of concessionablestances, to be
the holder of mining concessions, as well as ta@eteecontracts to
acquire rights derived from such concessions, as@, result, has the
capacity to execute this Contract for AssignmerRights.
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b) Que tiene facultades suficientes para actuar erbreoyn
representacion d®RENASQUITO , obligandola en los términos de
este Contrato, facultades que a la fecha de lafiteneste documento
no le han sido revocadas o modificadas en formanalgcomo const
en la Escritura Pablica nUmero 44,340, de fechde2Enero de 1999,
otorgada ante el licenciado Jorge Robles FariasriddPublico
namero 12 de Guadalajara, Jalis

¢) QuePENASQUITO conoceLOS LOTES y LOS

CONTRATOS , y los acepta en las condiciones establecidaasen |
Declaraciones dEENNECOTT , y que desea recibiiOS
DERECHOS por parte d&KkENNECOTT , en los términos de este
instrumento, dando continuidad al cumplimientd_ @S
CONTRATOS .

En virtud de lo anterior, las partes celebran espnte Contrato
conforme a las siguiente

CLAUSULAS

PRIMERA. KENNECOTT cede ePENASQUITO , y ésta acepta
cesion, adquiriendbOS DERECHOS, ademas de todas las
obligaciones pactadas pENNECOTT enLOS CONTRATOS ,
obligandose’ENASQUITO desde ahora al total cumplimiento de
mismas.

SEGUNDA. Por la cesién deOS DERECHOS antes mencionada,
KENNECOTT , recibira como contraprestacion por parte de
PENASQUITO , siempre y cuando ésta lleve a cabo trabajos de
explotacion el OS LOTES , una regalia sobre liquidaciones netas
sobre fundicion como se define erAEXO 1 que se acompafia a
este documento, teniéndose aqui como integramemteducido,
formando parte integrante del mismo, igual al 2d%s(por ciento),
por las ventas de minerales provenientes@8 LOTES , sin incluir
subsidio alguno o devoluciones de impuestos q@Goblerno Feder:
pudiese otorgar RENASQUITO par cualquier motivo, de acuerdo
con lo estipulado en ANEXO 1 antes mencionad

Las partes estan de acuerdo en que a los pagomertese les

b) That he has sufficient authority to act in the narhand to
represenPENASQUITO , binding it to the terms of this Contract,
authority that upon the date this document is sigreve not been
revoked or modified in any form, as confirmed irbkeiDeed
number 44,340, dated January 21, 1999, signedédéferattorney,
Jorge Robles Farias, Notary Public number 12 ofd@lagara, Jalisci

c) ThatPENASQUITO is familiar withTHE LAND andTHE
CONTRACTS , and accepts them under the established condti
set forth in the Declarations BENNECOTT , and that it desires to
receiveTHE RIGHTS on behalf oKENNECOTT according to the
terms of this instrument, giving continuity to thafillment of THE
CONTRACTS .

In witness to the foregoing, the parties enter thiopresent Contract
in accordance with the followin

CLAUSES

FIRST . KENNECOTT assigns t®°ENASQUITO , and
PENASQUITO accepts the assignment, acquiritgE RIGHTS in
addition to all of the obligations agreed tokigNNECOTT in THE
CONTRACTS , andPENASQUITO covenants from this day
forward to comply completely with the san

SECOND. As a result of the assignmentTfiE RIGHTS
aforementionedKENNECOTT will receive as consideration from
PENASQUITO , if and when it carries out exploitation activitiin
THE LAND , net smelter returns royalties, as defineANNEX 1 ,
an accurate copy of which is attached to this dentpand forms an
integrated part of the same, equal to 2% (two peycef the mineral
sales originating fromfHE LAND , without including any subsidies
or reimbursements of taxes that the Federal Govenhmay grant
PENASQUITO for any reason in accordance with that stipulated i
the aforementioneANNEX 1 .

The parties agree that to the payments previouslytioned will be

agregara elVA correspondiente a tales cantidades, las cualeapodiaddedVAT corresponding to such amounts, which can be covared

ser cubiertas en su equivalente en Moneda Naciah@ho de cambi
para solventar obligaciones denominadas en monetgra
pagaderas en la Republica Mexicana que publiqBaeto de
México en el Diario Oficial de la Federacion erideha del pagc

its equivalent in pesos, at an exchange rate tie sdtligations
denominated in foreign currency payable in the MaxiRepublic
published by the Bank of Mexico in the Official Joal of the
Federation on the date of payme
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TERCERA. Las partes convienen en que, con excepcion detldgere THIRD . The parties agree that, with the exception of
deKENNECOTT a percibir las regalias antes mencionadas, a partKkENNECOTT'’s right to receive the aforementioned royalties, from
de la fecha en que ambas partes firmen y ratifigas¢® documento  the date both parties sign and ratify this docunbeffdre a notary

ante notario publico, todos los derechos y oblgaes, anteriores, public, all the past, present and future rights alliations derived
presentes y futuras, que se deriven de las ComesshMineras con  from the Mining Concessions with respecitdE LAND andTHE
respecto 40OS LOTES y deLOS CONTRATOS , serdan afavory CONTRACTS will be the rights and responsibilities of

cargo dePENASQUITO , la cual asumira y llevara a cabo, a su PENASQUITO , which will assume and carry out, at its own exge

propio costo y riesgo, todas las obligaciones refaras cohOS and at its own risk, all of the obligations relate®HE LAND and
LOTES y LOS CONTRATOS, e indemnizara y liberara a THE CONTRACTS , and will indemnify and hold harmless
KENNECOTT de cualquier responsabilidad, costo o gasto KENNECOTT from any responsibility, cost or expense related to

relacionado con las actividadesPENASQUITO enLOS LOTES. PENASQUITO’s activities onTHE LAND .

CUARTA. Las partes se reconocen mutuamente capacidad y FOURTH . The parties mutually recognize that they have the
personalidad para celebrar este Conti capacity and legal status to execute this Con

QUINTA. PENASQUITO se obliga expresamente a inscribir este FIFTH . PENASQUITO expressly agrees to record this Contract in

Contrato en eREGISTRO, para lo cualKENNECOTT se the REGISTRY , andKENNECOTT agrees to cooperate with
compromete a cooperar cBENASQUITO en todo lo que fuese PENASQUITO with all that is necessary to carry out the
necesario para que la mencionada inscripcién ge #ecabo sin aforementioned inscription without delay.

contratiempos

SEXTA. KENNECOTT se obliga a proporcionarRENASQUITO  SIXTH . KENNECOTT agrees to providlBENASQUITO with all

toda la informacion que se le solicite, asi commdir, acreditar y requested information, as well as to execute, aizdoand comply
cumplir cualquier otro requisito necesario, a finqlie este Ultima with any other necessary condition, in order tadeghe rights
ejercite los derechos que aqui se le confie herein conferrec

SEPTIMA. Mientras exista el derecho #&NNECOTT a recibirla SEVENTH . While KENNECOTT ’sright to receive net smelter

regalia sobre liquidaciones netas sobre fundicéitgula en la returns royalties as agreed to in 8#2COND Clause of this
ClausulaSSEGUNDA de este documentBENASQUITO se obligaa document exist?ENASQUITO agrees to guarantee the existence,
garantizar la existencia, legitimidad y disponiald deLOS legitimacy and availability ofHE RIGHTS , including applying for

DERECHOS, incluyendo el solicitar oportunamente la soliditie ~ an exploitation mining concession in a timely manmih respect to
concesion minera de explotacion con respe¢t®& LOTES cuyo THE LAND when they mature, and to not incur any of the caofe
vencimiento llegase a ocurrir, y a no incurrir é@mgnina de las causas nullities, cancellation, suspension or baseledtsigs referred in the
de nulidad, cancelacion, suspension e insubsistelecderechos a  applicable Articles in theAW and theREGULATIONS , from this

gue se refieren los Articulos correspondientesd&l vy el day forward, in the event the contrary occ®BENASQUITO agrees
REGLAMENTO |, de lo contrario, desde ahora, se compromete, ero repay any damages and costs as a result of myptiemce with its
Su caso, a reparar los dafios y perjuicios quecehiplimiento a obligations which may affee§ENNECOTT , nevertheless

alguna de sus obligaciones hubiese ocasion&ENNECOTT , sin  KENNECOTT , in its discretion, may assiBENASQUITO in
embargoKENNECOTT , si asi lo decide, podra coadyuvar con  defendingTHE RIGHTS , with the understanding that the fees and
PENASQUITO en la defensa deOS DERECHOS, en el additional costs generated shall be borne by tierla

entendido de que los honorarios y demas gastossjagenere seran

cubiertos por esta Ultim
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Asimismo, en caso de qRENASQUITO decida solicitar el
desistimiento o reduccioén de la superficie congesia que ampara
LOS LOTES , debera notificar KENNECOTT dicha decision, es
ultima tendra un plazo de 30 (treinta) dias naésralara dar respue:
por escrito PENASQUITO otorgando su conformidad con el
desistimiento o reduccion qRENASQUITO pretenda efectuar, o
bien, solicitando #ZENASQUITO le ceda los derechos derivados
titulo de concesién minera con respecto a algurldd2LOTES del
cual pretenda desistirse, o la superficie de algi@aS LOTES
que pretenda abandonar, previa divisién que se deldate de que ¢
trate.

Transcurrido el plaza de 30 (treinta) dias natsralgue se refiere el
parrafo anterior, si que medie contestaciOiKH&INECOTT
PENASQUITO podra libremente desistirse o reducir la superfieie
gue se trate, sin responsabilidad kKENNECOTT .

OCTAVA. PENASQUTIO se obliga a cumplir con la ejecucién y
con la comprobacién de obras o trabajos de exploracdemas
obligaciones a que se refieren los Articulos 27,288y demas
aplicables de I&aEY y delREGLAMENTO , incluyendo el pago de
los derechos sobre mineria que establet&Ia con respecto BOS
LOTES .

NOVENA. Todos los avisos y notificaciones que las partésude
darse conforme al presente Contrato, se haran ntediarta
certificada, con acuse de recibo, enviada a lagesiges domicilios:

“KENNECOTT”
MINERA KENNECOTT, S.A. DE C.V
NEBULOSA 3019
COL. JARDINES DEL BOSQUE
GUADALAJARA, JALISCO 4452(
TEL. (3) 647-9131
FAX (3) 12:-0367

Atencion Sr. Dave F. Simps

“PENASQUITO”

MINERA PENASQUITO, S.A. DE C.V
RICARDO FLORES MAGON NO. 67, INT. - G
COL. CENTRO
H. DEL PARRAL, CHIHUAHUA 3380C
TEL. Y FAX (152) :-22-93

Atencidon Sr. Thomas Charles Pat

Cualquier cambio de domicilio o de representamaatificara por
escrito, entregado en forma fehacie

Similarly, in the event thaENASQUITO decides to solicit the
abandonment or to reduce the area protected bgotheessions in
THE LAND , it shall notifyKENNECOTT of its decision, and
KENNECOTT shall have 30 (thirty) days to submit a written
response tPENASQUITO granting its approval of abandonment or
reduction thaPENASQUITO seeks to effect, or requesting that
PENASQUITO assign ttkENNECOTT the rights derived from the
mining concession deeds with respect to anyHE LAND which it
intends to abandon or the ared&fE LAND that it intends to
abandon, prior to dividing the affected Iproperty.

After the passage of 30 (thirty) days as mentianetie previous
paragraph, iKENNECOTT intervenes and contests,
PENASQUITO may freely abandon or reduce the area in question
without responsibility tKENNECOTT .

EIGHTH . PENASQUITO agrees to comply with the execution and
with verification of exploration works or projecsd the rest of the
obligations referred to in Articles 27, 28, 29 aiso applicable to th
LAW andREGULATIONS , including the payment of mining rigt
established in thERL with respect tarHE LAND .

NINTH . All notices and demands the parties are requoegive
each other in accordance with the present Contididbe done
pursuant to certified letter, with acknowledgmehtexeipt, sent to
the following addresse

“KENNECOTT”
MINERA KENNECOTT, S.A. DE C.V
NEBULOSA 3019
COL. JARDINES DEL BOSQUE
GUADALAJARA, JALISCO 4452(
TEL. (3) 647-9131
FAX (3) 12:-0367

Attention: Mr. Dave F. Simpsc

“PENASQUITO”

MINERA PENASQUITO, S.A. DE C.V
RICARDO FLORES MAGON NO. 67, INT. - G
COL. CENTRO
H. DEL PARRAL, CHIHUAHUA 3380C
TEL. and FAX (152) -22-93

Attention Mr. Thomas Charles Patt

Any change in address or in representative shatldbed in writing,
delivered in the manner set forth abao
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DECIMA. Todos los gastos, derechos, honorarios e impugstose
causen con motivo del otorgamiento de este Contratovienen las
partes que sean por cuentaREENASQUITO . EI ISR a cargo de
KENNECOTT , quien se obliga a expedir las facturas
correspondientes por las cantidades que llegaselarrpor concepto
de las regalias pactadas en este contrato, eériosibs de l1dIR ,
las que deberan ser presentadBEBASQUITO a mas tardar en la
fecha del pago que le corresponda. Asimismo, leegpae obligan a
dar cumplimiento con todas las obligaciones qumfonen las leyes
fiscales vigentes, en virtud de haber manifestadsus Declaracion:
estar inscritas en el Registro Federal de Contebtes y que su
actividad preponderante es la quéllR califica como Sociedades
Mercantiles. Desde ahordENNECOTT , con fundamento en la
LIR , autoriza PENASQUITO para que ésta efectie las retencic
necesarias, de conformidad con las leyes aplicalalés materia,
siempre y cuando procedan dichas retenciones alemtonde los
pagos, en cuyo caso se expediran a satisfaccitas gartes los
comprobantes correspondientes, lo anterior, daddasuConcesiont
Mineras objeto de este Contrato forma parte detlaidad
manifestada

DECIMA PRIMERA. En el supuesto de queREGISTRO ,
considerase necesario que este documento y lodegélese deriven
se contengan en escritura publiKENNECOTT , autoriza a
PENASQUITO , desde ahora, a elevarlos a escritura publicaginte
Notario Publico de su eleccion y sin necesidachdmmparecenci
deKENNECOTT.

DECIMA SEGUNDA. Cualquiera de las partes tendra el derecho,
previo consentimiento de la otra parte, el cuaderd negado sin
existir causa razonable, a ceder los derechosgblagaciones que ¢
este documento derivan a favor y a cargo de la eism el entendic
de que la cesionaria se subrogara en los dereabloiggpaciones de la
parte cedente

En caso de que la parte que deba otorgar su cangamb no
manifieste objecion en el término de 30 (treinfasdaturales
siguientes a la fecha en que se solicite su consiento, se entende
gue otorga dicho consentimien

TENTH . The parties agree that all of the expenses,gidbés and
taxes resulting from the grant of this Contract i borne by
PENASQUITO . Income taxes will be for the account of
KENNECOTT , which agrees to send its corresponding invoioes f
the amount it receives for its royalties as agtedd this contract,
according to terms of th@L , which should be presented to
PENASQUITO no later than the corresponding pay date. Similarly
the parties agree to comply with all obligationpased by current
fiscal laws, in accordance with what has been dtat¢heir
Declaration, to be recorded in the Federal Regisitfiyiaxpayers and
that their predominant activities are those whiehlTL

characterized as a Commercial Corporation. As adyo
KENNECOTT , based on th&lL, authorizeENASQUITO to
effectuate necessary withholdings according taftygicable laws,
provided that said withholding occurs at the tini@ayment, in

which case proof of the foregoing will be providedhe satisfaction
of the parties, given the object of the Mining Cesgions that form
the object of this Contract form a part of the nfestied activity.

ELEVENTH . In the event that thREGISTRY considers it
necessary that this document and those from whistderived be in
the form of public deed&«KENNECOTT authorizes
PENASQUITO , from now on, to make them part of the public
record before a notary public of choosing withau@pearance by
KENNECOTT .

TWELFTH . Anyone of the parties has the right, with thepri
consent of the other party, which consent will betwithheld withou
a reasonable basis, to assign the rights and dibligederived in this
document for the benefit and burden of the same tip®
understating that the assignment will subrogateititas and
obligations to the assignc

In the event that the party needing to grant candees not object at
the end of 30 (thirty) days following the date ihieh consent has
been requested, it will be understood that consasitbeen granted.
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El derecho dKENNECOTT a la regalia sobre liquidaciones netas

sobre fundicion continuara, ain y cuando se llewate cualesquier
modificacion a cualquiera de las concesiones minewsa respecto a
LOS LOTES, incluyendo la elevacion a explotacion, reduccipne
unificaciones, prérrogas de vigencia, o extensiateesdstas. Esta
regalia sera parte d€®S LOTES y sera aplicable a cualquier
persona fisica o moral que explote y comercialioglpctos minerale
procedentes de los mismos, por lo que en el cagoele
PENASQUITO llegase a ceder sus derechos y obligaciones a un
tercero, este debera reconocer par escrito estetdede

KENNECOTT , ademas de obligarse a inscribir de inmediatoadich

documento en ¢(REGISTRO , a su propio costt

DECIMA TERCERA. Este Contrato sera obligatorio para las pa
sus herederos, causahabientes o cesionarios. itas,p® obstante
naturaleza de este instrumento, declaran expresamee en las
convenciones objeto del mismo no existe lesionig,@ando la
hubiese, renuncian expresamente al derecho delpeditidad
relativa de que tratan los Articulos 2228 y 2230Gialigo Civil para
el Distrito Federal en Materia Comun y para todBépublica en
Materia Federal y los Articulos correlativos de @&digos Civiles de
todas las Entidades de los Estados Unidos Mexici

DECIMA CUARTA. Este Contrato se celebra en los términos del
Articulo 78 del Cédigo de Comercio, es de natuateercantil, por
lo que, para lo que no esté expresamente aquiduegtpara la
interpretacién y cumplimiento del mismo, se apbcalaLEY |, el
REGLAMENTO vy la Legislacién Mercantil, asi como,
supletoriamente, el Cédigo Civil para el Distritederal en Materia
Comun y para toda la Republica en Materia Fedpeah lo no
previsto en las dos primeras legislaciones. Pamslalucion de
cualquier controversia que surgiese con motivostie @ocumento, |
partes se someten expresamente a la jurisdiccifosdgbunales
competentes en la Ciudad de Guadalajara, Jalissonciando a
cualquier jurisdiccion que pudiese correspondertesazon de sus
actuales o futuros domicilios o por cualquier arasa

Este documento es hecho en cuatro ejemplares,aracpda una de
las partes, otro para fines notariales y el restpata eREGISTRO
y, una vez leido, lo ratifican en todo sus térmipdisman, parz
debida constancia, el 29 de OCTUBRE de 1999, edddide
Guadalajara, Jalisc

“KENNECOTT” “PENASQUITO”

KENNECOTT's right to net smelter returns royalties shall comgin
despite any modification in the mining concessiaith respect to
THE LAND , including the elevation to exploitation, reduatso and
unifications, delays to maturity or extensions.sTiuyalty shall be
part of THE LAND and will apply to any legal entity that exploits
and commercializes mineral products deriving frowa $ame, which
in the event thaPENASQUITO assigns its obligations to a third
party, it will notify KENNECOTT in addition to agreeing to
immediately inscribe such a document in REEGISTRY , while
bearing the cost.

THIRTEENTH . This Contract is binding on the parties, theirie
successors or assignees. The parties, despitatine rof this
instrument, expressly declare that no injury exstsl if there was
injury, they expressly renounce the right to seeddative nullity of
contracts pursuant to Articles 2228 and 2239 ofahé Code for the
Federal District in Common Material and for all tRepublic in
Federal Material and the corresponding Articlethim Civil Codes of
all the Entities of Mexico.

FOURTEENTH . This contract is entered into according to theng
of Article 78 of the Commercial Code, is of a cormai@ nature, suc
that what is not expressly agreed to and for therjmetation and
compliance of the same, th&W , theREGULATIONS and
Commercial Legislation, supplements the Civil Céalethe Federal
District in Common Matters for all of the RepubilicFederal Matter
to what is not foreseen in the first two legislasurTo resolve any
controversy arising between the parties as a resthis document,
the parties expressly submit themselves to thedigtion of the
competent tribunals in the City of Guadalajaraisd¢aland waive any
other jurisdiction that might entertain a causadfon despite the
parties’ actual or future locations or any othersza

Four copies were made of this document, one fdn pacty, another
for notary purposes, and the remainder forRE&SISTRY , and onc
read and ratified in accordance with all its teand signed, for due
verification, the 29th of OCTOBER of 1999, in thayf
Guadalajara, Jalisc

“KENNECOTT " “PENASQUITO”

MINERA KENNECOTT, S.A.
DE C.V.

Dave F. Simpso
Representante leg

DE C.V.

Representante leg

MINERA PENASQUITO, S.A. MINERA KENNECOTT, S.A. DE MINERA PENASQUITO, S.A.
C.v.

Lic. José Maria Gallardo Tama Dave F. Simpso
Legal Representativ

DE C.V.
Lic. José Maria Gallardo Tama
Legal Representaity
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ANEXO 1

De conformidad con el Contrato de Cesion de Dereehque
pertenece este documento, celebrado entre MINERKNECOTT,
S.A. DE C.V. (En lo sucesivoTITULAR DE LA REGALIA ")y
MINERA PENASQUITO, S.A. DE C.V. (En lo sucesivdADJEUDOR
DE LA REGALIA "), sobre las concesiones mineras que se
mencionan en el inciso c) de las declaraciones WNERA
KENNECOTT, S.A. DE C.V. en dicho Contrato, des@itamoLOS
LOTES , esta Ultima tiene derecho a una regalia equita? %
(dos por ciento), conformidad con la ClausslEBEGUNDA del citado
Cantrato, sabre las liquidaciones netas sobre difrd{En lo sucesi\
“ RSLNSF”) pagadera por MINERA PENASQUITO, S.A. DE C
1. RSLNSF
1.1Es la valuntad de las partes quBLNSF establecida mas
adelante en este documento, se calculara en baaal
determinado dentro de las colindancias @S LOTES de
los productos minerales producidos y vendidos, o
considerados como vendidos, calculado en baseprdoms
publicados para plata, oro y cobre refinados oa=e Ia los
ingresos reales de ventas por otros productos al@sgrcomo
se define a continuacion. EITULAR DE LA REGALIA
reconoce que puede ser necesario 0 apropiadocdgaQ
tratar o mejorar productos minerales producidoararple
LOS LOTES antes de que sean vendidos o se consideren
como vendidos, y que para determinar el valor dea$
productos dentro de las colindanciad @S LOTES , todos
los costos realizados o que se consideren reaizaotoel
DEUDOR DE LA REGALIA después de que los productos
minerales abandondr©S LOTES seran deducidos de los
ingresos recibidos, o que se consideren habersaioidos
por el DEUDOR DE LA REGALIA . La obligacién de pag

la RSLNSF se acumulara tomando en base la praduccion de

metales refinados en favor de la cuentaOfeUDOR DE LA
REGALIA que satisfagan los requisitos de los precios
especificos publicados, o la venta mas proxima el@les no
refinados, minerales comerciales, concentradosgnalies u
otros productos minerales, como se define mas ratée

1.2 El DEUDOR DE LA REGALIA debera page

ANNEX 1

This document is part of the Contract for Assignh@rRights
entered into between MINERA KENNECOTT, S.A. DE C(¥hown
as theROYALTY HOLDER ) and MINERA PENASQUITO, S.A.
DE C.V. (known as thROYALTY PAYOR ), over mining
concessions mentioned in paragraph c) in the Detgbaus of
MINERA KENNCOTT, S.A. DE C.V. in the aforementioned
Contract, in which KENNECOTT, S.A. DE C.V. hasghtito a
royalty equivalent to 2% (two percent), in accorciawith the
SECOND Clause of the aforementioned Contract over smedterns
(the “NET SMELTER RETURN ROYALTY ") in THE LAND ,
paid by MINERA PENASQUITO, S.A. DE C.\
1 NET SMELTER RETURN ROYALTY
1.1.1t is the intention of th&OYALTY PAYOR and the
ROYALTY HOLDER that theNET SMELTER RETURN
ROYALTY hereinafter provided be based upon the value at
the boundary oTHE LAND of the mineral products
produced and sold or deemed sold, determined eyenete tc
published prices for refined silver, gold and capprethe
actual proceeds of sales for other mineral produaditsis
hereinafter providedThe ROYALTY HOLDER
acknowledges it may be necessary or approprigteoitess,
treat or upgrade mineral products ®fiE LAND before the)
are sold or deemed sold; and that to determingahge of
such mineral products within the boundarie§6E LAND
all costs incurred or deemed incurred by R@YALTY
PAYOR after the mineral products leave fhdE LAND
shall be deducted from the proceeds received ondddo be
received by th&@OYALTY PAYOR. The obligation to pay
theNET SMELTER RETURN ROYALTY shall accrue
upon the outturn of refined metals meeting the ireguents o
the specified published price to tROYALTY PAYOR s
account or the sooner sale of unrefined metalg,dor
concentrates, ores or other mineral products, asriadter
provided.

1.2.TheROYALTY PAYOR shall pay to tht
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al TITULAR DE LA REGALIA , unaRSLNSF equivalente
al 2 % (dos par ciento), de conformidad con la Sliau
SEGUNDA del Cantrato al que se anexa el presente
documento, del Valor Neto de todos los mineraletatas y
materiales extraidos y obtenidos dentro del peromdLOS
LOTES que sean vendidos, a que se consideren como
vendidos, por o para DEUDOR DE LA REGALIA .

1.3 Para efectos del presente Anexo, se entenderagbor Neto,
el Valor Bruto de dichos minerales metdlicos, nafes,
metales a materiales, deduciendo todos los casiogos y
gastos pagados o incurridos pobD&EUDOR DE LA

REGALIA con respecto a dichos productos pagados o que se

consideren incurridos por BEUDOR DE LA REGALIA |,
después de que dichos productos abandb@hLOTES ,
incluyendo los siguientes, descritos en forma eiatine mas
no limitativa:

1.3.1 Cargos por tratamiento en at proceso de fundigion
refinacion (Incluyenda los costos por el manejo,
procesamiento, intereses y cuotas provisionales de
liquidacién, muestreos, ensayes y gastos de
representacion asi como castigos y cualesquieaa otr
deducciones atribuibles a su procesamie!

1.3.2 Costos reales de transportacion (Incluyendo fletes
seguro, vigilancia, impuestos por operacion, manejo

almacenaje, retrasos y gastos subsecuentes que sean

incurridos par razon de o en el transcurso de dicha
transportacion) de minerales comerciales, concgosre
otros productos, desde LOS LOTES al lugar de
tratamiento y, posteriormente, al lugar de ve

1.3.3 Costos reales de venta y correduria relacionadio$os
minerales comerciales crudos y otros mineraleslpara
cuales se debe calcularR&LNSF en base a los
ingresos recibidos por @ TULAR DE LA

REGALIA , como se establece en los subincisos 1.4.4 y

1.4.5 siguientes y, una cantidad fija por los c®sto
razanables de ventas y costos por correduria piadese
refinados objeto de RSLNSF, establecidos en los
subincisos 1.4.1, 1.4.2 y 1.4.3 siguiente
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ROYALTY HOLDER aNET SMELTER RETURN
ROYALTY equal to 2% (two percent), in accordance with
the SECOND Clause of the Contract, of which this anex is
part, of the Net Value of all ores, minerals, metaid
materials mined and removed frarilE LAND and sold or
deemed to have been sold by or forR@YALTY PAYOR .

1.3.As used herein, “Net Value” means the Gross Vafusioh

ores, minerals, metals or materials, less all cabi@rges and
expenses paid or incurred by tROYALTY PAYOR with
respect to such products paid or deemed incurratdeoy
ROYALTY PAYOR after such products lea¥éHE LAND
including, but not limited to:

1.3.1. Charges for treatment in the smelting and refining
process (including handling, processing, interast a
provisional settlement fees, sampling, assaying and
representation costs, penalties and other process
deductions);

1.3.2. Actual costs of transportation (including freight,
insurance, security, transaction taxes, handliog, p
demurrage, delay and forwarding expenses incuryed b
reason of or in the course of such transportatibryes,
minerals, concentrates or other products fiidti
LAND to the place of treatment and then to the place of
sale;

1.3.3. Actual sales and brokerage costs on raw commercial
ores and other minerals for which tNET SMELTER
RETURN ROYALTY is based on proceeds receivec
theROYALTY HOLDER as hereinafter provided in
subsections 1.4.4 and 1.4.5 below, and a fixedvalhae
for reasonable sales and brokerage costs for tefine
metals subject to thRdET SMELTER RETURN
ROYALTY hereinafter provided in subsections 1.4.1,
1.4.2 and 1.4.3 below; a1




1.3.4 Impuestos sobre produccion de minerales, ventg, us

finiquito e impuestos ad valorem, asi como cualquie
otro impuesto calculado en base a la produccion de

1.3.4. Taxes over the production of minerals, their sase,

severance, and ad valorem taxes, and any othentax
measured by mineral production.

minerales
1.4 Para efectos de lo sefialado en este Anexo, elntéraalor 1.4.“Gross Value” shall have the following meaningghis
Bruto” tendra los siguientes significados parasigsientes Annex for the following categories of metals, mailsr
categorias de metales, productos minerales y méwera products and minerals produced and sold byRO¥ALTY
producidos y vendidos por DEUDOR DE LA REGALIA : PAYOR :

1.4.1 Si elDEUDOR DE LA REGALIA logra producir oro 1.4.1. If the ROYALTY PAYOR causes refined gold

refinado (Cumpliendo las especificaciones de ladoon
Bullion Market Association) extraido de minerales
procedentes deOS LOTES , para efectos de
determinar l&RSLNSF, el oro refinado sera consider:
como vendido al Precio Promedio Mensual del Ora par
el mes en que se hubiera producido, y el Valor@set
determinard multiplicando la Produccion de Oro dtea
el mes calendario de que se trate, por el Precmé&dio
Mensual del Oro. Para los efectos del presente @&\
entiende por “Produccion de Oro”, la cantidad dz or
refinado producido en favor de la cuenta@EUDOR
DE LA REGALIA por una fundicion o refineria
independiente, a partir del oro producido €5

LOTES durante el mes calendario de que se trate, y
en base a las liquidaciones provisionales o finales
Asimismo, se entendera por “Precio Premedio Mensual
del Oro”, el promedio del precio establecido por la
London Bullion Market Association P.M. Gold Fix,
calculado al dividir la suma de dichos precios regans
para el mes calendario de que se trate, entrevamids
dias para los que dichos precios fueron report:

1.4.2 Si elDEUDOR DE LA REGALIA logra producir plata

refinada (Cumpliendo las especificaciones pardatap
refinada objeta del Precio de la Plata de Nuev& Yor
publicado por Handy & Harman) extraida a partir de
minerales procedentes H®S LOTES , para efectos de
determinar l&RSLNSF, la plate refinada se considerara
como
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(meeting the specifications of the London Bullion
Market Association) to be produced from ores mined
from THE LAND , for purposes of determining the
NET SMELTER RETURN ROYALTY the refined
gold shall be deemed to have been sold at the Month
Average Gold Price for the month in which it was
produced, and the Gross Value shall be determiged b
multiplying Gold Production during the calendar rtton
by Monthly Average Gold Price. As used herein, ‘&ol
Production” shall mean the quantity of refined gold
outturned to th&ROYALTY PAYOR’s pool account b
an independent third-party refinery for gold proeldic
from THE LAND during the calendar month on either a
provisional or final settlement basis. As used imgre
“Monthly Average Gold Price” shall mean the average
London Bullion Market Association P.M. Gold Fix,
calculated by dividing the sum of all such pricepartec
for the month by the number of days for which such
prices were reported.

1.4.2. If the ROYALTY PAYOR causes refined silver

(meeting the specifications for refined silver sdbjto
the New York Silver Price published by Handy &
Harman) to be produced from ore mined froHE
LAND , for purposes of determining thNET
SMELTER RETURN ROYALTY the refined silver
shall be deemed to have been sold at the Monthly
Average Silve




vendida al Precio Promedio Mensual de la Plata @lara
mes en que fue producida, y el Valor Bruto se
determinara multiplicando la Produccién de Plata
durante el mes calendario por el Precio Promedio
Mensual de la Plata. Como “Produccion de Plata” se
entiende la cantidad de plata refinada producid@awor
de la cuenta ddDEUDOR DE LA REGALIA por una
fundicion a refineria independiente, a partir dpléta
producida el OS LOTES durante el mes calendario de
gue se trate, ya sea en una base a las liquidacione
provisionales o finales. Como “Precio Promedio
Mensual de la Plata” se entiende el promedio dsdipr
establecido por el New York Silver Price publicado
diariamente por Handy & Herman, calculado al divid
suma de dichos precios reportados para el mes
calendario de que se trate, entre el nUmero depdfas
los que dichos precios fueron reportac

1.4.3 Si eIDEUDOR DE LA REGALIA logra producir cobr

refinado (Cumpliendo las especificaciones parabie
refinado sujeto al Precio Comex de Nueva York) que
vaya a ser producido a partir de los mineralesa&ds
deLOS LOTES , para los efectos de determinar la
RSLNSF, el cobre refinado se considerara vendido al
Precio Promedio Mensual del Cobre para el mes en qu
hubiera sido producido, y el Valor Bruto se deteana
multiplicando la Produccién de Cobre durante el mes
calendario de que se trate, por el Precio Promedio
Mensual del Cobre. Por “Produccion de Cobre” se
entiende la cantidad de cobre refinado producido en
favor de la cuenta dBEUDOR DE LA REGALIA por
una fundicién de cobre independiente, producidartrp
del cobre producido drOS LOTES , durante el mes
calendario de que se trate, ya sea en base adaoitks
provisionales o finales. Para efectos del presénéxo
se entiende por “Precio Promedio Mensual del Colate”
promedio del precio establecido por el New York
Commodities Exchange Price para cobre de alta ley,
publicado diariamente en el Wall Street Journal,
calculado al dividir la suma de dichos precios reguns
para el mes calendario de que se trate, entrena¢im
de dias para los que dichos precios fueron repust
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Price for the month in which it was produced, amel t
Gross Value shall be determined by multiplying &ilv
Production during the calendar month by the Monthly
Average Silver Price. As used herein, Silver Préidac
shall mean the quantity of refined silver outturtedhe
ROYALTY PAYOR'’s pool account by an independent
third-party refinery for silver produced fromHE

LAND during the calendar month on either a provisi
or final settlement basis. As used herein, “Monthly
Average Silver Price” shall mean the average NewkYo
Silver Price as published daily by Handy & Harman,
calculated by dividing the sum of all such pricepartec
for the calendar month by the number of days foictvh
such prices were reported.

1.4.3. If the ROYALTY PAYOR causes refined copper

(meeting the specifications for refined copper sabjo
the New York Comex Price) to be produced from ore
mined fromTHE LAND , for the purposes of
determining the&NET SMELTER RETURN

ROYALTY the refined copper shall be deemed to have
been sold at the Monthly Average Copper PriceHier t
month in which it was produced, and the Gross Value
shall be determined by multiplying Copper Produttio
during the calendar month by the Monthly Average
Copper Price. As used herein Copper Production shal
mean the quantity of refined copper outturned & th
ROYALTY PAYOR'’s pool account by an independent
third party smelter for copper produced fratdE

LAND during the calendar month on either a provisi
or final settlement basis. As used herein, Monthly
Average Copper Price shall mean the average New Yor
Commodities Exchange Price for high grade copper as
published daily in the Wall Street Journal, caltedbby
dividing the sum of all such prices reported far th
calendar month by the number of days for which such
prices were reported.




1.4.4 Si elDEUDOR DE LA REGALIA logra producir

metales refinados o procesados diferentes del ptatg

refinados a partir de minerales extraido$ &S

LOTES, el Valor Bruto deberé ser igual a la cantida

ingresos efectivamente recibidos poD&UDOR DE

LA REGALIA durante el mes calendario de la venta de

dichos metales refinados o procesa

1.4.5 En caso de que BIEUDOR DE LA REGALIA logre

vender minerales no procesados, doré o concentrados

producidos de minerales extraidosL.@@S LOTES

entonces el Valor Bruto debera ser igual a la dadtde

ingresos recibidos por BEUDOR DE LA REGALIA

durante el mes calendario de la venta de dichos

minerales metalicos en bruto, doré, concentrados o

metales refinado:

1.4.6 Cuando la produccion de metales refinados seduefds
por una refineria o fundicién independiente en f@rm

provisional, el Valor Bruto se basara en la liquida
provisional, pero debera ajustarse en las liquates

subsecuentes para completar el total del minefiabdn

que dicha refineria o fundicién establezca en la
liquidacion final.

1.4.7 EI DEUDOR DE LA REGALIA acepta que el

prepdsito de los subincisos 1.4.1, 1.4.2 y 1.4t8rares

es el de pagar @ITULAR DE LA REGALIA la

RSLNSF, teniendo como base el valor del oro, plata 'y

cobre refinados producidos a partir de minerales

extraidos d&OS LOTES , de acuerdo con el London
Bullion Market Association P.M. Gold Fix para eboel
New York Silver Price publicado por Handy & Harman
para la plata y el New York Commodities Exchange
Price para cobre de alta ley publicado por Comea pk

cobre, sin importar el precio o ingresos recibidos
efectivamente por & EUDOR DE LA REGALIA ,

por o en relacion a dichos metales, o la formawensg

lleve a cabo la venta del metal
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1.4.4.

1.45.

1.4.6.

1.4.7.

If the ROYALTY PAYOR causes refined or processed
metals other than refined gold and refined silodpe
produced from ores mined frofHE LAND , the Gros:
Value shall be equal to the amount of the proceeds
actually received by thROYALTY PAYOR during the
calendar month from the sale of such refined or
processed metal

In the event that thROYALTY PAYOR sells raw

ores, or dore or concentrates produced from oresani
from THE LAND , then the Gross Value shall be equal
to the amount of the proceeds actually receivethby
ROYALTY PAYOR during the calendar month from
the sale of such raw ore, dore, concentrates mref
metal.

Where outturn of refined metals is made by an
independent third party refinery on a provisionasis,
the Gross Value shall be based upon the amounicdf s
provisional settlement, but shall be adjusted in
subsequent statements to account for the amount of
refined metal established by final settlement bghsu
refinery.

TheROYALTY HOLDER acknowledges that the
purpose of subsections 1.4.1, 1.4.2 and 1.4.3 aisdve
pay theROYALTY HOLDER aNET SMELTER
RETURN ROYALTY on the basis of value of the
refined gold, silver and copper produced from natger
mined fromTHE LAND as established by the London
Bullion Market Association P.M. Gold Fix for golthe
New York Silver Price as published by Handy &
Harman for silver and the New York High Grade Caj
Price as published by Comex, regardless of thes mnic
proceeds actually received by tROYALTY PAYOR
for or in connection with such metal or the mariner
which a sale of refined metal to a third party da by
theROYALTY PAYOR . TheROYALTY HOLDER
further




refinado, por parte d@EUDOR DE LA REGALIA a
un tercero. ETITULAR DE LA REGALIA acepta qu
el DEUDOR DE LA REGALIA tendréa el derecho a
comercializar y vender, o abstenerse de vender oro,
plata, cobre refinados y otros metales producidoertr
deLOS LOTES, en cualquiera manera que elija, y que
el DEUDOR DE LA REGALIA tendra el derecho de
comprometerse en ventas anticipadas, a futuro u
opciones de comercializacién, y otras medidas
compensatorias o protectoras de precios, y acuerdos
especulativos (En lo sucesivo “Actividades de
Comercio”) que pueden implicar la posible entrega d
oro, plata, cobre y otros metales producidos arpbet
LOS LOTES . EI TITULAR DE LA REGALIA
especificamente reconoce y acepta que no estara
facultado para participar en los ingresos ni estara
obligado a compartir cualesquier pérdida generada p
las practicas de mercado o de ventas llevadascapzab
el DEUDOR DE LA REGALIA o por sus Actividades
de Comercio

1.4.8 EI DEUDOR DE LA REGALIA podra, pero no estara

obligado, a beneficiar, tratar, clasificar, concant
refinar, fundir o, de cualquier otra manera, pracegs
mejorar la calidad de los minerales, concentraglos,
otros productos minerales comerciales producidos de
minerales extraides a partir d®S LOTES , con
anterioridad a su venta, transferencia o cesiam a u
comprador, usuario o consumidor diferente del
DEUDOR DE LA REGALIA . EIDEUDOR DE LA
REGALIA no sera responsable por las pérdidas de
valores minerales en dichos procesos realizados baj
practicas aceptable

1.4.9 EI DEUDOR DE LA REGALIA tendra el derecho a

vender @AFILIADOS minerales procedentes H®S
LOTES en forma de minerales no procesados, doré o
concentrados, en el entendido de que dichas vsatas
consideraran, Unicamente para efectos de caldular e
Valor Nete, como vendidas a precios y en térmimos n
menos favorables que aquellos que se presentarian e
circunstancias similares con un tercero no afilii
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1.4.8.

1.4.9.

acknowledges that tHROYALTY PAYOR shall have
the right to market and sell or refrain from sajlirefinec
gold, silver, copper and other metals produced from
THE LAND in any manner it may elect, and that the
ROYALTY PAYOR shall have the right to engage in
forward sales, future trading or commodity options
trading, and other price hedging, price protectang
speculative arrangements (“Trading Activities”) aini
may involve the possible delivery of gold, silveopper
or other metals produced froMHE LAND . The
ROYALTY HOLDER specifically acknowledges and
agrees that thROYALTY HOLDER shall not be
entitled to participate in the proceeds or be altég to
share in any losses generated byRIGEYALTY
PAYOR'’s actual marketing or sales practices or by its
Trading Activities.

TheROYALTY PAYOR may, but is not obligated to,
beneficiate, mill, sort, concentrate, refine, smait
otherwise process and upgrade the ores, concegjtrate
and other mineral products produced from ores mined
from THE LAND prior to sale, transfer, or conveyance
to a purchaser, user or consumer other than the
ROYALTY PAYOR . TheROYALTY PAYOR shall
not be liable for mineral values lost in such pssieg
under sound practices.

TheROYALTY PAYOR shall be permitted to sell
minerals fromTHE LAND in the form of raw ore, dore,
or concentrates to an affiliated party, provideat tuch
sales shall be considered, solely for the purpbse o
computing Net Value, to have been sold at pricelscan
terms no less favorable than those which would be
extended to an unaffiliated third party under samil
circumstances




1.4.10 Todos los minerales para los cuales se deba fmgar

RSLNSF deberan ser pesados o medidos por volumen y

analizados en concordancia con las préacticas dilepta
en la industria minero-metallrgica. Después deadich
mediciones, eDEUDOR DE LA REGALIA podra
mezclar o combinar dichos minerales, materiales o
productos con minerales, materiales o productaxrds
propiedades

1.4.11 Los pagos relacianados corR8LNSF tendran
vencimiento y seran liquidados en pagos trimesrale
mas tardar el dltimo dia natural del mes siguiéete
cada trimestre que se trate. Estos pagos deberan
acampanfarse de los comprobantes que demuestren a
detalle y claramente la cantidad y calidad de letafas
refinados, doré, concentrados, u otros productos
minerales producidos y vendidos, o consideradoscom
vendidos, por e@DEUDOR DE LA REGALIA |, por el
trimestre precedente; el precio promedio mensual
determinado en la forma anteriormente establecda p
los metales refinados por los que se debe pagar la
RSLNSF; los ingresos de ventas de otros productos
minerales por los que se deba dicha regalia; cgstos
otros deducciones; y demas informacion pertineoite ¢
el detalle suficiente para explicar la manera engpi
calcul6 el pago de IRSLNSF.

Dichos reportes trimestrales deberan también eramteer
cantidad y calidad de cualquier doré de oro, platgtodo de
cobre que haya sido retenido en inventario porceas0
(Sesenta) dias naturales. TETULAR DE LA REGALIA tendré
15 (Quince) dias naturales después de la recefeiéada repor
trimestral para: (i) solicitar que el doré se cdag vendido en
ese decimoquinto dia natural, como se establet@sesubincisos
1.4.1y 1.4.2 anteriores, en en base al peso gdleylados en la
mina para dicho doré, y utilizando un cargo prevsir todas las
deducciones que se especifican en los subincitos 1.3
anteriores, los cuales deberan basarse en losscar@®recientes
hechos aDEUDOR DE LA REGALIA por dichos servicios por
un tercero no afiliado, o (ii) elegir esperar hadtmomento en
que el oro o la plata refinada de dicho doré admatie cobre sea
efectivamente entregadoREUDOR DE LA REGALIA , o
dicho doré sea vendido por el
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1.4.10. All minerals for which &NET SMELTER RETURN
ROYALTY is payable shall be weighed or measured,
sampled and analyzed in accordance with sound minin
and metallurgical practices. After such measurepniba
ROYALTY PAYOR may mix or commingle such
minerals, materials or products with ores, matedal
products from otheFHE LAND .

1.4.11. NET SMELTER RETURN ROYALTIES shall
become due and payable quarterly on the last degd
month following the last day of the calendar quairte
which the same accrueNET SMELTER RETURN
ROYALTY payments shall be accompanied by a
statement showing in reasonable detail the questiic
grades of the refined metals, dore, concentratesther
mineral products produced and sold or deemed sold b
theROYALTY PAYOR in the preceding calendar
quarter; the average monthly price determined esitne
provided for refined metals on which tNET
SMELTER RETURN ROYALTY is due; the procee(
of sale for other mineral products on which theattyis
due; costs, and other deductions; and other pettine
information in sufficient detail to explain the calation
of theNET SMELTER RETURN ROYALTY
payment.

Such quarterly statements shall also list the dtyaaubd quality o
any gold and silver dore, or copper cathode whihlheen
retained as inventory for more than sixty (60) dayse

ROYALTY HOLDER shall have fifteen (15) days after receipt
of the statement to either (1) request that the téerdeemed sold
as provided in subsections 1.4.1 and 1.4.2 abowé ssch
fifteenth day utilizing the mine weights and assfayssuch dore
and utilizing a deemed charge for all deductiorec#jed in
subsections 1.1 and 1.3 above which shall be hasewl the mos
recent charges to tiROYALTY PAYOR for such services by
an unaffiliated third party, or (2) elect to waittil the time that
refined gold or silver from such dore or coppehode is actuall
outturned to th&ROYALTY PAYOR or such dore is sooner sold
by theROYALTY PAYOR . The failure of thd(ROYALTY
HOLDER to respond within such time shall be deemed torbe a
election under (2) above. No royalty shall be duth wespect to
stockpiles of ores ¢




DEUDOR DE LA REGALIA . El incumplimiento por parte del concentrates unless and until such ores or coratestare
TITULAR DE LA REGALIA para responder dentro de dicho actually sold.

plazo se considerara como una eleccion en losiésmel inciso

(i) anterior. No se deber& ninguna regalia copee® a los

inventarios de minerales o concentrados a menastalgque

dichos mineralos o concentrados sean efectivanvenigidos.

Todas los pagos relacionados coRBLNSF se consideraran finales All NET SMELTER RETURN ROYALTY payments shall be
y en pleno cumplimiento de todas las obligaciore®DEUDOR DE  considered final and in full satisfaction of allligiations of the
LA REGALIA con respecto a las mismas, a menos qi¢l&JLAR  ROYALTY PAYOR with respect thereto, unless tROYALTY

DE LA REGALIA proporcione aDEUDOR DE LA REGALIA HOLDER gives theROYALTY PAYOR written notice describing
una notificacion por escrito describiendo y esteibledo una objeci¢  and setting forth a specific objection to the chdtian thereof within
especifica a los célculos de las mismas dentrogl&20 (Ciento one hundred twenty (120) days after receipt byREEALTY
veinte) dias naturales después de quéT®ULAR DE LA HOLDER of the quarterly statement herein provided fothé

REGALIA hubiesen recibido el reporte trimestral antes nmradlo. ROYALTY HOLDER objects to a particular quarterly statement as
Si el TITULAR DE LA REGALIA objeta un reporte trimestrel en herein provided, thROYALTY HOLDER shall, for a period of
particular, de acuerde a lo establecido anteriotenefhTITULAR thirty (30) days after thROYALTY PAYOR’s receipt of notice of
DE LA REGALIA , por un periodo de 30 (Treinta) dias naturales such objection, have the right, upon reasonable@and at a
después de la recepcién de la notificacion poeptDEUDOR DE reasonable time, to have tROYALTY PAYOR’s accounts and

LA REGALIA de dicha objecion, tendra el derecho en y duramte urecords relating to the calculation of the SituatRoyalty in question

tiempo razonable, para tener acceso a los libloBHEDOR DE audited by a certified public accountant acceptabtbeROYALTY
LA REGALIA ,y alos registros relacionados con el célculo del HOLDER and to theROYALTY PAYOR . If such audit determines
reporte de la regalia en cuestion, y auditar méelian contador that there has been a deficiency or an excesgipdfiment made to

publico titulado aprobado por ETULAR DE LA REGALIA ypor theROYALTY HOLDER such deficiency or excess shall be
el DEUDOR DE LA REGALIA . Si en dicha auditoria se determinaresolved by adjusting the next quartedgT SMELTER RETURN
gue ha habido una deficiencia o un excedente pagal efectuado al ROYALTY payment due hereunder. TROYALTY HOLDER
TITULAR DE LA REGALIA |, dicha deficiencia o excedente del shall pay all costs of such audit unless a defijiesf 5% (five

compensarse ajustando el pago correspondientesigu@nte percent) or more of the amount due is determinexkigt. The
trimestre en que haya que pagarse¥ NSF, conforme a los ROYALTY PAYOR shall pay the costs of such audit if a deficiency
términos establecidos en el presente Anexd@IBULAR DE LA of five percent or more of the amount due is detesahto exist. All
REGALIA pagara los gastos incurridos por dicha auditoriaeaos  books and records used by ROYALTY PAYOR to calculate

que se determine una deficiencia del 5% (Cincacato) o mas, royalties due hereunder shall Royalty payment dueunder shall be
con respecto de la cantidad que debia haber sghdpaEl kept in accordance with generally accepted accogmgiinciples.
DEUDOR DE LA REGALIA debera pagar los gastos de dicha Failure on the part of thROYALTY HOLDER to make claim on
auditoria si se determina la existencia de una@eftia del 5% theROYALTY PAYOR for adjustment in such 120 (one-hundred

(Cinco por ciento 0 mas, respecto de la cantidaddglié haber sido twenty) — day period shall establish the correcireesd preclude the
pagada. Todos las libros y registros en pleadogli@EUDOR DE filing of exceptions thereto or making of claims &xjustment
LA REGALIA para calcular las regalias pagaderas bajo losrieami thereon.

aqui establecidos, asi como los pagos de dichafiasgse

mantendran conforme a los principios de contahdligeneralmente

aceptados. La falta de objecién por parteTd€ULAR DE LA

REGALIA hacia eDEUDOR DE LA REGALIA en relacion a

ajustes en los pagos de regalias dentro del pedi@dts 120 (Ciento

veinte) dias naturales antes mencionados, darg lgartir de ese

momento, a la prescripcion del derecho para estabéxcepciones o

reclamaciones en relacion a ajustes a los pagqeelse trate
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2.1

2.2

GENERALES.

A menos de que se especifique de otra forma, tognés
en mayuscula en este Anexo tendran los mismos
significados establecidos en el Contrato al quespece

El derecho a IRSLNSF continuara, adn y cuando se
lleve a cabo cualesquier modificaciéon a cualquikrias
concesiones mineras con respect@& LOTES ,
incluyendo las elevaciones a explotacion, prorratgas
vigencia, o extensiones de éstas, pero sin indsir
terrenos abandonados por las reducciones de stiparfi
desistimientos autorizados H®S LOTES . Esta regalia
sobre estas concesiones sera parte de éstasapieadle
a cualquier persona fisica 0 moral que explote y
comercialice productos minerales procedentes @s est
concesiones.

2. GENERALITIES.

Todas las comunicaciones que se hagan las pares co

relacién a este Anexo seran conforme a lo estatuemi

la ClausuladNOVENA del Contrato al que pertenece este

documento.

“KENNECOTT” “PENASQUITO”

“KENNECOTT”

2.1 Unless specified in another form, the capitalized
terms in this Annex shall have the same meaning
established in the Contract to which it perta

2.2 The right to theNET SMELTER RETURN

ROYALTY shall continue despite any

modification to any of the mining concessions \

respect torHE LAND , including the elevation to
exploitation, reductions, and unifications, del&y
maturity or extensions. This royalty shall be pH

THE LAND and will apply to any legal entity th

exploits and commercializes mineral products

deriving from the same, which, in the event that

PENASQUITO assigns its obligations to a third

party, it will notify KENNECOTT in addition to

agreeing to immediately inscribe such a document
in theREGISTRY , while bearing the cos

All of the communications made between the
parties with respect to this Annex shall be in
accordance with the terms set forth in M&TH
Clause of the Contract to which this document
pertains.

“PENASQUITO”

MINERA KENNECOTT, S.A.

DE C.V.
Dave F.

Representante Leg

DE C.V.

Lic. José Maria Gallardo
Tamayo

Representante Leg

Simpson

MINERA PENASQUITO, S.A.

DE C.V.

Dave F. Simpson

Legal Representatiy
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MINERA KENNECOTT, S.A.

MINERA PENASQUITO, S.A.
DE C.V.

Lic. José Maria Gallardo
Tamaya

Legal Representativ




RATIFICACION

ACTA NUMERO: 1,421 MIL CUATROCIENTOS
VEINTIUNO.

LIBRO DE REGISTRO DE ACTAS Y POLIZAS.

En la ciudad de Guadalajara, Jalisca a loge#@inueve dias de
Octubre de 1999 mil novecientos noventa y nueve iauft
Licenciado Diego Robles Farias, Corredor Publicmero veinte de
la Plaza Jalisco, compareciert

1.-Por una parte el sefior DAVE FRANK SIMPSON KRIEDE
en representacion de la empresa “MINERA KENNECOTT”,
SOCIEDAD ANONIMA DE CAPITAL VARIABLE, como
Cedente

2.- Por otra parte el Licenciado JOSE MARIAIGARDO
TAMAYO en representacion de la empresa “MINERA
PENASQUITO”, SOCIEDAD ANONIMA DE CAPITAL
VARIABLE en calidad de cesionaria del contrato desion de
Derechos que antecede a la prese

l.- Que para todos los efectos legales a gya tugar, ratifican
en este acto el contenido del contrato de cesiddedechos que
antecede, por ser la fiel expresion de sus volestad

Il.- Que reconocen como suyas las firmas que lo catmarhabe
sido puestas de su pufio y letra y ser las mismasisgn en todos
Sus asuntos y negocic

1l.- Los sefioreDAVE FRANK SIMPSON KRIEDERS y
JOSE MARIA GALLARDO TAMAYO , declaran que sus
representadas tienen capacidad legal y que lasamexion que
ostentan no les ha sido revocada ni limitada, eng@ondose vigente
la fecha de la presente ratificacion.

POR LO ANTES EXPUESTO, EL CORREDOR QUE
SUSCRIBE DOY FE:

PRIMERO.- De que conozco a los comparecientes, a quienes
conceptuo con capacidad legal para contratar gatsie, pues no
encuentro en ellos manifestaciones evidentes dgauidad ni he
tenido noticias de que estén sujetos a interdi¢gi@uienes ademas
se identificaron con los documentos que me presgntie los cuale
agrego copia a mi archiv

SEGUNDO.-Que por sus generales, los comparecientes
manifestaron seDAVID FRANK SIMPSON KRIEDERS , de
nacionalidad Norteamericana, casado, profesiorasiginario de la
ciudad de Boulder, Colorado, Estados Unidos de Araén donde
nacio el dia :

CONFIRMATION

DEED NUMBER: 1,421 ONE-THOUSAND FOUR-HUNDRED
TWENTY-ONE

BOOK OF REGISTERY FOR DEEDS AND POLICIES

In the city of Guadalajara, Jalisco on 29 tiyerine days of
October of 1999, nineteen hundred and ninety-rbie&re me, the
attorney, Diego Robles Farias, Public Agent nuntventy of Plaza
Jalisco, made an appearan

1.- On behalf of one of the parties, Mr. DA¥RANK
SIMPSON KRIEDERS as representative of the compaNERA
KENNECOTT,” CORPORATION WITH VARIABLE CAPITAL,
as the Assignol

2. — On behalf of the other party, JOSE MARBALLARDO
TAMAYO as representative of the company “MINERA
PENASQUITO,” CORPORATION WITH VARIABLE CAPITAL
appearing as the assignee of the preceding Coldrassignment
of Rights

I. To give legal effect to the terms of thentract, the
representatives hereby certify that the terms ecarate and that
they voluntarily consent to the terms of the préngdontract for
Assignment of Rights

Il. — They verify that the signatures giventbgir hand and
writing are the same signatures used in all ofrthesiness and
transactions

[ll. — MistersDAVE FRANK SIMPSON KRIEDERS and
JOSE MARIA GALLARDO TAMAYO declare that their clients
have legal capacity and that their representatighese clients and
the authority bestowed upon them by these clieassrot been
revoked nor limited, and that their authority idig¢@n the date of
this ratification.

ACCORDING TO THE AFOREMENTIONED
DECLARATIONS, THE SUBSCRIBING AGENT CERTIFIES:

FIRST . — That | know the people appearing before me,qwvho
know as having the legal capacity to contract anohiigate
themselves, and | see no evidence of incapacityha®it come to
my knowledge that they are prohibited from signiagg who have
identified themselves with the documents they haesented, whic
| will copy and to my archive:

SECOND. — Those appearing before me d&VID FRANK
SIMPSON KRIEDERS , of American nationality, a married
professional, originally from Boulder, Colorado tire United States
of America, who was born November 2, 1956, ninetaamdred
fifty -six, who lives at 3019 Nebulos
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dos de Noviembre de 1956 mil novecientos cincugsiis, y con
domicilio en la calle Nebulosa nimero 3019 tresdigtinueve, en
el Fraccionamiento Jardines del Bosque de estadjydquien me
acredita su legal estancia en el pais con su dotomagratorio de
no inmigrante visitante con salidas multiples nlor&t4882 cinco,
uno, cuatro, ocho, ocho, dos expedido por la Sataeto
Gobernacion de Guadalajara, Jalisco. El sefior JOSEIA
GALLARDO TAMAYO, mexicano, casado, originario degdilpan,
Michoacéan en donde naci6 el dia 21 veintiuno decede 1966 mil
novecientos sesenta y seis, de ocupacion Abogadajamicilio en
la calle Privada del Nifio nimero 676 seiscienttenta y seis, en el
Fraccionamiento Camino Real de esta ciu

TERCERO.- El sefior DAVE FRANK SIMPSON KRIEDERS,
me acredita la legal constitucion de “MINERA KENNETT”,
Sociedad Andnima de Capital Variable y el caradéeApoderado
de la misma con los siguientes documentos que esepta y doy f
de tener a la vista, de los cuales agregare uria aapi archivo con
el nimero de la presente acta y la letra que iesponda y
relaciono a continuaciol

a).- CONSTITUCION.- La sociedad “MINERA SANTA
VERONICA”, Sociedad An6nima de Capital Variablecemstituyo
en la escritura publica nimero 11,863 once mil o@os sesente
tres de fecha 3 tres de Julio de 1981 mil noveagathenta y uno
otorgada ante el Licenciado Adrian Iturbide Galindotario
Puablico nimero 139 ciento treinta y nueve de ldailde México,
Distrito Federal, de la cual se desprende que asociedad regular
constituida legalmente bajo las leyes de la Repallexicana, y
con capacidad para realizar a cesion de derectmargacede

DATOS DE REGISTRO.- La escritura anterior se encuentra
inscrita con el nimero 25-26 veinticinco guién Wisis del tomo
47 cuarenta y siete del Libro Primero del RegiBthiblico de
Comercio de esta Municipalida

b).- CAM BIO DE DENOMINACION. - En escritura publica
namero 14,824 catorce mil ochocientos veinticud&adecha 28
veintiocho de febrero de 1991 mil novecientos ntagruno,
otorgada ante el Licenciado Armando Galvez Péragdm, Notario
Puablico ndmero 103 ciento tres de la ciudad de MéxDistrito
Federal se protocolizo el acta de asamblea derastas en la que
acord6 cambiar la denominacion de la sociedadgpde I'MINERA
KENNECOTT", Sociedad An6nima de Capital Variak

DATOS DE REGISTRO.- La escritura anterior so encuentra
registrada con el nimero 326 trescientos veinfis@istomo 388
trescientos ochenta y ocho del libro primero deji&eo Publico de
Comercio de esta Municipalida

in the Fraccionamiento Jardines del Bosque, ofditys and who
verifies he is in this country legally with his ingmnation papers,
which permit frequent ingress and egress, numb48&2, five, one,
four, eight, eight two, issued by the Secretargiaite of
Guadalajara, Jalisco. MBOSE MARIA GALLARDO

TAMAYO , married, Mexican, originally from Jiquilpan,
Michoacan, who was born January 21, 1966, ningteedred sixty-
six, who is a lawyer and lives at 676 Privada diélo\in the
Fraccionamiento Camino Real of this city.

THIRD. — Mr. DAVE FRANK SIMPSON KRIEDERS, verifies
the legal creation of “MINERA KENNECOTT,” Corporati with
Variable Capital and the character of the Genegdr of the same
with the following documents that he presents to amg | certify
having seen them, of which | will file a copy in raychives
containing the number and text of the present ancksponding
deed.

a). — CREATION. — The Corporation “MINERA SANTA
VERONICA,” Corporation with Variable Capital, waseated in
public deed number 11,863 eleven thousand, eigidied and
sixty-three, dated July 3, 1981, granted beforeattmney Adrian
Iturbide Galindo, Notary Public number 139 one hmeddhirty-nine
of Mexico City, of which resulted a regular corptima legally
organized under the laws of the Mexican Republi \&ith
authority to realize the assignment of rights afoeationed.

DATES OF REGISTRY . —The preceding writing can be foL
registered as number 25-26 twenty-five, hyphenntysix of page
47 forty-seven in the First Book of the Commer&ablic Registry
of this City.

b). - CHANGE OF NAME. - In public deed number 14,824
fourteen thousand, eight hundred twenty-four, d&telruary 28,
1991,before the attorney Armando Galvez Pérez Amaljotary
Public number 103 one hundred three of Mexico Gitg,
shareholders’ agreement containing the name chaine
corporation to “MINERA KENNECOTT,” Corporation with
Variable Capital, was recorded.

DATES OF REGISTRY . —The preceding writing can be foL
registered as number 326 three hundred twsixtpf page 388 thre
hundred eighty-eight in the First Book of the Comered Public
Registry of this City

Page 2




c).- REFORMA INTEGRAL DE ESTATUTOS.- En escritura
publica nimero 40,160 cuarenta y mil ciento seselgdecha 24
veinticuatro de marzo de 1995 mil novecientos ntgrcinco
otorgada ante el Licenciado Armando Galvez Péraegdm, Notario
Publico nimero 103 ciento tres de la ciudad de béxDistrito
Federal se formalizd el acta de asamblea de astisnie la
empresa en la que se acordo la reforma total destasutos de la
sociedad, conservando la denominacién de “MINERA
KENNECOTT", Sociedad Anonima de Capital Variakt

DATOS DE REGISTRO.- La escritura anterior se encuentra
registrada con el nimero 195 ciento noventa y cileddomo 627
seiscientos veintisiete del Libro Primero del Regi®ublico de
Comercio de esta Municipalida

d).- FACULTADES. - En escritura publica nimero 60,724
sesenta mil setecientos veinticuatro de fecha irffcqule Mayo del
998 mil novecientos noventa y ocho otorgada antécehciado
Armado Galvez Pérez Aragon, Notarie Publico nuni@® ciento
tres del Distrito Federal, se le confirieron alaeBave Frank
Simpson Krieders, las facultades suficientes panaparecer a la
presente firma en representacion de la empresa BRI
KENNECOTT", Sociedad Anénima de Capital Variablelyefecto
el mismo manifiesta bajo protesta de decir verdaslgs mismas r
le han sido revocadas o limitadas a la fe

DATOS DE REGISTRO.- La escritura anterior se encuentra
registrada con el nimero 96 noventa y seis del ®n8seiscientos
setenta y ocho del Libro Primero del Registro Rigbtle Comercio
de esta Municipalidac

CUARTO.- El Licenciado JOSE MARIA GALLARDO
TAMAYO me acredita su caracter de Apoderado Genglalegal
existencia de su representada “MINERA PENASQUIT&3¢ciedad
Andnima de Capital Variable, con el siguiente doeoto que me
presenta y doy fe de tener a la vista, del cuagaye una copia a
archivo con el nimero de la presente acta y la tie le
corresponda y relaciono a continuaci

a).- CONSTITUCION Y FACULTADES.- En escritura
publica nimero 44,340 cuarenta y cuatro mil tregoie cuarenta, ¢
fecha 21 veintiuno de enero de 1999 mil novecientav®nta y
nueve, otorgada ante el Licenciado Jorge Robléagsadotario
Publico Adscrito y Asociado al Titular nimero 1Zdale esta
Municipalidad, se constituyo la sociedad “MINERA
PENASQUITO”, Sociedad Anénima de Capital Varialylele la
misma escritura se desprende que la empresa eociedad regul:
legalmente constituida bajo las leyes de la Repalexicana; en
la misma escritura constan las facultades confeladlaicenciado
Gallardo Tamayo, quien manifiesta bajo protestdedgr verdad qu
las misma no le han sido revocada o limititadaksfecaa.

¢). — REVISION OF THE BYLAWS — In public writing
number 40,160 forty thousand, one hundred and,siteted
March 24, 1995 nineteen hundred and ninety-fivégreethe
attorney, Armando Galvez Pérez Arragon, Notary ieubimber
103 one hundred three of Mexico City, the sharedrsiddopted the
minutes of the shareholders’ meeting, which appidie complete
restatement of the compasyarticles of association and preserva
of the name “MINERA KENNECOTT” Corporation with Cital
Variable was formalizec

DATES OF REGISTRY . —The preceding writing can be foL
registered as number 195 one hundred ninety-fiage®27 six
hundred twenty-seven in the First Book of the Comuia¢ Public
Registry of this City

d). AUTHORITY - In public writing number 60,724 sixty-
thousand, seven hundred twenty-four, dated MayL998 nineteen
hundred and ninety-eight and granted before tloeragy Armado
Galvez Pérez Aragén, Notary Public number 103 amalted and
three of the Federal District, it was confirmedttlb. Dave Frank
Simpson Krieders, had sufficient capability to agupand represent
“MINERA KENNECOTT,” Corporation with Variable Cagit, and
he declared under oath that at present, his atyt@d not been
revoked or limited.

DATES OF THE REGISTRY . —The preceding writing can t
found registered as number 96 ninety-six, pagesé¥8undred
sixty-eight in the First Book of the Commercial RaliRegistry of
this City.

FOURTH . — The attorney JOSE MARIA GALLARDO
TAMAYO verifies his character as a General Agerd #re legal
status of the party he represents, “MINERA PENASTQUII
Corporation with Variable Capital, with the followg document,
which | certify having viewed, of which | will ada copy to my
archives containing the number and text of thegreand
corresponding dee:

a). — CREATION AND AUTHORITY . In public writing
44,340 forty-four thousand three hundred and fatated
January 21, 1999 nineteen hundred and ninety-itireegranted
before Attorney Jorge Robles Farias, Notary Pubdisigned and
Associated with Title number 12 twelve of this Citlyat the
corporation “MINERA PENASQUITO,” Corporation witharfiable
Capital was created, and in the same writingitoed that the
business is a regular company legally created uthdeiaws of the
Mexican Republic; in the same writing the authodtynferred to the
Attorney Gallardo Tamayo, who declares under dadh e is being
truthful and that at present his authority hashesn limited or
revoked.
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DATOS DE REGISTRO.- La escritura anterior se encuentra DATES OF REGISTRY . —The preceding writing can be foL

inscrita con el nimero 204-205 doscientos cuatrérgdoscientos registered as number 204-205 two hundred and fyphen, two

cinco del tomo 698 seiscientos noventa y ocho deblPrimero del hundred and five of page 698 six hundred ninetyresix hundred

Registro Publico de Comercio de esta Municipalidad. and ninetyeight in the First Book of the Commercial Publicgiry
of this City.

QUINTO. - De que los comparecientes ratifican en este acto el FIFTH . — Those appearing confirm this deed containeten
contenido del contrato mencionado en el puntor(®), ule este aforementioned contract at point (1) one, of tlisuinent by
documento, asi como las firmas que lo calzan,@qué certifico su  signing, and | verify that they voluntarily signadd the authenticity
voluntad y autenticidad de sus firm of their signatures

SEXTO.- Leido por los comparecientes el presente instrument SIXTH . — Having read and reviewed the present instruraedt
y explicado su valor y consecuencias legales, tearon de firmarlc reviewed the legal consequences, those appeariatglrae were in
de conformidad, en presencia y union del suscritwegior Publico agreement and signed in the presence of Public tAdgaember
Numero veinte de esta plaza, a las 12:30 doce koraeinte twenty at this location, at 12:30 twelve thirty this date.

minuetos del dia de su fect

DOY FE. CERTIFIED.
MINERA KENNECOTT, MINERA PENASQUITO, MINERA KENNECOTT, MINERA PENASQUITO, S.A.
Sociedad Sociedad Corporation with Varibale Capit. DE
Anonima de Capital Variable de Capital Variable representadarepresented by Dave Frank C.V. represented by
representatda por por el Licenciado Simpson Lic. José Maria Gallardo Tamayo
Dave Frank Simpsao José Maria Gallardo Tama
Ante Mi Before Me
Lic. Diego Robles Faria Lic. Diego Robles Faria
Corredor Publico number 2 Public Agent number 2
Plaza Jalisct Plaza Jalisci
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DIRECCION GENERAL DE MINAS

REGISTRO PUBLICO DE MINERIA

1/1078:

Registrado bajo el nimero 256 a fojas 16%dérgrnvuelta del
volumen 10 del libro de Actos, Contratos y Converineros.

México, D. F., 21 de Febrero de 200
EL REGISTRADOR

LIC. MA. OLGA GALLARDO MONTOYA

GENRAL DIRECTION OF MINES
PUBLIC MINING REGISTER
1/07/8:

Registered under number 256, page 169 frashbank of volumi
10 in the book of Mining Deeds, Contracts and Agreets.

Mexico, D.F., February 21, 200(
THE RECORDER

LIC. MA. OLGA GALLARDO MONTOYA
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COORDINACION GENERAL DE MINERIA
DIRECCION GENERAL DE MINAS
DIRECCION DEL CATASTRO MINERO
SUBDIRECCION DEL REGISTRO
PUBLICO DE MINERIA

610.9

16441

EXP.-1/10783

ASUNTO: Se deveulve documento registrado (509
México D.F., a 27 JUN. 2000

CERTIFICADO CON
ACUSE DE RECIBO

MINERA KENNECOTT, S.A. DE C.V.

A/C LIC. FRANCISCO HEIRAS MANCERA
AVE. OCAMPO NO. 3806

COL. BELLAVISTA

C.P. 031030 CHIHUAHUA, CHIH .

Adjunto al presente se le envia debidamente regdistrel o
(los) original (es) del o (los) siguientes docunosr

El contrato celebrado el veintinueve de octubrendenovecientos
noventa y nueve, por medio del cual su represertiadia en favor
de Minera Pefiasquito, S.A. DE C.V., representadd@ee Maria
Gallardo Tamayo, entre otros, los derechos dervadda
concesién minera denominada “EL PENASQUITO" titaiento
noventa y seis mil doscientos ochenta y nueveadaien el
Municipio de Mazapil, Zacatece

ATENTAMENTE

SUFRAGIO EFECTIVO. NO REELECCION LA
SUBDIRECTORA DEL REGISTRO PUBLICO DE MINERIA.

LIC. MA. OLGA GALLARDO MONTOYA
UN ANEXO

199909RPM3400:i

GENERAL MINING COORDINATION

GENERAL DIRECTION OF MINING

DIRECTION OF MINING PROPERTY
SUBDIRECTION OF THE PUBLIC MINING REGISTER
610.9

16441

EXP. -1/10783

REGARDGING: Return of registered documents (509
Mexico, D.F., June 27, 2000

CERTIFICATE WITH ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT
MINERA KENNECOTT, S.A. DE C.V.

c/o LIC. FRANCISCO HIERAS MANCERA

AVE. OCAMPO NO. 3806

COL. BELLAVISTA

C.P. 031030 CHIHUAHUA, CHIH.

Enclosed with the following, we are sending yowral(s) of the
duly registered document(:

The contract certified on October 29, 1999, in Whyour client
assigns to Minera PENASQUITO, S.A. DE C.V., andespnted by
José Maria Gallardo Tamayo, among other thingstitfids derived
from the mining concession called “EL PENASQUIT@tle one
hundred ninety-six thousand, two hundred and eigirg, located i
the city of Mazapil, Zacatecas.

SINCERELY

EFFECTIVE SUFFRAGE, NO REELECTION THE
SUBDIRECTOR OF THE PUBLIC MINING REGISTER

LIC. MA. OLGA GALLARDO MONTOYA
AN ANNEX

199909PRM3400¢
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Exhibit 10.¢

SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED LOAN AGREEMENT
among
ROYAL GOLD, INC.,
HIGH DESERT MINERAL RESOURCES, INC.
and
HSBC BANK USA, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
Dated as of January 5, 2007
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SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED LOAN AGREEMENT

This SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED LOAN AGREEMEN:s entered into as of January 5, 2007, among ROD&OLD, INC.,
a corporation incorporated under the laws of tlaeSdf Delaware, as a borroweRbyal Gold "), HIGH DESERT MINERAL
RESOURCES, INC., a corporation incorporated undedaws of the State of Delaware, as a borrowétigh Desert”, with each of Royal
Gold and High Desert individually referred to heras a “Borrower " and collectively referred to herein as thBdrrowers ”), and HSBC
BANK USA, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION a national bankingsaociation organized under the laws of the UnitiadeS (the ‘Lender ).

Recitals

A. Royal Gold and the Lender entered into teatain Amended and Restated Loan Agreement @atel December 14, 2005 (as
amended, modified, continued or restated priohédate hereof, the “Existing AgreemenRpyal Gold and the Lender desire to (i) add F
Desert as a Borrower for all purposes hereundgexiend the maturity date of the Existing Agreeméiii) increase the Maximum Credit
Amount under the Existing Agreement, (iv) add Celtal to support the Obligations and (v) to otheemamend, restate, modify and continue
the Existing Agreement as provided in this Agreenaer to continue any Loans under the Existing Agrent as Loans under this
Agreement.

B. This Agreement and the Loans made purduengto are secured by Liens on the Collaterahinrfaf the Lender, which Liens, and the
associated Collateral Agreements, shall be ratifiedtinued and affirmed. Each of the Borrowerdldiejointly and severally liable for the
payment and performance of all obligations hereuadd under the other Loan Documents.

C. The Existing Agreement is hereby amendedticued and restated in its entirety as set fiorthis Agreement.

Agreement
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

ARTICLE |
DEFINITIONS

1.1 Definitions. When used in this Agreement the following termsehtne following meanings:

“ Advance” means an advance of a Loan by the Lender to treoBers in accordance with Section 2.1




“ Agreement” means this Second Amended and Restated Loan fgrmee as it may be amended, supplemented, resiatgttierwise
modified in accordance herewith and in effect friomme to time.

“ Amount Cancelled” means the aggregate amount from time to time hiclvthe Maximum Credit Amount has been reducethby
Borrowers in accordance with Section 2.5(a)

“ Amount Outstanding " means the total principal amount of the Loanstautding on any date of determination (which shala
Business Day), from time to time.

“ April Calculation " shall have the meaning specified in Section Zh)Béreof.

“ Authorized Officer ” means any officer of a Borrower who has been dutii@rized to act on behalf of such Borrower withpect to th
applicable matters by appropriate resolution ofttbard of directors of such Borrower, and any offegson duly authorized in writing by any
such officer by notice to the Lender.

“ Availability Period " means the period commencing on the date on wédiatonditions precedent to the Advance are satigfiursuant
to Section 4..and ending on the Maturity Date.

“Bald Mountain Royalty " means Royal Gold’s undivided fifty percent intsré the sliding scale Net Smelter Return Royalty,
described in that certain Settlement Agreementddetiective January 1, 1986 among Yvonne D. Haleliidually and as Executrix of the
Estate of Edward H. Hager), Robert R. Hager analde8. Hager, collectively as Owners, and Plac&. lhc., a memorandum of which is
recorded in the official records of White Pine CtyuMNevada in Book 94 at Page 1. Royal Gold reakiteeundivided interest pursuant to a
conveyance from Stephen D. Damele and Pauline Bel2a husband and wife, by means of that certayaRpDeed and Assignment, dated
March 13, 1998, and recorded in the official recofdlVhite Pine county, Nevada in Book 281 at Palfe Royal Golds$ interest in the slidin
scale royalty is further described_in Scheduf&(c).

“Borrower " and “ Borrowers " have the meanings given thereto in the preambibis Agreement.

“Borrowers’ Account ” means a demand deposit account in the name cdlRayld with the Lender, which is Account NumbeC66
00355 (as of the Closing Date), or any successaat.

“Borrowing Base” means, as of any date of determination, an amapptoved by the Lender, which is equal to (x) baedred percent
(100%) multiplied by (y) Projected Facility Term®amue. The Lender’s determination of the BorrowBage shall be conclusively presumed
to be correct save for manifest error.

“Borrowing Base Metals Price” shall mean (a) for Gold, the lesser of (x) $4@® @unce of Gold or (y) 90% of the then Spot Piice
Dollars per Ounce of Gold maintained by the Lerafeany date of determination; and (b) for Coppes,lesser of (x) $1.50 per pound of
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Copper or (y) 90% of the then Spot Price in Dollaes pound of Copper maintained by the Lender gndate of determination;
“Borrowing Period ” shall have the meaning given thereto in Secti®{lf) .
“Borrowing Rate " means an interest rate per annum equal to theswtBOR plus the Interest Margin.

“Business Day' means any day other than a Saturday, Sundaylimtalyoon which banks in New York City, London anériver,
Colorado are open to conduct their usual business.

“ Cash Equivalent” means, at any time:
(@) any Government Securit

(b) commercial paper, maturing not more thare mhonths from the date of issue, which is (i)datleast A-1 by Standard & Poor’s

Rating Group and P-1 by MoodylInvestors Service, Inc., (ii) issued by a corporaor company other than a Borrower and (iii
certificated form; o

(c) any negotiable certificate of deposit onker’s acceptance, maturing not more than one aféar the purchase thereof, which is
issued (or, in the case of a banker’s acceptamcepted) by a commercial banking institution orgadiunder the laws of an
Organization for Economic Cooperation and Develompinneember country that has combined capital anplssiand undivided
profits of not less than $1,000,000,0

which in any case is purchased with fundsditanto the credit of any account of a Borrower.

“ Closing Date” means the date hereof.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, andulles and regulations thereunder, each as amenmdaddified from time to
time.

“ Collateral " means all property, assets, rights and interafsésy Borrower subject or intended to be subjemiftime to time to any
Lien pursuant to a Collateral Agreement, consistiitially of (i) the GSR #1 Royalty, (ii) the GSB Royalty, (iii) the NVR #1 Royalty,
(iv) the SJ Claims Royalty, (v) the Leeville Royalfvi) the Bald Mountain Royalty, (vii) the Robms Royalty, (viii) all rights and interests
of each Borrower related to the interests describ@thuses (i) through (vii) inclusive, whethemnowned or hereafter acquired, and (ix) the
Collateral Account, together with, from time to &pall additional Royalties, real property rightsrderests or other rights, properties or
interests, of any kind or character whatsoevet,dhaincluded in or covered by a Collateral Agreatras security for the Obligations.
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“ Collateral Account” means a demand deposit account of Royal Gold ld@dtand controlled by the Lender and in whichltbeder ha
a security interest, as provided for_in Section,3Bich shall initially be the Borrowers’ Accouratnd all successor accounts.

“ Collateral Agreements” means, collectively, each Mortgage, each Mortgagendment, the Proceeds Agreement, the Ratificatial
Confirmation, the Irrevocable Payment Instructiansl each other Instrument delivered from timerteetio secure the Obligations under this
Agreement and the other Loan Documents or to pesfezh interests, as any of the foregoing may benaled, modified, extended,
supplemented, continued or restated in accordaitbetlveir respective terms.

“ Collateral Royalties” means, initially, (i) the GSR #1 Royalty, (ii)¢hfGSR #3 Royalty and (iii) the NVR #1 Royalty, (the SJ Claims
Royalty, (v) the Leeville Royalty, (vi) the Bald Maotain Royalty, (vii) the Robinson Royalty, togatkéth, from time to time hereafter, each
other Royalty Interest approved by the Lenderriofusion in calculation of the Royalty Metals asfeeth in Section 2.10(d)ereof.

“ Commitment Fee” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.6{bjeof.

“COMEX ", formerly known as the Commodity Exchange, methesdivision of the New York Mercantile Exchangewshich
commodities, futures and options are traded.

“Copper” means high grade copper upon which the COMEX spog jis based.

“ Cortez Royalty Agreement” means, collectively, (1) the Royalty Agreementatbas of April 1, 1999 by and among The CortentJoi
Venture, a joint venture formed under and govelmethe laws of Nevada and comprised of Placer @drie., a Delaware corporation, and
Kennecott Explorations (Australia) Ltd., a Delawaogporation; Placer Dome U.S. Inc., a Califormsaporation; Royal Gold, and Royal
Crescent Valley Inc., a Nevada corporation; (2)Ehst Amended Memorandum of Grant of Royalty datsaf April 1, 1999 by and among
the same Persons as are identified in (1) aboyehé3Second Amended Memorandum of Grant of Royddted as of December 8, 2000, and
(4) all amendments, modifications, extensions amewals of the Instruments identified in (1), (8} 43) above in accordance with the terms
thereof.

“ Date of Default” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.2{@)eof.

“Debt” means as to any Person: (a) indebtedness, presérttire, actual or contingent, of such Persarbfirowed money or other
assets or for the deferred purchase price of prppeiservices (other than obligations under agesgmfor the purchase of goods and sen
in the normal course of business which are not rttaaa 60 days past due); (b) obligations of suailsdeunder capital leases, conditional
agreements or any other financing transaction;(@ndbligations of such Person under any dired¢hdirect guaranty in respect of, and
obligations (contingent or otherwise) to purchasetberwise acquire, or otherwise to assure a tedgainst loss in respect of, indebtedness
or obligations of any other Person of the kindemefd to in clause (a) or (apove.
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“ Default Rate” means an interest rate per annum equal to theajireg Borrowing Rate plus two and one-half peto@n5%).

“ Deliverable Copper” means such quantity of Copper, if any, actua#iixeered for sale, after smelting and refiningttte account of a
Borrower.

“Dollar(s) " or “ $” means, unless otherwise expressly provided, driftates dollars.

“Environmental Laws " means all federal, state, local and foreign lawsegulations, codes, orders, decrees, judgmeribgumctions
issued, promulgated, approved or entered therewapggicable to the Projects, the Project PropertiesProducts or any other assets of either
Borrower and relating to pollution or protectiontb&é environment, including, without limitationwa relating to emissions, discharges,
releases or threatened releases of pollutantsaiwomants, chemicals, or industrial, toxic or hapasisubstances or wastes into the
environment (including, without limitation, ambiegit, surface water, ground water, land surfaceutasurface strata) or otherwise relating to
the manufacture, processing, distribution, usattnent, storage, disposal, transport or handlingptifitants, contaminants, chemicals or
industrial, toxic or hazardous substances or wastgwessly including all applicable Federal anat&of Nevada, county or municipal
environmental laws.

“ERISA " means the Employee Retirement Income SecurityoAd974, and the rules and regulations thereursdah as amended or
modified from time to time.

“ ERISA Affiliate ” means any Person who together with a Borrowemgrof its Subsidiaries are treated as a singld@mpwithin the
meaning of Section 414(b), (c), (m) or (o) of thed€ or Section 4001(b) of ERISA.

“ Establishment Fe€’ shall have the meaning specified in Section 9.6éaeof.
“Event of Default” means those events specified in Sectionh@rkof.
“ Existing Agreement” shall have the meaning specified in Recitahéreto.

“GAS Claims” means 200 unpatented lode mining claims situatédumder County, Nevada with the following names aodespondiny
Nevada BLM Serial Numbers: GAS #-101, NMC Numbers 403024-403108; GAS #102-130, NNl@nbers 410529-410557; GAS #131-
211, NMC Numbers 429207-429287; and GAS #12-16, NWM@hbers 403019-403023, including any relocatiomsdifications or
amendments thereof, all patented mining or millsiégéms that may be issued based thereon or oms lareliously covered by those lode
mining claims, and all lands subject to those loiieing claims.

“Gold " means gold of minimum 0.995 fineness in gold lamsforming in all respects with the requiremewtsgood delivery on the
London Bullion Market.

“ Government Security” means, at any time, any security maturing not ntte@ one year after the purchase thereof, issuelebynitec
States Treasury that is maintained in book entmnfon the records of a Federal Reserve Bank ituthited States.
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“ Governmental Authority ” means the government of any nation and the spatejncial, territorial, divisional, county, cignd political
subdivisions thereof, in which any Borrower or &wyyalty Interest or other property right or intéresa Borrower is located, or which
exercises valid jurisdiction over any such propeotyin which a Borrower conducts business or lientise present, and any entity, court,
agency, department, commission, board, bureaustnuimentality of any of them exercising executiegjslative, judicial, regulatory or
administrative functions, and any securities exgeaio which a Borrower is subject. Governmentalhbuty shall also include any regulatc
agency and the rules and regulations of said govental agency with which a Borrower must comply.

“GSR #1 Royalty” means the sliding-scale gross smelter returnaltpyver seventy-nine mining and millsite clairhattencompass all
of the reserves at the Pipeline Project as of April999, established pursuant to the Cortez Rpyajteement, which sliding-scale royalty
ranges from 0.40% when the price of Gold is leas 210 per Ounce up to 5.00% when the price ofl @ainore than $470 per Ounce, with
such royalty rates described_in Schedule 1.1(c)

“GSR #3 Royalty” means the gross smelter returns royalty over@pprately four hundred sixty-one mining and miktsitlaims,
including the seventy-nine mining and millsite otgithat encompass all of the reserves at the RgPBlioject as of April 1, 1999, established
pursuant to the GSR #3 Royalty Deeds, which isetully equal to 0.7125% of the value of productimmf such claims.

“ GSR #3 Royalty Deed$ means the nine Special Warranty Deeds that ame particularly identified on Schedule 1.1émd 1.1(c)

“High Desert” means High Desert Mineral Resources, Inc., a@aon organized and existing under the laws efState of Delaware
and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Royal Gold.

“Instrument " means any contract, agreement, indenture, mogtgdgrument, writing or other instrument (whetlenfal agreement,
letter or otherwise) under which any obligatiomrisdenced, assumed or undertaken, or any Lieridbt or interest therein) is granted or
perfected.

“Interest Margin ” means one and one-half percent (1.5%) per annum.

“Irrevocable Payment Instructions” means irrevocable payment instructions from dartaunterparties in respect of cash payments
owing to a Borrower, with such instructions to hehe form attached hereto as Exhihit |

“Leeville Royalty " means a 1.8% carried working interest owned byhHbesert, equivalent to a 1.8% net smelter ratoyalty, as
described in the Carried Interest and OperatingeAgrent, dated as of May 3, 1999, between NewmoningliCompany and High Desert,
which is recorded in the records of Eureka CouNByada, in Book 327 at Page 217, and that Royadsighment and Agreement dated
December 26, 2002. The Leeville Royalty is furtdescribed in Schedule 1.1(c)
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“Lender ” means HSBC Bank USA, National Association, aoral banking association organized under the laiseoUnited States.

“LIBOR " means the rate per annum (rounded upwards ifssace to the nearest whole one-sixteenth of oneepef1/16%)) equal to
(a) the average of the offered rates as of 11180, &ondon time, on the date of determination agpgaon the display designated as page
“LIBO” on the Reuter Monitor Money Rates Service ¢och other page as may replace the LIBO paghkairservice for the purpose of
displaying London interbank offered rates of mdjanks) for Dollar deposits for the relevant perddime, or (b) if fewer than two offered
rates appear on the display referred to in claasabve, the rate determined by the Lender (whicardehation shall be conclusive in the
absence of manifest error) to be the average afaties at which banks are offered Dollar depositste relevant period of time in the
interbank Eurodollar market at about 11:00 a.mndam time.

“Lien " means, as to any Person, any mortgage, liengplduypothecation, charge, assignment, securigyast, preferential purchase
right or other encumbrance in or on, or any inteoeditle of any vendor, lessor, lender or otheriged party to, or of such Person under any
conditional sale or other title retention agreenw@ntapital lease with respect to, any propertgsset owned or held by such Person, or the
signing or filing of a financing statement or otl@strument or document for filing which names s@arson as debtor, or the signing of any
security agreement, pledge or other instrumentaaizting any other party as the secured party theteuto file any financing statement or
other instrument. A Person shall be deemed to é@ewmer of any assets that it has placed in targhe benefit of the holders of its
indebtedness which indebtedness is deemed to mgeished under generally accepted accounting ipieein the United States, but for
which such Person remains legally liable, and ducdt shall be deemed to be a Lien.

“Loan ” and “ Loans” means the funds Advanced from time to time bylteader to the Borrowers, on a joint and sevesadlility basis,
pursuant to this Agreement.

“Loan Documents” means this Agreement, the Note, each Reque#duance, the Collateral Agreements, the Royaltynfayt
Confirmations, the Ratification and Confirmatiordaall other Instruments contemplated hereby or @eecin connection herewith, and all
amendments, modifications, supplements, restatememtinuations and extensions of any of the foirggin accordance with their terms.

“ London Bullion Market ” means the market in London known as the “Londaifli@ Market” and on which members of the London
Bullion Market Association, amongst others, quaiegs for the buying and selling of Gold and Silver

“London Gold Fixing ” means a p.m. gold price fixing meeting amongghkl fixing members for the time being of the Londgullion
Market.

“London Gold Fixing Price " means the price per ounce of Gold establishedlaindon Gold Fixing.
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“Material Adverse Effect” means a material adverse effect on the businefisamcial condition of a Borrower or on such Boxer’s
ability to perform any of its material obligationader any of the Loan Documents. In determiningtiwieany individual event would result
in a Material Adverse Effect, notwithstanding teath event does not itself have such effect, a fiéhtedverse Effect shall be deemed to
have occurred if the cumulative effect of such éwmd all other then-existing events would result iMaterial Adverse Effect.

“Maturity Date " means the date on which the Loans are payalfldliby the Borrowers, being the first to occur(aj any date on which
the Lender accelerates the due date of any of tlamd. by reason of an Event of Default pursuanefdi&n 8.1, or (b) the Scheduled Maturi
Date.

“Maximum Availability ” means the lesser of the Maximum Credit Amount tmedBorrowing Base.

“ Maximum Credit Amount ” shall mean $80,000,000 on the date hereof, am#iter shall mean the lesser of the amounts tohvih
has been reduced from time to time pursuant to@&e2t5(a).

“Mortgages” mean (a) the Mortgage, Deed of Trust, Securitye®gnent, Pledge and Financing Statement dated@scafmber 18, 2000
made by Royal Gold for the benefit of the Lendathvdtewart Title of Northeastern Nevada as trusie@mended effective December 14,
2005 by a Mortgage Amendment, each of which waslfih the official records of Lander County, Nevadalanuary 10, 2001 at Book 485,
Pages 131-154, and on October 30, 2006 at BookPsigkes 713-738, respectively; (b) the Mortgage dizéd rust, Security Agreement,
Pledge and Financing Statement dated as of Decetdh@005 made by Royal Gold for the benefit ofltbader with Stewart Title of
Northeastern Nevada as trustee, which was fileéderofficial records of Eureka County, Nevada at Book at
Pages ; (c) the Mortgage, Deed of Trust, Security AgreatmPledge and Financing Statement dated as obdabu 2007 made
by Royal Gold for the benefit of the Lender witle®art Title of Northeastern Nevada as trusteeetéiled in the official records of White
Pine County, Nevada, substantially in the form siiiBit H hereto; and (d) the Mortgage, Deed of Trust, Secgreement, Pledge and
Financing Statement dated as of January 5, 200¢ tma¢iigh Desert for the benefit of the Lender v@tiewart Title of Northeastern Nevada
as trustee, to be filed in the official record€oireka County, Nevada, substantially in the fornExthibit H hereto, as each of the foregoing
has been or may be amended, modified, supplemertatinued or restated from time to time in accamawith their respective terms.

“Mortgage Amendments” means, collectively, each of the amendments apglements to the Mortgages to be delivered byeeith
Borrower, or one or more subsidiaries of a Borrowabstantially in the form of Exhibit Bereto.

“Multiemployer Plan " means a “multiemployer plan” as defined in Seti®01(a)(3) of ERISA to which any Borrower or &RISA
Affiliate is making, or is accruing an obligatiom mnake, or has accrued, an obligation to make ibortions within the preceding six (6) years.
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“Net Profits” means, for any period, the gross revenues for padhd for the Borrowers on a consolidated basisumthe expenses and
other proper charges against income (includinggaxeincome to the extent actually imposed) ofBbeowers on a consolidated basis and
eliminating all other items required to be elimadin accordance with the same United States génacaepted accounting principles as
were used in the preparation of Royal Gold’s finahstatements referred to in Sections &8 6.2hereof.

“Net Worth " means Royal Gold’s consolidated tangible net tvaiétermined in accordance with the same UnitettStgenerally
accepted accounting principles as were used iprgaration of Royal Gold's financial statemenfemed to in Sections 5&nd 6.2hereof.

“Note” means the Second Amended and Restated Promisteyin the form of Exhibit Gttached hereto issued by the Borrowers on a
joint and several liability basis and payable te ¢tinder of the Lende

“NVR #1 Royalty” means the fixed rate royalty equal to 0.39% ef tiet value of all production from the GAS Claimich are located
on a portion of the Pipeline Project.

“ Obligations ” means all obligations of each Borrower with regge the repayment of principal, interest, feed ather amounts when
due hereunder and the performance of all obligat{omnetary or otherwise) of each of the Borroveising under or in connection with this
Agreement and each other Loan Document, whethet goiseveral, direct or indirect, absolute or auggnt, due or to become due, now
existing or hereafter arising and however arising.

“ October Calculation” shall have the meaning specified in Section 21 Béreof.
“QOunce” means a fine ounce troy weight.
“ Other Taxes” has the meaning set forth in Section Be8eof.

“ Payable Copper” means Copper subject to the Robinson Royalty @mty other Royalty Agreement for which cash payisiare made
to Royal Gold.

“PBGC " means the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporatioangrsuccessor agency.

“Person” means an individual, partnership, corporatiomjtéd liability company, trust, unincorporated agation, joint venture,
governmental agency or other entity of whateveunat

“ Pipeline Project” means the Project relating to the Pipeline Pitdfroperties.

“Pipeline Project Properties” means the unpatented mining and millsite claiotated in Lander County, Nevada identified as the
“Reserve Claims” in the Cortez Royalty Agreemerd auabject to the terms and conditions of the Cdreyalty Agreement, together with all
relocations, modifications or amendments therdbfyaented mining claims which may be issued bdketkon, and all lands subject thereto.
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“Plans” means any Employee Benefit Plan, other than aibtaployer Plan, which is subject to the provisiofifitle IV of ERISA or
Section 412 of the Code and which (a) is maintafoethe employees of any Borrower or any ERISAIlRfes or (b) has at any time within
the preceding six (6) years been maintained foethployees of any Borrower or any of its currenfoomer ERISA Affiliates.

“ Potential Event of Default” means any event which with the giving of notiedapse of time or both, based on reasonable fiojes
would become an Event of Default.

“Proceeding” has the meaning set forth in Section 9.8(@)eof.

“Proceeds Agreement means, individually and collectively, each Pradedgreement by and among a Borrower, the Lender an
Johnson Matthey or any other purchaser from a Barof any portion of its share of mineral prodantfrom the Project Properties, which
Instrument shall be substantially in the form ohixt E hereto, as the same may be amended, modified,esuppted, continued or restated
from time to time in accordance with its terms, amg confirmation of such agreement.

“Products” means without limitation all ore, minerals, contrate, doré bar and refined Gold, silver or othetals produced on behalf
of, or payable to, a Borrower pursuant to a Roykitgrest from the Project Properties, but exclgdiopper.

“Projects” means all of the mining projects in which a Baver has or acquires a Royalty Interest, includimighout limitation, the
Pipeline Project, with the Projects in effect oa ttate hereof described with greater particulamityschedule 1.1(djereto.

“Project Managers” means the operator or manager of each Projett, ttve Project Managers for each Project in effecthe date
hereof set forth in Schedule 1.1f&reto.

“ Project Properties” means all of the real property rights or intesesiow owned or hereafter acquired, included imeddhe Projects
which are burdened with a Royalty Interest, inahgdall unpatented mining claims which are idendifie any Royalty Agreement, together
with all relocations, modifications or amendmeiisreof, all patented mining claims which may beéssbased thereon, and all lands subject
thereto.

“ Projected Facility Term Revenue’ means an amount approved by the Lender, whicli lsba&qual to the Royalty Metals multiplied by
the applicable Borrowing Base Metals Price. Thedsgis determination of Projected Facility Term Rawe shall be conclusively presumed
to be correct save for manifest error.

“ Ratification and Confirmation ” means the Ratification and Confirmation Agreemafr¢ven date herewith in the form set forth in
Exhibit F hereto.

“Request for Advance’ means the irrevocable request by the BorrowersufioAdvance of a Loan, in the form set forth irhBit A
hereto, signed by an Authorized Officer of eachrBwer.
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“Requirements of Law” means, as to any Person, any law, statute, dogiy, ordinance, order, rule or regulation, decngjunction,
franchise, permit, certificate, license or authatiizn, or determination of an arbitrator or a caurbther governmental agency, in each case
applicable to or binding upon such Person or aniysgdroperties or to which such Person or anysopioperties is subject, and specifically
including, without limitation, Environmental Laws.

“Reserve Amount” shall have the meaning given thereto in Sectiéh 3

“Robinson Royalty” means the net smelter returns royalty createthbyMining Lease dated March 4, 1985 between Kesthec
Corporation (“Kennecott”) and Silver King Minesgclnet al., as amended by the Stipulation filedddelger 20, 1989 in the Second Judicial
District in and for Washoe County, Nevada; andudsequently conveyed by Kennecott to Royal Gol®Dbgd and Assignment of Royalty,
dated effective as of December 28, 2005, and recoirdthe records of White Pine County, Nevad&aok 437 at Page 48. The Robinson
Royalty is further described on Schedule 1.1(c)

“Royalties” means any share of mineral production, includimighout limitation, gross smelter returns royadtieet smelter returns
royalties, overriding royalties, non-participatirgyalties, production payments, net profit intesestd all other mineral royalties of every type
and characterization, whether constituting a reap@rty or a personal property interest.

“ Royalty Agreements’ means, collectively, (i) the Cortez Royalty Agneent, (ii) each of the other royalty agreementdah on
Schedule 1.1(bhereto, (iii) any other agreement with or for tleméfit of a Borrower pursuant to which a Borrowegeaives or is entitled to
receive any Royalties, whether now or hereaft@xistence, which is acquired by a Borrower in whalén part with proceeds of the Loans,
and (iv) all amendments, modifications, extensiand renewals of the Instruments identified in({i),and (iii) above in accordance with the
terms thereof.

“ Royalty Interests” means all Royalties now owned or hereafter acquiyedr for the benefit of a Borrower, in or relaito a Project, &
set forth with greater particularity in Schedul&(t) hereto, and all Products and Copper received aivakle with respect thereto, now held
or hereafter acquired by a Borrower, whether purstaa Royalty Agreement or otherwise.

“ Royalty Metals” means an amount approved by the Lender, which sbaqual to the aggregate ounces of Producpandds of
Payable Copper projected to be payable to the Bem®(in cash or in kind) from the date of detemation through the Scheduled Maturity
Date with respect to the Collateral Royalties, wrsball be based on current, commercially reasenatoljections of production from the
Pipeline Project and each other applicable Préjeaperty. Calculations of Royalty Metals for theRG&1 Royalty, the GSR #3 Royalty and
the NVR #1 Royalty shall be based on the resemperts set forth in the then-current mine plan far Cortez Joint Venture. Calculations of
Royalty Metals to be included as Collateral Rogalfirom Projects either not in production at thes@ig Date or acquired by a Borrower a
the Closing Date and accepted by the Lender asi@ddll Royalties for the purpose of calculating
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the Borrowing Base shall be based on the resepatreet forth in the applicable thenfrent mine plan for such Project, unless the keend
its sole discretion, elects to audit the informatimntained in the reserve report set forth ingyglicable mine plan for such Project, develop
its own conclusions based on its independent aisadjsuch information and estimate the Royalty &fefor such Project, in which event the
Lender’s determination shall be conclusive. Calioies of Royalty Metals shall include all reasomatiééductions for shipping, smelting,
contractual and other standard deductions (whicluck&ons shall be described with reasonable spégiin the Borrowers’ calculations).

“ Royalty Payment Confirmations” means the letters substantially in the form ohibi G hereto.
“ Scheduled Maturity Date” means December 31, 2010.
“ Semi-Annual Calculations” shall have the meaning specified in Section 21 8éreof.

“ Silver " means silver of minimum 0.999 fineness in sillears conforming in all respects with the requiretador good delivery on the
London Bullion Market.

“SJ Claims Royalty” means the 0.9% net smelter returns royalty owme#ligh Desert pursuant to the Royalty, Assignment,
Confirmation, Amendment, and Restatement of Royaltyl Agreement, dated as of November 30, 1996/daet Barrick Bullfrog Inc., et al.,
and Royal Hal Co. and that certain Royalty Assignnaend Agreement dated December 26, 2002. The @h€Royalty is further described

in Schedule 1.1(c)

“Special Calculation” shall have the meaning specified in Section 2.10¢n¢of.

“ Spot Price” means: (i) with respect to Gold, the P.M. pricerfg for gold by the London Bullion Association eeported in The Wall
Street Journal or any other agreed upon succeabtication for the applicable time or time peri@ahd (i) with respect to Copper, the spot
Copper COMEX price as reported in The Wall Streetrdal or any other agreed upon successor puldicé&r the applicable time or time
period.

“ Title Opinions ” means legal opinions from counsel to the Borraamertaining to the Collateral Royalties and thtepeetive Borrower’s
right, title and interest in and to such CollatdRalyalties, in form and substance acceptable th.¢neler.

1.2 Accounting Principles. All accounting terms not otherwise defined heréiallsbe construed, all financial computations reeghi
under this Agreement shall be made, and all fir@ncformation required under this Agreement shalbrepared, in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles in effe¢he United States applied on a consistent l{agisept where such inconsistencies are
disclosed in the notes to the audited financidkstents provided to the Lender under Sectior),6ecept as specifically provided herein.
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ARTICLE II
LOAN FACILITY

2.1 The Loan.

(a) General. The Lender agrees, on the terms and conditionsriadter set forth, to Advance Loans to the Borraveom time to timi
during the Availability Period on a joint and sealdiability basis, as requested by the Borrowersyided, that the aggregate Amount
Outstanding (after giving effect to any amount resjed) shall not exceed the Maximum Availabilitybfect to the terms and conditions
hereof, the Borrowers may borrow, repay and relvoftmds hereunder until termination of the AvailapiPeriod.

(b) Loan Advance; Request for Advance Not less than three Business Days prior to theegsiate of an Advance of a Loan, the
Borrowers shall submit to the Lender a RequesAfivance. The Request for Advance will specify [ fmount of the Advance, which shall
be in an aggregate principal amount of $1,000,0G9whole multiple of $1,000,000 in excess therédfthe Borrowing Period for such
Advance and (iii) the Business Day on which the &ube is requested to be made. Subject to the Bersdwatisfaction of the conditions
precedent set forth in Article IYand on the terms and conditions stated hereitgteothan five Business Days after the Lendexteipt of a
Request for Advance, the Lender shall Advance temnlio the Borrowers’ Account on the Business OmcHied by the Borrowers in the
Request for Advance. The Request for Advance $lealllirevocable and binding on the Borrowers aneképect of the Loan amount specified
therein, the Borrowers shall indemnify the Lendgaiiast any loss or expense incurred by the Lenslarrasult of any failure to fulfill on or
before the date specified for such Loan the apiplécaonditions set forth in Article Mereof, including, without limitation, any loss
(including loss of anticipated profits) or expeimseurred by reason of the liquidation or reemployiaf funds or deposits acquired or
borrowed by the Lender to fund the Loan to be ntadthe Lender when the Loan, as a result of suitiréa is not made on such date. A
certificate as to such amounts sufficient to conspémthe Lender under such indemnification obligasiubmitted by the Lender to the
Borrowers shall, in the absence of manifest ebverpresumed to be correct and binding for all psego

(c) Use of ProceedsThe Borrowers may utilize the proceeds of the Ldangieneral corporate purposes, including, witHounitation,
the acquisition of Royalties.

(d) Amendment, Restatement and ContinuanceThis Agreement amends, restates, continues autaces the Existing Agreement
and nothing contained in this Agreement shall bented or construed to be a repayment, satisfactionwation of the Obligations or to
release, terminate, novate or in any way impairlaag or Collateral Agreement that secures the mmtrand performance of the Obligatio

2.2 Promissory Note The Loans shall be evidenced by the Note, repreggtite obligation of the Borrowers to repay the dunt
Outstanding of the Loans, together with interesgtetdorth herein. The Borrowers authorize the lezrid endorse the date and amount of the
Advance and each repayment on the schedule antexed constituting a part of the Note,
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which endorsement shall constitute prifaeie evidence of the accuracy of the information endygethe absence of manifest error. The
failure so to record any such amount or any err@oi recording any such amount shall not, howeieit, or otherwise affect the obligations
of the Borrowers hereunder or under the Note taydpe Amount Outstanding of the Loans togetheh wik interest accruing thereon and
fees accruing with respect thereto.

2.3 Interest.

(a) General. The Borrowers shall pay interest on the Amount @miding calculated on a 360-day year basis. Exagptovided in
Section 2.7(b) interest shall accrue at the Borrowing Rate dadl e payable by the Borrowers at the end of &miowing Period (define
below) except that, with respect to a Borrowingi&of 90 days or more which extends beyond thiedag of a calendar quarter, on such
day of the calendar quarter.

(b) Borrowing Periods . The Borrowers may select borrowing periods Bofrowing Period ") for each Loan of 30, 60, 90 or of a
longer period of days if available (or of such otheriod of days agreed to by the Lender) on ac80year basis; provided, however, that
Borrowers may not select a Borrowing Period if tleeder determines that Dollar deposits are notgeffered in the London interbank
Dollar market for such Borrowing Period in accorcamvith customary practice (in which event the Bar@rs must select another Borrowing
Period which does not present such problems). TdreoBers will select the initial Borrowing Periodrfeach Loan by giving the Lender
notice thereof in the Request for Advance. After fdvance, the Borrowers may select Borrowing Risrioy giving notice to the Lender at
least three Business Days prior to the expiratioe Borrowing Period then in effect. If at any tiie Borrowers fail to give timely notice of
its selection, then the Borrowers shall be deerodthte selected a Borrowing Period of 30 days. Jreler shall not be required to maintain
more than four different Borrowing Periods hereurateany one time.

2.4 Repayment of the Loan

(a) Principal Payments. The Borrowers agree to repay the Loans as provideein. The Borrowers shall repay the outstanding
principal amount of the Loans as amortized by theder on a monthly basis from the date of Advahomugh the Scheduled Maturity Date.
Subject to the other terms hereof pertaining todagory repayment of the Loans, the Borrowers siealhy the Loans in full, together with
accrued interest thereon, on the Maturity Date.

(b) Mandatory Repayments. If at any time the Amount Outstanding shall excelMaximum Credit Amount, the Borrowers shall
immediately prepay the Loans in an amount sufficiereliminate such excess. If at any time the Amddutstanding is less than the
Maximum Credit Amount but in excess of the BorrogvBase, then the Borrowers shall immediately prapayoans in an amount sufficie
to eliminate such excess over the Borrowing Base.

(c) Voluntary Repayments. The Borrowers may repay any Amount Outstandindhefltoans in integral multiples of $1,000,000 at
end of any Borrowing Period,
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without penalty or premium by providing the Lendet less than five Business Days’ prior writtenic@t Upon the giving of such notice,
which shall be irrevocable, the amount to be repasdset forth in said notice, together with intetbereon, shall be due and payable on the
date set forth therein.

(d) Priority of Prepayments . All payments made pursuant to this Sectionshdll be applied first to accrued, outstanding amgiaid
fees and expenses (including costs and expengaffietkin Section 9.4, then to any accrued and unpaid interest on tdanlas of the end
the most recent Borrowing Period, then to principal

2.5 Permanent Reduction of Maximum Credit Amount.

(a) Voluntary Reduction . The Borrowers shall have the right at any time frooh time to time, upon at least five (5) BusinBsg/s
prior written notice from the Borrowers to the Lendto permanently reduce the Maximum Credit Amdynan aggregate principal amount
not less than $1,000,000, plus any whole multipfe1,000,000 in excess thereof or any amount aegx thereof which would reduce the
Maximum Credit Amount to the Amount Outstanding.

(b) Commitment Reduction Repayment Upon the giving of notice set forth in Section 2)5(which shall be irrevocable, each
permanent reduction in the Maximum Credit Amounhmitied pursuant to this Section 26d any amounts due as a result thereof shall be
due and payable on the date set forth thereinggyeent of principal sufficient to eliminate anycess of the Amount Outstanding over the
Maximum Credit Amount as so reduced.

2.6 Fees

(a) Establishment Fee The Borrowers agree to pay the Lender a totaltfe='(Establishment Fe€’) in the amount of $120,000 for
the establishment of this loan facility, which 3l due and payable concurrently with the Borr@ivexecution hereof (minus the $40,000
advance on the Establishment Fee that the padieowledge the Lender has been paid by the Bormweor to the date of this Agreemer
No portion of the Establishment Fee will be refunideby the Lender to the Borrowers under any cistamces, including an election by
Borrowers not to submit a Request for Advance hetewor the failure of the Borrowers to satisfytho failure of the Lender to waive
satisfaction of, the conditions to any Advancefegh in Article 1V hereof.

(b) Commitment Fee. The Borrowers agree to pay to the Lender a fee"(b@mmitment Fee”) in an amount determined daily
during the period beginning on the Closing Date amding on the Maturity Date at the rate of ond-bhbne percent (0.50%) per annum of
the difference between the Amount Outstanding hedvaximum Availability. The Commitment Fee will payable in arrears to the Lender
on the fifth Business Day of each calendar qudaiéowing conclusion of the calendar quarter in efhthe Commitment Fee is accrued.
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(c) Agents Fee. In the event that the Lender assigns or grantécpzations in the Loans, or any part thereof, dralltoan Documents,
then, in order to compensate the Lender for strirgjtand managing any such syndication or parttmpeaof the Loans and for its obligations
hereunder, the Borrowers agree to pay to the Leffinleits account, an agent’s fee in the amourldf,000 per annum payable on the date
that the Lender makes such assignment or grardstiaipation and on each anniversary of such datad the term hereof.

2.7 Miscellaneous

(a) Sameday Funds. All payments by the Borrowers to the Lender hereurahd under any other Loan Document, whether for
principal, interest, fees, expenses or other anspshtll be made without set-off, recoupment, dédinor counterclaim in immediately
available funds to such account as the Lender shatiify from time to time by not later than 12@éh. Eastern time on the date when due.

(b) Penalty Interest.

(i) The Borrowers shall pay to thender, on demand, interest on any amount whichtipaid by the Borrowers when due at
Default Rate.

(i) Without prejudice to the righa§the Lender under the foregoing provisions @ Bection 2.7(b) the Borrowers shall
indemnify the Lender against any loss or expenselihmay sustain or incur as a result of theufi@lby the Borrowers to pay when due
any Amount Outstanding of the Loan, to the exthat ainy such loss or expense is not recovered @oirso such foregoing provisions. A
certificate or other notice of the Lender settingh the basis for the determination of the intedese on overdue principal and of the
amounts necessary to indemnify the Lender in réspfestich loss or expense, submitted to the Borrews the Lender, shall constitute
prima facie evidence of the accuracy of the infdiamacontained therein in the absence of manifestr @nd, absent notice from the
Borrowers of such error, shall be conclusive amdiinig for all purposes.

(c) Lender's Counsels Fees The Borrowers shall pay to the Lender such amosiiniaiced to the Lender by the Lender’s counsel,
Davis Graham & Stubbs LLP, for such firm’s fees &hdrges incurred in connection with the transasticontemplated by the Loan
Documents. Alternatively, with such counsel’s carispayment may be made by the Borrowers direotluich counsel.

(d) Lender's Other Expenses On the Closing Date, the Borrowers shall pay thedeg all of the Lender’s costs incurred to date (as
reasonably detailed in advance) in connection thightransactions contemplated by the Loan Docunierascordance with Section 9.4
hereof and thereafter the Borrowers shall pay #eder all of the Lender’s subsequent and additicosts in connection with the transactions
contemplated by the Loan Documents within 30 ddyeaeipt from the Lender of a reasonably detaitebice therefor in accordance with
Section 9.shereof.
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2.8 Taxes.

(a) Other Taxes. The Borrowers agree to pay any present or fut@mtor documentary taxes or any other excise, magetgor
property taxes, charges or similar levies (exclksiVincome taxes) which arise from any paymenterteeteunder or under the Note or from
the execution, delivery, recordation or registmnatid, or otherwise with respect to, this Agreemamthe Note or the Collateral Agreements or
any other Loan Documents (hereinafter referredstb@ther Taxes”). The Borrowers will indemnify the Lender for ahdld it harmless
from the full amount of Other Taxes (including, matit limitation, any Other Taxes imposed by anysfliction on amounts payable under
Section 2.8 paid by the Lender or any liability (includingnmgties, interest and expenses) arising therefrowith respect thereto, whether
or not such Other Taxes were correctly or legadlseated; providedhowever, that the Borrowers shall have the right to cantegood faith
any such tax levied upon the Lender. This inderoaifon shall be made within thirty days from théedthe Lender makes written demand
therefor, unless the Borrowers are contestingdkért good faith, in which event the foregoing imdgfication shall not be triggered until the
final determination of such contest or proceedind #he exhaustion of all applicable appeals.

(b) Withholding Tax; Gross-up . All payments to be made by the Borrowers to ang@&ehereunder shall be made free and clear of
and without deduction for or on account of any prér future taxes, duties, assessments or goestaincharges of whatever nature
imposed or levied by or on behalf of any governrakatithority having the power to tax; providdabwever, that if the Borrowers are
required to make such a payment subject to theddiesiuor withholding of such tax, duty, assessnwergovernmental charge (exclusive of
income taxes), then the sum payable by the Bormimerespect of which such deduction or withholdgequired to be made shall be
increased to the extent necessary to ensure ftetttze making of such deduction or withholdinge Person receiving the payment receiv
net sum equal to the sum which it would have resgtand so retained had no such deduction or witliipbeen made or required to be
made.

(c) Survival . Without prejudice to the survival of any other agrent of the Borrowers hereunder, the agreemedtslaligations of
the Borrowers contained in this Section 81&ll survive the payment in full of the Loan.

2.9 lllegality; Capital Requirements; Increased Cots; Indemnity for Breakage Costs.

(a) lllegality . If after the date hereof, the introduction of, ay @hange in, any applicable law or any changé&éniterpretation or
administration thereof by any governmental autgpdgéentral bank or comparable agency charged Wwétiriterpretation or administration
thereof, or compliance by the Lender with any retjoe directive (whether or not having the forcdanf) of any such authority, central bank
or comparable agency, shall make it unlawful orasgible for the Lender to honor its obligationsguerder to make or maintain the Loan
based on a LIBOR rate, the Lender shall prompthg giotice thereof to Borrowers. Thereafter, suliiegaragraph (éhelow, until the Lende
notifies the Borrowers that such circumstancesongér exist (which notification shall be given viitithirty (30) days after the
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Lender obtains actual knowledge that such circunegt®no longer exist), (i) the obligations of trenter to make the Loan based on a
LIBOR rate shall be suspended and thereafter theoers may borrow only at an annual rate equ#iéd_ender’s prime rate plus a margin
of one and one half percent (1.5%) (therime Borrowing Rate "), and (ii) if the Lender may not lawfully contietto maintain the Loan
based on a LIBOR rate to the end of the then cuBerrowing Period applicable thereto, shall imnagelly be converted to a Loan based on
the Prime Borrowing Rate for the remainder of sBohrowing Period.

(b) Capital Requirements. If, subsequent to the date of this Agreement, eftii¢he establishment of, or any change in, ahim
interpretation of, any applicable Requirement ofvlar (i) compliance with any guideline or requéstm any central bank or comparable
agency or other governmental authority (whetharairhaving the force of law), has or would havedffect of reducing the rate of return on
the capital of, or would affect the amount of capiequired to be maintained by, the Lender or@mrporation controlling the Lender in
connection with the Loan or its commitment to exitéime Loan thereunder, below the rate which thedeewor such other corporation could
have achieved but for such establishment or inttdn, change or compliance, then within fifteeB)(Business Days after written deman
the Lender, subject to paragraphife)ow, the Borrowers shall pay to the Lender frametto time as specified by the Lender additional
amounts sufficient to compensate the Lender oratbporation for such reduction. A certificatetasuch amounts shall be submitted to the
Borrowers by the Lender as soon as practicableviatlg an event covered by this Section 2.9@)d shall, in the absence of manifest error,
be presumed to be correct and binding for all psego

(c) Increased Costs If, after the date hereof, the establishment aothiction of, or any change in, any applicable Regoent of
Law, or in the interpretation or administrationrisaf by any governmental authority, central bank@nparable agency charged with the
interpretation or administration thereof, or coraptie by the Lender with any request or directiviegfiver or not having the force of law) of
such authority, central bank or comparable agency:

(i) shall subject the Lender to aay, duty or other charge with respect to the Loathe Note, or shall change the basis of
taxation of payments to the Lender of the princgfadr interest on the Loan or the Note, or anyeotimounts due under this Agreement
in respect thereof (except for changes in theaftax on the overall net income of the Lender isgabby the jurisdiction in which the
Lender is organized or is or should be qualifiedfid

(i) shall impose, modify or deenpépable any reserve (including, without limitatjcany imposed by the Board of Governors
of the Federal Reserve System), special depositramce or capital or similar requirement agaissets of, deposits with or for the
account of, or credit extended by the Lender ol #h@ose on the Lender or the foreign exchangeiataetbank markets any other
condition affecting the Loan or the Note;
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and the result of any of the foregoing is to inseethe costs to the Lender of maintaining the Laraio reduce the yield or amount of any sum
received or receivable by the Lender under thise&grent or under the Note in respect of the Loaam the Lender shall promptly notify the
Borrowers of such fact and demand compensatioefitieand, subject to paragraph BeJow, within fifteen (15) days after such notigethe
Lender, the Borrowers shall pay to the Lender sadtditional amount or amounts as will compensatd.#reler for such increased cost or
reduction. The Lender will promptly notify the Bowers of any event of which it has knowledge whigh entitle the Lender to
compensation pursuant to this Section 2.9&)ertificate of the Lender setting forth the isdsr determining such additional amount or
amounts necessary to compensate the Lender shadhiokusively presumed to be correct save for neahiérror.

(d) Indemnity for Breakage Costs. Each Borrower hereby indemnifies the Lender againgtloss or expense which may arise or be
attributable to the Lender’s obtaining, liquidatimgemploying deposits or other funds acquiredffece fund or maintain the Loan (i) due to
any failure of the Borrowers to borrow on a datecsfied therefor in the Request for Advance ordiig to any payment or prepayment of the
Loan on a date other than the last day of the Bamg Period therefor. The Lender’s calculationgony such loss or expense shall be
furnished to the Borrowers and shall be conclusibsent manifest error.

(e) Cancellation of Commitment as a Result of Incr@sed Costs If the Borrowers have received a notice of incrdasests under
paragraphs (a)(b) or (c)above, in lieu of paying such increased amount8tireowers may provide notice to the Lender thatétts to
prepay the Loan, in which case the Borrowers gi@llto the Lender any loss or expense of the Leddero the prepayment of the Loan ¢
date other than the last day of the Borrowing REetfi@refor.

2.10 Borrowing Base Determination

(a) The Borrowers shall calculate the Royalty Metdis, Projected Facility Term Revenue and the Borrgvidase in accordance with
the requirements of this Agreement, using theirdgfaith best efforts, and the Borrowers shall thesvide such amounts and calculations to
the Lender by written notice. The Lender may retjgesh clarifications, explanations, supportingagddbcuments, calculations, re-
calculations or other information as it reasonatdgms appropriate, all of which shall be promptiyed by the Borrowers. The final
determination of the Royalty Metals, the Projedtadility Term Revenue and the Borrowing Base dimlinade by the Lender, using its
commercially reasonable discretion, and no calmratf the Borrowing Base, the Projected Faciligrifi Revenue or the Royalty Metals
shall be used, or otherwise be deemed final art®&fE, until approved in writing by the Lender.eThender, using its commercially
reasonable discretion, may decide to undertak®mnits calculation of the Borrowing Base, the Projddtacility Term Revenue and the
Royalty Metals at any time and from time to timel ahall promptly notify the Borrowers of the resudf such calculations. The Lender’s
determination of the Borrowing Base, the Projec¢tadility Term Revenue and the Royalty Metals, att@me and from time to time, whether
based on the Borrowers’ calculations or its owrt@ations, shall be made by the Lender, usingdteroercially reasonable discretion, and
shall be used for all purposes under this Agreement
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(b) The Borrowers shall calculate the Royalty Metdis, Projected Facility Term Revenue and the Borrgvidase (i) semi-annually,
with written notice of such calculations to be detied to the Lender by not later than April 15 a€le year (the April Calculation ") and by
not later than October 15 of each year (tl@ctober Calculation”, and together with the April Calculation, th&Seémi-Annual Calculations
") and (ii) at any other time reasonably requestedhe Lender, with written notice of such calcigdas to be delivered to the Lender within
five (5) Business Days of such Lender request (ea¢lSpecial Calculation”). The Lender may request a Special Calculatior -

calculation of any of the foregoing amounts, at img, and from time to time, while any Loans am¢standing or prior to the Advance of ¢
Loan.

(c) Each Semi-Annual Calculation shall include a sejgatalculation of the Royalty Metals, the Projedtedility Term Revenue and
the Borrowing Base as of the end of then-currelgnchar quarter and each of the subsequent twodalearters (for the purpose of
clarification, the April Calculation shall inclugeojected calculations for each of thed2 3rdand 4t calendar quarters and the October
Calculation shall include projected calculationsdach of the 4, 1stand 2ndcalendar quarters). Each Special Calculation shellide a
calculation of the Royalty Metals, the Projectediiig Term Revenue and the Borrowing Base as efdhte of determination as well as a
calculation of the projected Royalty Metals, PretgeicFacility Term Revenue and Borrowing Base at®fnd of the then-current calendar
guarter and the subsequent two calendar quartérsaldulations of future, projected amounts shiak commercially reasonable assumptions
with respect to such projections.

(d) The Lenders determination of the Borrowing Base, whether Bageactual numbers as of a date of determinati@s @rojected ¢
of the end of a future calendar quarter, shall israfiective for all purposes under this Agreememtil a subsequent SerAinnual Calculatio
or Special Calculation is completed and the Lemdakes a determination of the Borrowing Base baseslioh calculations.

(e) From time to time, the Borrowers may provide theder with a written request to include other Roy#iterests of a Borrower as
Collateral Royalties and Royalty Metals for thegmses of determining the Borrowing Base, which estjghall include appropriate data,
documentation and information about such Royaltgrest and the Project and Project Propertieseblfiereto. Upon receipt of such request
from the Borrowers, the Lender may request suclitiaddl data, documentation and information abaughsRoyalty Interest, Project and
Project Properties as it deems necessary or apar@pivhich the Borrowers shall promptly providéeTLender shall have a period of forty-
five (45) days from the Lender’s receipt of suchuest to either accept or reject the Borrowerstiest, which the Lender may do in its sole
discretion reasonably exercised. The Lender shallige the Borrowers with written notice of its d@&#on. The failure of the Lender to
provide a written notice of acceptance of such timithl Royalty Interests as Royalty Metals shaldeemed a rejection of the Borrowers’
request.

() Upon the Lender’s written acceptance of the inclngf new or additional Royalty Interests as RoyMetals and Collateral
Royalties, the Borrowers shall re-calculate the &tyyMetals, the Projected Facility Term Revenue #re Borrowing Base in
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accordance with the requirements of this Agreemf&my. re-calculation of the Borrowing Base includingw or additional Royalty Interests
shall not be effective until (i) the Lender hasypded written approval of such calculation, (iigthppropriate Borrower has granted, and the
Lender has obtained, a first priority, perfectedrLover such new or additional Royalty Intereste from other Liens and (iii) the Lender has
received both a Title Opinion confirming such Bavas's right, title and interest in such new or diddial Royalty Interests and a
supplemental legal opinion with respect theretdicming the inclusion of such Royalty Interestspast of the Collateral and the perfectior
the Lender’s security interest therein, with eaethsopinion to be in form and content satisfactorthe Lender.

ARTICLE Il
COLLATERAL SECURITY

3.1 Collateral Agreements All of the Obligations are secured by the Collatégreements. The Collateral Agreements and thed ie
on the Collateral to secure the payment and pedoom of all Obligations are continuing and haventregified and confirmed by the
Borrowers pursuant to the Ratification and Confitiora

3.2 Perfection and Maintenance of Collateral Agreernt Liens. Each Borrower hereby authorizes the Lender tcsfieh UCC
Financing Statements in such jurisdictions astiéigines to be desirable and to take such oth@recas it determines to be necessary or
desirable to perfect and maintain the perfectiofirsf priority Liens in the Collateral Account aadl other Collateral identified in the
Collateral Agreements. Each Borrower agrees to e@ip with the Lender in completing all such reaaydand filing, to promptly execute
such other Instruments, and to promptly take alhsather actions, as the Lender may reasonablyrdite to be necessary or appropriate to
confirm, perfect and maintain the perfection oftsuens. Prior to any Advance of a Loan hereundach Mortgage and each Mortgage
Amendment shall have been filed and recorded iragpeopriate records of the Clerk and Recordeaohef Lander County, Eureka County
and White Pine County, Nevada, as applicable, amdich other jurisdictions necessary to perfect.tbes granted therein.

3.3 Collateral Account. The Borrowers have established, and until this Agrent has been repaid in full and cancelled thedBars
shall maintain, the Collateral Account with the Hen Such Collateral Account is subject to the adygt control and right of set-off of the
Lender and constitutes part of the Collateral. Camemg prior to the initial Advance of a Loan hardar and continuing until the terminat
of this Agreement, the Borrowers shall promptly @&por cause to be deposited in the Collateraloiot all cash amounts received by any
Borrower from or with respect to (i) all existingfRalty Interests, and (ii) all Royalty Interestgghased or otherwise acquired using Loan
proceeds after the date of this Agreement. Thenbalén the Collateral Account at all times shalhie¢ less than an amount equal to the
aggregate of any payments of principal, interestisfand expenses payable with respect to the lavahthe Loan Documents and due at any
time during the then current calendar quarter dechext succeeding calendar quarter, which amdualitise determined by the Lender in its
commercially reasonable discretion, including wiference to the Borrowing Base applicable to qaerfiod of time (said aggregate payment
amounts for such two calendar quarters
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hereinafter being described as theeéserve Amount”). Each Borrower hereby grants to the Lender @inamg security interest in and lien
upon the Collateral Account, all cash balances fiiome to time credited to the Collateral Accountlamy and all proceeds of any thereof,
whether now or hereafter existing or arising. S@las no Potential Event of Default or Event ofddtf has occurred and is continuing, the
Lender will promptly disburse to the Borrowersaitcordance with written instructions provided bihei Borrower to the Lender (which
instructions such Borrower may revise upon fiveshayitten notice to the Lender), any credit balancethe Collateral Account which are in
excess of the Reserve Amount from time to time.

ARTICLE IV
CONDITIONS PRECEDENT

4.1 Conditions Precedent to the Initial Advance The obligation of the Lender to make the initialvadce of a Loan is subject to
satisfaction (or waiver by the Lender in its saigcdetion) of each of the following conditions pedent.

(a) Receipt of Instruments. The Lender or its counsel shall have received e&tie following Instruments:

(i) this Agreement, duly executedamyAuthorized Officer of each Borrower;
(i) the Note, duly executed by antihorized Officer of each Borrower;

(i) the Mortgages, the Mortgage Amments, the Ratification and Confirmation, ancheaf the other Collateral Agreements,
together with appropriate UCC financing statemeeliating thereto, duly executed by an Authorizefigef of each Borrower, as
appropriate, and by all other Persons parties there

(iv) an Omnibus Certificate of Royabld, substantially in the form of ExhibitlBereto, duly executed by an Authorized Office
Royal Gold;

(v) an Omnibus Certificate of Higleg2rt, substantially in the form of Exhibith@reto, duly executed by an Authorized Office
High Desert;

(vi) legal opinions from legal coeh$or the Borrowers, in form and content reasopalgiceptable to the Lender and substantially
in the form of the legal opinion delivered to thenider in connection with the Existing Agreement;

(vii) Title Opinions from Nevada Egcounsel to the Borrowers, in form and conteasomably acceptable to the Lender;
(viii) copies of each of the Mortgmgand Mortgage Amendments, as filed with the gppate county office to perfect the Liens
described therein, together with a supplementallleginion from Nevada legal counsel to the Borrmsy@ form
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and content reasonably acceptable to the Lendefiyging the perfection in favor of the Lender afferceable first priority Liens on the
Collateral Royalties and on the other propertytdgind interests of each Borrower subject to théatoal Agreements, substantially in-
form of the security legal opinion delivered to ttender in connection with the Existing Agreement;

(ix) certificates from the SecretafyState of Delaware confirming the good standihgach Borrower in that State;

(x) certificates from the Secretardé State of Colorado and Nevada confirming thedgstanding of each Borrower in each of
such States;

(xi) Royalty Payment ConfirmationsdaProceeds Agreements (or confirmations theradf) elxecuted by an Authorized Officer
of the applicable Borrower and each other Persparty thereto;

(xii) Irrevocable Payment Instructiofrom each Person owing payments to a Borrowesuaut to a Collateral Royalty.

(xiii) a certificate from an Authadd Officer of each Borrower setting forth a caitidn of the Royalty Metals, the Projected
Facility Term Revenue and the Borrowing Base aapSeptember 30, 2006, (b) December 31, 20084écyh 31, 2007 and (d) June 30,
2007; and

(xiv) such other approvals, opiniodscuments or Instruments as the Lender may readorequest.
(b) Additional Conditions . Each of the following shall be correct:

(i) since the date of the finangtdtements of Royal Gold most recently deliverethéoLender (referred to in Section §,%here
has been no adverse change in the financial congditiperations or business of the Borrowers whiohld constitute a Material Adverse
Effect;

(ii) there is no pending or ovettiyeatened action or proceeding affecting any Boerpthe Royalty Interests, the Pipeline
Project Properties or the Pipeline Project beforea@urt, governmental agency or arbitrator, widohld be reasonably expected to have a
Material Adverse Effect;

(iii) each Borrower shall have penfied and complied with all agreements, conditiars @bligations herein and in the other
Loan Documents required to be performed and comhplith on or prior to the date of the Advance;

(iv) there shall exist no Event aéfBult or Potential Event of Default;
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(v) all representations and warestnade by each Borrower herein and in any othan Iocument or other certificate or
Instrument delivered in connection herewith shelttie and correct on the date of the Advance;

(vi) all Instruments that are neegggo perfect the security interests of the Leridehe Collateral described in the Collateral
Agreements shall have been received by the Lendktte Lender shall have received evidence rea$pratisfactory to the Lender that
upon filing and recording such Instruments, thaiggcinterests represented thereby will constittdabd and perfected Liens subject only

to Permitted Liens; and
(vii) there shall be a current ctdwdilance of not less than the Reserve AmountarCllateral Account.

4.2 Conditions Precedent to All AdvancesThe obligation of the Lender to make each Advarfdeoans (including the initial Advance)
is subject to satisfaction (or waiver by the Leniddts sole discretion) of each of the followingnelitions precedent:

(a) the Lender shall have received a Request for Advashaly executed by an Authorized Officer of eachrBwer;

(b) the Lender shall have received an Irrevocable Payinstruction from each Person owing paymentsBo&ower pursuant to a
Collateral Royalty.

(c) on the date of such Advance, the Lender shall heegived such approvals, opinions, documents druments as the Lender may
reasonably request;

(d) such Advance shall not cause the Amount Outstartdiregceed the Maximum Availability;

(e) there shall exist no Potential Event of DefaulEgent of Default;
(f) each of the conditions precedent to the initial &alte set forth in Section 4id and remains satisfied; and

(9) all representations and warranties made by eacto®er shall be true and correct on the date of #ublance except for those
changes disclosed to the Lender in writing and piedde to the Lender in its sole discretion.

ARTICLE V
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

In order to induce the Lender to enter infs thgreement, each Borrower represents and wartarnke Lender that:

-24-




5.1 Due Organization, Good Standing and Authority. Each Borrower is duly organized, validly existimgdan good standing under the
laws of Delaware and is qualified to do businesSatorado and Nevada and every other jurisdictiben® necessary in light of its business
and properties. Each Borrower has full power, autyrand legal right (a) to own or lease its asseid properties and to conduct its business
as now being conducted, and (b) to incur its oliliges under this Agreement and each other agreemeotment and instrument executed or
to be executed by it pursuant hereto or in conardterewith and to perform the terms hereof ancetifeapplicable to it.

5.2 Due Authorization; Non-Contravention . The execution and delivery by the Borrowers of thigeement and the other Loan
Documents, and the performance of all transactiontemplated hereby and thereby, and the fulfillneérand compliance with the respec
terms of this Agreement and the other Loan Documbwpteach Borrower are within such Borrovggubwers, have been duly authorized b
necessary action corporate or otherwise and dambtvill not (a) conflict with or result in a bréaof the terms, conditions or provisions of,
(b) constitute a default under, (c) result in theation of any Lien (except pursuant to the Loaudoents) upon capital stock or assets
pursuant to, (d) give any third party any righatzelerate any obligation under, (e) result incdation of, or (f) require any authorization,
consent, approval, exemption or other action byatice to any Governmental Authority pursuant jal{e Articles of Incorporation or
Bylaws of any Borrower, (ii) any Requirement of Lapplicable to any Borrower or their respectivegenties, or (iii) any agreement,
instrument, order, judgment or decree to which er®®er is subject or by which their respective mndigs are bound;

5.3 No Approvals. No authorization or approval or other action byd an notice to or filing with, any Governmental Aatity is require:
for the due execution, delivery and performance&gh Borrower of this Agreement, or any other LBacument, except for filings
necessary to perfect Liens pursuant to the Loarubeats.

5.4 Validity . This Agreement is, and the other Loan Documentgnadelivered hereunder will be, legal, valid ambiig obligations of
each Borrower enforceable against each Borrowac@ordance with their respective terms, subjebattkruptcy and insolvency laws
affecting rights of creditors generally and rulégquity.

5.5 Financial Statements The audited consolidated financial statements gfaR&old for the twelvenonth period ending June 30, 20
which have been furnished to the Lender, have begmared in accordance with generally accepteduatitg principles in the United States
consistently applied (except as disclosed in thtesithereto) and present fairly and fully the ficiahposition and results of operations of the
Borrowers as of the latest date and for the perpagified therein. Subsequent to the respectitesdes of which information is given in such
financial statements, there has been no changkingsin a Material Adverse Effect.

5.6 Litigation . Except as set forth in Schedule G&reto, no Borrower is a party to any action, sujproceeding at law or in equity, by or
before any Governmental Authority or arbitral tritall now pending (or, to the knowledge of either®aer, threatened in writing) against or
affecting any Borrower, the Royalty Interests, Breject Properties or any Project or
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which may have a Material Adverse Effect, or whichy affect the legality, validity or enforceabiliby this Agreement or any other Loan
Document. Except as set forth_in Schedule, 5c6the knowledge of each Borrower, without dutyusther inquiry, there is no action, suit or
proceeding at law or in equity, by or before anw&amental Authority or arbitral tribunal now pendior threatened against or, with direct
and specific application, affecting, either Borroytbe Royalty Interests, the Project Propertieanyr Project which may have a Material
Adverse Effect, or which may affect the legalitglidity or enforceability of this Agreement or aather Loan Document.

5.7 Disclosure. Except as set forth in Schedule éateto, this Agreement, the other Loan Documerdstlam schedules, attachments,
written statements, documents, certificates orratbens prepared by either Borrower and providethéoLender do not contain any untrue
statements of a material fact or omit a materiei feecessary to make the statements containechhmréierein not misleading. Each
Borrower represents and warrants that there iotovhich it has not disclosed to the Lender irtingiand of which any of its officers or
directors are aware which could reasonably be ipatied to constitute a Material Adverse Effect.

5.8 Title to Royalty Interests; Liens. Schedule 1.1(adnd Schedule 1.1(¢)espectively, set forth a complete and accurstied and
description of each of the Projects and the Royaligrests as of the date hereof. Each Borrowegbad and marketable title to the Royalty
Interests owned by it, free and clear of any clabmsghts of title and free and clear of all Liemscept (a) Liens established pursuant to the
Collateral Agreements, (b) Liens for taxes notd and payable, (¢) inchoate Liens establishestdiyte arising in the ordinary course of
business securing obligations that are not ovefolua period of more than 20 days and (d) Lienstéteddefects reflected in the Title
Opinion.

5.9 Royalty Agreements Schedule 1.1(bjets forth a complete and accurate list of all Rgy&greements of each Borrower in effect as
of the Closing Date; each Royalty Agreement isgallevalid and binding obligation of the Borrowhat is a party thereto, and to each
Borrower’s knowledge, each other party thereto.e®than as set forth in Schedule 5e&ach such Royalty Agreement is, and after giving
effect to the transactions contemplated by the LIdacuments will be, in full force and effect in acdance with the terms thereof. The
Borrowers have delivered or made available to theder a true and complete copy of each Royalty égent required to be listed on
Schedule 1.1(b)No Borrower is in breach of or in default undey &oyalty Agreement. No Borrower has alleged #rgt Royalty
Agreement counterparty has breached or defaultddriany Royalty Agreement. To the knowledge of éafrower, no counterparty to any
Royalty Agreement is in breach of or in defaulbaf/ Royalty Agreement.

5.10 Project Permits. To the knowledge of each Borrower, without dutfwther inquiry, except as set forth_in ScheduliD5.and
except for matters that do not or would not haweaterial adverse effect on such Projects, the Brrdjanagers of each of the Projects have
obtained all material licenses, operating and reatéon bonds, permits and approvals from all gor@mtal commissions, boards and other
agencies required to operate such Projects asntiyrkeing operated in accordance with the theeatiffe mine plan therefor, and such
Project Managers are operating the Projects inmaatmmpliance therewith.
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5.11 Payment of TaxesEach Borrower has filed, or caused to be filedfealeral, state and local tax returns which, tokfewledge of
each Borrower, are required to be filed and had pacaused to be paid all taxes as shown on gfams or any assessment received by eact
Borrower to the extent that such taxes or assedsrhane become due, except such as may be diljgenritested in good faith and by
appropriate proceedings or as to which a bonadisiute may exist and for which adequate resemesbeing maintained. Each Borrower |
established reserves which are reasonably beliey¢lde officers and representatives of such Borrdowée adequate for the payment of such
taxes.

5.12 Agreements Except as set forth in Schedule 5Hgteto, no Borrower is a party to any material agrent or instrument or subject
any charter or other corporate restriction which AaMaterial Adverse Effect. No Borrower is in défan the performance, observance or
fulfillment of any of the obligations, covenantsaanditions contained in the Royalty Agreementary other agreement or instrument to
which it is a party, the effect of which would ctihge a Material Adverse Effect.

5.13 Compliance with Laws. Except as set forth in Schedule 5Heto, (a) each Borrower has complied in all nigteespects with all
Requirements of Law, and (b) with respect to thgdet Properties and operations thereon and thed®soto the knowledge of each
Borrower, without duty of further inquiry, the Peaf Managers have complied in all material respeitts and the Projects and Project
Properties are in material compliance with, all ®@eements of Law relating to the operation of eRebject, and no Borrower is aware of any
investigation (other than a routine inspection)emdy by any local, state or federal agency witipeet to enforcement of such Requirem
of Law. The Borrowers have no knowledge (exceptisslosed to the Lender in Schedule 5 138 any past or existing violations of any such
Requirements of Law or notices thereof issued lyy@Governmental Authority with respect to a Borrowvleat would constitute a Material
Adverse Effect, and the Borrowers have no knowldeégeept as disclosed to the Lender in Schedul@)~ot any past or existing violations
of any Requirements of Law or notices thereof iddmeany Governmental Authority with respect to &rgject or any Project Property that
would have a material adverse effect on such Prdpeoject Property or any Royalty Interest.

5.14 Events of Default No event has occurred and is continuing, or woesdilt from the incurring of obligations by the Boarers unde
this Agreement, which constitutes an Event of Ditfaua Potential Event of Default.

ARTICLE VI
AFFIRMATIVE COVENANTS

Each Borrower covenants and agrees from tteehdaeof, so long as any portion of the Loans mematstanding and unpaid, in whole or
in part, or any other amount is owing to the Lengdsder this Agreement or any other Loan Documeatt timless the Lender shall otherwise
consent in writing:
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6.1 Notice to the Lender. The Borrowers will promptly give notice to the Lamdas soon as any Borrower becomes aware of:

(a) Any Event of Default or Potential Event of Default;

(b) Any default under, breach of or event which, witltice or lapse of time or both, would become a nietdefault under or breach
of any other Loan Document;

(c) Any loss or damage to the Collateral in excesslO0$000, exclusive of diminution in value causelglydy changes in the price of
Gold, Silver or Copper from time to time;

(d) The consummation by any Borrower of any purchassecquisition of a Royalty Interest, whether a nesy&ty Interest or an
addition to or increase in an existing Royalty tes;

(e) Any additional interests in the Project Propertiequired by a Borrower which are not included i @ollateral;

(f) Every default or other adverse claim, demand igaiton made by any Person which would, if sucadssbnstitute a Material
Adverse Effect, or with respect to any Royalty tast or any other Collateral could have a matawdaierse effect on such Royalty Interest or
Collateral;

(g) Every notice, and the contents thereof, received Bprrower in relation to any renewal of any righiith respect to, or having a
material adverse effect upon any Royalty Interef®roject including (without limitation) notices pp&ining to the loss of or a failure to obtain
or a failure to be able to renew such interestrmaderial part of such Project, together with aycofpsuch notice if in writing;

(h) Every press release issued by a Borrower togethierarcopy of such press release, and any otherte, matter, event or thing
(other than changes in the price of Gold) constitud Material Adverse Effect, together with a wr@ably detailed explanation of such other
occurrence, matter, event or and thing; and

(i) Each material memorandum, letter or report recebyed Borrower from any Project Manager concerrging Royalty Interest or
Project, including (to the extent received by arBater and not subject to confidentiality restriasathat prevent such Borrower from
disclosure thereof) the annual strategic businkssfpr the Pipeline Project and all reserve, ngtean and/or operating reports for the Proje
or the Project Properties, together with a copgunh plans and reports.

6.2 Financial Statements, Calculations and Informabn .

(a) As soon as practicable (and in any event not thter 90 days after each fiscal year and 60 dags @dich fiscal quarter), the
Borrowers shall furnish the Lender annual (auditetj quarterly (unaudited) consolidated finandialesnents, which shall include all of
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the information contained in the statements heoetofurnished to the Lender and referred to iniSed.5hereof, together with a certificate
of an Authorized Officer of each Borrower to théeef that such financial statements have been pedpa accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in the United Statesistently applied and present fairly the firiahposition and results of the operations of
the Borrowers, on a consolidated basis, as ofdbpective dates and for the respective periodsfigabtherein.

(b) Within 60 days after each fiscal quarter, the Baers shall cause an Authorized Officer of each &ear to deliver to the Lendel
certificate as to the Borrowers’ compliance witk flnancial covenants provided in Section éh&Peof.

(c) By not later than April 15 and October 15 of eaehry the Borrowers shall provide to the LenderShmi-Annual Calculations of
the Royalty Metals, the Projected Facility Term Bewe and the Borrowing Base together with all supmpinformation, documentation and
materials, for the Lender’s review and approvafuasher described in Section 2.h8éreof.

(d) Each Borrower shall deliver to the Lender such othirmation (in form reasonably acceptable tolteader) regarding the
conditions or operations, financial or otherwiskeach Borrower, the Royalty Interests, the Prgjettte Project Properties or any other
properties or activities of a Borrower as the Lemnday reasonably request from time to time to tktergt such information is in the
possession or control of a Borrower and not sulieconfidentiality restrictions that prevent therBwers’ disclosure thereof.

6.3 Maintenance of Existence Each Borrower will preserve and maintain its legiktence and all of its rights, privileges andhétaises
necessary for the proper conduct of its businedsadihqualify and remain qualified to do businésfNevada and Colorado and in each
jurisdiction where necessary in light of its busis@nd propertie

6.4 Compliance with Laws. Each Borrower shall comply with all Requirementd afv, including, without limitation, any Environmigth
Law (except any noncompliance or violation whiehthe judgment of the Lender, could not reasonbblgxpected to constitute a Material
Adverse Effect).

6.5 Payment of IndebtednessEach Borrower will pay, discharge or otherwisesgtat or before maturity or before they become
delinquent, as the case may be, all of its Debdsodiner material obligations of whatever natureegt for any Debts or other material
obligations which are being contested in good faitd by appropriate proceedings if (a) reservesnformity with generally accepted
accounting principles with respect thereto are ma&ied on its books, and (b) such contest doeswotve any material risk of the sale,
forfeiture or loss of any part of the Collateral.

6.6 Taxes. Each Borrower shall pay and discharge all fedstate and local taxes imposed on it or on anysafribperty prior to the date
on which penalties attach thereto, and all lawfainas which, if unpaid, might become a Lien upoa @vllateral. Each Borrower shall have
the right, however, to contest in good faith thiédity or amount of any such taxes by

-29-




proper proceedings timely instituted, and may petha taxes so contested to remain unpaid duriegémiod of such contest if; (a) it
diligently prosecutes such contest, (b) it setdeasi its books adequate reserves in conformitly génerally accepted accounting principles
with respect to the contested items, (c) duringods@od of such contest, the enforcement of anyasted item is effectively stayed, (d) such
contest does not involve any material risk of thke sforfeiture or loss of any part of the Collaleand provided such non-payment is
permitted by the appropriate taxing legislationcliEBorrower will promptly pay or cause to be pany aalid final judgment enforcing any
such taxes and cause the same to be satisfiedafire

6.7 Books and Records; Right to InspectionEach Borrower shall keep proper books of recoracitordance with generally accepted
accounting principles and permit representativetb®f_ender to examine the books of record andwatsaand to discuss the affairs, finances
and accounts of each Borrower with such Borrowgrilscipal officers, engineers, technical staff amdependent accountants, all at such
reasonable times during business hours and atistehals as the Lender may desire; providadwever, that the Lender shall provide such
Borrower with at least five Business Days’ noti¢@oy visit and shall use commercially reasonaHlers not to disrupt such Borrower’s
business during any such visits. Upon any requesitd Lender to visit and inspect any Project Prgpeach Borrower will use commercie
reasonable efforts to make arrangements with thp&rManager for such a visit to and inspectiosuwth Project Property by the Lender or
its representatives.

6.8 Insurance. Each Borrower shall maintain insurance coveragth meisponsible and reputable insurance companiassarciations, in
respect of its properties, assets, and businesssagach risks and in such amounts as are cusiymaintained in accordance with good
industry practice for a company in the Borrowerssiness and as may be required by Requirementavef Such insurance policies shall
name the Lender as an additional insured or logseas appropriate, and shall provide that thigipslcannot be cancelled, allowed to lapse
or terminate by the insurer without at least teB) @ays prior written notice to the Lender. Attagttzess Schedule 618reto is a detailed list a
description of all such insurance maintained bfoothe benefit of each Borrower as of the Clodirage, in form reasonably satisfactory to
the Lender. From time to time after the ClosingeDedich Borrower shall deliver to the Lender upsmatjuest a detailed list of the insurance
then in effect, stating the names of the insuraorepanies, the amounts and rates of the insurance.

6.9 Maintenance of Liens Each Borrower will take all action required or dable to maintain and preserve the Lender’s Lienthe
Collateral and the first priority thereof. Each Biwer, at no cost to the Lender, shall from timéiriee execute, deliver, file and record, and
each Borrower authorizes the Lender to file andnmdcany and all further Instruments (includingafiiting statements, continuation staterr
and similar statements with respect to any of thiéa@ral Agreements) reasonably requested by émeler for such purposes, including such
as may be necessary to include within the Collafa)aany additional real property interests orestimcrease in the Collateral Royalties and
(b) any other or additional Royalty Interests imigld or added as a Collateral Royalty.
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6.10 Defend Title. Each Borrower shall, at its own cost and expensgramt and defend the title to the Royalty Inteyestd the other
Collateral against the claims and demands of alidtes whomsoever, except as permitted in writinghieyl ender and except for matters
disclosed in the Title Opinion and not objectedyahe Lender.

6.11 Compliance with ERISA. Each Borrower will (a) comply with all applicablegvisions of ERISA and the regulations and publishe
interpretations thereunder with respect to all Bldh) not take any action or fail to take any@tthe result of which could be a liability to
PBGC or to a Multiemployer Plan, (c) not particepat any prohibited transaction that would resulany civil penalty under ERISA or tax
under the Code, (d) operate each Plan in such aendmat will not incur any tax liability under Smmn 4980B of the Code or any liability to
any qualified beneficiary as defined in Section@®®f the Code and (e) furnish to the Lender upanltender’s request such additional
information about any Plan as may be reasonablyestiqd by the Lender.

6.12 Financial Covenants

(a) Tangible Net Worth . The Borrowers, on a consolidated basis, shallldinas maintain a Net Worth of not less than the of
$100,000,000 plusS0% of the Borrowers’ Net Profits for each comptefiscal quarter (excluding any fiscal quarter inigh the Borrowers’
Net Profits are negative) beginning with the fisgahrter ended December 31, 2006 on a cumulatisis.|

(b) Current Ratio . The Borrowers, on a consolidated basis, shall aohji the ratio of their (x) consolidated assetsperly classified
as current assets under United States generakyptant accounting principles, to (y) consolidatedilities properly classified as current
liabilities under United States generally accetecbunting principles, at any time, to be less th&ro 1.0.

(c) Minimum Cash Balance. Royal Gold shall at all times maintain a minimuntaoge of cash and Cash Equivalents in demand
deposit accounts of $5,000,000.

6.13 Delivery of Royalty Interest Proceeds

(a) Delivery and Sale of Products Each Borrower shall cause all Products producen fiee Project Properties, to which a Borrower
is entitled pursuant to the Royalty Interests,dalblivered by the Project Managers directly tolteeder’s account for the credit of the
Borrowers at Johnson Matthey in Salt Lake City,HJta such other locations approved by the Leridach Borrower hereby irrevocably
agrees to sell all such Products to counterpaafipsoved from time to time, in writing, by the Lemdwhich approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld) forthwith upon transfer véls Products into such Borrower’s control, withtstRroducts to be sold at the then
applicable Spot Price. Immediately following tragigtlement, the proceeds of such sales shall needsd directly by such counterparties into
the Collateral Account pursuant to Irrevocable Payminstructions.
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(b) Delivery of Cash Royalties Each Borrower shall cause all cash to which a Beerds entitled pursuant to a Royalty Interestdéo b
deposited by the Project Managers directly to tha@ral Account, pursuant to a Royalty Paymentfmation.

6.14 Maintenance of Credit Balances in the Collated Account. The Borrowers will maintain at all times in the Gdéral Account a
credit balance which is not less than the Resemeuxt.

6.15 Further Assurances The Borrowers shall execute, acknowledge and deloveéhe Lender such other and further documends an
Instruments and do or cause to be done such attera the Lender reasonably determines to be s@gesr desirable to effect the intent of
the parties to this Agreement or otherwise to mtod@d preserve the interests of the Lender hesrupdomptly upon request of the Lender.

ARTICLE VII
NEGATIVE COVENANTS

From the date hereof, so long as any portfdheLoans remain outstanding and unpaid, in wboli& part, or any other amount is owing
to the Lender under this Agreement or any othemlDacument, each Borrower unconditionally covenanis agrees that, unless the Lender
shall otherwise consent in writing, it will not:

7.1 Indebtedness Incur any Debt except for (a) the Loans, (b) itexhaccrued taxes prior to the date on which susgtare due and
payable, (c) capital lease or rental arrangeméthe ipayments thereon, in the aggregate, do reezk$250,000 in any fiscal year, (d) trade
payables incurred in the ordinary course of busingsich are not evidenced by a promissory notetoreevidence of indebtedness and w
are not the subject of a genuine dispute or arenooe than ninety (90) days past due, (e) unseddedd not to exceed $1,000,000 in the
aggregate principal amount at any time outstandij@bligations existing or arising under any sveamtract or other hedging agreement
entered into for the purpose of mitigating riskazsated with liabilities, commitments, investmerassets or property held or reasonably
anticipated by a Borrower, or (g) guarantees byaR@old of performance obligations of its subsigiamot to exceed $1,000,000 in the
aggregate.

7.2 Liens. Directly or indirectly, create, incur, assume offauto exist any Lien upon any of its propertysets, income or profits,
including, without limitation, the Royalty Interssthe Collateral Account or any Collateral, wheth@v owned or hereafter acquired, or e
into any agreement or option with respect to anghefforegoing, except for (a) Liens for taxesyettdue and payable, (b) inchoate Liens
established by statute arising in the ordinary sewf business securing obligations, (c) attachsyamipeal bonds, judgments and other
similar Liens arising in connection with court peedings, for sums not exceeding $1,000,000 inglyesgate, and (d) easements, rights of
way, restrictions, minor defects in title and otkimilar Liens that do not interfere in any materéspect with the ordinary conduct of the
business of such Borrower.
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7.3 Liquidation; Merger . Liquidate or dissolve, or, without the prior writteonsent of the Lender, not unreasonably withheiter into
any consolidation or merger, or enter into anyrghip, joint venture or other combination wharehscombination involves a contribution
by a Borrower of all or a substantial portion aféissets, or sell, lease or dispose of its busoreassets as a whole or in an amount which
constitutes a substantial portion thereof.

7.4 Asset SalesWithout the Lender’s prior written consent not ®umreasonably withheld, convey, sell, lease, assignsfer or
otherwise dispose of any material portion of itsgarty, business or assets, including, withoutthtion, the Royalty Interests or any portion
thereof, individually or in the aggregate, whethew owned or hereafter acquired, except for convegs, sales, leases, assignments and
transfers of property or assets, other than Colitentered into in the ordinary course of businegich do not exceed $250,000 in the
aggregate per year.

7.5 Guarantees/Assumptions Directly or indirectly, assume, guarantee, endorsetherwise become directly or contingently liable
(including, without limitation, liable by way of agement, contingent or otherwise, to purchasetduige funds for payment, to supply funds
to or otherwise invest in the debtor or otherwisadsure the creditor against loss) in connectitimany Debt of any other Person, except
guarantees by endorsement of negotiable instrunfi@nteposit or collection or similar transactionghe ordinary course of business.

7.6 Change in BusinessEngage in any business activities or operationstanbially different from the business of ownerstimon-
executory interests in mining properties; providealyever, that each Borrower shall be permitteeintier into exploration agreements with
respect to mining properties owned by it and infatjventure agreements or other similar busines;igements pursuant to which its
executory or ownership interests are convertibie Royalties.

7.7 Changes in Constituting Documents or Capital 8ticture . Without the Lender’s prior written consent not ®umreasonably
withheld, amend or otherwise modify its articledraforporation or bylaws or its capital structuséher than issuances of Royal Gold comt
stock or rights to purchase Royal Gold common stock

7.8 Metals Sales Enter into any agreement or any Instrument forsalg, assignment, transfer or delivery of Goldepfroducts, or
Copper, except as provided._in Section 6.13

7.9 Modification of Material Agreements. Without the Lender’s prior written consent not ®unreasonably withheld, allow any
modification or amendment to any Royalty Agreenwnither agreement or Instrument material to a®eer or allow any modification or
amendment to any confidentiality agreements oriprons to which a Borrower is a party or otherwssdject. With respect to any
confidentiality agreement that either Borrower neagcute with respect to (i) any existing Royaltierest or Project or properties underlying
such Royalty Interest or (ii) any Royalty InterestProject or properties underlying such Royaltetast acquired after the date hereof with
the proceeds of a Loan, such Borrower shall useneentially reasonable efforts to include appropratevisions in such confidentiality
agreement authorizing the Borrowers to providéneoltender information obtained by such Borrowerspant to such confidentiality
agreement.
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7.10 Maintenance of Royalty Interests Without the Lender’s prior written consent not ®unreasonably withheld, enter into any
agreement or undertaking, or otherwise act to as#lign, transfer or create or suffer the creaifaights of any Person other than a Borrower
or the Lender in or with respect to the Royaltyetasts, Gold, other Products or Copper accruitgg@ccount of a Borrower pursuant
thereto.

7.11 Restrictive and Inconsistent AgreementsNo Borrower will enter into any agreement, Instruniner undertaking or incur or suffer
any obligation prohibiting or inconsistent with therformance by such Borrower of the Obligationg®obligations under any Royalty
Agreement.

7.12 Amount Outstanding. Allow the Amount Outstanding to be greater thanNeximum Availability at any time.

ARTICLE VIII
EVENTS OF DEFAULT

8.1 Events of Default The occurrence of any one or more of the follongéngnts (whether or not in the control of a Borrovatrall
constitute an Event of Default:

(a) Nonpayment. Any Borrower shall (i) fail to pay when due any pagnt of principal, or (ii) within five (5) Busines3ays of the
date when due, fail to pay any payment of inteieasits, fees or any other sums due under this Agat

(b) Covenant Defaults. Any Borrower shall fail to observe or perform amgvenants contained in this Agreement, other than th
covenants referred to in paragraphgbpve, and such Borrower shall have not remedield dafault within 10 days after written notice of
such default has been given by the Lender to theoRers.

(c) Representation or Warranty . Any representation, warranty or statement madeeentdd to be made by a Borrower herein or in
any other Loan Document given hereunder shall ptoveve been untrue in any material respect #sedfime made or deemed made.

(d) CrossDefault . A default shall occur under any Loan Document, Royalty Agreement or any agreement pertaining tbtDe
permitted hereunder; or any Borrower shall fajp&y any Debt with a value in excess of Fifty ThawkBollars ($50,000) (excluding Debt
evidenced by the Note), or any interest or premiineneon, when due (whether by scheduled matugtyyired prepayment, acceleration,
demand or otherwise) and such failure shall coetimftier the applicable grace period, if any, spetiin the Instrument relating to such Debt;
or any other default under any Instrument relatingny such Debt, or any other event, shall ocodrshall continue after the applicable gr
period, if any, specified in such Instrument, i teffect of such default or event is to accelemtéo permit the acceleration of,
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the maturity of such Debt; or any such Debt shaltibclared to be due and payable, or required pdyid (other than by a regularly
scheduled required prepayment), prior to the staiatlirity thereof.

(e) Insolvency. Any Borrower shall generally not pay its debts ashsdebts become due, or shall admit in writingnigility to pay it
debts generally, or shall make a general assignfoettie benefit of creditors; or (i) any Borrowsdrall commence any case, proceeding or
other action (A) under any existing or future lafxaay jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, relatirgliankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or
relief of debtors, seeking to have an order faefaintered with respect to it, or seeking to adjatt it as bankrupt or insolvent, or seeking
reorganization, arrangement, adjustment, wind4gpjdation, dissolution, composition or other réligth respect to it or its debts, or
(B) seeking appointment of a receiver, trusteetazlian or other similar official for it or for aflr any substantial part of its assets, or (ii) ¢her
shall be commenced against any Borrower any susd, paoceeding or other action referred to in @gi)jsabove which (A) results in the
entry of an order for relief or any such adjudieator appointment or (B) remains undismissed, whdisgged or unbonded for a period of
60 days; or any Borrower shall take any other adtioauthorize any of the actions set forth in trasagraph (e)

(f) Involuntary Liens . Any involuntary Lien or Liens for amounts then donehe aggregate sum of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($60)
or more, of any kind or character shall attachntyp @ssets or property of any Borrower if such Laeiens are not discharged or bonded
pending proceedings to release such Lien or Ligtiemsixty (60) days after the date of attachm@mntinless such Lien or Liens are being
contested in good faith.

(g) Judgments. Any judgment or order for the payment of money»oess of One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,004) bk
rendered against any Borrower and there shallgeriad of 30 consecutive days during which suclyfoent or order shall not have been
discharged or a stay of enforcement of such judgmearder, by reason of a pending appeal or otiservghall not be in effect.

(h) Condemnation. Any of the Collateral Royalties are taken by powkexpropriation or eminent domain or sold undee#h of sucl
taking, or possession of any material portion effoject Properties is taken through exerciseich power.

(i) Regulatory Action . Any Governmental Authority shall commence an inigggton or take any action with respect to any Baer
or any Project or the Collateral, which would régula Material Adverse Effect on any Borrower,asd such action is set aside, dismissed or
withdrawn within ninety (90) days of its institutie@r such action is being contested in good faiith its effect is stayed during such contest.

(j) Title to Royalty Interests and Mining Properties . There shall exist a defect or deficiency in titetie Royalty Interests or the
Project Properties (other than as identified inThke Opinion) which results in a Material AdverS&ect, and the Borrowers shall have not
remedied such default within 10 days after writtetice of default has been given by the LendehéoBorrowers.
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(k) Collateral Security . Any of the Liens established or purported to beldithed by the Collateral Agreements shall fabhédfirst
priority perfected Liens in the Collateral, or d@grrower shall so state in writing, and the Borrosvghall have not remedied such default
within 10 days after written notice of default Heesen given by the Lender to the Borrowers.

(I) Adverse Changes to the Pipeline ProjectAny event or change occurs with respect to thellPipé®roject, including, without
limitation, the abandonment or termination or thieirng by power of expropriation or eminent domdimlbor any material portion thereof,
which has a Material Adverse Effect.

(m) Amount Outstanding in Excess of Maximum Availalility . The Amount Outstanding shall exceed the Maximumilabdity at
any time, as the Maximum Availability is determinfedm time to time, and the Borrowers shall haveremedied such default within ten
(10) days after written notice of default has bgeen by the Lender to the Borrowers.

(n) Redirection of Royalties. Any payment or delivery of cash, Products, DelibdeaCopper, proceeds or other amounts owing to any
Borrower with respect to the Royalty Interests kbalpaid or delivered to any Person other tharegsired hereby, and the Borrowers shall
have not remedied such default within ten (10) dter written notice of default has been givertli® Lender to the Borrowers.

(o) Collateral Account. The Borrowers shall fail to maintain in existenbe Collateral Account or shall fail to maintain rihie at all
times the Reserve Amount, and the Borrowers slatlhave remedied such default within 60 days aftiten notice of default has been
given by the Lender to the Borrowers.

8.2 Remedies Upon Event of Default

(a) Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default spettifieSection 8.1(efereof or, in the case of any other Event of Defaigdon
notice by the Lender to the Borrowers of the Leisdelection to declare the Borrowers in defaulg dtbligations of the Lender hereunder
including, without intending any limitation, the h@er’s obligation to lend shall terminate. The date dvictv such notice is sent or, in the ¢
of an Event of Default specified in Section 8.1{ejeof the date of such Event of Default, shathee" Date of Default.”

(b) On the Date of Default, (i) there shall immediateéydue and payable to the Lender an amount egtiaé ttotal principal Amount
Outstanding of the Loan plus interest, fees, exgerend all other amounts owed by any Borroweryauntsto this Agreement and the other
Loan Documents shall immediately become due andlgayand (ii) the commitment of the Lender to Ads@ Loans hereunder shall
terminate.

(c) Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, alihaf remedies provided to the Lender in all of tledla@@eral Agreements shall
immediately become available to the Lender, and_#reder shall have all other rights and remedieslable at law or in equity. The
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enumeration of the rights and remedies of the Lesdeforth in this Agreement and the other Loaroents is not intended to be
exhaustive and the exercise by the Lender of ajht dr remedy shall not preclude the exercise gfather rights and remedies, all of which
shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to ather right or remedy given hereunder or undemther Loan Documents or that may now
or hereafter exist at law or in equity or by suibtherwise.

(d) Except as expressly provided above in this Se&@i@n presentment, demand, protest and all other reotitany kind are hereby
expressly waived. From and after the Date of Defitlerest shall accrue at the Default Rate ardl ble payable on demand.

ARTICLE IX
MISCELLANEOUS

9.1 Notices. All notices, requests, demands, consents or othranwinications in connection with or pursuant ts thgreement shall be
writing and shall be delivered by hand or sentdyistered or certified mail or by facsimile (sueledimile followed by a registered or certi
letter) addressed to the parties as set forth b&owo such other address as the parties may risidpy notice):

If to the Lender:

HSBC Bank USA, National Association
452 Fifth Avenue

New York, New York 10018

Attention: Ted Kavanagh

Facsimile No.: (212) 525-6581

If to any Borrower:

Royal Gold, Inc.

1660 Wynkoop Street, Suite 1000
Denver, Colorado 80202-1132
Attention: Chief Financial Officer
Facsimile No.: (303) 595-9385

A notice delivered by hand to a party shall be deg¢mneceived when delivered. A notice sent by niailldoe deemed received on the fifth
Business Day after mailing. A notice sent by fadirehall be deemed received upon receipt of thevaat confirmation or answer back.
Notices received after 4:00 p.m. local time sheldeemed received on the following d

9.2 Amendments, etc No amendment or waiver of any provision of this égment or the Note, nor consent to any departuthey
Borrowers therefrom, shall in any event be effextimless the same shall be in writing and signetthéy.ender, and then such waiver or
consent shall be effective only in the specifidamse and for the specific purpose for which given.
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9.3 No Waiver; Cumulative Remedies No failure on the part of the Lender to exercisel ao delay in exercising, any right hereunde
under any Note shall operate as a waiver thereofshall any single or partial exercise of any stght preclude any other or further exercise
thereof or the exercise of any other right. Theedi®@s herein provided are cumulative and not ekausf any remedies provided by law.

9.4 Costs and Expenses

(a) The Borrowers agree to pay on demand all costeapenses in connection with the preparation, natgioti, execution, delivery,
registration and administration of this Agreeméimé, Note and the other Loan Documents and any amemis to any thereof including,
without limitation, the reasonable fees and oupofket expenses of counsel and of technical advesad consultants for the Lender with
respect thereto and with respect to advising theleeas to its rights and responsibilities undex Agreement. The Borrowers further agre
pay on demand all losses, costs and expensegy, {frasluding reasonable counsel fees and expenisesynnection with the preservation of
any rights of the Lender under, or the enforcenoéntr legal advice in respect of the rights oprssibilities of the Lender under, this
Agreement, the Note and the other Loan Documemtfyding, without limitation, losses, costs and exges sustained by the Lender as a
result of any failure by any Borrower to performadaserve its obligations contained herein or inNleée held by the Lender or in connection
with any refinancing or restructuring of the Loarthe nature of a “workout.”

(b) If, due to acceleration of the maturity of the Nptesuant to Article Vilhereof or due to any other reason, the Lendervesei
payments of principal of any Loan other than onlésé day of a Borrowing Period relating to suclahpthe Borrowers shall, upon deman
the Lender, pay to the Lender any amounts reqi@r@dmpensate the Lender for any additional lossests or expenses which it may
reasonably incur as a result of such payment, diraty without limitation, any loss (including los$ anticipated profits) cost or expense
incurred by reason of the liquidation or reemplopinaf deposits or other funds acquired by the Lemaléund or maintain such Loan.

9.5 Application of Collateral Account; Right of Setoff . Upon the occurrence and during the continuanceypfaent of Default, the
Lender is hereby authorized at any time and fronetio time, to the fullest extent permitted by lawvapply the credit balances of the
Collateral Account and to seff and apply any and all deposits or other obiaa (general or special, time or demand, provaion final) a
any time held and other indebtedness at any tiniegly the Lender to or for the credit or the agtoaf the Borrowers against any and al
the obligations of the Borrowers now or hereaft@sting under this Agreement, the Note and theotloan Documents, irrespective of
whether or not the Lender shall have made any ddraader this Agreement or otherwise and although sibligations may be unmatured.
The Lender agrees promptly to notify the Borrowadtsr any such setff and application made by the Lender, provideat the failure to giv
such notice shall not affect the validity of sueltraff and application. The rights of the Lender untlés Section are in addition to other rig
and remedies (including, without limitation, othights to set-off) which the Lender may have.
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9.6 Usury Savings; Limitation on Interest. It is the intention of the parties hereto to cocitia strict compliance with applicable usury
law from time to time in effect. In furtherance teef the parties stipulate and agree that nonkefdrms and provisions contained herein and
in the other Loan Documents shall ever be constioedeate a contract for the use, forbearancetntion of money, or a contract to pay
interest, in excess of the maximum amount of irstepermitted to be charged by applicable law franetto time in effect. Neither the
Borrowers nor any future guarantors or other pattiereafter becoming liable for payment of the Beers’ indebtedness to the Lender shall
ever be required to pay interest thereon in excEee maximum interest that may be lawfully charge contracted for under applicable law
from time to time in effect, and the provisiongloit Section 9.8hall control over all other provisions hereof bthe other Loan Documents
which may be in conflict or apparent conflict herwlIf the maturity of the Borrowershdebtedness to the Lender or any part thereof bh
accelerated for any reason, any amounts held tstibate interest, which are then unearned and tiearetofore been collected by the Lender
or any other holder of such indebtedness, shadigpdied to reduce the principal balance thereaf thestanding. In the event that the Lender
or any other holder of the Borrowers’ indebtedrteshie Lender shall collect monies that are deerm@dnstitute interest which would
otherwise increase the effective interest on thed®eers’ indebtedness to the Lender or any paretifdo an amount in excess of that
permitted to be charged by applicable law therffimcg all such sums deemed to constitute intereekcess of such legal limit shall be either
immediately returned to the Borrowers or other pakiereof upon such determination or applied a®ditagainst the then unpaid principal
of the Borrowers’ indebtedness, at the option efltbnder or other holder. In determining whethenatrthe interest paid or payable under
any specific contingency exceeds the maximum ampamhitted under applicable law, the Borrowers (ang other payor thereof) and the
Lender shall, to the greatest extent permitted uagplicable law (a) characterize any non-princtment as an expense, fee or premium
rather than as interest, (b) exclude voluntary gyerents and the effects thereof, and (c) amomieate, allocate or spread the total amount
of interest throughout the entire contemplated teftie instruments evidencing the Borrowenslebtedness to the Lender in accordance
the amounts outstanding from time to time thereuadd the maximum legal rate of interest from timéime in effect under applicable law
in order to lawfully charge the maximum amountrierest permitted under applicable law. Upon amhsietermination, to the extent
permitted by law, the Lender or other holder shatlbe subject to any penalty provided for chargiageiving or contracting for interest in
excess of any such maximum legal rate, regardfesten or the circumstances under which such refurapplication was made.

9.7 Binding Effect; Assignment of Rights This Agreement shall become effective when it shalle been executed by the parties hereto
and thereafter shall be binding upon and inuré¢adbdenefit of the Borrowers and the Lender and tiespective successors, transferees and
assigns; providethat the Borrowers shall not have the right togfanor assign any of their rights or obligatiomsdunder or any interest
herein without the prior written consent of the den The Lender may at any time, without the coneéthe Borrowers, assign or transfer by
way of assignment, participation or novation to argnch or affiliate of the Lender or to any finahénstitution all or any part of, or any
interest in the Lender’s rights and benefits anlijakions hereunder and under the Note issuedhergunder or the other Loan Documents;
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providedthat such transfer or assignment does not dimthishiights or increase the obligations of the Begis, and to the extent of such
assignment such assignee shall have the same aigthisenefits vis-a-vis the Borrowers as it wowddhad if it were the Lender hereunder,
and all references in this Agreement to the Lestiail thereafter be construed as a reference tbehder and its transferee or transferees or,
in the case of a transfer of all of its rights, éf#s and obligations, to its transferee or traresfg alone. For the purposes hereof, the Lender
may disclose to a potential transferee such inftionmabout the Borrowers, their businesses, assetdinancial condition as the Lender shall
consider appropriate. Nothing contained hereinl ffeatonstrued to prevent the Lender from granbyngvay of sub-participation (being a
right to share in the financial effects of this Agment without any rights against the Borrowerg)sir participation in all or any of its rights
and benefits hereunder to any person without theet of the Borrowers; providdidat such transfer or assignment does not dimihish
rights or increase the obligations of the Borrowarsl that such transfer is done in compliance ajiplicable laws; providegdfurther, that
upon any such assignment the Lender will act anteaged will be the sole party with whom the Borresvare required to have dealings when
no Event of Default is outstanding.

9.8 Consent to Jurisdiction.

(a) EACH BORROWER HEREBY IRREVOCABLY SUBMITS TO THE JUBDICTION OF ANY STATE OR FEDERAL COURT
SITTING IN NEW YORK, NEW YORK OVER ANY SUIT, ACTIONOR PROCEEDING (A ‘PROCEEDING ") ARISING OUT OF OR
RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, THE NOTE OR THE COLLATRAL AGREEMENTS AND EACH BORROWER HEREBY
IRREVOCABLY AGREES THAT ALL CLAIMS IN RESPECT OF AM SUCH PROCEEDING MAY BE HEARD AND DETERMINED
IN SUCH STATE COURT OR, TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BlYAW, IN SUCH FEDERAL COURT. EACH BORROWER HEREBY
IRREVOCABLY WAIVES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT IT MAY EFECTIVELY DO SO, THE DEFENSE OF AN INCONVENIENT
FORUM OR IMPROPER VENUE TO THE MAINTENANCE OF ANYWCH PROCEEDING. EACH BORROWER IRREVOCABLY
CONSENTS TO THE SERVICE OF ANY AND ALL PROCESS INNY SUCH PROCEEDING BY THE MAILING OF COPIES OF
SUCH PROCESS TO SUCH BORROWER AT ITS ADDRESS REFERR O IN SECTION 9.HEREOF. EACH BORROWER AGREE
THAT A FINAL JUDGMENT IN ANY SUCH PROCEEDING SHALIBE CONCLUSIVE AND MAY BE EXECUTED UPON AND
ENFORCED IN OTHER JURISDICTIONS BY SUIT ON THE JUDMENT OR IN ANY OTHER MANNER PROVIDED BY LAW.

(b) NOTHING IN THIS SECTION 9.88HALL AFFECT THE RIGHT OF THE LENDER TO SERVE LEGARROCESS IN ANY
OTHER MANNER PERMITTED BY LAW OR AFFECT THE RIGHT BTHE LENDER TO BRING ANY SUIT, ACTION OR
PROCEEDING AGAINST A BORROWER OR ITS PROPERTY IN EKLOURTS OF OTHER JURISDICTIONS. THE TAKING OF AP
PROCEEDINGS IN ANY ONE OR MORE JURISDICTIONS SHAINOT PRECLUDE THE TAKING OF ANY PROCEEDINGS IN AN
OTHER JURISDICTION.
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(c) EACH BORROWER AND THE LENDER HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIE ALL RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY
PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM ARISING OUT OF OR RELAYG TO THIS AGREEMENT, THE NOTE, THE COLLATERAL
AGREEMENTS AND ANY OTHER LOAN DOCUMENTS REFERRED TBEREIN OR THE OBLIGATIONS UNDER ANY THEREO}

9.9 Governing Law. THIS AGREEMENT, AND ANY INSTRUMENT OR AGREEMENT REQIRED HEREUNDER, UNLESS
OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY PROVIDED HEREIN OR THEREISHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK,ROVIDED, HOWEVER, THAT THE MORTGAGES SHALL
BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED UNDER THE LAWS OF THETATE OF NEVADA AND ANY FINANCING STATEMENTS
FILED PURSUANT HERETO SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONRUED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE IN WHICH THE
ARE FILED.

9.10 Counterparts; Signatures This Agreement may be executed in counterpart$y ebwhich shall be deemed to be an original ahd al
of such counterparts together shall constituteamkthe same instrument. This Agreement may bdlyadkecuted and delivered by facsin
or other electronic transmission, and a signatyriabsimile or other electronic transmission sballas effective and binding as an original
signature.

9.11 Confidentiality; Public Announcements.

(a) The Lender agrees to use best efforts to ensuranlyanformation concerning the Borrowers, the &tylnterests or the Projects
obtained by the Lender or any of the Lender’s autkd agents or representatives which is not coathin a report or other document filed
with a securities commission or regulatory autlyouistributed by the Borrowers to their sharehodde otherwise available to the public
generally (other than by the Lender’s breach of¢heonfidentiality obligations) will, to the extgmérmitted by law and except as may be
required by valid subpoena (including rules anditatipns of the United States Securities Exchangmi@ission), any governmental autho
having jurisdiction over the Lender or other extdnmeporting requirements, be treated confidemyidly the Lender’'s employees, agents or
representatives who have a reasonable need to gmdwinformation. These confidentiality obligatiastwll survive the term of this
Agreement by one year.

(b) Public announcements or reports by any Borrowénfofmation relating to this Agreement or the Lerigiéinancing provided for
herein (whether given to stock exchanges or ottseshall be made only on the basis of agreed égyoved by the Lender in advance of
issuance, except to the extent required by Reqeintsrof Law, applicable court order or rules obpplicable stock exchange.

9.12 Joint and Several Liability. Each of the Borrowers acknowledges that (i) it téborrower hereunder and shall be jointly and
severally, with the other Borrower, directly anéhmarily liable for the payment and performancehs Note and the Obligations, regardles
which Borrower actually receives Loans or the antatfisuch Loans received, (ii) each of the Borrasnarall have the obligation of a co-
maker and shall be a primary obligor with respect t
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the Loans, the Note and the other Obligationsgiitdp agreed that the Loans to each Borrower irutke benefit of both Borrowers, and

(iiif) the Lender is relying on such joint and sealdiability of the Borrowers in entering into tidggreement and extending the Loans. Each
Borrower hereby unconditionally and irrevocablyesg that upon default in the payment when due ypancipal, interest, fee or other
amount hereunder, it will forthwith pay the samé&haut notice of demand. The Lender shall be estitb rely upon any notice, request or
communication received by it from any Borrower @half of both Borrowers, and shall be entitledréat its giving of any notice hereunder
pursuant to Section 9.1 hereof as notice to eadtaliBorrowers.

9.13 Entire Agreement. This Agreement, the Schedules and Exhibits hensdcttae other Loan Documents, constitute the entire
agreement between the Lender and the Borrowersresihect to the various commitments by the Lenuéne Borrowers and indebtednes:
the Borrowers to the Lender to be incurred undisrAlygreement; and no other agreements, promispsegentations and warranties (express
or implied), except those expressly set forth lrehaive been relied upon by the Borrower or have besde by the Lender. This Agreement
restates, replaces and supersedes all prior agnéeared understandings, both written and oral, deiwvthe parties, with respect to the subject
matter hereof.

[ REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK ]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersignesi daused this Agreement to be duly executed arvkded by its respective duly
authorized officers as of the day and year firsivabwritten.

LENDER:
HSBC BANK USA, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
By: /s/ William S. Edge Il|

William S. Edge, llI
Managing Director

By: /sl P. E. Kavanag
P. E. Kavanagh
Senior Vice Presiden

BORROWERS
ROYAL GOLD, INC.
By: /s/ Tony Jense

Name: Tony Jensel
Title: President & CEC

HIGH DESERT MINERAL RESOURCES, INC.

By: /s/ Tony Jense
Name: Tony Jensel
Title: Presiden

Second Amended and Restated Loan Agree

Signature Pag
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Exhibit 10.¢
Assessor’s Parcel Number: n/a — royalty intereft on
Mail Tax Statements to and Recorded at the reaiest
HSBC Bank USA, National Association

c/o Joel Benson, Esq., Davis Graham & Stubbs LLP,
1550 Seventeenth Street, Suite 500,
Denver, Colorado 80202

The undersigned affirms that this document contamSocial Security numbers.

SUPPLEMENTAL MORTGAGE, DEED OF TRUST, SECURITY AGRE EMENT,
PLEDGE AND FINANCING STATEMENT

FROM
HIGH DESERT MINERAL RESOURCES, INC., as Trustor
TO
STEWART TITLE OF NORTHEASTERN NEVADA, as Trustee
AND
HSBC BANK USA, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as Beneficiary
DATED AS OF January 5, 2007

By: /s/ Joel O. Benson
Joel O. Benson, attorney
For HSBC Bank USA, National Association
1550 Seventeenth Street
Suite 500
Denver, Colorado 80202
303-892-7470

WHEN RECORDED, RETURN TO
Joel O. Benson, Esq.

Davis Graham & Stubbs LLP

1550 17th Street, Suite 500
Denver, CO 80202




SUPPLEMENTAL MORTGAGE, DEED OF TRUST, SECURITY AGRE EMENT,
PLEDGE AND FINANCING STATEMENT

THIS SUPPLEMENTAL MORTGAGE, DEED OF TRUST, SBRITY AGREEMENT, PLEDGE AND FINANCING STATEMENT
(this “Supplemental Mortgage”) is entered into loylaamong High Desert Mineral Resources, Inc., @a®ate corporation, whose address is
1660 Wynkoop Street, Suite 1000, Denver, Colors@08-1132 (herein called “Trustor”), Stewart TitENortheastern Nevada, (herein
called “Trustee”), and HSBC Bank USA, National Asisdion (herein called “Beneficiary”), a nationalriking association organized under
the laws of the United States, whose address is~#82Avenue, New York, New York 10018.

Recitals

A. As aresult of, and as contemplated int tieatain Second Amended and Restated Loan Agrdethaged as of January 5, 2007, among
the Trustor, as a borrower, Royal Gold, Inc., &s@ower, and the Beneficiary, as the lender (thmah Agreement”), the Trustor, the Trustee
and the Beneficiary entered into that certain Magey Deed of Trust, Security Agreement, PledgeFamaihcing Statement, dated January 5,
2007, which was recorded with the Office of the @yuClerk and Recorder, Eureka County, Nevadaaomdry 10, 2007, at Document
No. 0207455 at Book 450, Pages 1 to 35 “Mortgage”). The Mortgage secures Trustor’s promupd complete payment and performance of
the Obligations (as defined in the Loan Agreement).

B. Since the execution, delivery, and recaydihthe Mortgage, the Trustor has obtained cer@alty rights and interests in real property
located in Eureka County, Nevada, due to the abandat and relocation of certain unpatented miniagres that are burdened by the
Trustor’s carried interest in such properties. e to include the newly located claims within greperties covered by the Mortgage of-
record in Eureka County, the parties have enteridthis Supplemental Mortgage, and the partiestheagree that the royalty rights and
interests in real property as more fully set out dascribed in Exhibits And Battached hereto and incorporated herein by refer@he
“Supplemental Properties”), are subject to the dad encumbrance of the Mortgage.

C. The Mortgage covers, includes, and extémad right, title, and interest in and to royaftiand real property acquired by Trustor after
the date of the Mortgage, and Trustor is requicespplement, update, and amend the Mortgage lisdi@@nd incorporate all such after-
acquired rights and interests in the Mortgage obré. Unless otherwise defined in this Supplemeviadtgage, capitalized terms used herein
which are defined in the Mortgage shall have theeseneanings as the meanings assigned to suchitethesMortgage.

D. Trustor desires hereby to supplement anenainthe Mortgage to subject the Supplemental Ptiegdp the lien and encumbrance of the
Mortgage and to include the Supplemental Propeirtidise Collateral covered by the Mortgage. Trustiother desires to acknowledge and
confirm the Mortgage, as supplemented and ameneleb.

WHEN RECORDED, RETURN TO
Joel O. Benson, Esq.

Davis Graham & Stubbs LLP

1550 17th Street, Suite 500
Denver, CO 80202




E. This instrument is to be recorded as a §bé and filed as a financing statement pursuathiet@niform Commercial Code, and is
intended to be effective as: (1) a Mortgage ofrthalty interests and other real property describe@in; (2) a financing statement covering
minerals to be extracted from the properties deedrherein, accounts resulting from the sale aagtbceeds thereof; and (3) a financing
statement covering all other personal propertyuided in the Supplemental Properties describedrerei

Agreement

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the sunoioé dollar paid by the Trustee to the Trustor attilme of the execution and delivery
this Supplemental Mortgage, and for other goodaidable consideration, the receipt and sufficieoicyhich are hereby acknowledged,
Trustor hereby agrees as follows:

Trustor does hereby MORTGAGE, WARRANT, GRANBARGAIN, SELL, ASSIGN, TRANSFER, AND CONVEY unto Ustee, its
successors and assigns, forever, the Supplemeaniafles, with a power of sale subject to the saithe Mortgage, for the benefit of the
Beneficiary; to have and to hold the Supplementap®rties, together with all and singular the riglptrivileges, contracts, and appurtenances
now or hereafter at any time before the foreclosunmelease hereof, in any way appertaining orrgglg thereto, unto the Trustee and its
substitutes or successors, forever, in trust, upererms and conditions herein set forth; andrtlustor hereby binds and obligates itself and
its successors and assigns, to warrant and todiedéirand singular, title to the Supplemental rtips unto the Trustee, its substitutes or
successors, forever, against the claims of anyaliqmbrsons whomsoever claiming any part thereof.

Trustor does hereby also grant to Trustesuitsessors and assigns, for the benefit of thefi@éary, a continuing security interest in,
pledge over and assignment of, all portions of3bpplemental Properties constituting Personaltya@ohl, and in all Proceeds thereof.

This Supplemental Mortgage is executed, ackedged, and delivered by Trustor, for the bendfthe Beneficiary, to secure and enforce
the prompt and complete payment and performanteeoDbligations. The Supplemental Properties areldyeincorporated into the Mortga
and the Supplemental Properties are included ohfamn part of, the Collateral under the Mortgagkis Supplemental Mortgage forms part
of, and is subject to the terms and conditionshaf,Mortgage.

1. Trustor hereby (a) remakes and restatds @fdts representations and warranties in the Yyaage, effective as of the date of this
Supplemental Mortgage, which representations amrdawges are incorporated herein by reference faglyf set forth herein, and
(b) represents and warrants that (i) the descripiidche Supplemental Properties described in Highiband Bhereto is true, complete, and
accurate in all respects, (ii) this Supplementattiytage has been duly authorized, executed, andedet by Trustor, (iii) this Supplemental
Mortgage is binding upon and enforceable agairesfTtiustor in accordance with its terms, and (ivdeéault or event of default, however
defined, under the Mortgage or any agreement nefecktherein, has
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occurred and is continuing or will occur as a reefithe execution and delivery of this SupplemEktartgage.

2. This Supplemental Mortgage shall constitugzcurity agreement with respect to the pergmoglerty in which Trustee has been gra
a security interest hereby, and shall constititeamcing statement pursuant to the Uniform Comiaé€ode to be filed in the real estate
records of the respective counties in which thepBampental Properties and Collateral are located.

3. Trustor agrees that (a) this Supplementadtiyhge relates to and forms part of the Mortgégethe Mortgage as amended and
supplemented by this Supplemental Mortgage, ishlyeratified, approved, confirmed, and continue@ach and every respect, and (c) the
Mortgage remains in full force and effect in ac@rde with its terms. Nothing contained herein shaltonstrued or deemed to release,
terminate, limit, or act as a novation of, in whoten part, the Mortgage or any loan, promissastenagreement, guaranty, lien, mortgage,
deed, pledge, assignment, or grant of securityastggranted pursuant thereto or associated thigrenwdf any right or interest of the Trustee
in and to the Collateral, including the SupplemERtaperties. All references to the Mortgage in ather agreement, document, or instrun
shall hereafter be deemed to refer to the Mortgageupplemented and amended hereby. The exealdiibrery, and effectiveness of this
Supplemental Mortgage shall not operate or be ddeémeperate as a waiver of any rights, powersewredies of the Trustee under the
Mortgage or any other agreement or constitute &evaif any provision thereof.

4. This Supplemental Mortgage shall be bindipgn and inure to the benefit of the Trustor, Thestee and the Beneficiary, and their
respective successors and assigns, as permittin bortgage.

5. This Supplemental Mortgage, insofar a®itgins to Royalty Interests and Personalty Calidilecated in the State of Nevada, shall be
governed by the laws of Nevada. This Supplementatgage, insofar as it constitutes a common lawigsewith respect to the Collateral
Account, shall be governed by the laws of New Y&¥ith respect to all other Collateral, this Mortgaghall be governed by the laws of the
state in which the collateral is located.

Remainder of this page intentionally blank
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Trustor has duly exeduand delivered this Supplemental Mortgage dbeoflate set forth below.

Executed as of January 5, 2007.

ATTEST:
[Corporate Seal

/sl Karen Gros

Secretary

(Name and Title

TRUSTOR:
HIGH DESERT MINERAL RESOURCES, INC

By: /sl Tony Jense

Name Tony Jensel

Title:  Presiden




STATE OF COLORADC )
CITY AND ) ss
COUNTY OF DENVER )

On January 5, 2007 personally appeared beferea notary public, Tony Jensen, the PresideHigii Desert Mineral Resources, Inc., a
Delaware corporation, who acknowledged that he @eecthe above instrument.

Witness my hand and official seal.
My commission expires April 5, 2007

/s/ Linda L. Brown
Notary Public

[Seal]






AMENDED AND RESTATED
MORTGAGE, DEED OF TRUST, SECURITY AGREEMENT,
PLEDGE AND FINANCING STATEMENT

FROM
ROYAL GOLD, INC., as Trustor
TO
STEWART TITLE OF NORTHEASTERN NEVADA, as Trustee
AND
HSBC BANK USA, National Association, as Beneficiary
DATED AS OF JANUARY 5, 2007

THIS INSTRUMENT CONTAINS AFTER-ACQUIRED PROPERTY RR/ISIONS.
THIS INSTRUMENT SECURES FUTURE ADVANCES.

THIS DOCUMENT WAS PREPARED BY
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Joel O. Benson, Esq.

Davis Graham & Stubbs LLP

1550 Seventeenth Street, Suite 500
Denver, Colorado 80202
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AMENDED AND RESTATED
MORTGAGE, DEED OF TRUST, SECURITY AGREEMENT,
PLEDGE AND FINANCING STATEMENT

This Amended and Restated Mortgage, Deed ustTSecurity Agreement, Pledge and Financing it (the “Mortgage”) is entered
into by and among Royal Gold, Inc., a Delaware cmapon, whose address is 1660 Wynkoop Streete30i00, Denver, Colorado 80202-
1132 (herein called “Trustor”), Stewart Title of Klueastern Nevada, (herein called “Trustee”), agBH Bank USA, National Association
(herein called “Beneficiary”), a bank organized anthe laws of the State of New York, whose addie482 Fifth Avenue, New York, New
York 10018.

RECITALS

A. The Trustor, Trustee and Beneficiary erdengo that certain Mortgage, Deed of Trust, Sdgukgreement, Pledge and Financing
Statement, effective as of December 14, 2005 wiviah recorded with the Office of the County Clerkl &ecorder, Eureka County, Nevada
on__ ,number___ inBook __ ,Pages___ (as amdesnuld modified prior to the date hereof, the “EngsMortgage”).As a result of and ¢
contemplated in that certain Second Amended anthiRelsLoan Agreement dated as of December ____,, 2@dween Trustor, as borrower,
and Beneficiary, as lender (the “Loan Agreemeritig, Trustor, Trustee and Beneficiary desire to ainesstate, modify and continue the
Existing Mortgage as provided herein.

B. This Mortgage secures the Trussqstompt and complete payment and performancd 6ftdigations under, and as defined in, the L
Agreement. It is a condition precedent to the Biersly making “Loans” to the Trustor under, andda$ined in, the Loan Agreement that the
Trustor shall have granted and perfected the B@ssecurity interests contemplated by this Morgag

C. The Existing Mortgage is hereby amendedtiooed and restated in its entirety as set foetteim.
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree lkais:

ARTICLE 1 - DEFINITIONS
Section 1.1 _ Defined Term§&or the purposes of this instrument:
“Collateral” includes Personalty Collatkand Realty Collateral as hereinafter defined.

“Debt Service Reserve Account” meansraated deposit account of Trustor at the officedefBeneficiary in New York, New York,
Account Number 66C-003556, and all
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other accounts which may be maintained from timgnte by Trustor in accordance with the Loan Agream
“Dollars” mean lawful money of the Unit&dates of America.
“Effective Date” means January 5, 2007.
“Obligations” means the aggregate of:

(i) all amounts payable pursuant to @sdamended and restated promissory note, dateddah, 2007, payable in full on or before
December 31, 2010, executed by Trustor, payaltleet@rder of the Beneficiary, in the principal facaount of Eighty Million Dollars
($80,000,000) (referred to herein as the “NoteXpauted and delivered pursuant to the Loan Agregmen

(i) any and all other or additional itdedness or liabilities for which Trustor is nowroay become liable to Beneficiary in any
manner, whether under this instrument, the Loare@grent or any other Loan Document (as definedan.tan Agreement), either primarily
or secondarily, absolutely or contingently, dirgat indirectly, jointly, severally, or jointly anskverally, and whether matured or unmatured,
and whether or not created after payment in futhefObligations if this instrument shall not hdeen released of record by Beneficiary;

(i) all sums advanced and costs anceagps incurred by the Trustee or the Beneficiagluding without limitation all legal,
accounting, engineering, management, consultindgi@fees, made and incurred in connection with@digations described in paragraphs
() and (ii) above or any part thereof, any rengwatension or modification of, or substitution,fdre foregoing Obligations or any part
thereof, or the acquisition, perfection or mainte®and preservation of the security therefor, iresuch advances, costs or expenses shall
have been made and incurred at the request oféeuBeneficiary or Trustor; and

(iv) any and all extensions and renewélsubstitutions for, or modifications or amendnsesf any of the foregoing Obligations or any
part thereof.

“Personalty Collateral” means all of Twrss interest now owned or hereafter acquirednd t: (i) all Products attributable to the
Royalty Interests, (ii) all Production Sales Coatsa (iii) all Royalty Agreements, (iv) all RefineAccounts, (v) the Debt Service Reserve
Account, and (vi) all accounts, contract rights gederal intangibles now existing or hereafteriagisn connection with the exploration for,
production, processing, treatment, storage, traesjian, manufacture or sale of Products attribletads the Royalty Interests.

“Proceeds” includes whatever is receiupdn the sale, exchange, collection or other ditipasof the Collateral and insurance payable
or damages or other payments by reason of losaroade to the Collateral, and all additions thergtbstitutions and replacements thereof or
accessions thereto.
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“Production Sales Contract” means eacttract now in effect or hereafter entered into bystor or Trustor’s predecessors in title for
the sale, purchase, exchange or processing of ewodtiributable to the Royalty Interests.

“Products” means without limitation aleg minerals, concentrate, doré, bar, and refirmdd, gilver or other metals.

“Realty Collateral” means all of Trustihterest in and to the Royalty Interests, inatgdbut not limited to, the interests of Trustor
described or specified in Partsll and_lll of Exhibit A hereto.

“Refinery Accounts” means accounts, dreldredit balances in Dollars or Products thewi,rustor at any refinery or processing
facility to which Products attributable to the Rtiydnterests are delivered, expressly includingaatounts of Trustor presently in effect at
Johnson Matthey in Salt Lake City, Utah.

“Royalty Agreements” means the agreemielastified in_Part IVof Exhibit A which create, define or otherwise pertain to thgdRy
Interests, as of the Effective Date, and all odgreements to which Trustor is a party which pertaithe Royalty Interests.

“Royalty Interests” means the royaltyeirgsts and estates and other interests of Truotified in_Part bf Exhibit A attached hereto
and made a part hereof, in the lands describediits B and Il of Exhibit A, whether now owned or hereafter acquired, or ahgraRoyalty
Interest acquired with the proceeds of the Loampmration of law or otherwise, together with dllToustor’s interests of any nature
whatsoever now or hereafter incident or appurtettareto, including, but not limited to, fee minlesiad surface interests in said lands, all
unsevered and unextracted Products in, underrdvwgtble to Trustor’s interests in the royaltyeir@st and estates and other interests of
Trustor identified in Part of Exhibit A hereto, in the lands described in Partarid 111 of Exhibit A and in any other royalty interests, estates
and other interests in lands acquired with the geds of Loans, and all rights of way, surface leazed easements affecting the foregoing
interests of Trustor or useful or appropriate iplexing and/or producing, processing, treating,diiaiy, storing, transporting or marketing
Products therefrom.

ARTICLE 2 - CREATION OF SECURITY

Section 2.1 _ Graniin consideration of the Beneficiary’s advancimgertending the funds or credit constituting thdi@diions, and in
consideration of the mutual covenants containedihgand for the purpose of securing payment ofdhlgations, Trustor hereby grants,
bargains, sells, warrants, mortgages, assignsferanand conveys the Realty Collateral to the t€rjswith power of sale subject to the terms
thereof, for the benefit of Beneficiary; to havelda hold the Realty Collateral, together withaild singular the rights, privileges, contracts,
and appurtenances now or hereafter at any timed#ie foreclosure or release hereof, in any waesdpining or belonging thereto, unto the
Trustee and to its substitutes or successors,doregvtrust, upon the terms and conditions hesetrforth; and Trustor hereby binds and
obligates itself and its successors and assignsatant and to defend, all and
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singular, title to the Collateral unto the Trustié® substitutes or successors, forever, agaiestiims of any and all persons whomsoever
claiming any part thereof.

Section 2.2 _ Creation of Security Interdst addition to the grant contained_in Section,2ahd for the same consideration and purpose,
Trustor hereby grants to the Beneficiary, a fired @rior security interest in all Personalty Cadtat, now owned or hereafter acquired by
Trustor, and in all Proceeds. Trustor, without ting the foregoing provisions of this Section 2<2ipulates that the grant made by this
Section 2.2ncludes a grant of a security interest in Prodestsacted from or attributable to the Royalty hetts and in the Proceeds
resulting from sale of such Products, such secintgrest to attach to such Products as extragtddathe accounts resulting from such sales.

Section 2.3 _ Pledgdrustor hereby makes a common law pledge to #reeBciary of the Debt Service Reserve AccountthedRefinery
Accounts, and the credit balances therein from tiorteme.

Section 2.4 _ Proceed¥he security interest of Beneficiary hereundethim Proceeds shall not be construed to mean #agfigiary
consents to the sale or other disposition of amygfehe Collateral other than Products extradteth or attributable to the Royalty Interests
and sold in the ordinary course of business.

Section 2.5 _ Substitution of Beneficiary Taustor. This instrument shall be effective, at the Betiafy’s option and as allowed by
applicable law, as a mortgage as well as a de&distf and every grant herein to the Trustee @frasts, powers, rights and remedies shall
likewise be a grant of the same interests, powigyists and remedies to the Beneficiary, as mortga§ebject to applicable law, Beneficiary
shall in all instances, and in its sole discretelect whether this instrument shall be effectis@anortgage or as a deed of trust.

Section 2.6 _ Continuing Status of Lien, Sagunterest and Pledge

(a) The Loan Agreement and the Note ml@¥or a revolving loan or loans from the Benefigito the Trustor pursuant to which, for
period specified in the Loan Agreement and in tliéeNand subject to the terms and conditions of.tien Agreement, the Trustor may
borrow, repay and reborrow funds from the Beneffici&o long as the commitment of the Beneficiargemhe Loan Agreement to advance
funds to the Trustor remains in effect, the lierttom Realty Collateral and the security interestnid pledge relating to the Personalty
Collateral created hereby shall remain in effechwhe priority date established by the recordin§jlimg hereof, notwithstanding the fact that
from time to time the outstanding balance of trenkoto the Trustor under the Loan Agreement mazebe

(b) This Mortgage amends, restates antirages the Existing Mortgage and nothing contaimein shall be deemed or construed to
be a repayment, satisfaction or novation of theédakibns or to release, terminate, novate or invaay limit or impair any lien, security
interest or encumbrance granted or given undeExiging Mortgage or otherwise to secure the Olilges.
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ARTICLE 3 - ASSIGNMENT OF PRODUCTION PROCEEDS

Section 3.1 _ AssignmenAs further security for the payment of the Obligas, the Trustor hereby assigns to the Beneficigifective
upon an Event of Default, all Products (and thecPeds therefrom) which are extracted from or atteble to the Royalty Interests and,
effective automatically upon an Event of Defaulg Trustor hereby transfers, assigns, warrantsandeys to Beneficiary all Products (and
the Proceeds therefrom) which are extracted froattobutable to the Royalty Interests. Upon theusgence of an Event of Default, all
persons producing, purchasing and receiving suctuets or the Proceeds therefrom are authorizediaacted to treat Beneficiary as the
person entitled in Trustor’s place and stead teivecthe same; and further, those persons willbg rotected in so treating Beneficiary and
will be under no obligation to see to the applicatby Beneficiary of any Proceeds received byritistor agrees that, if, after the occurrence
of an Event of Default, any Proceeds from such &ctslare paid to Trustor, such proceeds shall totestrust funds in the hands of Trustor,
shall be segregated from all other funds of Truatat separately held by Trustor, and shall be fadtthpaid over by Trustor to Beneficiary in
accordance with the Loan Agreement. Upon the oeoge of an Event of Default, Trustor shall, if aviden requested by Beneficiary,
execute and file with any production purchaseaadfer order or other instrument declaring Benaficto be entitled to the Proceeds of
severed Products and instructing such purchagetsuch Proceeds to Beneficiary. After the ocaumeeof an Event of Default, should any
purchaser fail to make payment promptly to Benaficiof the proceeds derived from the sale the@efieficiary shall have the right, subject
only to any contractual rights of such purchaseargr operator, to designate another purchaserrtthpse and take such Products, without
liability of any kind on Beneficiary in making susklection so long as ordinary care is used ineespereof.

Section 3.2 _ Trustar Payment DutiesNothing contained herein will limit Trustor’s guto make payment on the Obligations when the
Proceeds received by Beneficiary pursuant to_thiclé 3are insufficient to pay the costs, interest, ppatiand any other portion of the
Obligations then owing, and the receipt of ProcdsdBeneficiary will be in addition to all other@eity now or hereafter existing to secure
payment of the Obligations.

Section 3.3 _ Liability of BeneficiaryBeneficiary has no obligation to enforce collentof any Proceeds and is hereby released from all
responsibility in connection therewith, except tesponsibility to account to Trustor for Proceedsially received.

Section 3.4 _ IndemnificatiarTrustor agrees to indemnify Beneficiary agaimst hold Beneficiary harmless from all claims, aetip
liabilities, losses, judgments, attorneys’ feests@nd expenses and other charges of any desonptiatsoever (all of which are hereafter
referred to in this Section 3.4 as “Claimsipde against or sustained or incurred by Bene¥iciara consequence of the assertion, either t
or after the payment in full of the ObligationsatiBeneficiary received Products or Proceeds puatdoahis instrument. Beneficiary will ha
the right to employ attorneys and to defend againgtClaims and unless furnished with satisfaciodgmnity, after notice to Trustor,
Beneficiary will have the right to pay or comproma&nd adjust all Claims in its sole reasonablereigm. Trustor shall indemnify and pay to
Beneficiary all amounts paid by Beneficiary in campise or adjustment of any of the Claims or ams@adfudged against Beneficiary in
respect of any of the Claims. The liabilities ofi$tor as set
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forth in this Section 3.4 will constitute Obligati® and will survive the termination of this instrem.

ARTICLE 4 - TRUSTOR’S WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS

Section 4.1 _ Payment of ObligationErustor covenants that it will pay all Obligat®when due and otherwise faithfully and strictly
perform all obligations of Trustor under the Ndte Loan Agreement and any other instrument or uhecu executed and delivered in
connection with the Obligations. If any part of thbligations is not evidenced by a writing specifyia due date, Trustor agrees to pay the
same upon demand. All Obligations are payable tweBeiary as provided in the Loan Agreement.

Section 4.2 Warranties and Covenants

(a) Trustor warrants and covenants that:

(i) no approval or consent of any regutator administrative commission or authority oraofy other governmental body or any of
party is necessary to authorize the execution afidety of this instrument or of any other writtrstrument constituting or evidencing the
Obligations, or to authorize the observance orquardnce by Trustor of the covenants containedarirtetruments constituting or
evidencing the Obligations, or to authorize theepbance or performance by Trustor of the covenemtsained in this instrument or in the
other written instruments constituting or evidemgcihe Obligations or to enable the Beneficiaryxereise its rights hereunder;

(i) Trustor is not obligated, by virteé a prepayment arrangement under any Productitas &ontract containing a “take or pay”
clause or any other prepayment arrangement, teestéfroducts produced from the Royalty Interestoate future time without then or
thereafter receiving full payment therefor; andskan, without Beneficiary’s prior written conseshall not hereafter make any such
prepayment arrangements, other than by a custoftzey or pay” clause contained in a Production $&entract; and

(iii) it has not (since 1987) used anypmwate name or done business under a name o#ireRibyal Gold, Inc., and that it will not do
so, or relocate its chief executive office outsidi¢he State of Colorado without at least thirtyslgorior notice to the Beneficiary.

(b) Trustor warrants and shall foreveiedd the Collateral against every person whomsolevéully claiming the same or any part
thereof, and Trustor shall maintain and preserediém and security interest herein created umiil instrument has been terminated as
provided herein.

Section 4.3 _ Operation of Property Burdewét Royalty Interests As long as this instrument has not been termihateustor shall, at
Trustor's own expense, use commercially reasoreffibets, consistent with its status as a hon-exagutoyalty interest holder and
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consistent with Trustor’s rights and obligationslenthe Royalty Agreements, to cause the operatoffhe properties subject to the Royalty
Interests to:

(a) comply fully with all of the terms @onditions of all leases and other instrumentilefand all rights-of-way, easements and
privileges necessary for the proper operation ohdeases and instruments, and otherwise do athshiecessary to keep Trustor’s rights and
Beneficiary’s interest in the Collateral unimpaired

(b) not abandon any property which isdoi@ing or capable of commercial production or fityfurrender or release any lease, suble
operating agreement or other agreement or instruomenprising or affecting the Royalty Interestsheiit Beneficiarys prior written conser
which consent shall not be withheld unreasonably;

(c) cause the properties subject to thgalRy Interests to be maintained, developed arataipd in a good and workmanlike manner
prudent operator would in accordance with genewadlyepted practices, applicable operating agreenaet all applicable federal, state and
local laws, rules, regulations and orders; and

(d) promptly pay or cause to be paid wHea and owing all rentals and royalties payablegpect of the properties subject to the
Royalty Interests; all expenses incurred in oriagi$rom the operation or development of such prigg and all taxes, assessments and
governmental charges imposed upon such properties.

Section 4.4 _ Recording and Filingrustor shall pay all costs of filing, registegiand recording this and every other instrumestdditior
or supplemental hereto and all financing statemBatseficiary may require, in such offices and ptaaed at such times and as often as may
be, in the judgment of Beneficiary, necessary &serve, protect and renew the lien and securigyast herein created as a first lien and prior
security interest on and in the Collateral and otfise do and perform all matters or things necgssaexpedient to be done or observed by
reason of any law or regulation of any State ahefUnited States or of any other competent authtwt the purpose of effectively creating,
maintaining and preserving the lien and securitgrigst created herein and on the Collateral angribeity thereof. Trustor shall also pay the
costs of obtaining reports from appropriate filof§icers concerning financing statement filinggé@spect of any of the Collateral in which a
security interest is granted herein.

Section 4.5 _ Trusteeor Beneficiaris Right to Perform Trustts Obligations Trustor agrees that, if Trustor fails to perfaany act
which Trustor is required to perform under thiginsent, Beneficiary or the Trustee or any receagrointed hereunder may, but shall not
be obligated to, perform or cause to be perfornueth sict, and any expense incurred by Beneficiath®iTrustee in so doing shall be a
demand obligation owing by Trustor to Beneficiasljall bear interest at an annual rate equal totdsdémum interest rate provided in the
Note until paid and shall be a part of the Obligias, and Beneficiary, the Trustee or any receikiall §e subrogated to all of the rights of
party receiving the benefit of such performances Thdertaking of such performance by Beneficidrg, Trustee or any receiver as aforesaid
shall not obligate such person to continue sucfopeance or to engage in such performance or peegoce of any other act in the future,
shall not relieve Trustor from the observance efqeance of any covenant, warranty or agreementadoed in this instrument
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or constitute a waiver of default hereunder andl stwd affect the right of Beneficiary to accelerdhe payment of all indebtedness and other
sums secured hereby or to resort to any othes ofghts or remedies hereunder or under applidakleln the event the Beneficiary, the

Trustee or any receiver appointed hereunder uridestany such action, no such party shall haveiabifity to the Trustor in the absence of a
showing of gross negligence or willful miscondutsoch party, and in all events no party other tthenacting party shall be liable to Trustor.

ARTICLE 5 - DEFAULT

Section 5.1 _ Events of Defaulthe term “Event of Default” shall have the meangiven thereto in the Loan Agreement, but shalb al
include the occurrence or the existence of anheffdllowing conditions:

(a) failure by Trustor to keep, punctyaderform or observe any of the covenants, obligestior prohibitions contained herein, in any
other written instrument evidencing any of the @ations or in any other agreement with Benefic{argether now existing or entered into
hereafter) following notice, if required, and thepiation of applicable cure periods, if any; or

(b) the assertion (except by the ownearoéncumbrance expressly excepted from Trustatsanty of title herein) of any claim of
priority over this instrument, by title, lien ort@rwise, unless Trustor within 30 days after siggedion either causes the assertion to be
withdrawn or provides Beneficiary with such segues Beneficiary may require to protect Beneficiagginst all loss, damage, or expense,
including attorneys’ fees, which Beneficiary magunin the event such assertion is upheld.

Section 5.2 _ Acceleration Upon Defaultpon the occurrence of any Event of Default,taarey time thereafter, Beneficiary may, at its
option, by notice to Trustor, declare the entirpaid principal of and the interest accrued on thédations to be due and payable forthwith
without any further notice, presentment or demaahy kind, all of which are hereby expressly waive

Section 5.3 __Possession and Operation gféty. Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, taargy time thereafter, and in addition
to all other rights therein conferred on the Trastethe Beneficiary, the Trustee, the Benefic@rany person, firm or corporation designe
by Beneficiary, will have the right and power, mill not be obligated, to have an audit performadTrustor’s expense, of the books and
records of Trustor, and to enter upon and takegssésn of all or any part of the Collateral, tolege Trustor therefrom, and to hold, use,
administer and manage the same to the extent thatdf could do so. The Trustee, the Beneficiargror person, firm or corporation
designated by the Beneficiary, may manage the t@odlh or any portion thereof, without any liahilitb Trustor in connection with such
management except with respect to gross negligenediful misconduct; and the Trustee, the Beniefig or any person, firm or corporation
designated by Beneficiary will have the right tdlect, receive and receipt for all Products prodliaad sold from the Royalty Interests, and
to exercise every power, right and privilege of Star with respect to the Collateral. Providing
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there has been no foreclosure sale, when and étpenses of the management of the Collateral bege paid and the Obligations paid in
full, the remaining Collateral shall be returnedhe Trustor.

Section 5.4 _ Ancillary RightdJpon the occurrence of an Event of Default, cargt time thereafter, and in addition to all ottights of
Beneficiary hereunder, Beneficiary may, withoutic®tdemand or declaration of default, all of whiak hereby expressly waived by Trus
proceed by a suit or suits in equity or at lawf@i)the seizure and sale of the Collateral or aany fhereof, (ii) for the specific performance of
any covenant or agreement herein contained odinfahe execution of any power herein granted, for the foreclosure or sale of the
Collateral or any part thereof under the judgmerdexree of any court of competent jurisdictiom) (ithout regard to the solvency or
insolvency of any person, and without regard tovhlee of the Collateral, and without notice to Star (notice being hereby expressly
waived), for the eparteappointment of a receiver to serve without bonddpemany foreclosure or sale hereunder, or (vilierenforcement
of any other appropriate legal or equitable remedy.

ARTICLE 6 - BENEFICIARY'S RIGHTS AS TO REALTY COLL ATERAL UPON DEFAULT

Section 6.1 _ Judicial ForeclosurEhis instrument shall be effective as a mortgagevell as a deed of trust and upon the occurreharn
Event of Default, or at any time thereafter, irulef the exercise of the non-judicial power of dadeeafter given, Beneficiary may, subject to
any mandatory requirement of applicable law, prddgesuit to foreclose its lien hereunder and tbasehave sold the Realty Collateral or
any part thereof at one or more sales, as an gntirén parcels, at such place or places and wilker in such manner and upon such notice as
may be required by law, or, in the absence of aich sequirement, as Beneficiary may deem appragpréatd Beneficiary shall thereafter
make or cause to be made a conveyance to the gerchrapurchasers thereof. Beneficiary may postplomesale of the real property included
in the Collateral or any part thereof by public anncement at the time and place of such sale,ranttime to time thereafter may further
postpone such sale by public announcement matte &itie of sale fixed by the preceding postponentgaie of a part of the real property
included in the Collateral will not exhaust the powef sale, and sales may be made from time to tintiéall such property is sold or the
Obligations are paid in full.

Section 6.2 _ Nodudicial Foreclosurelf the Note or other Obligations are not paid wideie, whether by acceleration or otherwise, the
Trustee is hereby authorized and empowered, asfalt be its duty, upon request of Beneficiary, amthe extent permitted by applicable
law, to sell any part of the Realty Collateral ae@r more sales, as an entirety or in parcelyat place or places and otherwise in such
manner and upon such notice as may be requireggdicable law, or in the absence of any such remuént, as Trustee and/or Beneficiary
may deem appropriate, and to make conveyance toutohaser or purchasers thereof. Any sale shatidde to the highest bidder for cash at
the door of the county courthouse of, or in sut¢teoplace as may be required or permitted by agipléclaw in, the county in the state where
the Realty Collateral or any part thereof is sidaprovidedhat and if the Realty Collateral lies in more thware county, such part of the
Realty Collateral may be sold
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at the courthouse door of any one of such courdied the notice so posted shall designate in wttcimty such property shall be sold. Any
such sale shall be made at public outcry, on tlyeoflany month, during the hours of such day anerauch written notices thereof have b
publicly posted in such places and for such timéogs and after all persons entitled to notice¢b&have been sent such notice, all as
required by applicable law in effect at the timesoth sale. The affidavit of any person having kieolwe of the facts to the effect that such a
service was completed shall be prifaeie evidence of the fact of service. The Trustor agteasno notice of any sale, other than as required
by applicable law, need be given by the Trustar,Bleneficiary or any other person. The Trustor Inedesignates as its address for the
purposes of such notice the address set out ontpageereof; and agrees that such address shaldeged only by depositing notice of such
change enclosed in a postpaid wrapper in a paseaddf official depository under the care and cdgtof the United States Postal Service,
certified mail, postage prepaid, return receiptiested, addressed to the Beneficiary or other holdhe Obligations at the address for the
Beneficiary set out herein (or to such other addlessthe Beneficiary or other holder of the Oblgs may have designated by notice given
as above provided to the Trustor and such otheiodgb Any such notice or change of address offttustor or other debtors or of the
Beneficiary or of other holder of the Obligatiorisah be effective upon receipt. The Trustor authesiand empowers the Trustee to sell the
Realty Collateral in lots or parcels or in its egtly as the Trustee shall deem expedient; anddout& and deliver to the purchaser or
purchasers thereof good and sufficient deeds ofe@nce thereto by fee simple title, with evideatgeneral warranty by the Trustee, and
the title of such purchaser or purchasers whenaaerby the Trustee, the Trustor binds itself torar@trand forever defend. Where portion:
the Realty Collateral lie in different countieslesain such counties may be conducted in any didgithe Trustee may deem expedient; and
one or more such sales may be conducted in the samth, or in successive or different months asTtustor may deem expedient.

ARTICLE 7 - BENEFICIARY'S RIGHTS AS TO PERSONALTY AND FIXTURE COLLATERAL UPON DEFAULT

Section 7.1 _ Personalty Collaterblpon the occurrence of an Event of Default, argt time thereafter, Beneficiary may, without neti
to Trustor, exercise its rights to declare allta Obligations to be immediately due and payahlghich case Beneficiary will have all rights
and remedies granted by law, and particularly leydhiform Commercial Code, including, but not liedtto, the right to take possession of
the Personalty Collateral, and for this purposedfierary may enter upon any premises on which argllcof the Personalty Collateral is
situated and take possession of and operate tserizdty Collateral or remove it therefrom. Benefigimay require Trustor to assemble the
Personalty Collateral and make it available to Biersy or the Trustee at a place to be designbieBeneficiary which is reasonably
convenient to all parties. Unless the Personaltya@oal is perishable or threatens to decline dipgén value or is of a type customarily sold
on a recognized market, Beneficiary will give Tarsteasonable notice of the time and place of arfip sale or of the time after which any
private sale or other disposition of the Person@ltylateral is to be made. This requirement of sedeasonable notice will be met if the
notice is mailed, postage prepaid, to Trustor atatidress designated above at least five daysebifetime of the sale or disposition.
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Section 7.2 _ Sale with Realty Collaterhd the event of foreclosure, whether judiciahon-judicial, at Beneficiary’s option it may
proceed under the Uniform Commercial Code as td’grsonalty Collateral or it may proceed as to IRehlty Collateral and Personalty
Collateral in accordance with its rights and reraedn respect of the Realty Collateral.

Section 7.3 _ Private Sal# Beneficiary in good faith believes that thecBgties Act of 1933 or any other State or Fedkal prohibits o
restricts the customary manner of sale or distiooubf any of the Personalty Collateral, or if B&oiary determines that there is any other
restraint or restriction limiting the timely sale distribution of any such property in accordandthwhe customary manner of sale or
distribution, Beneficiary may sell or may cause Thestee to sell such property privately or in atlyer manner it deems advisable at such
price or prices as it determines in its sole disoneand without any liability whatsoever to Trustio connection therewith. Trustor recognizes
and agrees that such prohibition or restriction weyse such property to have less value thanéraibe would have and that, consequently,
such sale or disposition by Beneficiary may result lower sales price than if the sale were otisield.

ARTICLE 8 - OTHER PROVISIONS CONCERNING FORECLOSUR E

Section 8.1 _ Possession and Delivery ofa@eidhl. It shall not be necessary for Beneficiary or Thestee to have physically present or
constructively in its possession any of the Cothldtat any foreclosure sale, and Trustor shalvéelio the purchasers at such sale on the date
of sale the Collateral purchased by such purchagemsch sale, and if it should be impossible gramticable for any of such purchasers to
take actual delivery of the Collateral, then tlie @nd right of possession to the Collateral shadls to the purchaser at such sale as comy
as if the same had been actually present and detive

Section 8.2 _ Beneficiary as Purchadgeneficiary will have the right to become theghaser at any foreclosure sale, and it will haee th
right to credit upon the amount of the bid the antqayable to it out of the net proceeds of sale.

Section 8.3 _Recitals Conclusive; Warrange®, Ratification Recitals contained in any conveyance to any @sehat any sale made
hereunder will conclusively establish the truth aeduracy of the matters therein stated, includivithout limiting the generality of the
foregoing, nonpayment of the unpaid principal sdfprand the interest accrued on, the written instnts constituting part or all of the
Obligations after the same have become due andfeysnpayment of any other of the Obligationadwertisement and conduct of the sale
in the manner provided herein, and appointmenhgfsaiccessor Trustee hereunder. Trustor ratifidscanfirms all legal acts that Benefici:
and/or Trustee may do in carrying out the provisiofithis instrument.

Section 8.4 _ Effect of Salé\ny sale or sales of the Collateral or any paetéof will operate to divest all right, title, @mest, claim and
demand whatsoever, either at law or in equity, risTor in and to the premises and the property, sold will be a perpetual bar, both at law
and in equity, against Trustor, Trustor's successorassigns and against any and all persons clgiariwho shall thereafter claim all or any
of the property sold from, through or under
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Trustor, or Trustor’'s successors or assigns. Stiteapplicable rights of redemption under appliedaw, the purchaser or purchasers at the
foreclosure sale will receive immediate possessidhe property purchased; and if Trustor retaiossgssion of the Realty Collateral, or any
part thereof, subsequent to sale, Trustor will trestered a tenant at sufferance of the purchagmirohasers, and if Trustor remains in such
possession after demand of the purchaser or pechasremove, Trustor will be guilty of forcibletdiner and will be subject to eviction and
removal, forcible or otherwise, with or without paess of law, and without any right to damagesragisiut of such removal.

Section 8.5 _ Application of Proceedghe proceeds of any sale of the Collateral organry thereof will be applied as follows:

(a) first, to the payment of all expensesirred by the Trustee and Beneficiary in conioectherewith, including, without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, court costs, legakfaad expenses, fees of accountants, engineesjltaons, agents or managers and expenses
of any entry or taking of possession, holding, iradupreparing for sale, advertising, selling andweying;

(b) second, to the payment of the Obidgest; and

(c) third, any surplus thereafter remagnio Trustor or Trustor's successors or assigntheir interests may be established to
Beneficiary’s reasonable satisfaction.

Section 8.6 _ DeficiencyTrustor will remain liable for any deficiency avg to Beneficiary after application of the net @eds of any
foreclosure sale.

Section 8.7 _ Trustar Waiver of Appraisement, Marshaling, EfErustor agrees that Trustor will not at any tim&st upon or plead or in
any manner whatsoever claim the benefit of anyappment, valuation, stay, extension or redempéanmow or hereafter in force, in order
to prevent or hinder the enforcement or foreclosifithis instrument, the absolute sale of the Getkd or the possession thereof by any
purchaser at any sale made pursuant to this inetmuor pursuant to the decree of any court of caemtgurisdiction. Trustor, for Trustor and
all who may claim through or under Trustor, heralaves the benefit of all such laws and to the mixtieat Trustor may lawfully do so under
applicable state law, waives any and all rightawénthe Realty Collateral marshaled upon any fosetk of the lien hereof or sold in inverse
order of alienation and, Trustor agrees that thestbr may sell the Realty Collateral as an entirety

ARTICLE 9 - MISCELLANEOUS

Section 9.1 _ Discharge of Purchasdpon any sale made under the powers of salerhgranted and conferred, the receipt of Benefic
will be sufficient discharge to the purchaser orghasers at any sale for the purchase money, amdpsuchaser or purchasers and the heirs,
devisees, personal representatives, successoessigths thereof will not, after paying such purehm®ney and receiving such receipt of
Beneficiary, be obliged to see to the applicatimereof or be in anywise answerable for any lossapplication or nonapplication thereof.
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Section 9.2 _ Indebtedness of ObligationsoMds . Nothing herein contained shall be construedragitig Beneficiary to the collection
any indebtedness of Trustor to Beneficiary only afithe income, revenue, rents, issues and profite the Collateral or as obligating
Beneficiary to delay or withhold action upon anyaddt which may be occasioned by failure of suatoime or revenue to be sufficient to
retire the principal or interest when due on thaelitedness secured hereby. It is expressly unddrsetween Beneficiary and Trustor that
any indebtedness of Trustor to Beneficiary sechiexdby shall constitute an absolute, unconditiobfigation of Trustor to pay as provided
herein or therein in accordance with the termdefihstrument evidencing such indebtedness inrttmuat therein specified at the maturity
date or at the respective maturity dates of thialiinsents thereof, whether by acceleration or atier.

Section 9.3 _ Defense of ClaimBrustee will promptly notify the Trustor and Béisery in writing of the commencement of any legal
proceedings affecting Beneficiary’s interest in @alateral, or any part thereof, and shall takehsaction, employing attorneys acceptable to
Beneficiary, as may be necessary to preserve Tisistbe Trustee’s and Beneficiasytights affected thereby; and should Trustordailefust
to take any such action, the Trustee or Benefidiaay take the action on behalf of and in the nahfewastor and at Trustor’'s expense.
Moreover, Beneficiary or the Trustee on behalf ehBficiary may take independent action in connedfi@rewith as they may in their
discretion deem proper, and Trustor hereby agmeesake reimbursement for all sums advanced arekp#nses incurred in such actions plus
interest at a rate equal to the maximum interdstpeovided in the Loan Agreement.

Section 9.4 _ Terminatiorif all the Obligations are paid in full and thevenants herein contained are well and truly peréat, and if
Trustor and Beneficiary intend at such time théa ihstrument not secure any obligation of Trush@reafter arising, then the Beneficiary
shall, upon the request of Trustor and at Trustoos and expense, deliver to Trustor proper insgnts executed by the Beneficiary
evidencing the release of this instrument. Untilrsdelivery, this instrument shall remain and amnéi in full force and effect.

Section 9.5 _Renewals, Amendments and GBheurity. Renewals and extensions of the Obligations mayiyen at any time,
amendments may be made to the agreements withphitiges relating to any part of the Obligationshar Collateral, and Beneficiary may
take or hold other security for the Obligationshaitit notice to or consent of Trustor. The TrustoBeneficiary may resort first to other
security or any part thereof, or first to the ségurerein given or any part thereof, or from titogime to either or both, even to the partial or
complete abandonment of either security, and satbrawill not be a waiver of any rights conferrey this instrument.

Section 9.6 _ Successor Truste€he Trustee may resign in writing addressed toeieiary or be removed at any time with or without
cause by an instrument in writing duly executedeyeficiary. In case of the resignation or remafahe Trustee, a successor Trustee may
be appointed by Beneficiary by instrument of subg8tin complying with any applicable requirementdaov, and in the absence of any such
requirement, without other formality than an appmient and designation in writing. Any appointmend aesignation will be full evidence of
the right and authority to make the same and dfatk therein recited. Upon
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the making of any appointment and designatiorthallestate and title of the Trustee in all of tleal® Collateral will vest in the named
successor Trustee, and the successor will theresyomoeed to all the rights, powers, privileges, imities and duties hereby conferred upon
the Trustee. All references herein to the Trusti#lebe deemed to refer to the Trustee from timértee acting hereunder.

Section 9.7 _ Limitations on Interesfio provision of the Note, Loan Agreement or otimstrument constituting or evidencing any of the
Obligations or any other agreement between théegashall require the payment or permit the calbecof interest in excess of the maximum
non-usurious rate which Trustor may agree to paleuapplicable laws. The intention of the partiemb to conform strictly to applicable
usury laws now in force, the interest on the ppatamount of the Note and the interest on otheyuats due under and/or secured by this
instrument shall be held to be subject to redudiiothe amount allowed under said applicable ukwg as now or hereafter construed by the
courts having jurisdiction, and any excess intepedd shall be credited to Trustor.

Section 9.8 _ Effect of Instrumerithis instrument shall be deemed and construée tand may be enforced as, an assignment, chattel
mortgage or security agreement, common law plectygract, deed of trust, financing statement, estdte mortgage, and as any one or more
of them if appropriate under applicable state [@his instrument shall be effective as a financitegesnent covering minerals or the like and
accounts subject to Section 9-103(5) (or correspgnprovision) of the Uniform Commercial Code aseted in the appropriate jurisdiction
and is to be filed for record in the Office of tBeunty Clerk or other appropriate office of eachrty where any part of the collateral is
situated. A carbon, photographic, or other reprtidnof this Mortgage or of any financing statemesiating to this Mortgage shall be
sufficient as a financing statement.

Section 9.9 _ Unenforceable or InapplicablevBions. If any provision hereof or of any of the writterstruments constituting part or all
of the Obligations is invalid or unenforceable iy gurisdiction, whether with respect to all pastigereto or with respect to less than all of
such parties, the other provisions hereof and @fathitten instruments will remain in full force apéfect in that jurisdiction with respect to
parties as to which such provision is valid ancdesdable, and the remaining provisions hereoflvélliberally construed in favor of
Beneficiary in order to carry out the provisionsdw. The invalidity of any provision of this ingtnent in any jurisdiction will not affect the
validity or enforceability of any provision in amgher jurisdiction.

Section 9.10 _ Rights CumulativEach and every right, power and remedy giveneodficiary herein or in any other written instruren
relating to the Obligations will be cumulative amat exclusive; and each and every right, powerrantedy whether specifically given herein
or otherwise existing may be exercised from timérte and as often and in such order as may be egenxpedient by Beneficiary, and the
exercise, or the beginning of the exercise, of &rgh right, power or remedy will not be deemed ae&reof the right to exercise, at the same
time or thereafter, any other right, power or repnedwaiver by Beneficiary of any right or remedgrleunder or under applicable law on any
occasion will not be a bar to the exercise of aglgtror remedy on any subsequent occasion.
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Section 9.11 _ Nekvaiver. No act, delay, omission or course of dealing leetwBeneficiary and Trustor will be a waiver of arfly
Beneficiary’s rights or remedies hereunder or uraggalicable law. No waiver, change or modificatiniwhole or in part of this instrument or
any other written instrument will be effective usddn a writing signed by Beneficiary.

Section 9.12 _ Beneficidiy/ExpensesTrustor agrees to pay in full all expenses amdoaable attorneys’ fees of Beneficiary which may
have been or may be incurred by Beneficiary in eation with the collection of the Obligations ahé enforcement of any of Trustor’s
obligations hereunder and under any documents &@au connection with the Obligations.

Section 9.13 _ Indemnificatiod rustor shall indemnify Beneficiary and the Taesind hold each of them harmless against, anteneit
Beneficiary nor the Trustee shall be liable fory &ss, cost or damage, including without limitati&ttorneys’, consultants’ or management
fees, resulting from exercise by Beneficiary or Thestee of any right, power or remedy conferredruip by this instrument or any other
instrument pertaining hereto, or from the attempfadure of Beneficiary or the Trustee to exercss such right, power or remedy; and
notwithstanding any provision hereof to the contréine foregoing indemnity shall in all respectsitimoue and remain in full force and effect
even though all indebtedness and other sums seharetly may be fully paid and the lien of this instent released.

Section 9.14 _ Partial Releasds the event Trustor sells for monetary consitienaor otherwise any portion of the Royalty Int&ee as
permitted by the Loan Agreement, Beneficiary andsiee shall release the lien of this instrumenrt waspect to the portion sold, at the
request of Trustor. No release from the lien of thstrument of any part of the Collateral by Bésiafy shall in anywise alter, vary or
diminish the force, effect or lien of this instrumi@n the balance or remainder of the Collateral.

Section 9.15 _ Subrogatioithis instrument is made with full substitutiordasubrogation of Beneficiary and Trustee in andlto
covenants and warranties by others heretofore givenade in respect of the Collateral or any geateof.

Section 9.16 _ NoticeAll notices and deliveries of information hereenghall be deemed to have been duly given if #igtdalivered or
mailed by registered or certified mail, postageppid, addressed to the parties hereto at the adidrest forth above on page 1; if by mail,
then as of the date of such mailing. Each party,ogyvritten notice so delivered to the others,ngeathe address to which delivery shall
thereafter be made.

Section 9.17 __Successoihis instrument shall bind and inure to the bimdfthe respective successors and assigns gfahees.
Section 9.18 _ Interpretation

(a) Article and section headings usethis instrument are intended for convenience only shall be given no significance whatever in
interpreting and construing the provisions of thitrument.
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(b) As used in this instrument, “Benedigi’ and “Trustee” include their respective sucoesand assigns. Unless context otherwise
requires, words in the singular number includepiueal and in the plural number include the singwsords of the masculine gender include
the feminine and neuter gender and words of théengender may refer to any gender.

Section 9.19 __ Inconsistencies with Relatedunents To the extent, if any, the provisions hereofias®nsistent with the provisions of
the Loan Agreement, such inconsistencies shakbelved by giving controlling effect to the Loanragment.

Section 9.20 _ Counterparfghis instrument may be executed in any numbeoahterparts, each of which will for all purposes b
deemed to be an original, and all of which are fidahexcept that to facilitate recordation, intg@rar counterparts hereof, portions of
Exhibit A hereto which describe properties situatedounties other than the county in which thenterpart is to be recorded have been
omitted.

Section 9.21 _ Governing Law his Mortgage, insofar as it pertains to Royé#tiyrests and Personalty Collateral located inrStage of
Nevada shall be governed by the laws of Nevada Wiurtgage, insofar as it constitutes a commongiasige with respect to the De
Service Reserve Account, shall be governed byawes bf New York. With respect to all other Collatethis Mortgage shall be governed by
the laws of the state in which the collateral isalied.

Executed as of the Effective Date.
TRUSTOR:
ROYAL GOLD, INC.

By: /sl Tony Jense
Name Tony Jensel
Title:  President & CEC
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ATTEST:

[Corporate Seal

Karen Grost
Secretan
(Name and Title
STATE OF COLORADC )
CITY AND ) ss
COUNTY OF DENVER )

On January 5, 2007 personally appeared beferea notary public, Tony Jensen, the PresidenCi@ of Royal Gold, Inc., a Delaware
corporation, who acknowledged that he executedlioee instrument.

Witness my hand and official seal.

My commission expires April 5, 2007

/s/ Linda L. Brown
Notary Public

[Seal]
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HSBC BANK USA,
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

By: /s/ P.E. Kavanag
Name P.E. Kavanag!
Title:  Senior Vice Presidel

STATE OF NEW YORK )
) ss
COUNTY OF NEW YORK )

On January 5, 2007 personally appeared beferea notary public, P.E. Kavanagh, a Senior ViesiEent, of HSBC Bank USA, National
Association, who acknowledged that he executealioye

Witness my hand and official seal.

My commission expires September24,0

/s/ Lourdes R. Sma
Notary Public

[Seal]
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Exhibit 10.¢

SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED PROMISSORY NOTE

US$80,000,00t January 5, 2007

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, each of the undersigne@YAL GOLD, INC., a corporation organized and exigtunder the laws of
Delaware (“Royal Gold”) and HIGH DESERT MINERAL RE®RCES, INC., a corporation organized and existinder the laws of
Delaware (“High Desert”, with each of Royal Golddafigh Desert individually referred to as a “Makarid collectively referred to as the
“Makers”), on a joint and several liability basi®reby promises to pay to the order of HSBC BANKAUJNATIONAL ASSOCIATION
(“HSBC"), or other holder hereof (with HSBC and asther holder hereof sometimes referred to hereifiHalder”), at the place and times
provided in the Loan Agreement (defined below),ghacipal sum of Eighty Million Dollars (US$80,0@M0) or, if less, the principal amot
of all Loans made by the Lender from time to timetherwise outstanding pursuant to the Second Ale@and Restated Loan Agreement
dated as of January 5, 2007 among the Makers aBCH&s amended, restated, supplemented or othemadédied in accordance with its
terms, the “Loan Agreement”). Subject to the Loagreement, the Makers may borrow, voluntarily repagl reborrow amounts hereunder
during the availability period. Capitalized ternsed in this Note and not defined herein shall Hhgemeanings assigned thereto in the Loan
Agreement.

This Note evidences the obligation of the Make repay all sums Advanced by HSBC to the Makerkoans pursuant to the Loan
Agreement.

This Note represents an extension and renefthe outstanding principal amount of, and an aingnt to, replacement of and
substitution for, the Amended and Restated Promjddote dated December 14, 2005 made by Royal &witpayable to HSBC (the
“Existing Note”). The indebtedness evidenced byEhkesting Note is a continuing indebtedness andiingtcontained herein shall be
construed to deem paid the Existing Note or toasde terminate or in any way impair any mortgatggge, lien or security interest given to
secure payment and performance of the Existing .Ndtis Note restates and replaces the Existing.Note

Each Maker further agrees to pay and deliwétdlder, when and as provided in the Loan Agredmsterest on the outstanding principal
amount hereof at the rate and at the times spddifithe Loan Agreement. The unpaid principal amairhis Note from time to time
outstanding is subject to mandatory repayment fiiome to time as provided in the Loan Agreement.pidi/ments of principal and interest on
this Note shall be payable in lawful currency of thnited States of America in immediately availdioleds as specified in the Loan
Agreement.

This Note is made by the Makers pursuantrid,ia subject to, all of the terms and conditiohthe Loan Agreement. Reference is hereby
made to the Loan Agreement and the




documents delivered in connection therewith fotadesnent of the prepayment rights and obligatidrth® Makers, a description of the
collateral in which Liens have been granted byMiaders to secure the payment and performance of a&er hereunder, the nature and
extent of such Liens, and for a statement of thmdeand conditions under which the due date ofNlote may be accelerated.

In addition to, and not in limitation of, tifieregoing and the provisions of the Loan Agreemeath Maker further agrees, subject only to
any limitation imposed by applicable law, to palyeadpenses, including reasonable attorneys’ feddegal expenses, incurred by any Holder
hereof in endeavoring to collect any amounts dwkpayable hereunder which are not paid and deliveretherwise satisfied when due,
whether by acceleration or otherwise.

Each Maker, for itself and for all endorseesdof, hereby waives all requirements as to dikigemotice, demand, presentment for
payment, protest and notice of dishonor.

This Note and the rights of each Maker andtdalyglers hereof are governed by the laws of theeQtBNew York.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each Maker has executetidelivered this Note as of the date first abovigter.

ROYAL GOLD, INC. HIGH DESERT MINERAL RESOURCES, INC
By: /s/ Tony Jense By: /s/ Tony Jense

Name Tony Jense! Name Tony Jense!

Title: President & CEC Title: Presiden
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ASSIGNMENT OF RIGHTS AGREEMENT
BETWEEN

MARIO VAN HERNANDEZ ALVAREZ

AS ASSIGNOR
R ovAL G oLD CHILE LIMITADA
AS ASSIGNEE
AND
RovyaL GoLD INC .

AS GUARANTOR

Exhibit 10.9




Assignment of Rights Agreement

THIS ASSIGNMENT OF RIGHTS AGREEMENT (Agreement”) effective January 16, 2007 Effective Date”) is by and between Mario
Ivan Hernandez Alvarez , Chilean, mining enginegarried with identification certificate number 4ZB®&-K, domiciled at La Concepcion
266, Suite 701, Providencia, Chile,Asignor”) and Royal Gold, Inc. a corporation organized aristing under the laws of the State of
Delaware, United States of America,Rbyal Gold Inc.”) acting on behalf of Royal Gold Chile Limitada, ail€an limited liability compan
under formation (‘Royal Gold Chile”) and as guarantor of the obligations of Royal GdhileCchereunder, domiciled at Torre de la Costat
Avenida Andres Bello 2711, 16th Floor, Santiagoil€h

REcCITALS

Compafiia Minera Barrick Chile LimitadaBarrick ") and Assignor are the parties to that certaircurchase Agreement, dated
June 30, 1998 (Pascua-Lama Contract”) a true and complete copy of which is attachecktmeas Exhibit A

Pursuant to the Pascuama Contract, Assignor is entitled to receivehashalance of the price due from Barrick: (i) asvied in Clause
4d) and 4e), an amount equivalent to a variablegmage of the value of gold produced by Barrick successors from mineral concessions
located in whole or in part within an area ideetifin Annex A to the Pascua-Lama Contract, an@$iiprovided in Clause 4f), an amount
equivalent to 0.4314% of proceeds from copper ealdnd after January 1, 2017 that is produced Iosidkeor it successors from mineral
concessions located in whole or in part within eeaadentified in Annex A to the Pascua-Lama Canttriess certain specified deductions, all
on the terms and conditions specified in the Pataumaa Contract (collectively, together will all hts granted to Assignor by the Pascua-
Lama Contract in respect of such paymentsssignor’s Royalty Interest”).

Assignor desires to assign to Royal Gold Child Royal Gold Chile desires to acquire by ass@rtrfrom Assignor one half of Assigner’
Royalty Interest (‘Purchased Royalty Interest’), on the terms and subject to the conditiondaeh in this Agreement.

Royal Gold Chile also desires to acquire atraf first refusal to purchase all or any portafrthe other one half of Assignor’s Royalty
Interest and Assignor is willing to grant suchghtito Royal Gold Chile, on the terms and subjedhe conditions set forth in this Agreem:

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual pises, representations, warranties, covenants, ftonsliand agreements contair
herein, Assignor and Royal Gold Chile (thBdrties”), intending to be legally bound, covenant anceagas follows.

AGREEMENT




ARTICLE |
DEFINITIONS AND CONSTRUCTION

1.1Definitions . As used in this Agreement, the following term&gether in singular or plural form, shall have tbkdwing meanings:

(a) “ Acquisitiorf means the consummation of the assignment of thielRsed Royalty Interest to Royal Gold Chile ahthe other
transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

(b) “ Affiliate” means with respect to any Person, any other Rarsotrolling, controlled by or under common cohtwith such
Person, with “control” for such purposes meaningh@ ownership of 50% or more of the equity in$¢ser social rights in a Person, or
(i) the possession, directly or indirectly, of thewer to direct or cause the direction of the ngen@ent and policies of a Person, whether
through the ownership of voting securities or vgtinterests, by contract or otherwise.

(c) “ Agreemerithas the meaning set forth in the Preamble.
(d) “ Assignof has the meaning set forth in the Preamble.

(e) “ Assignds Royalty Interest has the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

(f) “ Barrick” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

(9) “ Business Daymeans any day other than a Saturday, a Sundayday on which banks are generally not open foctmeluct of
regular business in either Santiago, Chile, or [@en@olorado, United States of America.

(h) “ Chambet has the meaning set forth in Section 10.7(a).

(i) “ Closing’ means the consummation of the Acquisition.

(i) “ Closing Daté has the meaning set forth in Section 2.4.

(k) “ Contract Administration Rightdas the meaning set forth in Section 5.3(b).

() “ Dispute’ has the meaning set forth in Section 10.7(a).
(m) “ Effective Daté has the meaning set forth in the Preamble.

(n) * Encumbrancemeans any security agreement, financing stateffiledtwith any Governmental Authority, conditiorsdle or
contract right, lien, mortgage, indenture, pledmsjon, encumbrance of any kind, constructive tarsither trust, claim, attachment, excep
to or defect in title or other ownership interektany kind which constitutes an interest in or mlaigainst property, however arising.
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(o) ‘Governmental Authority means the Republic of Chile, the United StateAwwierica, any region or state thereof, and anytipali
subdivision or quasi-governmental authority of afithe same.

(p) “Indemnite& has the meaning set forth in Section 8.3(a).
(q) “Indemnitof has the meaning set forth in Section 8.3(a).

(r) “ Losses means any claims, losses, liabilities, damagerafties, costs, and expenses, including intemgsb$ed in connection
therewith, expenses of investigation, reasonalds &nd disbursements of counsel and other expadshe cost to any Indemnitee making a
claim or seeking indemnification under this Agreamaith respect to funds expended by such Inderaritereason of the occurrence of any
event with respect to which indemnification is shoug

(s) “_Notic€' has the meaning set forth in Section 10.1.

(t) “_Notice of Proposed Transfenas the meaning set forth in Section 9.1.

(u) “ Partie$ has the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

(v) “ Pascudama Contract has the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

(w) “ Pascudama Project means the cross-border precious metals projeetéal in Region I, Chile, approximately 150 kiletars
southeast of Vallenar, and in San Juan Provincgertina.

(x) “_Persori means any natural person, Governmental Authocibyporation, general or limited partnership, llitiability company,
joint venture, trust, association or unincorporatatty of any kind

(y) “ Purchase Pri¢ehas the meaning set forth in Section 2.2.

(2) *_Purchased Royalty Interéstas the meaning set forth in the Recitals, agetioer with the Retained Royalty Interest constgut
Assignor’s Royalty Interest.

(aa) “ Retained Royalty Interésheans the one half interest in Assignor’s Roy#iltgrest that is not to be assigned to Royal Gold
Chile at the Closing, but that will be retainedAssignor.

(bb) “ Royal Gold Chilemeans Royal Gold Chile Limitada, a Chilean linditeability company under formation.

(cc) “ Rayal Gold Int has the meaning set forth in the Preamble.

(dd) “ Transfet means sell, assign, transfer, subrogate, nopétdge, hypothecate or encumber, in any form, tiree indirectly.
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1.2Rules of Construction. Unless otherwise expressly provided in this Agrest: (i) words used in this Agreement, regardtdshe
gender used, shall be deemed and construed tal@eloy other gender, masculine, feminine, or neatethe context requires; (ii) the word
“including” is not limiting, and the word “or” isat exclusive; (iii) the capitalized term “Sectioréfers to sections of this Agreement;
(iv) references to a particular Section includesalbsections thereof; and (viii) references toay"dr number of “days” (without the explicit
qualification “Business”) refer to a calendar daynamber of calendar days.

1.3Exhibits . The following Exhibits attached hereto are inavgted in, and form a part of, this Agreement:
Exhibit A Pascua-Lama Contract
Exhibit B Form of Public Deed

ARTICLE Il
PURCHASE AND SALE, CLOSING

2.1Purchase and Sale Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agrest, at the Closing, Assignor shall assign anusfiex to Royal
Gold Chile and Royal Gold Chile shall purchase paythe Purchase Price for the Purchased Royakyelst, free and clear of all
Encumbrances.

2.2Purchase Price. The purchase price for the Purchased Royaltydateshall be US $20.5 million Purchase Price”), payable as
herein provided.

2.3Payment of Purchase Price At the Closing, Royal Gold Chile shall pay the¢hase Price to Assignor by bank wire transfer of
immediately available funds to an account desighbteAssignor at least three Business Days prithédaClosing.

2.4Closing . The Closing shall occur as promptly as poss#uel, in any event not later than the earlier oM@rch 10, 2007 or (ii) five
Business Days following the satisfaction or waigkthe conditions set forth in Article VI, or oncduother date as the Parties may agree (the
Closing Date”). The Closing shall take place at Avenida AndBé&dlo N°2711, piso 16, comuna de las Condes, Sgmti@hile, or at such
other place as the Parties may agree not latertkiiaa (3) Business Days prior to the Closing Date.

2.5Deliveries by Assignor. At the Closing, Assignor shall deliver, or catisde delivered to Royal Gold Chile (unless preslgu
delivered or waived in writing by Royal Gold Chilise following:

(a) a Public Deed in the form and sulstanf Exhibit B, assigning and transferring the Purchased Roymtiéyest to Royal Gold Chils

(b) a certificate executed by Assigntaiting that the conditions set forth in Section IBale been satisfied,;
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(c) an opinion of Assignor’s legal coulnseform and substance satisfactory to Royal Goldle and its legal counsel, acting
reasonably, to the effect that Assignor has alréupiisite power and authority to execute this &grent, that Assignor has performed all the
necessary acts to execute and deliver this Agregmmed that upon execution and delivery by Assigtios Agreement will constitute
Assignor’s valid and binding obligation and be en&able against him in accordance with its termd; a

(d) all such other assurances, consagteements, documents and instruments as may $mneday required by Royal Gold Chile to
consummate the Acquisition.

2.6Deliveries by Royal Gold Chile. At the Closing, Royal Gold Chile shall deliver,aause to be delivered to Assignor (unless
previously delivered or waived in writing by Assa the following:

(a) the Purchase Price, as provided ati@e?2.3;

(b) a certificate executed by an autteatiafficer of Royal Gold Chile, stating that thendiions set forth in Section 6.2 have been
satisfied;

(c) an opinion of Royal Gold Chile’s légaunsel in form and substance satisfactory tagk&s and its legal counsel, acting
reasonably, to the effect that Royal Gold Chile &lathe requisite corporate power and authoritgxecute this Agreement, that Royal Gold
Chile has performed all the necessary acts to ée&emd deliver this Agreement, and that upon exacw@nd delivery by Royal Gold Chile,
this Agreement will constitute Royal Gold Chile'alid and binding obligation and be enforceable @gfat in accordance with its terms; and

(d) all such other assurances, consagteements, documents and instruments as may s$eneday required by Assignor to
consummate the Acquisition.

2.7Further Assurances. On and after the Closing Date, each of the Pawtié take all appropriate action and execute doguments,
instruments or conveyances of any kind that masebsonably requested by the other Party to catramy of the provisions of this
Agreement.

ARTICLE Il
ASSIGNOR’S REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

Assignor represents and warrants to Royal Gbilite, as of the date of this Agreement and abk®fClosing, as follows:

3.1Title to Assignor’s Royalty Interest. Assignor owns the entire right, title, and intgrie Assignor’s Royalty Interest free and clear of
all Encumbrances or claims by third Persons. AtQhesing Royal Gold Chile will acquire the Purchd$®yalty Interest free and clear of all
Encumbrances or claims by third Persons.

3.2Pascua-Lama Contract. A true and complete copy of the Pascua-Lama @ohis attached hereto as Exhibit A. The PascuaaLam
Contract is enforceable in accordance with its




terms and has not been modified, supplementednended. Assignor has not assigned, in whole oaity pssignor’s Royalty Interest or any
of his rights with respect thereto; granted or mdany Encumbrances on or in respect of AssigriRoigalty Interest; granted any options to
purchase or rights of first refusal with respecftsignor’s Royalty Interest; or agreed to any admeent to the Pascua-Lama Contract or
waived any of his rights thereunder. Assignor hely find timely performed all of his obligationsder the Pascua-Lama Contract and there
are no further actions required by him or on hisdbein order for him to be fully vested in and idetl to Assignor’s Royalty Interest. There
does not exist under the Pascua-Lama Contract\amt ef default or event or condition that, aftetice or lapse of time or both, would
constitute a violation, breach or event of defaulthe part of Assignor or any other party thereto.

3.3Authority. Assignor has all requisite power and authorityxeagite, deliver, and perform this Agreement ancbitsummate the
transactions contemplated hereby. The executidivet, and performance of this Agreement and thiresammation of the transactions
contemplated hereby by Assignor have been dulyaitidly authorized by all necessary action on thg pf Assignor, and this Agreement
has been duly and validly executed and delivereAdsignor, and is the valid and binding obligatadrAssignor, enforceable against him in
accordance with its terms.

3.4No Conflict; No Required ConsentsThe execution, delivery, and performance by Assigridhis Agreement do not and will not
(i) violate any provision of any law applicableAssignor; (ii) conflict with, violate, result infareach of, constitute a default under (without
regard to requirements of notice, lapse of timeglections of other Persons, or any combinatiorettf¢ or accelerate or permit the
acceleration of the performance required by, amgemgents to which Assignor is a party or by whielishbound or affected; or (iii) require
any consent, approval, or authorization of, onfjlof any certificate, notice, application, reportpther document with, any Governmental
Authority or other Person, other than any filingu#ed to be made by United States securities fawisthe notification to Barrick of the
Public Deed attached hereto as Exhibit A.

3.5No Litigation . No litigation, arbitration or other proceedingoisnding, or to Assignor’s knowledge, threatengdjresst Assignor or
involving Assignor’s Royalty Interest.

3.6Information and Data. Assignor has provided Royal Gold Chile with coppésll correspondence, notes, written informatidaia,
and other documents in his possession or contiatimg to Assignor’s Royalty Interest, includind ebpies of all written communications
with Barrick.

3.7Broker’s Fees. Assignor does not have any liability to pay aegs or commissions to any broker, finder, or agétht respect to the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement foctviRoyal Gold Chile could become liable or oblighte

ARTICLE IV
ROYAL GOLD CHILE'S REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

Royal Gold Chile represents and warrants teigk®or, as of the date of this Agreement and deeftClosing, as follows:
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4.10rganization of Royal Gold Chile. Royal Gold Chile is a Chilean limited liabilitpmpany under formation that at the Closing Date
will be duly organized, validly existing and ownled Royal Gold Inc. and an Affiliate of Royal Goldd. Royal Gold Inc, is duly organized,
validly existing, and in good standing under thedaf the State of Delaware, and has all requisit®er and authority to conduct its activit
as such activities are currently conducted.

4.2Authority. Royal Gold Inc. has all requisite corporate powet authority to execute, deliver, and perform #hggeement on behalf of
Royal Gold Chile and to consummate the transacttonsemplated hereby. At the Closing the executietivery, and performance of this
Agreement and the consummation of the transactionteemplated hereby by Royal Gold Chile will haeei duly and validly authorized by
all necessary action on the part of Royal Gold €Hhihis Agreement has been duly and validly exetcatel delivered on behalf of Royal
Gold Chile, and is the valid and binding obligatmrRoyal Gold Chile, enforceable against it in@clance with its terms.

4.3No Conflict; Required ConsentsThe execution, delivery, and performance by RoyadGhile of this Agreement do not and will not
(i) conflict with or violate any provision of thetiles of incorporation or bylaws of Royal Goldih (ii) violate any provision of any law
applicable to Royal Gold Chile; (iii) conflict witlviolate, result in a breach of, constitute a difander (without regard to requirements of
notice, lapse of time, or elections of other Pesson any combination thereof) or accelerate omitethe acceleration of the performance
required by, any agreements to which Royal Goldedkia party or by which it is bound or affected{iv) require any consent, approval, or
authorization of, or filing of any certificate, nc#, application, report, or other document withy &overnmental Authority or other Person,
other than any filing required to be made by Unisdtes securities laws and the notification tariBRrof the Public Deed attached hereto as
Exhibit A.

4.4Broker’s Fees. Royal Gold Chile does not have any liability fymny fees or commissions to any broker, findeagent with respe:
to the transactions contemplated by this Agreerf@nwhich Assignor could become liable or obligated

ARTICLE V
COVENANTS

5.1Cooperation. Assignor and Royal Gold Chile shall each use cernarally reasonable efforts to take all steps withis or its power,
and will cooperate with the other Party, to cawskd fulfilled those of the conditions to the otRerty’s obligations to consummate the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement tratiapendent upon his or its actions, and to exemdealeliver such instruments and take
such other commercially reasonable actions as reayebessary to carry out the intent of this Agregraad to consummate the transactions
contemplated hereby.

5.2Due Diligence. Following the execution of this Agreement, uttigé Closing Date or earlier termination of this é&gment, Royal Gold
Chile shall have the exclusive right to conducsoeeble due diligence in respect of (i) the ownerglerms and conditions, validity, and g¢
standing of the Assignor’s Royalty Interest, (fietownership, terms and conditions, validity, anddystanding of the concessions and
minerals rights granted by the Chilean courts




in respect of the Pascua-Lama Project; and (ié@)dihfficiency of the surface rights and authoraadiheld by the operator to permit
development of the Pascua-Lama Project. Assigrall sb-operate with Royal Gold Chile in respecsteh due diligence, and, if requested
by Royal Gold Chile, each shall use its reasonefi@ets to facilitate direct communications betwd@myal Gold Chile and Barrick.

5.3Administration of Pascua-Lama Contract.

(a) Immediately following the Closing tRarties shall jointly request that Barrick make dalf of all payments due in respect of
Assignor’s Royalty Interest to Assignor (to reflédasignor’s ownership of the Retained Royalty lagty and the other half of all such
payments to Royal Gold Chile (to reflect Royal GGldile’s ownership of the Purchased Royalty IntgrésBarrick fails or refuses to make
such separate payments to Assignor and to Royal Ghile, the Parties agree that all payments mgd@alrick in respect of both the
Retained Royalty Interest and the Purchased Rol@kyest shall be made to Royal Gold Chile and Rwyal Gold Chile shall upon receipt
of such payments disburse the amount thereof qmneing to the Retained Royalty Interest to Assigno

(b) The Parties acknowledge that if thes@g occurs, they will each own one half of dlttee rights and interests that are now held by
Assignor related to Assignor’s Royalty Interestluding the rights to (i) take payment in-kind) @rotest payments received and conduct an
audit, (iii) inspect operations and designate apamy for the resolution of any dispute with Barrezkacerning commingling of mineral
products, (iv) to resolve other disputes with Bari(v) acquire concessions that Barrick determtoesbhandon, and (vi) consent to a transfer
of the mining concessions Contract Administration Rights ”). The Parties agree that a further agreementdstvwhem concerning the
exercise of the Contract Administration Rights Wil necessary in order to secure to Royal GoldeGhé full benefit of its ownership of the
Purchased Royalty Interest and to Assignor thebifiefit of the Retained Royalty Interest. Promfalowing execution of this Agreement,
the Parties shall negotiate in good faith a supplgal agreement that address the manner in whighwil exercise the Contract
Administration Rights following the Closing.

ARTICLE VI
CONDITIONS

6.1Conditions to Royal Gold Chile’s Obligations. The obligation of Royal Gold Chile to consummtitte transactions contemplated by
this Agreement shall be subject to the followingditions, any of which may be waived by Royal GGldle in its sole discretion:

(a) The representations and warrantigsssfgnor in this Agreement shall be true and aateuin all material respects at and as of the
Closing with the same effect as if made at andf éiseoClosing.

(b) Assignor shall have performed innaditerial respects all obligations and agreemerdsamplied with all covenants in this
Agreement to be performed and complied with by dreébefore the Closing.
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(c) No injunction or restraining orderafy Governmental Authority of competent jurisdictishall be in effect which prohibits the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement angiction or proceeding shall have been institutedranthin pending before any
Governmental Authority to restrain or prohibit amfythe transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

(d) The completion of due diligence toyRloGold Chile’s reasonable satisfaction with respe: (i) the ownership, terms, and
conditions, validity, and good standing of the Assir's Royalty Interest, (ii) the ownership, teraml conditions, validity, and good standing
of the concessions and minerals rights grantedé&yReepublic of Chile in respect of the Pascua-L&mwgect; and (iii) the sufficiency of the
surface rights and surface use authorizationstheBarrick to permit development of the Pascua-L&r@ect.

(e) Receipt by Royal Gold Chile of jusstifle opinions concerning the Acquisition fromléggal and tax advisors that are satisfactory to
Royal Gold Chile, acting reasonably and in goothfai

(f) There shall have not been since tfiediive Date any material adverse change in theevaf, or prospects for, the Pascua-Lama
Project .

6.2Conditions to Assignor’s Obligations. The obligation of Assignor to consummate thedeations contemplated by this Agreement
shall be subject to the following conditions, ariymnich may be waived by Assignor in his sole disiom:

(a) The representations and warrantig®ayial Gold Chile in this Agreement shall be trmel accurate in all material respects at and as
of the Closing with the same effect as if madenat @as of the Closing.

(b) Royal Gold Chile shall have perforniell material respects all obligations and agreets and complied with all covenants in this
Agreement to be performed and complied with by d@rébefore the Closing.

(c) No injunction or restraining orderafy Governmental Authority of competent jurisdictishall be in effect which prohibits the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement angiction or proceeding shall have been institutedranthin pending before any
Governmental Authority to restrain or prohibit asfythe transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

ARTICLE VII
TERMINATION

7.1Termination Events. This Agreement may be terminated and the traimsectontemplated hereby may be abandoned:

(a) at any time, by the mutual writtemesgnent of Royal Gold Chile and Assignor;
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(b) by either Royal Gold Chile or Assignapon Notice to the other Party, at any timehé other Party is in breach or default of its
respective covenants, agreements, or other oldigatierein, or if any of its representations heaeénot true and accurate in all material
respects when made or when otherwise requiredibyAtireement to be true and accurate in all mdtergpects, and such breach, default or
failure is not cured within 30 days of receipt hg ther Party of such Notice;

(c) by either Royal Gold Chile or Assigrupon written notice to the other, if the Clossitall not have occurred on or before the
March 10, 2007 for any reason other than a breadefault by such Party of its respective covenaagseements, or other obligations
hereunder, or any of its representations hereirbeinty true and accurate in all material respebisnimade or when otherwise required by
this Agreement to be true and accurate in all meterspects; or

(d) as otherwise provided herein.
7.2Effect of Termination .

(a) If (i) this Agreement is terminategl Royal Gold Chile pursuant to Section 7.1(b) adAssignor is in breach in any material
respect of any of its representations and warramtiade herein or its covenants or agreements nedat{and Royal Gold Chile is not in
breach in any material respect of any of its regméstions and warranties or covenants made hetk@);

(i) Royal Gold Chile shall have mdmedies available at law or in equity, includihg tight of specific performance and the right
to seek money damages from Assignor for any Laseesred by Royal Gold Chile; and

(i) Assignor shall promptly pay Royal Gold Chile the sum of US $2 million as a ggnor such breach.

(b) If (i) this Agreement is terminateg Assignor pursuant to Section 7.1(b) and (ii) Rayald Chile is in breach in any material
respect of any of its representations and warramtiade herein or its covenants or agreements nedal{and Assignor is not in breach in
any material respect of any of its representat@mswarranties or covenants made herein), then:

(i) Assignor shall have all remediesilable at law or in equity, including the rigiftspecific performance and the right to seek
money damages from Royal Gold Chile for any Lossesrred by Assignor; and

(i) Royal Gold Chile shall prompibay to Assignor the sum of US $2 million as a fitgrfar such breach.
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ARTICLE VIl
INDEMNIFICATION AND GUARANTY

8.1lIndemnification by Assignor From and after Closing, and regardless of any tiy&son made at any time by or on behalf of Royal
Gold Chile or any information Royal Gold Chile mlagve, Assignor shall defend, indemnify and holdflass Royal Gold Chile, its
Affiliates, officers, directors, employees, agematsd representatives, and any third party clairbiyngr through any of them, as the case may
be, from and against any and all Losses arisingpbat resulting from:

(a) any representations and warrantiedeny Assignor in this Agreement not being true aoclirate when made or when required by
this Agreement to be true and accurate; or

(b) any failure by Assignor to performyasf its covenants, agreements, or obligationsis Agreement.

8.2Indemnification by Royal Gold Chile . From and after Closing, Royal Gold Chile shaflesiel, indemnify and hold harmless Assignor
and any third party claiming by or through himlas case may be, from and against any and all E@ssing out of or resulting from:

(a) any representations and warrantiedeny Royal Gold Chile in this Agreement not being and accurate when made or when
required by this Agreement to be true and accuaate;

(b) any failure by Royal Gold Chile torfiem any of its covenants, agreements, or obligetin this Agreement.
8.3Claims for Indemnity; Third Party Claims .

(a) Whenever a claim for Losses shafieafor which one Party (hdemnitee ") shall be entitled to indemnification under this
Article VIII, Indemnitee shall give the indemnifygrparty (“Indemnitor ) Notice promptly after the first receipt of knasdge of such claim,
and in any event within such period as may be macgsor Indemnitor to take appropriate actiondsist such claim. Such Notice shall
specify all facts known to Indemnitee giving risesuich indemnification rights. The right of Indetesi for indemnification, as set forth in the
Notice, shall be deemed agreed to by Indemnitazaslwithin 30 days after receipt of such Notiodemnitor shall notify Indemnitee
writing that it disputes the right of Indemniteeirdemnification.

(b) Upon receipt by Indemnitor of a Netitom Indemnitee with respect to any claim ofiedtparty against Indemnitee, and
acknowledgment by Indemnitor (whether after resotuof a dispute or otherwise) of Indemnitee’s tighindemnification hereunder with
respect to such claim, Indemnitor shall assumelétiense of such claim with counsel reasonablyfaatsry to Indemnitee and Indemnitee
shall cooperate to the extent reasonably requéstéademnitor in defense or prosecution thereof stmall furnish such records,
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information and testimony and attend all such canfees, proceedings, hearings, trials and appsalgag be reasonably requested by
Indemnitor in connection therewith. If Indemnitakaowledges Indemnitegtight to indemnification and elects to assumedifense of suc
claim, Indemnitee shall have the right to emplayoitvn counsel in any such case, but the fees gmehsgs of such counsel shall be at the
expense of Indemnitee. If Indemnitor has assumediéiense of any claim against Indemnitee, Indemshall have the right to settle any
claim for which indemnification has been sought @navailable hereunder; provided that, to the rxigat such settlement requires
Indemnitee to take, or prohibits Indemnitee frokirtg, any action or purports to obligate Indemnitéen Indemnitor shall not settle such
claim without the prior written consent of Indenagf such consent not to be unreasonably withHellddémnitor does not assume the defi
of a third party claim or disputes Indemnitee’'stitp indemnification, Indemnitee shall have thghtito defend against such claim until
Indemnitor’s obligation to indemnify is established pursuarthis Section 8.3, and Indemnitor shall have thltito participate in the defen
of such claim through counsel of its choice, aemaitor’'s expense, but Indemnitee shall have cbotrer the defense and authority to
resolve such claim, subject to this Section 8.3.

8.4Survival of Representations and Warranties; Limitaions Unless specified otherwise in this Agreement, g@esentations and
warranties of Assignor and Royal Gold Chile in thgreement shall survive the Closing for a perib@4 months, except for (i) those
contained in Sections 3.1 and 3.2, which shalligarindefinitely. Assignor and Royal Gold Chile #lf@ve no liability under Sections 8.1
and 8.2, respectively, unless a claim for Lossesviach indemnification is sought thereunder iseates] by Royal Gold Chile or Assignor, as
the case may be, within the applicable survivaigaer

8.5Sole Remedy. Each Party acknowledges and agrees that, shimail@lbsing occur, its sole and exclusive remedynagiéhe other Par
with respect to any breach of representation, wsyra&ovenant, agreement or obligation will be parg to the indemnification provisions set
forth in this Article VIII.

8.6Guaranty . Royal Gold Inc. hereby unconditionally guarantdesobligations of Royal Gold Chile pursuant te tarms of this
Agreement, including without limitation the inderfication obligations set forth in Section 8.2. Hyaindemnification obligation of the Royal
Gold Chile is not paid in accordance with the pstis of this Article VIII, Assignor shall be emitl to collect the amount of any Loss from
Royal Gold Inc.

ARTICLE IX
RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL

9.1Preemptive Rights. If Assignor intends to Transfer all or any pdrttee Retained Royalty Interest, Assignor shalinpptly give Roya
Gold Chile Natice of his intentions (Notice of Proposed Transfer’). The Notice of Proposed Transfer shall stategtiee and all other
pertinent terms and conditions of the intended 3fiem and shall be accompanied by a copy of ther @if the contract for Transfer. If the
consideration for the intended Transfer is, in vehml in part, other than monetary, the Notice @ip@sed Transfer shall describe such
consideration and its monetary equivalent (baseah tipe fair market value of the nonmonetary consitilen and stated in terms of cash or
currency). Royal Gold Chile
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shall have 20 Business Days following delivery dfatice of Proposed Transfer to give Assignor Netithether Royal Gold Chile elects to
acquire the offered interest at the same pricé#gononetary equivalent in cash or currency) anthensame terms and conditions as set forth
in the Notice of Proposed Transfer.

(a) If Royal Gold Chile elects to acquine interest subject to the Notice of Proposeahdfiex, the Transfer described in the Notice of
Proposed Transfer shall be consummated promp#y Bibtice of such election is delivered to Assigrexcept the Transfer shall be made to
Royal Gold Chile.

(b) If Royal Gold Chile declines or faits elect within the period specified in this SentB.1 to acquire the interest subject to
Assignor’s Notice of Proposed Transfer, Assignalidiiave 90 Business Days following the expiratidisuch period to consummate the
Transfer to a third party at a price and on termgess favorable to Assignor than those specifiethé Notice of Proposed Transfer.

(c) If Assignor fails to consummate thaisfer to a third party within the period setffioirt Section 9.1(b), the preemptive right of
Royal Gold Chile in such offered interest shalideemed to be revived. Any subsequent proposaldosfer such interest shall be subject to
and conducted in accordance with all of the prooesiget forth in this Section 9.1.

ARTICLE X
MISCELLANEOUS

10.1Notices. All notices, requests, demands, waivers and atbermunications required or permitted to be givedaur this Agreement
(each a ‘Notice”) shall be in writing and shall be given by anytleé following methods: (i) personal delivery; (i@gistered or certified mail,
postage prepaid, return receipt requested; (iii$ifaile, receipt confirmed; or (iv) by a nationatgcognized overnight courier service. Noti
shall be sent to the appropriate Party at its asdgéven below (or at such other address for sacty Bs such Party shall specify by Notice):

(a) if Assignor, to:
Mario Ivdn Hernandez Alvarez
La Concepcion 266, Suite 701
Providencia, Santiago
Facsimile: 56-2-2331037
e-mail mhdez@ctcinternet.cl
with an informational copy to:
Pedro Deutsch Spiegel
Avda. Andrés Bello 2711- 19floor
Las Condes — Santiago

Facsimile- 56-2-3604030

e-mail: pdeutsch@cariola.
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(b) if to Royal Gold Chile, to:

c/o Royal Gold Inc.

1660 Wynkoop Street, Suite 1000
Denver, Colorado 80202
Attention: President

Facsimile: (303) 595-9385

with an informational copy to:

Royal Gold Chile Limitada

c/o Sergio Orrego

Torre de la Costanera

Avenida Andres Bello 2711, 16th Floor
Santiago Chile

Facsimile: 562-499-5555

(c) if to Royal Gold Inc., to:

1660 Wynkoop Street, Suite 1000
Denver, Colorado 80202
Attention: President

Facsimile: (303) 55-9385

A Party may change its address for Notice by Ndticéhe Other Party. Each Notice shall be effecta)df delivered personally or by
registered or certified mail, return receipt reqedsor by nationally recognized overnight couservice, when delivered at the address
specified in this Section 10.1, and (b) if givenfagsimile, when such facsimile is transmittedrie tacsimile number specified in this
Section 10.1, and confirmation is received; in baibh cases if given on a Business Day during ¢tineaal business hours of the recipient and
if not given during such hours, on the Business Bayng which such normal business hours next occur

10.2Confidentiality and Public Announcements.

(a) Subject to the provisions of Secti@f<2(b) through (f), each of the Parties shalttadl information received from the other Part
in connection with the Acquisition, and Royal Gad. shall treat information received from Assigmoiin connection with the Acquisition,
as confidential and shall not disclose such infairmmaexcept as provided in this Agreement.

(b) A Party or Royal Gold Inc. may dissganformation received subject to Section 10.&{¢)) such of such entitg’ officers, director:
employees, attorneys, accountants or financialsadsiwho have a need to have access to such irtformand (ii) such other persons as the
other Party and Royal Gold Inc. consents in writimgy receive such information.
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A Party or Royal Gold Inc. that discloses inforroatsubject to Section 10.2(a) to its representatageprovided in this Section 10.2(b) shall
be responsible and liable for any improper disalesi the information by its representatives inlaiimn of this Agreement.

(c) The provisions of Section 10.2(a)lshat apply to any information, data and knowledag shown by written records, that (i) is in a
Party’s or Royal Gold Incs' possession prior to disclosure by the other RarBoyal Gold Inc., as the case may be, (ii) ihapublic domai
prior to disclosure by the other Party or Royald@loic., as the case may be, (iii) lawfully comes ia Party’s or Royal Gold Ins,’ as the ca:
may be, possession from a source in accordancetvatterms and conditions, if any, imposed on plaaty by such source with respect to the
use and disclosure thereof, or (iv) lawfully entiérs public domain through no violation of this Agment by the Party or Royal Gold Inc.
receiving the information.

(d) Nothing contained in this Agreememalsbe deemed to prevent a Party or Royal Goldfhoen disclosing any information that is
subject to Section 10.2(a) if, in the opinion oflsyarty’s legal counsel, such disclosure is rexliio be pursuant to an order or direction of a
Governmental Authority having jurisdiction over tiisclosing party ;

(e) Assignor acknowledges that Royal Gotd will disclose the existence and terms andd@@ns of this Agreement and file this
Agreement as required by applicable United Statearities laws, and that Royal Gold Inc. will thefter continue to disclose information
concerning this Agreement, Assignor’'s Royalty letgy and the Purchased Royalty Interest to indastayysts and members of the public.

(f) Following the Closing, Royal Gold Ghand its Affiliates shall have the right to uselalisclose information concerning the
Purchased Royalty Interest, subject only to thesesnd conditions of the Pascua-Lama Contractharaigreement with Barrick.

10.3Severability . If any term or other provision of this Agreeméninvalid, illegal or incapable of being enfordeglany rule of law or
public policy, all other terms, conditions and gesens of this Agreement shall nevertheless rerimafoll force and effect so long as the
economic or legal substance of the Acquisitionasaffected in any manner materially adverse tioegiParty. Upon such determination that
any term or other provision is invalid, illegaliocapable of being enforced, the Parties shall ti@igoin good faith to modify this Agreement,
so as to effect the original intent of the Paréisglosely as possible in a mutually acceptablenerain order that the Acquisition be
consummated as originally contemplated to the stibxtent possible.

10.4Binding Effect; Assignment. This Agreement and all of the provisions herdwfllsbe binding upon and shall inure to the berafit
the Parties and their respective successors andtpet assigns. Neither this Agreement nor anyhefrights, interests or obligations
hereunder shall be assigned, directly or indireatigiuding by operation of law, by either Partytivaut the prior written consent of the other
Party;provided, howeverthat Royal Gold Chile may assign this Agreemert its rights hereunder to an Affiliate without ggor consent
of Assignor.
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10.5No Third Party Beneficiaries . This Agreement is exclusively for the benefitiafsignor with respect to the obligations of Royal
Gold Chile under this Agreement, and for the ber#fRoyal Gold Chile and its permitted assignshwispect to the obligations of Assignor
under this Agreement. This Agreement shall notdentkd to confer upon or give to any other Persgmemedy, claim, liability,
reimbursement or other right.

10.6Entire Agreement. This Agreement (including its Exhibits), constés the entire agreement between the Parties esihect to the
subject matter hereof and supersede all other agogements and understandings, both written aaldlmtween the Parties with respect to
the subject matter thereof, including (i) the lettgreement between the Assignor and Royal Gold diated December 26, 2006 and (ii) the
letter to Assignor from Mr. Tony A. Jensen, Presidend Chief Executive Officer of Royal Gold Indated November 16, 2006, which are
hereby terminated as of the Effective Date, andl bleaof no further force or effect as between Raeties.

10.7Dispute Resolution.

(a) All disputes arising out of or in e@ttion with this Agreement, including any issueedily or indirectly related to this Agreemen
with any of its clauses and effects, including heiit limitation, the existence, validity, applickilyi execution, interpretation, application,
performance or termination of this Agreement ad aglny difference, difficulty or conflict regangj this arbitration clause including the
jurisdiction and authority of the arbitrator ansl @ppointment‘ Dispute ") shall be finally settled under the Rules of Arhtion of the
Arbitration Center of the Camara de Comercio detiSga A.G. (“Chamber ). Prior to the commencement of the arbitratioagadure, the
Parties and Royal Gold Inc. shall have accesset@ttiinary courts of Santiago for any injunctiviefeor other type of preventive action
intended to protect their rights hereunder, withibetneed to apply for the arbitration procedutdeh herein.

(b) The arbitral tribunal will be an “difle mixto” and, therefore, the arbitration tribuishall decide the Dispute and weight the
evidence according to Chilean law. The arbitrapooceedings shall be conducted under the rulesoafedure agreed by the Parties, and i
Dispute involves Royal Gold Inc., by the Partied &oyal Gold Inc., and in all matters not agreedpading to the rules provided in the Rt
of Arbitration of the Chamber.

(c) The Parties and Royal Gold Inc. hgrappoint Mr. Sergio Urrejola Monckeberg as thateator mixto. If Mr. Sergio Urrejola
Monckeberg is unable or unwilling to serve as thsteator, the Parties and Royal Gold Inc. herepyaint Mr. Alberto Pulido Cruz, and if
both of them are unable or unwilling to serve a&sdtbitrator, the Parties and Royal Gold Inc. hgigrlant an irrevocable power of attorney to
the Chamber, upon written request of either of themppoint an “arbitro mixto” from the list of attators of the Arbitration Center of the
Chamber, who shall be proficient in English.

(d) The arbitration shall be conductethia city of Santiago, Chile.
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(e) The arbitration proceedings shaltbeducted in Spanish. If any party involved in @nkitration proceedings so requests, the
arbitrator shall accept that any documents preddnté by such a party, may be written in the Esiglanguage.

(f) Each party to the arbitration prodegd shall cooperate with the other in making @lidiclosure of and providing complete access to
all information and documents requested by thergihgty in connection with such arbitration prodegd, subject only to any confidentiality
obligations binding on such party other than oliiyes under this Agreement or information subjectlient-attorney privilege.

(g) The award of the arbitration tribushkhll be final and binding upon the parties togteceeding, and either party to such
proceedings may apply to a court of competentdioton for enforcement of such award. The Pawied Royal Gold Inc.waive any remedy
against the award.

(h) During any period of arbitration invimg a dispute, the Parties shall in all otheipeess continue their implementation of this
Agreement in the same form that they have beergdsin

(i) The Parties and Royal Gold Inc. agtes the arbitration tribunal may impose interiraasures of protection in the cases
contemplated by the Rules of Arbitration of the @bar, agreeing further that, before the constitutibthe arbitration tribunal such meast
may be requested to and imposed by the ordinamtscofijustice established by law.

(i) The provisions of this Section 10hak continue to apply notwithstanding any termioatof this Agreement.

(k) For purposes of this Section 10.7sigsor, Royal Gold Chile, and Royal Gold Inc. hgrebts each of their special domicile at the
comuna of Santiago, Santiago, Chile.

10.8Governing Law. This Agreement and the rights and liabilities of #arties and Royal Gold Inc. hereunder shall bemped by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the RepuabIChile.

10.9Counterparts . This Agreement may be executed in two or morentayparts, each of which shall be deemed to beigmal, but all
of which, together, shall constitute one and threesagreement and shall become effective when om®og counterparts have been signe:
each of the Parties and Royal Gold Inc. and dedi¢éincluding by facsimile) to the others.

10.10Amendment; Modification . This Agreement may not be amended, modified pplmented at any time except by written
agreement of both Parties and Royal Gold Inc. .

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK
SIGNATURES FOLLOW ON NEXT PAGE]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused thie&gent to be executed as of the date first aboitemw

/s/ Mario Hernande
Mario Ivan Hernandez A

Royal Gold, Inc., on behalf of Royal Gold Chile Liiade
and as Guarantor pursuant to Section 8.6 of thieémger

By /s/ Tony Jense

Title President & CEC
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PURCHASE OF SHARES
HERNANDEZ ALVAREZ , MARIO IVAN
TO
COMPANIA MINERA BARRICK CHILE LIMITADA

IN SANTIAGO, CHILE, on the thirtieth day of June of nineteen ninetyheipefore the undersighdRTURO CARVAJAL ESCOBAR,
attorney at law, Notary Public, holder of the tileventh Notary of this Department, domiciled inedaal Street number one thousand two
hundred and thirty three, the following parties eqed: The first party, being the “Seller”, NMARIO IVAN HERNANDEZ ALVAREZ
who is Chilean, a mining engineer, is married, bolof identity document number four million sevamtbred and sixty three thousand two
hundred and ninety six dash K, domiciled in thty et Guardia Vieja street number two hundred andtg three, office four hundred and

two,




and the other party as “buyer” or “the buyer” be®@@MPANIA MINERA BARRICK CHILE LIMITADA , unique tax identification
number fifty nine million seven hundred and tenhdago, a limited liability company, whose line afisginess is as indicated by the name,
domiciled in Pedro de Valdivia [street] number ¢numdred, eleventh floor, Providencia, Santiagoresgented by M. AURA PHYLLIS
MARIA EMERY , who is Canadian, single, attorney at law, hotafédentity document for foreigners number fourteeitlion five hundred
and ninety eight thousand four hundred and elewash four, and MISERGIO GOMEZ NUNEZ, who is Chilean, married, attorney at law,
holder of national identity card number five mitlidour hundred and nineteen thousand two hundrddarety two dash four, both of whom
are also domiciled at Pedro de Valdivia [streethber one hundred, eleventh floor, Providencia, i8gat all of whom are of legal age and
who showed proof of their identities with the do@nts mentioned above, and decla@dE: Mr. MARIO IVAN HERNANDEZ

ALVAREZ is the owner of one thousand three hundred andtyvseries shares @OMPANIA MINERA NEVADA S.A. , hereinafter
also referred to as “The Company”, a corporatiomstituted by means of the document of public rectagd February seven nineteen
hundred and eighty three, granted before Santiagari Mr. Patricio Rios Vergara, substitute notaryMr. Mario Farren Cornejo, the
extract of which was registered in the Businessi®¥ggof the Santiago Real Estate Registrar, orefagge thousand two hundred and sixty
one, number one thousand eight hundred and twel\tbe year one thousand nine hundred and eightg iI8OMPARNIA MINERA

NEVADA S.A. was formed as a result of the transformation ofcthatract mining company known @OMPANIA MINERA NEVADA
which was originally constituted by means of thewent of public record dated December six nineteerdred and seventy seven, granted
before Santiago Notary Mr. Raul Undurraga Laso Stulte notary for Mr. Luis Azécar Alvarez,




which was registered on page four hundred fifteeaer number twenty five of the Registry of Prop@ftthe Huasco Custodian of Mines,
the year nineteen hundred and seventy seM©: Mr. MARIO IVAN HERNANDEZ ALVAREZ does hereby sell, assign and transfe
one thousand three hundred and twenty B-Seriegshdrich he owns iEOMPANIA MINERA NEVADA S.A. to COMPANIA

MINERA BARRICK CHILE LIMITADA, which hereby purchases, accepts and acquires tivenngh its representativeBHREE: The
shares are sold free of all debt, prohibition, kerencumbrance. Seller does hereby deliver to Buyebehalf of whom the representatives
thereof receive, the share certificates that remtethe shares being transferrE@UR : The purchase price of the shares being sold by Mr.
MARIO IVAN HERNANDEZ ALVAREZ is the amount of six million thirty nine thousambthundred and sixteen dollars of the United
States of America, plus a variable price that béldetermined in the manner established in poiand)following of this clause. The price v
be paid in the following manner: a) The sum of ¢hnallion nineteen thousand six hundred and eighiacs in currency of the United States
of America, which the seller declares to have restio his full satisfaction, b) The sum of onelimil five hundred and nine thousand eight
hundred and four dollars in currency of the UniGtdtes of America, that will be paid within a mawim of ten days after the date on which
COMPANIA MINERA NEVADA S.A. or its successor in ownership of the possessiassptoduced at least thirty thousand troy ounces of
gold within a period of thirty calendar days, c)eT$um of one million five hundred and nine thouseiggtht hundred and four dollars in
currency of the United States of America, that bl paid within the thirty days following the date whichCOMPARNIA MINERA

NEVADA S.A. or its successor in ownership of the possessi@scbmpleted thirty six months




of production of at least thirty thousand troy oemof gold within periods of one calendar monthetliker or not they are consecutive. d) A
sum equivalent to a variable percentage of theymoebsulting from the sale of refined gold@®MPANIA MINERA NEVADA S.A. or of

its successor in ownership of the possessions,rpfrom the mining exploitation concessions owngdhe COMPANY, either totally or
partially, directly or indirectly, and that are &ed within the area demarcated in detail on a fhlahthe parties hereby sign as Appendix A,
and that is legalized, on this date before the rgigieed Notary, with the number one hundred angsix with it being considered that said
appendix forms an integral part of this contrattisTdemarcated area is located within the territdrthe Republic of Chile, between the U1
coordinates that are indicated on said plan. Tyengat will be made each calendar quarter of opmrafor the period of one hundred and
twenty years, as of this date. In the event @@MPANIA MINERA NEVADA S.A. or a company related to it, acquires new mining
concessions within the demarcated area, it with ks obligated to pay the variable price indicatbdve. The above notwithstanding, in the
event thaCOMPANIA MINERA NEVADA S.A. or a company related to it, acquires part of theimgi concessions that are located within
the demarcated area, it shall pay the variablesprigroportion to the participation that it holdghese mining concessions. The value of the
sales will be calculated by assigning to refineltigbe average daily price known as “Cash Settléfrmmthe “London Bullion Brokers”,
“P.M.” Fix” or “London Final”, during the relevamuarter. If the “London Bullion Brokers” ceasesetdst or ceases to issue daily quotations
for gold, all references to said entity shall béenstood to refer to the entity that replaces @ trat establishes daily




reference prices for gold for immediate deliveryaomarket that is open and worldwide in nature. péxeentage to be paid shall be
determined in accordance with the following scdlthe average quarterly price of gold, determirrethe manner indicated: One.- If the
average price of gold is less than or equal toethrendred and twenty five dollars per troy ounke,gercentage will be zero point three two
three five percent. Two.- If the average price aldgs three hundred and fifty dollars per troy oeinthe percentage will be zero point four
three one four percent. Three.- If the averagespifayold is three hundred and seventy five doltenstroy ounce, the percentage will be zero
point five three nine two percent. Fouf.the average price of gold is four hundred dallper troy ounce, the percentage will be zero ik
four seven one percent. Five.- If the average mfawld is five hundred dollars per troy ounces flercentage will be one point one two one
six percent. Six.- If the average price of goldilsshundred dollars per troy ounce, the percentégtide one point four six seven seven
percent. Seven.- If the average price of goldvesdwundred dollars per troy ounce, the percentadibe one point eight one one eight
percent. Eight.- If the average price of gold gheihundred dollars per troy ounce or more, thegrgage will be two point one five six nine
percent. In the event that the average sellingeprfayold per troy ounce is not one of the pricgaldished above, but rather that it falls in
between any two of the segments indicated prewousthis case the percentage to be paid will &eminined by the following calculation:
A) from the average selling price of copper deteadi the lower price of the corresponding segmardtine subtracted; B) the result obtal
from the previous operation is divided by the diéfece between the




upper price of gold and the lower price of golaha corresponding segment; C) The result of theipus operation is multiplied by the
difference between the upper and lower percenthtfeeaorresponding segment; and D) the percerdgatiee definitive variable price to be
paid in said period is determined upon adding &sellt from the previous operation to the lower patage of the segment corresponding to
the lower segment. The method for calculating pleiscentage is detailed in Appendix B which theiparsign and which is understood to
form an integral part of this document. For examiflthe average price in a calendar quarter weitgetthree hundred and ninety dollars, the
percentage to pay would be zero point six zercethiee percent; if the average price were to be iomdred and fifteen dollars, the
percentage to pay would be zero point seven orig #igee percent; and if the average price weteetfive hundred and thirty five dollars,
then the percentage to pay would be one point twio tivo four percent. For these purposes, the atafugold will be determined on the
basis of the number of troy ounces of refined gotttuced byCOMPANIA MINERA NEVADA S.A., its successor, the Buyer or its related
companies, in ownership of the possessions thdbeaged within the demarcated area or deliveraiédCOMPANY or for the account
thereof, by the refinery, smelter, or other prooess which the COMPANY had delivered ore comingnirthe mining concessions that are
located within the demarcated area, during onendalequarter. Refined gold is that which meetsxaeeds the normally commercially
accepted requirements on the commodities markiebiodon or of the United States of America, as gdelivery gold or “Bullion Gold”. e)

An amount equivalent to a percentage calculatethewalue of the sales of unrefined gold contained




the ore or concentrates, precipitates, cathodashieg products, or any other product, either forahtermediate, expressly excluding refined
gold, that has been sold BOMPANIA MINERA NEVADA S.A. or its successor, coming from the exploitationhaf televant mining
concessions that are located within the demarcatal Seller shall have the right to a percentagisearesults of the sale of payable gold by
COMPANIA MINERA NEVADA S.A. or its successor in ownership of the possessiortagtBuyer or its related companies, according to
the payments between these and the refinery, sqetteeessor or other buyer, in market conditidrased on the interchange of analysis
and/or in the corresponding arbitration or othechamism for resolving differences that is stipudatethe relevant contract, during the
calendar quarter, without considering any heddhag inight occur. In order to determine the varigl@decentage applicable to a quarter,
according to the table established in letter dyvabd shall be presumed that the average pri¢heofold will be equivalent to the total price
actually paid during the quarter, divided by thentwer of troy ounces of payable gold determinedafinal settlements for each quarter. For
example, if the value of the payable gold recetp OMPANIA MINERA NEVADA S.A., its successor, the Buyer, or its related
companies, in the sales of a quarter, amountedeandllion dollars for a total of two thousand nimendred and eighty five troy ounces of
payable gold, the average price for the gold waaddhree hundred and thirty five dollars, and thgliaable percentage would be zero point
three six six seven percent; if the value of thgapée gold received b§OMPANIA MINERA NEVADA S.A., its successor, the Buyer, or
its related companies, in a quarter, amounted comlion dollars for a total of four thousand $imndred and fifty one troy ounces of pay:
gold




the average price of the gold would be four hunduedi thirty dollars, and the applicable percentageld be zero point seven eight nine five
percent, if the value of the payable gold receivg@OMPANIA MINERA NEVADA S.A., its successor, the Buyer, or its related
companies, in a quarter, amounted to two millime faiundred thousand dollars for a total of fouruand four hundred and sixty four troy
ounces of payable gold, the average price of the\gould be five hundred and sixty dollars, and dpglicable percentage would be one
three two eight seven percent; f) An amount eqaivialo the percentage of zero point four threefonepercent of the value of the sales that
actually take place as of the first day of Janudhe year two thousand seventeen, but not betfengeriod of one hundred and twenty y
following said date, of copper mineral, BOMPANIA MINERA NEVADA S.A., its successor, the Buyer, or its related compafiies)

said mining exploitation concessions that are kedatithin the demarcated area, during the firstroddr quarter of operation starting from the
date indicated, without considering possible heglgamd net of the deductions indicated below. Tdleesof these sales for the relevant
quarter will be equivalent to the value payable tfe concept of copper, @OMPANIA MINERA NEVADA S.A., its successor, the Buyt
or its related companies, for the refinery, smedteother processor to whi€@OMPANIA MINERA NEVADA S.A. , or a third party, has
delivered, on its behalf, or on behalf of the sssce in ownership of the possessions, the Buyits oelated companies, under market
conditions, with the following deductions: 1) Alf the costs and expenses related to the transjporiaftthe concentrate and/or processing

is external taCOMPANIA MINERA NEVADA S.A., its successor, the Buyer, or its related companies$p the smelter, refinery or




destination port, in other words, ground freighrage costs, third party loading costs, oceaglfiteinsurance during transportation, and
others that are linked to said transportation ll)oAthe costs of outsourced processing or exigracessing tC OMPANIA MINERA
NEVADA S.A., its successor, the Buyer, or its related compan@sducted by third parties, in other words, all tharges for roasting,
metallurgical deductions for copper, charges faidn, treatment, fines or penalties for impurit&sortages, charges for copper refining, and
price participation, as is normally stipulated ba sales and/or processing contracts. Ill) Allhef €xternal costs and expenses that are dit
related to the sale of copper concentrate or metapper coming from the processes, in other wagiernal fees, broker and agency fees,
insurances, storage, third-party supervision, chahainalysis and costs of arbitration procedureslifferences ruled from the metal content,
if any. IV) Any tax or lien applicable to the sal@sto the ocean freight of the products, includingt which is relevant to invoices,
constituting an actual cost, in other words, ora i not recoverable BOMPARNIA MINERA NEVADA S.A., its successor, the Buyer, or
its related companies. The copper will be understochave been sold in the quarter correspondittige@late of payment. In the event that
COMPANIA MINERA NEVADA S.A., or a company related thereto acquires new minimgessions within the demarcated area, it shall
also be obligated to pay the previously mentioremiable price. The above notwithstanding, in thergwhatCOMPANIA MINERA

NEVADA S.A., or a company related thereto acquires a partimihign concessions located within the demarcated, arshall pay the




previously mentioned variable price variable ingouion to the participation that it holds in thesming concession&IVE: In the event th:
COMPANIA MINERA NEVADA S.A., or its successor in ownership of the possessionsgupes, acquires, processes or causes to be
processed, ore or mineral substances taken froinitatipn concessions other than those locatedimvitie demarcated area, whether this
occurs with third parties or through companies #ratrelated t€ OMPANIA MINERA NEVADA S.A ., or with which said company is
affiliated, or in whichCOMPANIA MINERA NEVADA S.A. , has interests, either direct or indirect, theiparereto agree that such ores,
metals and metal concentrates coming from diffeogigins, can be mixed or joined in the various imgnprocesses, or in any other later st
of processing, in which case the payments desciibtte previous clause will only be made in respé¢he refined and unrefined gold, and
after the year two thousand seventeen for coptsjreed or recovered from the ore, metals, andrattiieeral products, extracted from the
relevant exploitation concessions located withindemarcated area described in Appendix A. Forpilnipose COMPANIA MINERA
NEVADA S.A. , its successor in ownership of the possessioaBtiyer, or its related companies, will determime weight or volume, take
samples and analysis of the ore and materials akansaid concessions, before they are mixed argssed jointly. The determination of
weight, volume, sample-taking or analysis will lmaducted in accordance with generally acceptectiplizs and practices in the mining
industry. The weight, volume, sampling and analysii serve as the basis for the calculation @& layments that must be made in
accordance with this




contract, in the event that a joint sale of orestmixed, the seller is expressly authorized, thhowg the entire period in which payment of the
balance of the variable price remains in forcengpect the area where the products and ore aracéadi, and to review the manner and
procedure with which the weight, volume and origirsaid ore and products is determined, that seaseke basis for determining the variz
price. In the event that there is any differencthancalculations, procedures or other aspectsaffextt the determination of the variable price,
the parties shall designate, by common agreemeatyngany of renown international prestige in otderesolve the differences that exist, at
the expense of the party that makes the requdstsaia difference in its favor is found, in whiase the expense will be born by the other
party. The Seller shall exercise this right in saaanner as to not hinder or interfere with tradpction processes in any way, and shall
advise the general managet@®MPANIA MINERA NEVADA S.A. or its successor at least fifteen days in advaiocehe purpose of
coordinating the visitSIX: All of the payments established in United Statdtadowill be paid in Chilean currency converted¢@uaing to the
Observed Dollar Exchange Ratetiffo de cambio del dolar observatjothat was valid for the day prior to that on whicyment takes plac

IF the Observed Dollar Exchange Rate ceases tg &xé the exchange rate to be used shall bevédrage exchange rate that is certified by
any three of the following banks, on request bysiiéng company, for the date on which paymerffiscted: Citibank NA, Banco de Chile,
Banco Santiago, Banco de Crédito e InversionesBamdo Santander in their relevant Santiago bran®ems owed shall not accrue
interest, except in the case of default or simgle payment, in which case common interest wiltl@rgedSEVEN : The amounts that are
determined for payment in each




quarter shall be paid, in Chilean currency, witthie period of thirty days following the end of sajgiarter. Each payment shall be
accompanied by documentation in support of theutation of the amount of refined and unrefined geldd also copper after the year two
thousand seventeen produced by the pertinent maungessions that are located within the demarcatsal the average price of gold, and
the percentage determined. For all legal purpdbessettlements presented by the buying compagiyediby its duly appointed
representatives, shall be presumed to have beeulatd correctly unless they were objected teetuted, in writing, within the period of no
more than 90 days following presentation thereaf.chiims shall be admissible thereafter, suchttt@payments that are made in accordance
with the settlements that are not objected to | $featonsidered as being finIOMPANIA MINERA BARRICK CHILE LIMITADA

hereby commits and is obligated to obtain frE@MPANIA MINERA NEVADA S.A. permission to access and place at the disposheof t
seller and/or independent auditors contracted eys#ller, at its own expense, all of the documantatlated to the statements and
calculations of production and sales. Such auditorst be those of a company that is registered th@lSuperintendent of Banks and
Financial Institutions in the Republic of Chile,donduct auditing on financial institutions. In erdo exercise this right, the Seller or its
successors shall always act by common consentghrawcommon legal representative appointed by aiDeat of Public Record. This
provision shall be applicable to all successorsassignees of the Seller, under any title whatsodweurn, COMPANIA MINERA

BARRICK CHILE LIMITADA, hereby commits and is obligated to impose on a hirrchaser of shares @OMPANIA MINERA
NEVADA S.A. to which this contract refers, the




obligation to respect and adopt the provisionsstimlilations established herein in favor of thde3glts successors and assigns, under any
titte whatsoever. In like manner, it is an obligatithat, in the event of transfer of the possessibat are located within the demarcated area,
referred to in Appendix A, the purchaser thereaflishssume the above obligations. These obligasbai be established in the purchase
contractEIGHT : The Seller may choose to have the payments comdgmpto the percentage of production of refineltigdescribed in
sub-paragraph “d” of Clause Four above, conductethéans of the physical delivery of actual goldyivich case it shall notify the Buyer at
least sixty days in advance of the relevant payrdate. This option will only be possible to theamttthat legal regulations and the banking
rules of the Central Bank of Chile permit the ex@muthereof, for both the Buyer and the produpeoyided that it does not imply any
additional tax, contribution or levy. The Selleaimot have the right to this option with regaoduin-refined gold that could be contained in
ore concentrates. In like manner, the Seller mapsé to have payment of the purchase price oftthees referred to in this contract, made in
United States Dollars, but only to the extent thghl regulations and the banking rules of the @éank of Chile permit itNINE : The
parties hereby declare that nothing in this agregmmay be interpreted as being an obligation fertthyer acting for himself or in
representation cEOMPANIA MINERA NEVADA S.A. or its successor in ownership of the possessiorsriduct exploitation of the
mining concessions identified in the demarcated,aseof assuring that such exploitation shall hawe specific duration, characteristics, or




production. TEN: For all of the purposes of this contract, refersrtoerefined gold or “bullion gold”, shall be constd as being made from
gold ore with a content of ninety nine point fiverpent pure gold. In the same manner, referenceetooncept of “hedging” shall be
understood as all operations whose objective ésure or determine the future selling price oflpats.ELEVEN : The parties hereby agr
that, in the demarcated area detailed in Appendithére are both mining exploitation concessiorgsraiming exploration concessions, either
already constituted or in the process thereofneXOMPANIA MINERA NEVADA S.A. , or under its control. The new exploitation
concessions acquired or obtained®®MPANIA MINERA NEVADA S.A. or any company related thereto, within the demartatea, wil
be incorporated into the provisions of this corttréidor any reaso©OMPARNIA MINERA NEVADA S.A., its successor, or a company
related thereto, decides to not continue or rengnoé the mining concessions contained within thmdrcated area, in respect of whose
terrain there is no mining concession constituteith the process thereof, it shall offer to transfie proportion to its previous share
participation, as applicable, for the price of ¢imed of the value of the most recent permit, te sihareholders Gerardo Findel Steppes or his
estate, Jaime Ugarte Abrego or his estate, JainaetéJtyee or his estate, and/or Mr. Mario lvan Hedez Alvarez or his estate, all of whom
shall state, in writing, within the following thyridays, their acceptance thereof. After the expfrgaid period without them having stated tl
intention to accept the offeOMPANIA MINERA NEVADA S.A. shall be empowered to dispose of said concessiowbatever manner

is most suitable for its




interestsTWELVE : In order to guarantee payment of the variable pontif the price mentioned in Clause Four of thiswhent,
COMPANIA MINERA NEVADA S.A. is obligated to not dispose of nor transfer theingjrconcessions identified in Appendix “Athat are
located within the demarcated area, without therpsiritten consent of the selling party, and thishibition shall remain in force until such
time as the obligation to pay the variable parthefprice that the buyer assumes, has been exaimepli This prohibition shall be recorded in
the relevant Registry of the Custodian of Minesloksco, Vallenar. The above notwithstanding, théigmagree to release the prohibition
agreed on previously, in order to all@®MPARNIA MINERA NEVADA S.A. to dispose of said mining concessions for the potpose of
registering contracts by virtue of whiGOMPANIA MINERA NEVADA S.A. transfers ownership of said concessions, if, inréfevant
contracts, the new purchaser recognizes that feptecthe obligation for himself and formally angbkoitly commits to paying the variable
part of the price indicated in points d), e) andffClause Four of this document, and that he likevis obligated to constitute, in the same
document of public record by which he purchasesarship of the concessions that are located witiendiemarcated area, the same
prohibition thatCOMPANIA MINERA NEVADA S.A. constitutes hereby. In any eveBQMPANIA MINERA BARRICK CHILE
LIMITADA [and] its successor shall be responsible to tHersdbr payment of the variable part of the prioethe portion that is not paid by
the new purchaser. The Custodian of Mines of Huagatlenar, after having complied with the abovguieement, shall carry out whatever
registrations are applicable for the indicated psgy without requiring that new documents




be provided by the parties. The same procedureateti above shall be applied if the new purchaseuyn, desires to dispose of the
identified mining concessions that he had acquiredhich case only the prohibition on disposalllsbe lifted, and only for the purpose of
registering the relevant contract, if, in turn, tieav purchaser accepts and commits to paying thabla part of the price referred to in Clause
Four and constitutes the same prohibitions thaagreed on here. Thus, whomever acquires the maungessions that are subject to the
prohibition against disposal and transfer, musthecontract by which he purchases the possesisientfied previously, accept and commit
to paying the seller, the variable part of the @iidicated in points d), e) and f) of Clause Fafuthis document, and to constitute the same
prohibition that is hereby constituted BPMPARNIA MINERA NEVADA S.A. The parties hereby expressly declare that the pitan to
dispose of or transfer, in favor of the Sellereredd to in this clause, shall not be applicabkt m&ither shall it affect the liens, guarantees,
mortgages or prohibition to dispose of or transfegne or more acts, th@OMPANIA MINERA NEVADA S.A. or its successor in
ownership of the possessions, provides as surethédinancing of the project for the exploitatiohthe concessions that are located within
the demarcated area, in favor of one ore more banédit institutions or financial entities, eitHecal or foreign, and neither shall it affect
exercising of the rights derived from said liensagntees, mortgages or prohibitions. Without liegito the foregoing, in the event that the
banks, credit institutions or financial entitiegereed to above, require so for the purposes destrabove, the seller shall be obligated to
provide the documents that are necessary to postip@guarantee in favor of the banks, credittinsdins or financial entities, in order to
permit the constitution of the liens, guarantees,




mortgages or prohibitions alluded to, including takevant releases therefrom, at the mere reqéi¢lse Buyer THIRTEEN: The seller
expressly waives all legal action to which he cdagdentitled by reason of or because of this cohfoa the purchase of shares. In like
manner, the parties hereby declare that the ponasdf the contract titled “Contrato de Opcion MandeCOMPANIA MINERA NEVADA
S.A.” which was signed on February twenty seven of nereteindred and seventy eight before Santiago Ndary/ictor Bianchi, substitu
for Mr. Andrés Rubio Flores, as amended, includmgamendment dated February seven of nineteetydfgikee, made before the Notary

Mr. Patricio Rios, substitute for Mr. Mario Farr€ornejo.FOURTEEN . Any doubt or difficulty that arise between the pestregarding this
contract, the documents that compliment it or mpdijfeither in relation to the interpretation thef, compliance, validity, termination or any
other issue related to this contract, shall belvesicthrough arbitration in accordance with theag of the Arbitration Center of the Santiago
Chamber of Commerce A.G., whose provisions areesird by the document of public record dated Deeedfbnineteen ninety two
granted before the Santiago Notary Mr. Sergio Rpaiz Garcés, which forms an integral part of thasse, the parties declaring that they
acknowledge and accept it. The parties conferramacable special power of attorney on the Sant@gamber of Commerce A.G. such that
on the written request of either party, it shabideate an arbitrator from among the members oAthération Body of the Arbitration Cent

of said Chamber, who shall arbitrate in relatiothi® procedure but legally in relation to the dieciof the matter. There shall be no recourse
to appeal against the resolution of said mixectiatair, and the




parties do hereby waive such. The designated athitis specially empowered to resolve all mattelasted to his competence and jurisdict
For all legal purposes, the parties set their ddenés the city of Santiago. The applicable legisfashall be Chilean lavBIXTEEN : Presen
at the signing hereof aMr. KEVIN ATKINSON TEAR, who is British, married, a chartered accountantidded at Pedro de Valdivia o
hundred, floor 11, Providencia, Santiago, identdyd for foreigners number eight million eight hvedland twenty four thousand, five
hundred and ninety eight dash nine, and MBERNANDO RAMIREZ POBLETE, who is Chilean, married, a civil engineer, domidik
Pedro de Valdivia one hundred, floor 11, Providan8antiago, national identity card number foutiarilseven hundred and seventy three
thousand eight hundred and sixty six dash zerepresentation cEOMPANIA MINERA NEVADA S.A. , whose line of business is as the
name suggests, with the same domicile as thas oéiresentatives, who state that they understashdecept all of the stipulations contained
in this document, and which obligate the compary they represent to obtain the authorizationithgiven to the sellers to obtain from
COMPANIA MINERA NEVADA S.A . all of the documentation related to the statesyesglculations of production and sales, as wethe
obligation of COMPANIA MINERA NEVADA S.A. to not dispose of or transfer the mining concessidantified in Appendix A and that
are contained within the demarcated area. The &gals of MSLAURA PHYLLIS MARIA EMERY andSERGIO GOMEZ NUNEZ, for
COMPANIA MINERA BARRICK CHILE LIMITADA is witnessed by the document of public record ddtet 10, nineteen ninety eic
granted before Santiago Notary Mr. Eduardo Aveltm¢€ha, which is not inserted at the request optrées since it is known to them. The
legal status of MIKEVIN ATKINSON TEAR and of Mr.FERNANDO RAMIREZ POBLETE, for COMPANIA MINERA NEVADA




S.A ., is witnessed by the Document of Public Recortédidune twelve nineteen ninety eight, grantedreeS@ntiago Notary Mr. Eduardo
Avello Concha, which is not inserted at the requéshe parties since it is known to thelN.WITNESS WHEREOF and after having read,
those present signed.COPY IS GIVEN | ATTEST .-

/s/ Mario lvan Hernandez Alvare

MARIO IVAN HERNANDEZ ALVAREZ
C.I.LN° 4.773.296-K

/sl Laura Phyllis Maria Emel /sl Sergio Gomez Nufi
LAURA PHYLLIS MARIA EMERY SERGIO GOMEZ NUNEZ
C.l. de Ext. 14.598.41-4 C.1.N°5.419.29-4

COMPANIA MINERA BARRICK CHILE LIMITADA

/sl Kevin Atkinson Tea /s/ Fernando Ramirez Poble
KEVIN ATKINSON TEAR FERNANDO RAMIREZ POBLETE
C. |. Ext. 8.824.598-9 C.I.N° 4.773.876-0

COMPARIA MINERA NEVADA S.A
/s/ [ILLEGIBLE]




THIS COPY IS A TRUE AND FAITHFUL REPRESENTATION OF THE ORIGINAL.- SIGNED AND SEALED ON THIS DATE.
IDENTIFICATION N° 2:917-98.- SANTIAGO JUNE 30, 1998.






EXHIBIT 31.1
I, Tony Jensen, certify that:
() I have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Royal Gold, Inc.

(2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omsitéde a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

(3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statementso#tmer financial information included in this reptairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

(4) The registrant’s other certifying officer and | assponsible for establishing and maintaining disaie controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e&15(f) and 15-a5(f), for the registrant and hay

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and plaes or caused such disclosure controls and puoegsdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatmeg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this quarterly report ity preparec

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed uni
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuram@ading the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regstsadisclosure controls and procedures and predantthis report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls adgatures, as of the end of the period coveredibydport based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change inrdgistrant’s internal control over financial repogt that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo&) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; &

(5) The registrant’s other certifying officer and | Meadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluafionieynal controls over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(@ All significant deficiencies and materiaéaknesses in the design or operation of intern@tals over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regie’s ability to record, process, summarize and refprahcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdtves management or other employees who havendisant role in the registrant’s
internal controls over financial reportir
February 9, 2007

/sl Tony Jense

Tony Jensel
President and Chief Executive Offic







EXHIBIT 31.2
I, Stefan Wenger, certify that:
(1) I have reviewed this report on Form-Q of Royal Gold, Inc.

(2) Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report da#santain any untrue statement of a materialfiactomits to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading with respect
to the period covered by this repc

(3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statementso#tmer financial information included in this reptairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

(4) The registrant’s other certifying officer and | assponsible for establishing and maintaining disaie controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e&15(f) and 15-a5(f), for the registrant and hay

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and plaes or caused such disclosure controls and puoegsdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being preszh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed uni
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuram@ading the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regmtsadisclosure controls and procedures and predemir conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proes] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;
and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change inrdgistrant’s internal controls over financial regiog that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo&) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; &

(5) The registrant’s other certifying officer and | Meadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluafionieynal controls over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@s persons performing the equivalent
functions):

(@ All significant deficiencies and materiaéaknesses in the design or operation of intern@tals over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regie’s ability to record, process, summarize and refprahcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdtves management or other employees who havendisant role in the registrant’s
internal controls over financial reportir
February 9, 2007

/sl Stefan Wengge

Stefan Wenge
Chief Financial Officel







EXHIBIT 32.1

In connection with the quarterly report on FormQ®&f Royal Gold, Inc. (the “Company”), for the pmtiended December 31, 2006, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#tte hereof (the “Report”), I, Tony Jensen, Predidad Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section01 3% adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sasb@nley Act of 2002 that, to my
knowledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand result of operations of the
Company

February 9, 2007

/sl Tony Jense

Tony Jensel
President and Chief Executive Offic







EXHIBIT 32.2

In connection with the quarterly report on FormQ®&f Royal Gold, Inc. (the “Company”), for the pmtiended December 31, 2006, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#tte hereof (the “Report”), I, Stefan Wenger, Cliigfancial Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, agp#stbpursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxbewf 2002 that, to my knowledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand result of operations of the
Company

February 9, 2007

/sl Stefan Wengge

Stefan Wenge
Chief Financial Officel




